


Established in March 1997, The Hong Kong
Mortgage Corporation Limited' is wholly owned

by the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region Government through the Exchange
Fund. It has three wholly-owned subsidiaries,
HKMC Insurance Limited (HKMCI), HKMC
Annuity Limited (HKMCA) and HKMC Mortgage
Management Limited (HMML).

Missions

To promote:

e stability of the banking sector
wider home ownership
development of the local debt market
development of retirement planning market

Credit Ratings

S&P Moody's
Short-term Long-term Short-term Long-term

Local Currency A1+ AA+ P-1 Aa3

Foreign Currency A-1+ AA+ P-1 Aa3

Outlook Stable Negative
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Financial Highlights

2024 2023 2022
(restated)’
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FOR THE YEAR
Net interest income 617,961 396,909 355,891
(Loss)/profit for the year? (418,040) (259,502) 2,162,750
Loan purchases? 9,047,668 27,561,675 37,710,170
Debts issuance* 88,418,112 89,876,034 71,765,425
Net premiums written
— General insurance businesses 892,202 1,663,021 2,211,270
— Annuity business 4,358,642 1,606,402 2,528,733

AT YEAR END
Loan portfolio, net 95,496,673 109,499,818 102,186,811
Debt securities issued 148,299,636 161,718,497 131,075,272
Risk-in-force
— Mortgage insurance® 103,300,086 108,112,016 99,117,659
— Reverse mortgage insurance® 21,389,135 18,594,126 16,276,063

OTHER STATISTICS

Net interest margin’ 0.4% 0.2% 0.2%
Cost-to-income ratio? (232.9)% (471.00% 9.7%
Return on equity? (1.5)% (1.0% 10.0%
Capital adequacy ratio 19.9% 21.6% 27.9%

From 1 January 2023, the Group has adopted Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 17 “Insurance Contracts” (HKFRS 17). As required by the accounting
standard, the Group applied the requirements retrospectively with comparative figures previously published under Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard
4 “Insurance Contracts” restated from 1 January 2022, the transition date.

For comparison purposes, after adjustments to exclude (a) the accounting results of the annuity business; (b) the impact of property price change on the
insurance result of the Reverse Mortgage Programme; and (c) the consolidation adjustments after adoption of HKFRS 17 in respect of the Group's loan
portfolio with insurance cover provided by the HKMC Insurance Limited, the adjusted profit for the year, return on equity and cost-to-income ratio for 2024
would be HK$787 million, 4.8% and 27.6% respectively (2023: HK$724 million, 5.3% and 28.1% respectively; and 2022 restated: HK$445 million, 3.2% and
34.5% respectively).

Including the purchase of loans with the Special 100% Loan Guarantee under the SME Financial Guarantee Scheme and the Dedicated 100% Loan
Guarantee Scheme amounted to HK$5.2 billion fully guaranteed by the Government for 2024 (2023: HK$24.7 billion and 2022: HK$33.4 billion).

For debts with tenor of one year or above.

The risk-in-force excludes exposure that has been covered by quota-share reinsurance arrangement.

The risk-in-force includes the outstanding balance and undrawn commitment of a reverse mortgage loan, excluding outstanding exposure or balance that
has been covered by quota-share reinsurance arrangement or held in the Group's loan portfolio. Undrawn commitment refers to the amount of expected
future payout to the borrower based on the payment term.

For comparison purposes, after excluding the impact of the purchase of loans with the Special 100% Guarantee under the SME Financial Guarantee
Scheme and the Dedicated 100% Loan Guarantee Scheme (since April 2023) under which the Group only recovered the funding costs without any net
interest margin earned, the adjusted net interest margin would be 0.8% (2023: 0.5% and 2022: 0.5%).
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Chairman’s Statement

Fulfilling core missions to
benefit society.

Chan Mo-po, Paul

Chairman

In 2024, The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
(HKMC) and its subsidiaries (collectively, Group)
continued to fulfil their core missions and social objectives,
contributing to the steady growth of Hong Kong's economy
amid an increasingly complex and evolving environment.

Mortgage-Asset Purchases

The Corporation purchased residential mortgage loans of
about HK$392 million in 2024. While banks showed limited
interest in offloading mortgage assets, the Corporation
continues to stand prepared to purchase such loans as
needed, with the objective of reinforcing banking stability in
accordance with its mandate.

Debt-Market Promotion

As a wholly government-owned entity with strong credit
ratings, the Corporation remains a major corporate debt
issuer in Hong Kong. In 2024, the Corporation issued debt
securities in major currencies amounting to HK$103.5
billion, including the issuance of triple-tranche, benchmark
bonds worth HK$12 billion in February, at the time Hong
Kong's largest senior, unsecured public bond transaction.
The Corporation’s third social bond issuance in October
was worth about HK$23.8 billion, the largest of its kind
in the Asia-Pacific. These two landmark transactions
demonstrated the dynamism of Hong Kong's debt market
and international investor confidence in the Corporation.

Home-0Ownership Support

Promoting wider home ownership remains a core mission
of the Corporation. Since the introduction of the Mortgage
Insurance Programme (MIP) in 1999, the Corporation had
facilitated home purchases for about 235,000 families by
the end of 2024. In line with changes in the local housing
and mortgage markets, new loans drawn down under the
MIP decreased to HK$47.9 billion in 2024, from HK$83.1
billion the previous year.

A new arrangement under the MIP was introduced in
August 2024 to allow users, on fulfilment of certain
conditions, to rent out their self-occupied properties to
meet personal needs arising from changes in personal or
family circumstances.

Support for Small Businesses

The Corporation approved loans totalling HK$288.5 billion
under the SME Financing Guarantee Scheme by the end of
2024. These loans benefitted about 22,400 local small and
medium-sized enterprises and 374,400 related employees
under the 80% and 90% Guarantee Products, as well as
some 40,000 companies and 400,000 related employees
under the Special 100% Guarantee Product. The application
period for the Special 100% Guarantee Product expired at
the end of March 2024 with the return to normalcy after
the pandemic. This notwithstanding, enterprises in need of
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Chairman’s Statement

support can continue to apply for loans under the 80% and
90% Guarantee Products, as well as a 12-month principal
moratorium as announced in the 2024 Policy Address, to
alleviate repayment pressures.

The Government also entrusted the Corporation to
administer Dedicated 100% Loan Guarantee Schemes to
help the travel sector and the cross-boundary passenger
transport trade resume business in the post-pandemic
period. From the Schemes' commencement in April 2023
to the end of 2024, the Corporation approved about 230
applications with a total loan amount of HK$220 million,
benefitting about 120 licensed travel agents and some 650
local or cross-boundary vehicles. The Schemes’ application
period ended in October 2024.

To encourage taxi owners to replace their existing liquefied
petroleum gas, petrol or hybrid taxis with battery electric
taxis, the Corporation was invited by the Government
to administer another Dedicated 100% Loan Guarantee
Scheme for battery electric taxis launched in September
2023. At the end of 2024, more than 100 applications had
been approved with loans totalling about HK$36 million,
facilitating the replacement of some 110 existing taxis with
battery electric taxis.

Retirement-Planning Solutions

Last year, the Corporation introduced an enhanced payout
and premium discount campaign for the HKMC Annuity
Plan, offering greater income protection for its customers.
The response has been overwhelming. By the end of

2024, premiums received had reached HK$4.4 billion, the
highest total since the launch of the annuity business in
2018. With stepped-up marketing, customer engagement
and distribution efforts, the Reverse Mortgage Programme
and the Policy Reverse Mortgage Programme also saw an
increase in applications in 2024.

In support of the silver economy, the Corporation will
continue to develop retirement planning and undertake
customer education initiatives.

Infrastructure Financing and Securitisation

The Corporation’s infrastructure financing and securitisation
business operates on prudent commercial principles.
In 2024, the Corporation continued to accumulate
infrastructure loan assets riding on its strong credit
standing and funding capability. In September, it completed
its second infrastructure loan-backed securities’ issuance
worth US$423.3 million, further advancing Hong Kong's
development of infrastructure-financing securitisation.

Financial Performance

The Group reported a net loss of HK$418 million for the
year, compared to a net loss of HK$260 million in 2023.
The deeper loss was primarily attributable to the negative
accounting impact of the property price drop on the
reverse mortgage business, although partly mitigated by
the increase in net interest income, together with the return
from Exchange Fund placements.
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The Group’s adjusted profit for the year was HK$787
million, compared to HK$724 million in 2023, after netting
the accounting results of the annuity business, the impact
of the property price change on the reverse mortgage
business and the effect of accounting adjustments of
certain loan portfolios with insurance cover provided by
the Group. At the end of 2024, the annuity business had
an embedded value of about HK$12.4 billion, comprising
HK$11.2 billion in total equity and HK$1.2 billion reflecting
the present value of future profits. That's a solid financial
position for long-term business development.

The Corporation’s capital adequacy ratio stood at 19.9%
(2023: 21.6%), a solid capital base for business expansion.
The respective solvency ratios of the Corporation’s two
insurance subsidiaries were four times for the general
insurance business and 1.7 times for the annuity business.
Both are well above relevant minimum regulatory
requirements, in accordance with the risk-based capital
regime in effect since July 2024.

Outlook for 2025

The headwinds facing the global economy increased with
rising geopolitical tension and protectionism, in particular
after the US had unilaterally escalated its tariffs on the rest
of the world. As a small and open economy, Hong Kong's
near-term economic outlook is unavoidably affected to a
certain extent. The Government has been providing support
through various measures to local enterprises, in particular
the small and medium-sized enterprises. At the same time,
in response to the changing global market environment
and the new demand thus emerged, the Government will
expedite its effort in attracting enterprises, capital, and
talent. The Corporation will continue to serve the people of
Hong Kong and support businesses in need with dedication
and resolve.

I am grateful to my fellow Board members for their
guidance and advice, as well as the management and staff
of the Corporation and its subsidiaries for their unwavering
dedication and support.

<

i G

Chan Mo-po, Paul
Chairman
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Organisation Structure

HKMC Annuity Limited

Long Term Insurance Business

The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited

HKMC Insurance Limited

General Insurance Business
Asset Purchase and Debt Issuance

HKMC Mortgage
Management Limited

Loan Purchase, Origination and Servicing
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Organisation Structure

HKMC Board

Board Committee

Audit
Committee

Corporate Risk
Management
Committee

Infrastructure

Financing and

Securitisation
Investment
Committee

Management Committee

Asset and
Liability
Committee

Credit
Committee

Transaction
Approval
Committee

Operational
Risk
Committee

Longevity
Risk
Committee

IT Steering
Committee

Environmental,
Social and
Governance
Committee

Infrastructure
Financing and
Securitisation
Collateral
Manager
Committee

I
Executive Director Committee

Executive Director
and Chief Executive
Officer
Mr Colin POU, »»

(appointed on
26 December 2024)

Mr Raymond LI, »
(retired on 26 December 2024)

Senior Vice
President
(Operations) /
Executive Director
and Chief Executive
Officer of
HKMC Insurance
Limited

Mr Clement CHAN

Chief Investment
Officer

(Infrastructure Financing
and Securitisation)

Mr Mike CHENG

Senior Vice

President
(Finance)

Mr Raymond LIU

Senior Vice
President
(Risk)

Mr Desmond CHENG

General Counsel

Ms Joanna WONG

Vice President
(Marketing and Business Development)
Ms Angela LEUNG

Vice President
(SME Financing Guarantee Scheme
Operations of
HKMC Insurance Limited)
Ms Irene MOK

Vice President
(Insurance Business Operations of
HKMC Insurance Limited)

Mr Maurice YIP

Vice President
(Operations)
Mr Kris YEUNG

Vice President
(Digitalisation Office)
Mr Eric CHENG

Head of Infrastructure Risk
Infrastructure Financing
and Securitisation
Mr Francis OR

Head of Infrastructure Investment
Infrastructure Financing
and Securitisation
Mr Calvin TAN
(from 15 May 2024)

Head of Securitisation
Infrastructure Financing
and Securitisation
Mr Keith LAU
(from 1 May 2025)

Head of Portfolio Management
Infrastructure Financing
and Securitisation
Ms Clara LEE
(from 1 May 2025)

Principal ESG Officer
Infrastructure Financing
and Securitisation
Mr Anthony KEUNG
(from 14 February 2024)

Head of Execution
Infrastructure Financing
and Securitisation
Mr Robert TAM
(from 15 April 2024)

Vice President
(Information Technology)
Mr Alex LUK

Financial Controller
(Financial Control)
Mr Tim PANG

Treasurer
(Treasury)
Mr Calvin TAM

Vice President
(Pricing and Quantitative Risk)
Mr Mickey CHAN

Vice President
(Information Risk Management)
Mr Alan WU

Vice President
(Risk Management)
Ms Kathleen YEUNG

Counsel
Ms Celia CHAU

Counsel
Mr Garrick CHUNG

Counsel
Ms Grace LEE

Chief Compliance Officer’
(Counsel)
Mr LIM Merng Phang

Counsel
Ms Ines WEI

Vice President
(Administration and
Human Resources)
Ms Joyce WONG

Reporting to the Chief Executive Officer through the General Counsel

Reporting to the Chief Executive Officer on daily administrative function
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HKMCI Board

Board Committee

Audit

Committee

Executive
Director
Committee

Risk Executive Director
Committee and Chief Executive
Officer

Internal’
Audit

Reporting to the Chief Executive Officer on daily administrative function
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Organisation Structure

HKMCA Board

Board Committee

Audit

Committee

Executive Director
and Chief Executive
Officer

Management Committee

Risk

Management
Committee

1 Reporting to the Chief Executive Officer on daily administrative function
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Board of Directors

The Hon. Paul CHAN Mo-po, GBM, GBS, MH, JP

Chairman and Executive Director
Financial Secretary

Mr Eddie YUE Wai-man, Jp

Deputy Chairman and Executive Director

Chief Executive

Hong Kong Monetary Authority

Mr Howard LEE Tat-chi, Jp
Executive Director

Deputy Chief Executive

Hong Kong Monetary Authority

The Hon. Christopher HUI Ching-yu, Bs, JP
Non-Executive Director
Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury

Mr Colin POU Hak-wan, Jp
Executive Director and

Chief Executive Officer
Executive Director

Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(appointed on 26 December 2024)

The Hon. Winnie HO Wing-yin, Jp
Non-Executive Director
Secretary for Housing
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Mr Raymond LI Ling-cheung
Executive Director and

Chief Executive Officer
(resigned on 26 December 2024)

The Hon. CHAN Hak-kan, sBs, Jp
Non-Executive Director

Member of Executive Council
Member of Legislative Council



The Hon. Paul TSE Wai-chun, Jp
Non-Executive Director

Member of Legislative Council
Founder & Senior Partner,

Paul W. Tse, Solicitors

Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing, BBS, MH, JP
Non-Executive Director

Aavisor to the Board

BDO Limited

The Hon. Jimmy NG Wing-ka, BBs, JP The Hon. SHIU Ka-fai, BBs,JP
Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director
Member of Legislative Council Member of Legislative Council

Ms Margaret KWAN Wing-han
Non-Executive Director
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Highlights of the Year
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iFAST Global Markets (Hong Kong) e

In our recent seminar, we invited Mr. Terry Chui. also known as “Lum Sir.” Founder
of Homebloggerhk. to share his insights and real-life case studies on retirement
planning. We were aso privileged to have representatives from The Hong Kong
Mortgage Corporation Limited (HKMC), deliver insightful presentations on the
Policy Reverse Mortgage Programme (PRMF)*, and the Reverse Mortgage
Programme (RMP)A,

Participants had the opportunity for one-on-one consultation with HKMC. gaining a
deeper understanding on both PRMPA & RMPA.

Thank you to everyone who attended this event! We look forward to continuing our
mission of providing knowledge and tools for a secure financial future.

#iFAST #iFASTGlobalMarkets #HKMC #PRMP #RMP #RetirementPlanning
#WealthManagement

 The Policy Reverse Mortgage Programme and the Reverse Mortgage Programme
are operated by HKMC Insurance Limited. The programmes are subject to relevant
terms and conditions.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Introduction

About this Report

Reporting Scope and Boundaries

This report provides an overview of the Group's environmental, social and governance (ESG) framework, initiatives and
performance for the period of 1 January to 31 December 2024, which is in alignment with the Group's financial year. It
outlines the Group’s implementation of its sustainability objectives and how it acts as a responsible corporate citizen
as well as its commitment to integrating relevant environmental and social factors into its operations and adherence to
high corporate governance standards. Unless stated otherwise, the reporting scope of this report aligns with the Group's
consolidated financial statements for the above reporting period, covering the activities of the Corporation and all its
subsidiaries.

Reporting Standards and Principles

In preparing this report, the Group has given consideration to the disclosure requirements of the International Sustainability
Standards Board'’s International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) Sustainability Disclosure Standards — IFRS S1 General
Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-related Financial Information and IFRS S2 Climate-related Disclosures. The
Group aims to progressively enhance its sustainability and climate-related disclosures to align with IFRS Sustainability
Disclosure Standards and other applicable reporting frameworks.

A Snapshot of Key ESG Milestones

Formed the Sustainability Working Group (SWG)

Established the Social, Green and Sustainability Financing
Framework (SGS Framework) for sustainable financing

Issued inaugural social bonds
Conducted first ESG materiality assessment

e Updated ESG materiality assessment
through double materiality analysis

e Conducted first climate scenario

analysis and stress testing exercise

Established decarbonisation action

plan to support climate commitments

and carbon neutrality goals

Incorporated ESG into risk

management by establishing the

Established the ESG Committee (ESGC) to oversee ESG
matters

Adopted the ESG Statement and ESG Guiding Principles

Formulated the Responsible Investment, Lending and
Business Decision-making Principles (RILBP)

Issued second social bonds ESG Risk Management Framework
e Completed inaugural Infrastructure e Continued to issue sustainable
Loan-Backed Securities (ILBS) financing instruments, including third
issuance with a sustainability tranche social bonds
® Published first Social Bonds Allocation e Issued second ILBS with an
Update and Impact Report increased sustainability tranche

Enhanced office recycling and waste
reduction practices
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ESG Strategy Framework

ESG Strategy

The Group’s ESG strategy serves to guide its approach to incorporating ESG factors into its operations. It is built around
three pillars, namely “Contributing to the Society”, “Upholding Governance Standards, Operational Resilience and
Workplace Inclusion” and “Meeting Environmental Concerns”, which are embedded in the Group’s ESG Statement and ESG

Guiding Principles.

ESG Statement

The Group is committed to operating and carrying on business in a responsible and sustainable manner while applying
high standards of corporate governance. This commitment is embedded in the way it operates, serves its customers,
accounts to its stakeholders, cares for its staff, manages its impact on the environment and contributes to the community.

ESG Guiding Principles

Contributing to the Society Upholding Governance Standards, Meeting Environmental Concerns
Operational Resilience and

e Offer financing solutions that
Workplace Inclusion

support home ownership, facilitate

¢ Devise strategic response to and
implement plans to meet the risks

retirement financial planning, and e Adhere to best practices of and ride on opportunities relating
help to meet the financing needs of corporate governance and maintain to climate change and Hong Kong's
small and medium-sized enterprises high standards of professionalism, long-term sustainability vision
(SMEs) in Hong Kong integrity and ethics in its work

e Adopt and integrate ESG principles
e Provide products and services that e Safeguard operational resilience and in its investment, lending and

facilitate banks’ liquidity and risk information security by continuous business decision-making activities
management to promote stability of risk surveillance, system set-up and
the banking sector in Hong Kong proper response e Strive for positive environmental
impact with its operations and
e Support the financial and debt e Promote inclusion and equality in the promote eco-friendly work practices
markets in Hong Kong, and talent workplace, and foster staff wellness and culture
developments as well as financial and development

education, in areas pertinent to its
core missions
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ESG Governance
ESG Governance Structure

Effective ESG governance is critical to executing the ESG strategy of and driving long-term value creation for the Group.
Below is a diagram illustrating the Corporation’s ESG governance structure.

Board of Directors

Oversee overall business
strategy (including ESG strategy)
and related risks and
opportunities

o—©

Audit Committee

Conduct independent review of
the business operations

ESG Committee .
Keep informed on

ESG matters

~ 7 Taddressed by T
Review and approve ESG management
strategy, policies, frameworks committees

and approaches

Sustainability

Working Group

Formulate and implement
ESG work plans

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2024

Other Management

Ccommittees

Manage ESG-related issues,
where relevant to matters under
their purview, in line with ESG
policy requirements
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Board of Directors

The Board is the highest governance body of the
Corporation and bears ultimate responsibility and oversight
for the overall business strategy (including ESG strategy)
and related risks and opportunities of the Group. The
Board has overall responsibility for ESG risk management,
including the approval of the ESG risk appetite and the
oversight of the prioritisation and effective integration of
ESG considerations into business strategies.

At the quarterly Board meeting, ESG strategy updates and
implementation progress are presented through the Chief
Executive Officer's Report, ensuring the Board's continuous
oversight of ESG matters.

The Board consists of non-executive Directors who are
well-equipped with relevant skills and competencies from
different backgrounds and industries and either represent
or work closely with officials and stakeholders from the
Government and the public sector. On appointment,
Directors are provided with induction materials to familiarise
them with the Group's operations and businesses including
ESG-related matters, as well as their responsibilities as a
Director.

ESG Committee

To effectively implement its ESG strategy, the Corporation
has established the ESGC to lead the Group’s sustainability
initiatives, ensure ESG management is integral to the
Group’s overall business strategy, as well as to enhance and
promote overall ESG performance. The ESGC is responsible
for reviewing, approving and updating the Group’s ESG
strategy, policies and plans, as well as overseeing their
implementation while analysing and monitoring the
ESG trends and topics that are material to the Group
and ensuring appropriate skills and competencies are
available to provide oversight. The ESGC will also oversee
the establishment and maintenance of systems, policies
and processes to identify and manage ESG risks and
opportunities, and evaluate the performance of the Group
in achieving its ESG-related goals and targets and report the
progress to the Board.

The ESGC is chaired by the Chief Executive Officer of the
Corporation and its members include the Chief Executive
Officers of the HKMC Annuity Limited (HKMCA) and the
HKMC Insurance Limited (HKMCI) and senior staff from the
relevant functional departments and teams of the Group.
The ESGC meets regularly to discuss relevant matters
relating to ESG in accordance with its terms of reference.
The ESGC held meetings throughout 2024 to discuss
and decide on ESG matters including, for example, the
implementation of ESG materiality assessment, formulation
of greenhouse gas (GHG) inventory and decarbonisation
plan, performance of climate change analysis and stress
test, and enhancement of ESG risk management processes.

For more details on how the Group uses controls and
procedures to support the oversight of ESG risks and
opportunities, please refer to “Incorporating ESG into Risk
and Opportunity Management” section of this report.

Sustainability Working Group

The SWG, comprising relevant department heads and
supporting staff, is tasked to assist the ESGC in formulating
and implementing ESG work plans. The SWG also helps to
identify ESG topics, risks and opportunities of the Group
while facilitating the co-ordination of different business
units and functions to determine key ESG metrics and
targets for monitoring and reporting.

Stakeholder Engagement

Stakeholder engagement is a valuable tool in shaping
the Group’s strategy development process. Open and
transparent dialogue with relevant stakeholders helps the
Group to identify and evaluate ESG risks and opportunities
affecting its business. Through various engagement
channels, the Group has maintained communications with
its stakeholders over the years, gaining an understanding of
their expectations and perspectives on different ESG issues.
The Group reviews their responses and opinions to guide
its prioritisation of ESG topics and enhance its sustainability
performance.
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In 2024, the Group conducted a stakeholder assessment to identify, assess and prioritise ESG matters based on the relative
influence and interests of the stakeholders. The results of the assessment were then utilised to support the development
of a stakeholder engagement plan. This plan detailed the respective engagement channels, approaches and frequency to
engage with different stakeholder groups. With an improved understanding of its stakeholders’ views, the Group was able
to update and prioritise material ESG topics that guide the formation of its ESG strategy. This has further enhanced the
alignment of its business practices with stakeholders' expectations and facilitated informed decision-making.

The following table summarises the main stakeholder groups, their key interests raised during the year and the preferred

methods of engagement.

stakeholder Groups

Investors

Customers and local
communities

Shareholder

Business programme partners
and financial sector
participants

Suppliers, contractors and

service providers

Staff

Government and regulators

Professional bodies and
industry associations

Non-governmental
organisations and media

Key Interests in 2024

¢ Promotion of banking sector stability in
Hong Kong

e ESG disclosures

e Sustainable financing opportunities

e Cybersecurity and data protection
¢ Product offerings, transparency and
application process enhancements

e Accomplishment by the Group of its
core missions

e Customer satisfaction
¢ Product offerings, transparency and
responsibility

e Open, fair and transparent
procurement

Welfare and compensation packages
Alignment with the Group's strategies
Digitalisation and productivity

Green office and operations

Business ethics and compliance
o Corporate governance

e Greenwashing and greenhushing
e Technology adoption

¢ Social impact and contribution to the
communities
e Ethical practices

Preferred Engagement Channels

Investor meetings and conferences
Annual and interim reports

Emails

Announcements and circulars

Service hotlines and emails

Social media platforms and mobile
applications

Public outreach and education events
Corporate websites

Internal strategic meetings
Annual and interim reports
Announcements and circulars

Annual and interim reports
Consultation meetings and calls
Emails

Corporate websites

Industry events

Supplier due diligence procedures and
performance reviews
Meetings and communications

Pulse surveys and focus group meetings
Performance reviews

Emails, intranet and newsletters
Training and development programmes

Meetings and conferences
Public consultations
Industry events

Industry events

Corporate awards and recognitions
Corporate memberships and
subscriptions

Public relations hotlines and emails
Press releases and media interviews
community engagement events
Corporate websites
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Materiality Assessment

Assessment Approach

Material ESG topics are the topics that hold the most
significance for a company and its stakeholders, both
internal and external, and they have a significant impact
on the company’s business operations, performance and
stakeholder interests. By conducting regular materiality
assessments, companies can maintain awareness of ESG
trends, regulatory changes and best practices. Such regular
assessments allow them to adapt their ESG management
strategies on a timely basis and address relevant emerging
risks while ensuring reasonable and efficient allocation of
resources. The Group carried out its first ESG materiality
assessment in 2022 and, using feedback from stakeholder
engagement combined with peer analysis and industry
benchmarking, identified nine material topics. In 2023, the
list of material topics was re-assessed and confirmed to still
be pertinent to the Group’s business operations.

Recognising that ESG trends, socio-economic environment
and views of stakeholders both inside and outside the
Group on ESG topics may have evolved over time since the
first assessment in 2022, the Group appointed an external
consultant in 2024 to conduct an extensive review and
update the existing list of material topics to keep pace with
and take into account stakeholders’ expectations. The
exercise adopted a double materiality approach, whereby
the potential material topics were evaluated from two
dimensions: impact materiality and financial materiality.

Materiality

Perspective Definition

Impact Evaluate the significance of each ESG

materiality topic based on its potential impact on the
economy, environment and society.

Financial Assess the extent to which each ESG

materiality topic presents financial risks and

opportunities that could materially affect
the Group.

The detailed steps taken for the double materiality
assessment are as follows:

Step 1: Identifying a list of potential material topics
through materiality analysis

Based on the material topics identified in the previous
materiality assessment, a materiality analysis using a
number of local and international sources was applied to
capture the ESG topics likely to be relevant to the Group.
This included consideration of sector-specific standards
and guidelines related to sustainability, including the
Sustainability Accounting Standards Board Industry
Standards. Benchmarking research was conducted against
selected industry peers’ material topics. ESG megatrends
potentially relevant to the Group were also reviewed.

This process of desktop research was used to form an
updated list of 13 material topics for further evaluation and
input from stakeholders.

Step 2: Evaluating and prioritising material topics
With reference to the updated list of material topics, the
Group conducted a survey of both internal and external
stakeholder groups to understand their views on the impact
of selected material topics and the Group's sustainability
performance. Stakeholders were asked to assess the impact
materiality — that is, the extent each topic could impact
the economy, society and environment, both positively and
negatively — of each topic to inform the prioritisation of
material topics.

In addition, in-depth interviews and focus group discussions
with selected representatives from or familiar with different
stakeholder groups provided further insights into both
financial materiality and impact materiality of identified
topics, as well as their thoughts on the potential impact,
risks and opportunities associated with these topics.

The material topics were then prioritised based on the
assessment results.
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Step 3: validating double materiality assessment outcomes
The ESGC considered and validated the double materiality assessment and the resulting prioritised list of material topics.

The Group will regularly review the list of material topics and when necessary, perform appropriate double materiality or
other assessments to ensure that the list is up-to-date and relevant.

Material Topics

The table below showcases the 2024 material topics and their linkage to the Group’s core missions, ESG pillars and related
United Nations’ Sustainable Development Goals (UN SDGS).

The Group’s Core Missions

- . . : Development of Local Development of Retirement
Stability of Banking Sector | Wider Home Ownership Debt Market SR e

ESG Pillars of the Group

@ e

1
Contributing to the Society Upholding Governance Standards, Operational Meeting Environmental Concerns

Resilience and Workplace Inclusion

ESG Material Topics of the Group

o @ ® C ©

Financial Solutions to Promotion of Banking Corporate Business Ethics Privacy and Climate Sustainable and Green
Support Homebuyers, Sector Stability and Governance and Compliance  Information Security Change Responsible Operations
Retirees, SMEs and Other  Development of Financial Investment, Lending
Relevant Parties and Debt Markets and Business
-C' Decision-making
Customer Engagement Community Investment Employment and Product Technology
and Education Labour Practices Responsibility Adoption
|

600D HEALTH DECENT WORK AND 5 GENDER DECENT WORK AND DEGENT WORK AND
AND WELL-BEING ECONOMIC GROWTH EQUALITY ECONOMIC GROWTH ECONOMIC GROWTH

*| @i o

INDUSTRY, INNOVATION m REDUCED 11 SUSTAINABLE CITIES gunusm,mmnm 16 PEACE, JUSTICE 13 CLMATE
AND INFRASTRUCTURE INEQUALITIES AND COMMUNITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE AND STRONG ACTION

— e
® | S | ile o | x

Related
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Incorporating ESG into Risk and Opportunity Management

ESG Risk Management
The Group manages ESG risks under its ESG Risk Management Framework which sets out a holistic approach in governing

and managing the ESG risks of the Group across different business operations and functions.

The ESG Risk Management Framework includes components such as ESG risk appetite, governance, risk assessment, as

well as climate risk stress testing and monitoring of ESG risks using defined metrics.

ESG Risk Appetite
The ESG risk appetite defines the constraints for ESG risk levels and includes the controls for managing ESG risks. It has
been integrated into the risk appetite statement of the Group to ensure all relevant risks it faces are managed properly.

ESG Risk Governance
The ESGC is the governance committee for managing ESG risks of the Group. In line with the Group's risk governance

structure, the responsibilities for managing ESG risks are allocated across the three lines of defence by the ESGC.

Three Lines of Defence for ESG Risk Management

Line of Defence Responsible Function(s)

First line

Second line

Third line

Major Responsibilities

¢ Follow internal policies and procedures in managing ESG

risks arising from day-to-day operations and maintain
sufficient awareness and understanding to identify and
assess potential ESG risks

Responsible for ESG risk assessment, ESG risk management  Risk management and
frameworks and policies, ESG risk monitoring across compliance functions
different business activities, and ensuring the relevant ESG

policies and procedures are in compliance with applicable

ESG standards and regulations

Responsible for audits of the Group's operations to Internal audit function
ensure robustness of the internal control systems and

compliance with the internal policies and relevant regulatory

requirements (including ESG-related processes and controls)
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ESG Risk Management Process
The ESG risk management process of the Group consists of three steps:

Risk Identification Risk Control and Risk Monitoring

and Assessment |— Mitigation I_ and Reporting |—

e |dentifying ESG e  Setting up control e Monitoring and
risks and assessing and mitigation reporting ESG risks,
their potential and measures aligned and developing
actual impact on with the Group's ESG risk metrics to
the Group's core missions, provide early
operations and strategic objectives warning signals for
businesses and risk appetite necessary actions

ESG Risk Identification and Assessment

The Group recognises that ESG issues pose potential risks to its operations, reputation and performance, and has thus
identified the ESG risks pertinent to its operations and businesses by reference to various internal and external information
sources, including relevant sustainability-related standards.

The Group has assessed the severity of the ESG risks by considering their impact and likelihood. Among other relevant
considerations, the assessment evaluates the impact of ESG risks on the Group's reputation, customer relationships, media
strategy, legal and compliance obligations, and financial performance.

ESG Risk Control and Mitigation

The Group’s ESG risk controls and mitigation measures have taken into account its strategic objectives and risk appetite.
These measures include the development and implementation of internal policies and procedures to mitigate and control
ESG risks.

ESG Risk Monitoring and Reporting
To ensure effective control and mitigation of evolving ESG risks (including climate risks), the Group monitors them on an
ongoing basis through ESG risk metrics and the monitoring results will be regularly reported to the Board.

Material ESG Risks

The Group’s material ESG risks (other than climate-related risks) are identified as below, and these risks will be monitored
and managed under its ESG risk management process. For information on the climate-related risks of the Group, please
refer to “Climate Risk Management” section of this report.
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Examples of Risk Transmission Pathways’

Reputation  Operational Legal and
Risk Types and Risk Drivers Risk Risk Compliance Risk The Group's Responses
Social
Society and Customer ¢ Understand stakeholders' needs and
maintain dialogues with customers
Failure to consider social inclusion o Set up eligibility criteria and conduct
in product design and conduct J J J suitability assessments

appropriate suitability assessments for

* Maintain product/process sign-off

customers mechanism to ensure relevant risk

factors are considered in designing and
implementing new or enhanced products

Demographic Trends ¢ Understand and, where appropriate,
address community demands for product

Failure to observe and respond to N N development and enhancement

changes in Hong Kong's demographic

trends

Governance

Corporate Governance ¢ Uphold a robust governance structure
supervised and managed by officials

Ineffective corporate governance from the Government and the Hong Kong

structure Monetary Authority

" V N e Deliver on its core missions and manage

risk appetite to guide the risk-taking
process

e Maintain proper checks and balances
under the three lines of defence

Human Resources e Enhance talent attraction and retention and
implement competency-based selection

Unable to attract and retain  Monitor manpower and performance and

suitable talent or incorporate equal facilitate staff training

opportunities and inclusion into the  Maintain and enhance the Equal Opportunities

organisation Policy to foster workplace equality

" " \ * Establish gender-neutral and disability-

inclusive recruitment and promotion
practices

e Implement robust staff welfare policies
and provide competitive remuneration
packages, fringe benefits, promising career
paths and development opportunities

Information Security e |mplement information security-related
internal policies, procedures and guidelines

Cyber threats and data leakage N N V e Implement appropriate controls to prevent,
detect and respond to evolving cyber
threats

Innovation and Digitalisation e Support new technology adoption for

Failure to adopt new technology N business development through its

properly Digitalisation Office

36

Examples of risk transmission pathways include:

(a) Reputation risk — If the Group fails to take due consideration of ESG factors in products, businesses and strategies or fails to meet expectations
in ESG disclosures, it may face negative perceptions from the public, market and stakeholders. Such perceptions could adversely affect the
Group's ability to maintain or establish business relationships.

Operational risk — Failure to incorporate ESG policy changes into the Group’s internal processes and controls may result in operational risks and losses.
Legal and Compliance risk — 1) Failure to comply with ESG-related regulations and standards, including disclosure requirements, may expose
the Group to potential regulatory actions as well as reputation damage; 2) Regulatory risk may lead to increased operational costs and
expenditures required for compliance with ESG-related regulations, requirements and standards; and 3) The Group may face ESG-related legal
actions that could disrupt or negatively affect its operations or financial conditions.

QT
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ESG Opportunity Management

The Group has identified potential ESG opportunities relevant to the Group based on the materiality assessment exercise
detailed in "Materiality Assessment” section above. In particular, with reference to the list of material ESG topics, various
departments, with the support of an external consultant, assessed and considered which opportunities the Group could
focus on. Further discussions and planning activities would be conducted according to the feasibility of, and appropriate

timing for, capitalising on these opportunities.

Material ESG Opportunities

Material ESG opportunities (other than climate-related opportunities) in relation to the Group’s business are set out in the
table below. For information on the climate-related opportunities of the Group, please refer to “Climate Opportunities”

section of this report.

Opportunity Description

Social Opportunity: Offering of retirement
financial products that cater to the growing
aging population

Social Opportunity: Promotion of the
securitisation market and the debt market
generally

Governance Opportunity: Improved work
efficiency and reduced labour costs by
providing staff with training and job rotation
opportunities

Environmental Opportunity: Cost savings
and improved operational efficiency through
green initiatives such as energy-saving and
waste-reduction measures

The Group’s Responses

¢ |dentify community demands and needs to adjust and enhance the

Group's product development strategy

e Collaborate with industry players and promote investment

opportunities, such as infrastructure financing and securitisation, to

investors

¢ Implement diverse training and development programmes for staff

e Launch enhanced recycling initiatives and environmentally-friendly
programmes
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Contributing to the Society

Delivering Socially Responsible Financial Products
Solutions for Homebuyers

Since 1999, the Group has been operating the Mortgage
Insurance Programme (MIP), established as an integral
part of mortgage financing in Hong Kong. The MIP helps a
potential homebuyer with limited resources to make the
down payment to purchase a property. Through the MIP,
the HKMCI provides insurance coverage to MIP participating
banks, enabling the banks to extend mortgage loans with a
higher loan-to-value (LTV) ratio. In addition, the Corporation
has introduced the Fixed Rate Mortgage Scheme for fixed-
rate mortgages, which provides an alternative financing
option that can help mitigate the risk of interest rate
volatility for homebuyers.

Relevant ESG Impact Metric

Metric 2024 2023

Number of households supported?

by the MIP (since launched) 235,181 225,844 e the homeowner has other special needs
to rent out his/her property, and has been
residing in the relevant property for not less
than 12 months.
2 The number of households supported includes count of the same household which is or has been supported through application for new loan

drawdown and/or refinancing under the MIP since its launch.

Case Study

New Arrangement under the MIP — Waiver
of Owner Occupancy Requirement for Eligible
Homeowners

Understanding that homeowners have their own
special needs arising from changes in personal or
family circumstances, a new arrangement under
the MIP was put in place in August 2024 to approve,
on a case-by-case basis, eligible homeowners'
applications to rent out their self-occupied
properties. The eligible circumstances include
where:

o the homeowner’s family is expecting
newborn(s) or adopting child(ren), resulting in
a change in housing needs;

. the homeowner has become unemployed
and requires more flexible housing or financial
arrangements; or
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Solutions for Retirees

Shifting into retirement can bring a myriad of financial
hurdles, particularly as regular pay cheques cease. Many
seniors, despite saving diligently, may find their retirement
savings fall short when it comes to managing daily costs
and handling the higher expenses of healthcare associated
with increased longevity.

The Group has introduced the “HKMC Retire 3" branding,
with the Reverse Mortgage Programme (RMP), the Policy
Reverse Mortgage Programme (PRMP) and the HKMC
Annuity Plan (Annuity Plan) promoted together as a
holistic solution for retirement planning. These three
products provide the elderly with immediate, stable and
lifelong streams of income to supplement their daily
expenses after retirement, strengthening their financial
security and improving their quality of life. Relatively
illiquid assets are utilised as collateral, including residential
properties for the RMP, death benefits of life insurance
policies for the PRMP, or contribution of a lump-sum single
premium for the Annuity Plan. These products offer retirees
the peace of mind that comes from income continuity.

Relevant ESG Impact Metrics

Metrics 2024 2023
Number of senior citizens receiving

payouts from the Annuity Plan® (in-force) 21,617 15,349
Amount of total payouts by the HK$4,017  HK$2,952

Annuity Plan (since launched) million million
Number of accumulative policies*

under the RMP® (since launched) 7,666 6,616
Amount of total payouts by the RMP HK$8,676  HK$6,800

(since launched) million million
Number of accumulative policies*

under the PRMP® (since launched) 126 79
Amount of total payouts by the PRMP HK$8.7 HK$3.7

(since launched) million million

Case Study

Annuity Plan Product Enhancements and
Promotional Offer in 2024

The Annuity Plan provides senior citizens with an
important option in enhancing their financial well-
being by providing lifelong income protection
to safeguard against longevity risk. In 2024, the
HKMCA introduced enhancement measures and
a promotional offer for the Annuity Plan, which
garnered an overwhelming public response and
resulted in a total collected premium amount of
HK$4.4 billion. Beyond providing financial protection,
the HKMCA also promotes public education
initiatives to raise awareness of longevity risk and
emphasise the importance of life annuity products in
retirement financial planning.

3 Basic eligibility for the Annuity Plan: The applicant should be a Hong Kong permanent resident aged 60 or above.
4 The number of accumulative policies represents the number of total policies in respect of loan origination and/or refinancing under the RMP and the

PRMP, respectively, since their launch.

5 Basic eligibility for the RMP and the PRMP: The applicant should generally be aged 55 or above and a holder of a valid Hong Kong identity card.
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Solutions for SMEs

SMESs are a cornerstone of the Hong Kong economy. As
at June 2024, the 360,000 SMEs operating within the city
provided job opportunities for over 1.2 million individuals,
accounting for more than 44% of the workforce in the
private sector¢. Despite their resilience, these SMES have
been facing challenges in their business operations amid
uncertainties in the global economic environment. To
help tide SMEs and non-listed enterprises over financial
difficulties, the Government provides support for bank
financing to SMEs with the 80% and 90% Guarantee
Products of the SME Financing Guarantee Scheme (SFGS)
under the entrusted operation of the HKMCI.

To alleviate the cash flow challenges faced by enterprises
affected by the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19)
pandemic, the Government launched the Special 100% Loan
Guarantee in April 2020 as temporary special measures
under the SFGS, aiming to support enterprises that were
suffering from reduced income and to safeguard jobs.
As society has returned to normalcy after the COVID-19
pandemic, the Special 100% Loan Guarantee expired and
ceased accepting new applications at the end of March
2024.

Relevant ESG Impact Metrics

Acknowledging that the economic recovery needs further
reinforcement and mindful of the fluctuating market
conditions, the Government continues to offer support to
SMEs in tackling their capital flow problems. To this end, the
application period of the 80% and 90% Guarantee Products
of the SFGS has been extended for two years to end-March
2026. Complementing this extension, the total guaranteed
commitment under the SFGS was increased further by
HK$10 billion.

To further alleviate the repayment pressure on borrowing
enterprises, and help them address challenges brought
about by economic restructuring, the Government
announced enhancements to the SFGS in “The Chief
Executive’'s 2024 Policy Address” in October 2024. For
both existing and new loans, borrowing enterprises under
the SFGS could apply by 17 November 2025 for a principal
moratorium for up to 12 months, while the maximum loan
guarantee periods of the 80% and 90% Guarantee Products
have been extended to ten and eight years respectively. In
addition, partial principal repayment arrangement would be
offered for new loans under the two guarantee products.
These measures took effect on 18 November 2024.

2024 Awarded the “Best SME's

*’J\ﬁﬁ%ﬁ#ﬂfiﬁ Partner Award 2024"
= \& —————

U
Best SME's Pariner Award DY The Hong Kong General
Chamber of Small and

Medium Business

Metrics Relevant Products 2024 2023
Number of SMEs benefitted 80% & 90% Guarantee Products’ 22,400 19,500
from the SFGS (since launched) Special 100% Loan Guarantee 40,000 39,000
Estimated number of employees 80% & 90% Guarantee Products’ 374,400 352,900
supported? by the SFGS Special 100% Loan Guarantee 400,000 392,000
(since launched)
6 Source: Census and Statistics Department (2024)
7 The number of SMEs benefitted and estimated number of employees supported are calculated to avoid double counting of applications by enterprises
using both the 80% and 90% Guarantee Products.
8 The estimated number of employees supported represents the total number of employees (full-time and/or part-time) of the borrowing enterprises as

declared in their latest application for the respective product(s) under the SFGS.
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Solutions for Specified Sectors

The travel and tourism sectors were among the most
affected during the outbreak and spread of the COVID-19
pandemic. To support the business resumption of the
travel sector and the cross-boundary passenger transport
trade, the HKMCI launched the Dedicated 100% Loan
Guarantee Scheme (DLGS) in April 2023 to provide loans
fully guaranteed by the Government to eligible licensed
travel agents, owners of local tour coaches, and vehicle
owners or ferry owners/operators of cross-boundary
passenger transport. The application period for the DLGS for
Travel Sector and the DLGS for Cross-boundary Passenger
Transport Trade expired on 28 October 2024.

Meanwhile, to support Hong Kong's target to achieve zero
vehicular emissions by 2050, the Government has been
actively promoting the use of electric vehicles and has
established a target of introducing about 3,000 battery
electric taxis (e-Taxis) by the end of 2027. To encourage
the taxi trade to switch to e-Taxis, the HKMCI launched the
DLGS for Battery Electric Taxis in September 2023, with an
application period of five years, to provide loans for eligible
taxi owners to replace their liquefied petroleum gas, petrol
or hybrid taxis with e-Taxis.

Promoting Banking Stability and Local Financial
and Debt Market Development

The Group upholds its role in promoting banking and
financial stability whilst executing sound risk management
practices. To achieve this mission, the Group maintains a
proactive approach, standing ready to acquire mortgage
assets from the banking industry through the Mortgage
Purchase Programme (MPP). Also, the MIP enables
participating banks to provide mortgage loans at higher
LTV ratios without incurring additional credit risk. It serves
as a safeguard against potential losses from mortgage
defaults that exceed the established LTV thresholds, thus
contributing to Hong Kong's banking stability. Furthermore,
through the provision of the 80% and 90% Guarantee
Products of the SFGS, the HKMCI extends guarantee
coverage for bank loans to eligible SMEs, helping to
reinforce the overall stability of the banking system.
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As a leading corporate debt issuer in Hong Kong, the
Corporation plays a crucial role in cultivating the local debt
market. This is achieved not only through regular debt
issuances, but also by launching innovative debt products
and contributing to the evolution of the debt and financial
markets. In 2024, the Corporation maintained its position
as the most active issuer in the HKD corporate bond
market and was also a major CNH corporate bond issuer.
The Corporation is well placed to continue promoting
the development of the local debt market, fulfilling the
investment appetite for high-grade debt assets of both
domestic and international investors.

Case Study
Debt Market Development in 2024 — HK$12
Billion Benchmark Bond Issuance
In February 2024, the
Corporation successfully
launched and priced
its triple-tranche HKD
benchmark bonds
totalling HK$12 billion,
comprising HK$8 billion
- 2-year, HK$3 billion 5-year
and HK$1 billion 10-year
bonds. It was the largest-ever HKD senior unsecured
public bond transaction in the institutional market at
the time of issuance.

With the participation of 20 local and international
financial institutions, the transaction was well
received by a diverse group of high-quality local
and overseas institutional investors with strong
orderbook of over HK$37 billion and final allocation
to over 180 accounts.

This triple-tenor issuance not only extended the
Corporation’s public bond issuance across the yield
curve, but also set a solid benchmark for other
public sector entities and local high-grade issuers
to follow. It was recognised by market participants
that this record-setting transaction underscored the
pivotal role of the Corporation in the development
of local debt market and promotion of investors'
confidence in Hong Kong's economy.

In line with its missions to promote banking stability and
local debt market development and to help consolidate
Hong Kong's position as an infrastructure financing hub,
the Corporation launched the Infrastructure Financing
and Securitisation (IFS) Business in 2019. The Corporation
has since been actively participating in the infrastructure
financing market by purchasing and accumulating
infrastructure loans from commercial banks and co-
financing infrastructure projects in partnership with
multilateral development banks and commercial banks,
with a view to pursuing the securitisation of infrastructure
loans to facilitate the flow of capital into infrastructure
investments.

Since 2023, the Corporation has been leading the issuance
of ILBS as a channel for directing investments from the
capital markets into infrastructure assets. Additionally, the
inclusion of a sustainability tranche within its recent ILBS
transactions provided investors with an option to invest
their capital in sustainable, green and socially impactful
infrastructure projects.
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Case Study

Successful Issuance of the Corporation’s
Second ILBS

Building on the success of the inaugural issuance
of the ILBS in May 2023, the Corporation completed
its second ILBS issuance in September 2024. The
transaction provided professional investors with
exposure to a diversified portfolio of 26 projects
spreading across 14 countries and 10 sub-sectors,
with a total value of approximately US$423.3
million. This successful issuance reaffirmed the
Corporation’s dedication to promoting banking
stability and local debt market development, and
further solidified Hong Kong's vital role as both an
infrastructure financing and securitisation hub and
an international financial centre.

In 2024, the Corporation continued to participate in various
collaboration activities and present at industry events to
share insights on trending topics, such as bond issuance
and ESG investment, and encourage debt issuance in Hong
Kong and promote high-quality HKD debt instruments for
the investing community.

Case Study

Collaboration with Market Practitioners in
2024

Roundtable Luncheon

Senior Vice President (Finance) of the Corporation
was invited to speak at a roundtable luncheon
hosted by a renowned bank in Hong Kong in
March 2024, and the event was attended by Hong
Kong's major public sector issuers and investors
as they explored bond issuance and investment
opportunities in local and overseas markets.

Insights were shared on the outlook of the debt
capital market in Hong Kong and the Corporation’s
recent experience in bond issuance, and thoughts
were exchanged on the establishment of the
Medium Term Note Programme of the Corporation,
the choice of private placement and public issuance,
as well as considerations in issuing sustainability
bonds.
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Fireside Chat at Sustainable Finance Asia

Forum

Treasurer of the Corporation was invited to speak
and share his experience about promoting social
bond issuance in Hong Kong at the Sustainable
Finance Asia Forum organised by FinanceAsia in
June 2024.

The chat session examined the rapid growth
in significance of the social dimension of ESG
investing, as well as the potential of social bonds
and other socially-focused investment opportunities.
The session also explored the identification and
prevention of “social washing”, as failure to comply
with relevant requirements could pose a significant
risk to issuers and their reputation.

Supporting Hong Kong’s Financial Literacy
Engagement Activities and Educational Programmes
The Group ensures that fair and transparent information
regarding its products and services is provided to its
customers to enable their informed financial decision-
making and improve overall financial literacy in Hong Kong.
Educational events and seminars are regularly conducted
to keep its customers and the general public informed
about financial and retirement planning considerations,
market trends and related product features. The Group also
remains a staunch supporter of improving financial literacy
in Hong Kong. In recognition of its ongoing efforts and
contributions, the Corporation was awarded the Certificate
of Appreciation in the Investor and Financial Education
Award 2024 by the Investor and Financial Education
Council.

The Group will continue to maintain communications
with various stakeholders, including business programme
partners and industry associations. This helps the Group
stay informed of market developments and enables it to
share relevant financial information with its customers and
the general public.
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Case Study

Public Education on Retirement Planning in
2024

To promote the development of the retirement
planning market in Hong Kong and introduce the
benefits of the "HKMC Retire 3" products, the
Group has organised a series of public engagement
activities, workshops and visits to foster closer ties
with the retirement community. For example, four
territory-wide seminars were arranged in 2024,
providing the general public from all walks of life
with a platform to learn about the features of the
“"HKMC Retire 3" products and how these products
can help meet their personal financial needs.

In addition, the Group organised over 80 outreach
activities and developed a series of public education
materials to strengthen collaboration with
corporations and professional organisations and
provide senior citizens with practical information
about life annuity options to maintain sustainable
income and safeguard against longevity risk for
greater peace of mind upon retirement.

To further extend the reach of the "HKMC Retire
3" products, a roving truck was deployed as a
mobile information centre to tour different districts
of Hong Kong, with stops in various residential
neighbourhoods to acquaint the public with the
retirement planning tools. Through interactive
games, exhibitions and product enquiries, this
information centre received favourable responses
from the public. Moreover, the HKMC YouTube
Channel continues to be an effective platform for
financial education and promotion, with over 9,500
subscribers as of the end of 2024.
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AMIGOS By HKMC (AMIGOS)

The Group continues to nurture its relationship with “HKMC Retire 3" customers and provide educational and recreational
activities through its loyalty programme, AMIGOS. The programme regularly organises events themed around health,
sports, travel, financial education, culture and arts, fostering enrichment among AMIGOS members. As an encouragement
for constructive feedback and a reward for customer loyalty, AMIGOS members receive useful information and exclusive
perks from time to time through different channels and platforms, such as the AMIGOS mobile application and website.

AMIGOS organises financial literacy workshops introducing various digital financial platforms and tools and providing tips
for scam prevention and fraud avoidance. Additionally, to raise public awareness against financial scams, AMIGOS regularly
sends security reminders to its members, helping to safeguard their financial health.

In 2024, AMIGOS hosted a range of upcycling workshops to advocate for sustainability and waste minimisation. Participants

learned how to protect the environment and gained practical experience by repurposing used materials into new and
useful products.

Toys Upcycling and Repainting Workshop Art of Regenerative Glass Workshop

AMIGOS also promotes healthy and fulfilling lifestyle for its members by hosting mental well-being and physical
fitness classes. These sessions contribute to members’ well-being, providing an environment where friendships
can develop and new connections within the AMIGOS community can be formed.

Muscle Stretching and Relaxation Workshop Pilates and Fitness Workshop
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Caring for the Community

As part of its commitment to contributing to the society, the Group promotes various charitable and community functions.
Its volunteer team, Caring League, is set up to organise volunteering services, including those in collaboration with external
charitable organisations, with values that align with the Group’s ESG goals. Staff are encouraged to support charitable
activities and join volunteering work through Caring League’s initiatives. In 2024, the Group arranged various voluntary
services, including Shoreline Clean-up Day and Outing for the Elderly. Community Chest Dress Casual Day, Pop-up Lunch
and Cookie Campaign were also organised for fund-raising and support of local non-governmental organisations.

The Corporation has been awarded the “Caring Organisation Logo”

- - by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service since 2008
FOERE 3 Yy g Kong
caringorganisation

Awarded by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service:
BEMERIEMEREE

Shoreline Clean-up Day Outing for the Elderly
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Corporate Governance

Board Oversight

A robust and effective governance framework is essential
to the maintenance of a strong culture of ethical business
practice. In the pursuit of its core missions and business
objectives, the Group holds itself to high standards of
professionalism, integrity and ethical conduct. The Group
has established a Corporate Governance Code which sets
out the principles of good governance.

In addition, the Corporation upholds oversight by ensuring
a Board composition with a balanced set of skills,
experiences and perspectives appropriate for the business
requirements of the Group. The inclusivity within the Board
enables consideration of different perspectives, promoting
informed decision-making and enhancing the Board’s ability
to assure stakeholders that their rights and interests are
well protected.

For more details about Board oversight and the related
corporate governance practices of the Group, please refer
to “Corporate Governance Report” section of the Annual
Report.

Culture of Compliance

Business Integrity

The Group is committed to conducting its business and
operations applying high standards of ethics, honesty
and integrity in accordance with all applicable laws and
regulations, non-statutory guidelines and codes as well as
internal policies and procedures. The Group Compliance
Policy and the Group Compliance Manual set out the
principles for sound compliance management practices that
are targeted to be integrated within the Group's strategic
planning, internal controls, business activities and conduct.

In 2024, the Group was not aware of any significant litigation
or regulatory action pending or threatened against the
Group or any material non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations by the Group.

Anti-Corruption

The Group has adopted a zero-tolerance policy for
corruption or bribery in any form or at any level. As a
“public body” under Schedule 1 of the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance (PBO), the Corporation, the HKMCA and
the HKMCI are each subject to specific requirements of
the PBO. From time to time, the Group arranges internal
training sessions focusing on anti-corruption and bribery,
which cover anti-corruption matters applicable to “public
bodies” and “public servants” under the PBO, conducted by
the Independent Commission Against Corruption for staff
to raise and maintain their anti-corruption knowledge and
compliance. Attendance at these sessions is mandatory
for all new staff. The Group also requires all new staff to
undertake a mandatory integrity e-learning course provided
by the Independent Commission Against Corruption.

The Group's Code of Conduct imposes rules in relation to
the management of conflicts of interest, abuse of power,
bribery and corruption, and unethical conduct in the
workplace. The Group has also promulgated procurement
policies and procedures that restrict staff from offering,
giving, soliciting or accepting any advantage or bribe to or
from contractors, suppliers or third parties connected with
its business. Any non-compliance with the Code of Conduct,
the PBO or any other applicable laws and regulations may
lead to disciplinary action.
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Anti-Money Laundering (AML), Counter-Terrorist
Financing and Sanctions

The Group’'s AML Procedures establish internal
requirements and procedures in relation to its compliance
with the applicable AML, counter-terrorist financing and
sanctions laws and guidelines. The aim is to mitigate and
manage the Group’s exposure to financial crime, and
safeguard the reputation of the Group and the interests of
its stakeholders. The AML Procedures include a risk-based
approach to conducting customer due diligence, ongoing
monitoring, suspicious transaction reporting, training and
record keeping. Moreover, staff of the HKMCA are required
to comply with additional rules on AML applicable to long-
term insurance business. The Group screens and monitors
potential risks related to money laundering, terrorist
financing and sanctions. Regular risk assessments of the
characteristics of the Group's products and services are
carried out to ensure that any risks associated with money
laundering, terrorist financing and sanctions are effectively
managed.

To enable staff to keep abreast of the legal and regulatory
developments which are relevant to the performance
of their duties and enhance their understanding of their
compliance obligations, the Group organises and co-
ordinates annual AML, counter-terrorist financing and
sanctions training and compliance knowledge test for its
staff. In terms of compliance monitoring, among other
things, regular compliance audits are carried out to
assess and monitor the Group's adherence to compliance
standards.

Anti-Fraud and Whistleblowing

The Group has put in place an Anti-Fraud and Whistleblowing
Policy which helps to combat any fraud in its business. It
provides information and guidance on how to deal with
wrongdoings including deception, forgery, extortion and
fraudulent misrepresentation. Staff are required to stay
alert for any indication or signs of fraudulent conduct in the
course of their work.

The Group encourages the reporting of any suspected,
threatened or actual wrongdoing, misconduct, improper
activity or irregularity (not limited to fraud) within the Group.
The Anti-Fraud and Whistleblowing Policy sets out the
whistleblowing procedures including the circumstances,
channels, concerns and processes in the making, handling
and investigation of a report. All reports and complaints will
be treated seriously and handled on a strictly confidential
basis in accordance with all applicable laws. Bona fide
whistleblowers will also be protected from any retaliatory
action or retribution for submitting a report or participating
in an investigation of a suspected wrongdoing. Any
whistleblowing case will be investigated appropriately and
reviewed by a high-level Investigation Committee for follow-
up actions.
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Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

The Group adheres to relevant laws and regulations
regarding intellectual property as it continues to leverage
its trademarks, brand names, trade secrets and other
intellectual property rights to amplify its brand recognition
and development. The Group has also employed formal
trademark registration, contractual provisions and
confidentiality procedures to protect and strengthen its
intellectual property rights.

Privacy Protection and Cybersecurity

The Group is committed to respecting and safeguarding
the privacy rights of individuals in relation to the personal
data it collects or obtains, and to complying with the
applicable data protection laws and requirements including
the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance. It has established
internal policies, procedures and guidelines to ensure the
protection of data privacy of its staff and customers. The
Group’s Privacy Policy Statement articulates its approach
to the collection and retention of personal information
in accordance with the regulatory requirements, and
its Personal Information Collection Statements inform
individuals of the purposes of data collection, classes of
persons to whom their data may be transferred, their rights
to make requests regarding their data, and other relevant
information. Staff and customer personal data are only
accessible by authorised personnel on a need-to-know
and need-to-use basis. To prevent leakage and misuse
of confidential information, the Group employs measures
such as the use of confidentiality and non-disclosure
agreements.

To protect its systems and networks from cyberattacks
and ensure the confidentiality and integrity of its data
and information assets, the Group has developed the
Information System Security Policy to manage and monitor
its cybersecurity and data risks. The Information System
Security Policy establishes security standards and controls
for the protection of all critical information systems and
confidential data owned by the Group. In addition, the
Group’s Cybersecurity Incident Response Plan outlines its
approach in incident detection, escalation and response.

In 2024, the Group continued to raise the cybersecurity
awareness and technology risk management capabilities
of its staff through orientation training on cybersecurity for
new hires and theme-based awareness training regarding
the new features of artificial intelligence and deep fake
technologies for all staff, as well as by conducting regular
cyber defence assessments such as security audits and
simulated phishing email exercises.

The Group will also continue to invest in information
technology safeguards to meet its information security
objectives. Further, to implement digital transformation and
enhance its business agility, the Group will constantly seek
ways to modernise its internal systems and applications to
further improve efficiency while minimising potential risks
during its digitalisation journey.
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Case Study

Cybersecurity Readiness Assessment

In 2024, the Group evaluated its cybersecurity
measures by conducting a readiness assessment
with reference to the updated Guideline on
Cybersecurity issued by the Insurance Authority.
The assessment reviewed the Group’s current
cybersecurity position and identified opportunities
for enhancing cybersecurity control measures and
strategies.

Review of Data Collection and Protection
Controls

An assessment of the existing customer data
collection processes was carried out in 2024 to
determine the feasibility of minimising the collection
of personal data. Action items were recommended
to further mitigate risks of data breach incidents.

Employment and Labour Practices

Talent Attraction and Retention

The Group attracts and grooms talented individuals to
ensure the effective performance of its core missions. It
provides staff members with competitive remuneration
packages and fringe benefits, promising career paths and
development opportunities.

The Group also adopts family-friendly practices by offering
a five-day work week to help staff maintain a good work-
life balance as well as comprehensive medical and
dental insurance plans that cover both the staff and their
dependents. The Group strives to foster an inclusive and
family-friendly workplace by providing work-from-home
and flexible work arrangements. Enhancements to the
work-from-home arrangement were implemented in 2023

to provide better support for staff in relation to pregnancy
and childbirth. In 2024, marriage leave was introduced
and compassionate leave was enhanced to provide
additional support to staff. The Corporation has, since 2014,
been awarded the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority’'s “Good MPF Employer Award” which is given in
appreciation of employers who place a high value on their
staff's retirement needs.

Diversity and Inclusion

The Group is committed to creating, promoting and
maintaining an environment that provides equal
opportunities for all staff, including in areas of recruitment,
terms and conditions of employment, promotion,
compensation and benefits, training, as well as corporate-
sponsored social and recreational programmes. As an
equal opportunities employer, the Group maintains an
Equal Opportunities Policy and is against any form of
discrimination or harassment based on sex, breastfeeding,
marital status, pregnancy, family status, disability, race,
colour, descent and national or ethnic origin. The Group
provides various facilities to cater to the diverse needs of
staff. For example, breastfeeding rooms are provided for
the comfort of nursing mothers. The Group also implements
gender-neutral and disability-inclusive recruitment and
promotion policies which are underpinned by competency-
based assessments and evaluations.
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Staff Relations and Well-being

The Group provides a healthy and safe working
environment. In 2024, the Group enhanced its Human
Resources Policy to update the fire evacuation plan and
procedures for reporting occupational health and safety
incidents. During the year, the Group was not subject to or
aware of any material issues relating to occupational health
and safety.

As a caring organisation, the Group is dedicated to looking
after its staff's physical and mental health. The Employee
Support Programme offers confidential external counselling
services to staff and their family members as needed.
The topics of the counselling services may include stress
management, interpersonal relationships, mental health,
physical health and family issues. Hygiene and health tips
are regularly communicated via emails and newsletters to
raise staff awareness of physical and mental well-being. A
vaccination programme for the prevention of influenza and
health-check programmes are also offered to all staff at
discounted rates.

From time to time, the Group reviews and strengthens
its contingency plans to minimise any unforeseen
disruptions to business operations. Periodic drills are
organised to ensure staff are familiar with the activation of
backup facilities, contingency plans and communication
arrangements in case of emergencies.

Training and Development

The Group recognises the importance of ongoing training
and devotes appropriate resources to the enhancement of
its staff’s professional knowledge and skills. In 2024, to help
staff broaden both their technical knowledge and soft skills,
the Group arranged a series of seminars and e-learning
resources.

For example, Climate Fresk workshops were conducted
for staff at different levels in 2024. Through interactive
card games and guided discussions, facilitators helped
participants understand the basics of climate change
science, the carbon cycle and the impacts of climate
change on the society and economy. During the year,
different initiatives were implemented to promote a culture
of continuous learning, allowing staff to pursue personal
development. As a recognition to its commitment to staff
development, the Corporation has been recognised as a
“Learning Champion” by LinkedIn since 2023.

Other than in-house training programmes, the Group
encourages continuous learning and professional
development by offering training subsidies for self-
development through external training. Sponsorship may
be granted for job-related external training and overseas
training to broaden exposure. Eligible staff may apply for
study leave and examination leave to prepare and sit for
examinations necessary for the sponsored courses or
recognised professional memberships.

Climate Fresk Workshop
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To help nurture talent for the future, the Group offers
internship programmes for undergraduates that provide
practical work experience and help them prepare for their
future careers. This year, the Group continued to carry out
the Manager Trainee Programme, with the objective of
identifying high-calibre young executives to be groomed
to meet the Group’s long-term staff development plan.
Throughout the three-year programme, the Manager
Trainees will undergo on-the-job training in different
departments, take part in corporate projects and attend
structured learning and development activities. In addition,
the Group has launched the Placement Trainee Programme
which provides undergraduates with the opportunity
to acquire valuable on-the-job exposure to relevant
departmental functions, as well as training and learning
opportunities for their career development.

Operating Practices

Procurement Management

The Group is committed to a responsible and fair
procurement process while managing its suppliers. Its
Procurement Rules and Procedures Manual outlines its
position on procurement management and sets out its
approach to due diligence, selection and tender criteria and
ongoing supervision of supplier relationships. In the process
of selecting qualified suppliers, the Group takes into
account various factors including the supplier’s reputation,
track record of business integrity, expertise, reliability and
pricing. In addition, appropriate management approvals are
required before entering into contract with a supplier to
promote accountability and good governance.

During the year, the Group enhanced its Procurement Rules
and Procedures Manual by requiring potential suppliers for
procurement items above a specific value to complete the
Vendor ESG Questionnaire. This questionnaire is designed
in accordance with the Group’s ESG Guiding Principles to
ensure alignment with its ESG strategies and objectives.

In 2024, the Group was not aware that any of its key
suppliers had reported any non-compliance incidents in
relation to business ethics, environmental protection or
labour practices.

Complaints Handling Procedures

The Group values feedback regarding its product and
service qualities. To manage such feedback effectively,
it has established the Enquiries and Complaints Handling
Policy which serves to provide the framework and guidance
for handling queries and complaints to the Group by
customers, business partners, general public, media and
other stakeholders. The Group strives to ensure that all
enquiries and complaints are fully and promptly attended to,
logged and resolved in an independent, objective, impartial
and effective manner. To improve its operations and better
serve its customers, the Group regularly monitors, analyses
and reviews the data on enquiries and complaints to
identify trends, impacts and timeliness of responses.
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Responsible Marketing

The Group has implemented the Guidance for Marketing
Materials to ensure that its marketing materials comply with
applicable laws and regulatory requirements, respect third-
party rights and avoid any misleading content.

To supplement the Guidance for Marketing Materials and
in accordance with the ESG Statement and ESG Guiding
Principles, the Group adopted the Anti-Greenwashing
Guidance in 2024 to promote the integrity, transparency
and accuracy of its sustainability or environmental claims.

During the year, the Group was not aware of any reported
cases of irresponsible marketing of its products.

Technology Adoption

The Group attaches great importance to digital
transformation, with the adoption of advanced technologies
to optimise operations and enhance product and service
experiences. In November 2022, the establishment of
the Digitisation Office was marked as a strategic move
to demonstrate the Group’s commitment to integrating
advanced technologies and data applications into day-
to-day business operations. During 2024, the Digitisation
Office developed a data analytics platform that laid the
groundwork for data analysis and further research on
generative artificial intelligence solutions to achieve better
business efficiency.

The Group has also formed the Digitalisation Projects
Working Group to comprehensively review project
proposals, monitor the progress of projects under
implementation and resolve issues escalated by project
teams.

Case Study

Digital Loan Schedule

The Group has launched a digital solution to issue
RMP and PRMP loan schedules digitally, reducing its
paper consumption. Under the solution, RMP and
PRMP applicants can scan the QR code embedded
in a cover letter addressed to them to access their
digital loan schedules. It is estimated that this
initiative would reduce paper use by over 15,000
sheets annually and streamline the enveloping
process.

Meeting Environmental Concerns

Climate Risk and Opportunity Management

The Group recognises the potential risk of climate change
to its business and implements targeted management
approaches to enhance its climate resilience.

Climate Risk Management

The Group recognises the importance of effective
identification, monitoring and management of climate
risks across its businesses and operations. Climate risks
are managed through the Group’s ESG Risk Management
Framework. For further details on the ESG risk management
process, please refer to “ESG Risk Management” section of
this report.

The Group has established a climate-related risk
identification and assessment process to identify and
assess the climate-related risks across its business
functions and operations. The assessment analyses how
climate risks could be transmitted to traditional risks (see
table on the next page) and their impacts on the Group.
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Examples of Risk Transmission Pathways’
Legal and

Credit Market Operational Reputation Compliance
Risk Types and Risk Drivers Risk Risk Risk Risk Risk

Physical Risk

Acute

Increasing frequency and severity of extreme weather V N V V
events, such as floods, rainstorms and tropical
cyclones

Chronic

Longer-term shifts in climate patterns, e.g. higher
temperatures that cause sea-level rise

Transition Risk

Policy

Policy actions to constrain the adverse impact of J J J J J
climate change or promote mitigation to climate

change — examples include implementing carbon-

pricing mechanisms and energy transition policies

Technology

Technological advancements that support the

transition to a lower-carbon and energy-efficient V N y V V
economic system — examples include new

technologies to reduce GHG emissions and

replacement of obsolete technologies

Market

Shifts in supply and demand for certain commodities, V N
products and services, as climate risks and
opportunities are increasingly taken into account

Reputation

Tied to changing customer or community perceptions N N V V
of an organisation’s contribution to or detraction from
the transition to a lower-carbon economy

? Examples of risk transmission pathways include:

(a) Credit risk — Borrowers may fail to meet their financial obligations as a result of increased operating costs stemming from increased carbon
pricing, reduced revenue or assets devaluation. In the event of default, the recovery of the outstanding loans may be reduced due to the
devaluation of assets.

(b) Market risk — Assets may experience devaluation caused by heightened market volatility due to shifts in market expectations or occurrence of

severe weather events.
(©) Operational risk — Failure to incorporate climate policy changes into the Group's internal processes and controls may result in operational risks
and losses.
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Climate Scenario Analysis and Stress Testing
The Group conducts climate scenario analysis and stress testing to assess its climate risks in different future states, thereby
facilitating management of climate risks and building climate resilience.

The climate scenarios of the Group are formulated with reference to the Hong Kong Monetary Authority’s Guidelines
for Banking Sector Climate Risk Stress Test, market practices and scenarios developed by the Network for Greening the
Financial System and Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change. The impact and likelihood of climate-related risks have
been simulated in these scenarios at the macroeconomic, regional and sectoral levels.

Taking into account the potential relevance and impact of climate-related risks to its activities, the Group has conducted
scenario analysis on its mortgage businesses and IFS and investment portfolios, covering both physical and transition risks
in near-term and long-term horizons and in each case focusing on those businesses and/or portfolios which are more likely
to be subject to the respective climate risk. The near-term horizon reaches up to the year 2030, and the long-term outlook
extends to the year 2050. The table below summarises the climate scenarios used by the Group.

Scenarios and Assumptions™ Risk Level"
Businesses/Portfolios Time Horizon

Likely to Be Subject
to Respective Climate
Risk Near-term Long-term

Physical Risk Mortgage businesses Low Risk Low Risk
Global climate actions remain insufficient to halt

significant global warming, resulting in adverse

change in climate patterns. This leads to irreversible IFS portfolios Low Risk Low Risk
impacts such as sea-level rise and more frequent and

severe extreme weather events

Transition Risk™ IFS portfolios Low Risk Low Risk
Climate policies are becoming more stringent,
resulting in higher carbon costs, advancement in
technologies and shift in market sentiment in driving
decarbonisation

Treasury investments Low Risk Low Risk

The Group demonstrated resilience against climate change under the scenarios, based on the position as of the end of
2024. The overall financial impact under the scenarios on the Group remained manageable.

Given the evolving nature of climate risks, the Group will keep monitoring and update the climate stress test as necessary.

0 A static balance sheet assumption is adopted under all scenarios to maintain a consistent balance sheet size and composition throughout the
assessment horizon.

" The climate risk level is determined based on the potential financial impact and/or exposure of the businesses/portfolios under the specified climate
scenarios.

2 The high transition risk scenario limits global warming to 1.5°C, aligning with the Paris Agreement.
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Climate Opportunities
Climate change could also present the Group with opportunities to develop and invest in low-carbon assets to support a
just and orderly transition to a low-carbon economy.

The Group adopts the same approach as for the identification of ESG opportunities to identify climate-related opportunities.
Please refer to "ESG Opportunity Management” section of this report for more details.

Climate-related Opportunities

Amount and Percentage of

Assets Aligned with Anticipated Financial
Example of Opportunities Climate-related Opportunities Effects to the Group
Access to new markets and Size and proportion of the Increase in cash flow through the
promotion of sustainable finance by  sustainability tranche in the second issuance of sustainable financial
issuing green and sustainability-linked ILBS issuance: products
instruments HK$834 million equivalent; 25.3%

Transition to Carbon Neutrality

Decarbonisation Targets

In 2021, the Government announced Hong Kong's Climate Action Plan 2050 that would lead Hong Kong towards the goal
of carbon neutrality before 2050, with the interim decarbonisation target to reduce Hong Kong's total carbon emissions
by 50% before 2035 as compared to the 2005 level. The Corporation, as a public sector entity, supports the Government’s
carbon neutrality commitments and climate action plan.

Decarbonisation Target Statements
In alignment with the Government’s carbon neutrality commitments and Hong Kong's Climate Action Plan 2050, the Group
targets to achieve carbon neutrality by 2050.

As an interim target, the Group strives to reduce its GHG emissions intensity' by 36% by 2035 from a 2023 base year.

The decarbonisation of the Group's operations and portfolios is subject to constraints and uncertainties influenced by
various factors beyond emissions alone, such as changes in the portfolio asset mix and strategies in response to market
developments, as well as fluctuations in underlying asset valuations. The Group's progress in meeting its decarbonisation
targets would be monitored, reviewed and regularly reported to the ESGC and the Board.

13 Taking into account the nature of the Group’s businesses, portfolios, services and operations and the feasibility of data collection and quantification
including considering the relevance and/or materiality of its various emissions sources, the scope of the GHG emissions for emissions intensity
calculation of the Group’s decarbonisation target includes Scope 1, Scope 2 and Category 3, 5, 6 and 15 of Scope 3 emissions (as applicable).
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Decarbonisation Action Plan

To achieve its goal of reaching carbon neutrality across
operations and specific investment portfolios by 2050 and
contribute to Hong Kong's climate action plan, the Group
has established a decarbonisation action plan as follows
which sets out the non-exhaustive list of actions it aims to
take to help achieve decarbonisation in the near and long-
term.

Carbon reduction e
initiatives

Encourage resources

conservation, energy saving and

waste reduction in the workplace

o Retire diesel-fuelled company
vehicles

o Reduce overseas business
meetings that may be effectively
done virtually

o Purchase renewable energy
certificates for Scope 2 emissions

o Purchase carbon credits for Scope
1-3 emissions, including carbon
offsets offered by airlines

o Portfolio re-balancing through
positively shifting towards less
carbon-intensive sectors and
companies

o Increase the proportion of

financing renewables and

decrease the proportion of

financing carbon-intensive assets

over time

Carbon reduction
investments/
financing

e Investment in green bonds or
corporate bonds with issuers engaged
in renewable projects or projects
which could generate carbon credits
(i.e. carbon creditable projects)

e Financing carbon creditable or less
carbon-intensive infrastructure
projects or projects with carbon
avoidance or carbon removal
potentials

To execute the above decarbonisation action plan, the
Group will, where appropriate, prioritise and allocate
resources to the carbon reduction initiatives in its
operations and products/business programmes (as
applicable) to achieve the interim target. In the long term,
the Group will explore implementing appropriate carbon
reduction actions and investments to reduce emissions
further and support Hong Kong's emissions reduction
targets. The Group will regularly review and update its
resourcing strategy based on, among other things, overall
business strategy, stakeholder expectations, regulatory
changes and technological advancements through ongoing
assessment.
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Integrating ESG Considerations into Business
Decision-making

The Group is committed to operating and carrying on
business in a responsible and sustainable manner. As
part of that commitment, in 2021, the Group incorporated
ESG factors into its corporate strategy and operations by
adopting its ESG Statement and ESG Guiding Principles. The
Group also established the ESGC to lead its sustainability
efforts, oversee the implementation of its ESG strategy, and
monitor and manage the associated risks.

The Group believes that integrating ESG considerations,
including climate-related factors, into its investment, lending
and business decision-making will create sustainable
value over the long term, contribute to a more sustainable
world and reduce its ESG-related risks. It has adopted the
RILBP, which establishes a framework for implementing
responsible strategies in these areas. Through ESG
integration, the Group identifies and evaluates ESG factors
within its decision-making processes, encompassing
standard risk assessments and thematic investment,
lending and business activities.

Recognising the importance of considering and integrating
ESG factors into daily operations, business strategy and
product offerings in achieving its ESG vision, the Group
has adopted a list of ESG integration factors. These factors
cover key aspects such as office operations, corporate
governance and culture, overall strategy, product design,
and stakeholder engagement. They are designed to
facilitate the undertaking of ESG integration actions and
enable the tracking of ESG progress. To ensure the robust
implementation of the ESG strategy, the Group will conduct
regular reviews of its ESG strategy, performance and
policies.

Case Study

Integrating ESG Considerations into Product
Development

In 2024, as a key step in its ESG integration, the
Group developed the Product Development ESG
Guidelines to facilitate the evaluation of a product’s
ESG impact. Compliance with these guidelines is
ensured through the mandatory completion of a
newly introduced ESG Product Checklist. For any
new product or material enhancement to a product,
the relevant departments are required to complete
the checklist which examines several ESG factors,
including those set out in the Group’s ESG Guiding
Principles. As part of the approval processes, the
completed checklist should be submitted for the
relevant approval authority’s consideration, ensuring
that any new product or enhanced product is
evaluated in line with the Group’s ESG strategy and
objectives.
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Sustainable Finance and Investment

Sustainable Financing

In addition to adopting the RILBP, the Corporation
has established the SGS Framework to implement its
sustainability strategy as a core component of its business
operations. The SGS Framework provides a framework
for financing the Group’s sustainability initiatives and
concentrates on alignment with Hong Kong's long-term
sustainability visions. The Corporation will utilise the SGS
Framework to structure and issue green, social and/or
sustainability bonds and asset-backed securities through
public offerings or private placements, supporting the
development of assets or projects with environmental and/
or social benefits.

Pursuant to the SGS Framework, the Corporation issued its
third social bonds of around HK$23.8 billion equivalent in
October 2024, which, at the time of issuance, marked the
largest social bonds issued in Asia Pacific and broke the
record set by the Corporation in 2023. The net proceeds
from the issuance were mainly used to finance or refinance
the loans under the Special 100% Loan Guarantee of the
SFGS. An annual report on the allocation and impact of net
proceeds of the social bond issuance will be published until
full allocation. For this landmark social bond transaction,
the Corporation received prestigious awards and accolades,
both locally and internationally, including:

— The Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency's Hong

Kong Green and Sustainable Finance Awards 2024

o Outstanding Award for Green and Sustainable
Bond Issuer (Public Sector) — Largest Amount
of Social Bonds

HONG KONG GREEN AND SUSTAINABLE FINANCE AWARDS 2024
il 5 4

@‘Qnor\

AT =

— The Asset Triple A Sustainable Finance Awards for

2025

o Best Social Bond in Hong Kong
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Summary of Social Bond Issuances

Round Date Description

1 October 2022 e [naugural social bond issuance

e Comprised of two tranches and denominated in two currencies: HKD 8 billion 2-year
and CNH 3 billion 3-year

2 September 2023 e Comprised of three tranches and denominated in three currencies: HKD 9.5 billion
2-year, CNH 5 billion 3-year and USD 650 million 5-year

e Marked as the largest social bond issuance in Asia at that time

October 2024

and HKD 8 billion 5-year, CNH 2 billion 7-year and USD 850 million 3-year
e Marked as the largest social bond issuance in Asia Pacific at that time

e Comprised of four tranches and denominated in three currencies: HKD 7 billion 2-year

Case Study

Promotion of Sustainable Finance in 2024
— HK$23.8 billion equivalent Social Bond
Issuance

In October 2024, the Corporation successfully
launched and priced its third social bonds of
approximately HK$23.8 billion equivalent in four
tranches (i.e. HKD 7 billion 2-year and HKD 8 billion
5-year, CNH 2 billion 7-year and USD 850 million
3-year). The transaction marked the largest social
bond issuance in Asia Pacific, breaking the record
set by the Corporation in September 2023.

The net proceeds of the social bond issuance were
mainly used to finance or refinance the loans under
the Special 100% Loan Guarantee of the SFGS
which has benefitted around 40,000 local SMES and
400,000 related employees.

The transaction was well received by a diverse
group of high-quality local and overseas institutional
investors, with a peak orderbook of around HK$55
billion equivalent and final allocation to over 200
accounts.

Moreover, the two HKD tranches totalling HK$15
billion were the largest-ever institutional bonds
denominated in HKD, while the CNH tranche was the
first-ever 7-year institutional bond denominated in
CNH at the time of issuance. The transaction helped
to establish new benchmarks across the yield curve
for the market and further facilitated bond market
development in Hong Kong.

A diverse group of 23 local and international financial
institutions participated in the transaction, providing
professional advice and support which helped make
the issuance successful.

This record-breaking social bond issuance once
again demonstrated investors’ strong confidence in
Hong Kong and the Corporation, further solidifying
Hong Kong's financial ecosystem and its role as an
international financial centre.
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Meanwhile, the Corporation’s infrastructure loan projects
and portfolios managed by its IFS Division undergo initial
and continuous environmental and social due diligence
and monitoring under the IFS Environmental and Social
Guidelines to ensure effective management of ESG risks.
Moreover, IFS Division funds renewable energy projects,
including solar, wind and hydropower, which provide a low-
GHG emissions alternative to traditional fossil fuels and
support host countries in meeting their energy needs and
reducing the emissions intensity of their electricity supply.
IFS Division also invests in social infrastructure projects,
such as universities and telecommunication infrastructure,
promoting diversity and inclusion within local communities.

200MW Solar Photovoltaic Project in Mohammed bin Rashid Al
Maktoum Solar Park in Dubai, United Arab Emirates

Case Study

ESG Integration in the Second ILBS Issuance

In September 2024, the Corporation successfully
launched its second ILBS, featuring a US$107 million
sustainability tranche backed by a portfolio of
sustainable, green and social assets. Issued under
the Corporation’s SGS Framework, the sustainability
tranche adheres to the Green Bond Principles,
Social Bond Principles and Sustainability Bond
Guidelines released by the International Capital
Market Association, underscoring the Corporation’s
dedication to green and sustainable development.

The project assets are expected to deliver tangible
green and social benefits. Regarding GHG emissions
avoidance, over 167,000 tCO.e in avoided emissions
per annum are attributable to the underlying
renewable projects in the transaction.

T & L o L

In addition, the education services included in the
underlying education projects provide access to
education for women as over 70% of the students
concerned were female. Besides, the education
projects offer equal opportunities for higher
education to students from other countries and
those from financially disadvantaged backgrounds,
through the provision of scholarships and housing
assistance. Also, the telecommunication projects,
which are located in India and Indonesia, foster
digital inclusion in communities which are generally
under-developed with low internet penetration
rates by providing them with access to basic
infrastructure, particularly digital communication.
Internet connection provides people with access
to information and services, thereby improving the
overall quality of life.

The Sorbonne University Abu Dhabi at night
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Sustainable Investment

As outlined in the RILBP, the Group integrates ESG
considerations into its investments to align business
activities with its core missions over the long term and
contribute to the society.

As part of its decarbonisation action plan, the Group plans
to invest in green bonds or corporate bonds with issuers
engaged in renewable or carbon creditable projects over
time. Similarly, for the IFS portfolios, the Corporation aims to
invest in carbon creditable projects or projects with carbon
avoidance or carbon removal potentials, contributing to its
carbon reduction efforts. The Group will continue to seek
opportunities in green finance within the context of its core
missions to support Hong Kong's vision of becoming a
leading sustainable finance hub in the region.

Green Operations

The Group aims to foster environmentally-friendly practices
within the workplace to reduce GHG emissions and improve
energy efficiency. Aligned with the Government’s carbon
neutrality commitments and Hong Kong's Climate Action
Plan 2050, the Group developed the Green Operations
Guidelines this year. These guidelines serve to steer and
facilitate the adoption of eco-friendly practices, with an
emphasis on two areas: green workplace design and
positive environmental impact. Also, to further support
the Government's initiative to promote the use of electric
vehicles, the Group has been gradually replacing its petrol
cars with electric vehicles.

Through various green operations initiatives, the Group
strives to achieve continual resource efficiency in its
offices. For more information on the Group’s environmental
performance at the workplace, please refer to the metrics
disclosed in “Resource Efficiency” section of this report.
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Green Workplace
The Group continues to support and implement various green initiatives to create a more environmentally-friendly office.

In 2024, the Group relocated one of its offices to International Commerce Centre in West Kowloon, a building with the
Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) Platinum certification by the U.S. Green Building Council which
signifies high sustainable building standards. In addition, a major part of the Group’s business operations continues to be
based in Two Harbour Square in Kwun Tong, a building certified with LEED Gold status. Both offices are designed in an eco-
conscious manner and the agile office setting facilitates team collaboration. Other green office elements adopted include:

Office Elements Description

Office furniture and o Reuse of office furniture and equipment
equipment ¢ Use of Cradle to Cradle Certified® carpets which are safe and responsibly made
Air-conditioning e Installation of individual air-conditioning switches to reduce electricity consumption

when not in use

Lighting e Use of LED lighting instead of fluorescent tubes
e Installation of timers for office lighting and motion sensors to reduce indoor lighting
usage
Water o Water dispensers are used to replace bottled water
Other considerations in o Provision of greenery within the offices
workplace design

Case Study

Relocation of Office

The Group relocated one of its offices from Cosco
Tower, Sheung Wan to International Commerce
Centre, West Kowloon in early February 2024. To
align with the Group's ESG initiatives, the office
renovation focused on achieving reuse of materials,
including workstations from the previous tenant and
cabinets and chairs from the Cosco Tower office.
Potted Plants in Office The International Commerce Centre office mirrors
the Two Harbour Square office and adopts an open
plan concept with departmental home zoning
design, featuring plants as dividers within the office.
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All staff are encouraged to positively contribute to environmental protection through waste reduction and energy
conservation. Actions taken include adopting digital communication tools for paperless operations and recycling waste
paper and used toner cartridges. The Group welcomes staff suggestions for additional eco-friendly office initiatives and
encourages its suppliers to use and offer environmentally-friendly products when feasible. For instance, the workplace
utilises sustainable products such as Forest Stewardship Council-certified paper and eco-friendly pantry supplies. In
2024, the Group introduced the “Go Green Trio” programmes which aim to facilitate the reuse and recycling of materials.
To raise awareness of treasuring resources and reducing waste, the Group arranged to provide support for year-round
book donations. The Group also worked with the management services office of its office premises to enhance waste
management and monitoring of waste data. Other initiatives to reduce its environmental footprint include:

Waste reduction o Providing facilities, including recycling bins, for collection of used paper, cans and bottles
° Donating old computer equipment which are in good condition to charitable organisations
o Recycling used paper and envelopes
o Recycling rechargeable batteries and electronic appliances via the Government's waste
reduction and recycling programmes

. Supporting used clothes recycling programme to set up collection points in the office to
collect clothing items from staff for recycling

° Minimising consumption of bottled water and usage of plastic carboy containers

o Replacing desktop computers with laptops to facilitate paperless meetings

° Issuing publications in electronic format, including the in-house staff publication,
HKMConnection

. Adopting electronic internal administrative procedures, including leave application,
performance appraisal and reservation of meeting rooms

. Utilising infographics in the office to promote reduction of paper consumption

Energy conservation Installation of energy-saving devices, including LED lights, motion sensors and timers to
control indoor lighting

. Utilising infographics in the office to promote reduction of energy consumption

Paper Recycling Bin Office Recycling Bins
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Case Study

"Go Green Trio” Programmes

In 2024, the Group introduced the “Go Green Trio"
programmes which aim to facilitate the reuse and
recycling of items with a series of three programmes
as follows:

Tech Revival

The Group partners with local non-profit
organisations to arrange for home appliance
refurbishing services for staff at an affordable cost
borne by them. Staff can provide a description of the
faulty appliance for evaluation. After an assessment
and confirmation of the repair service, staff may
either bring the item to the repair shop or, in the
case of lightweight items, have it delivered from the
office to the repair organisation.

EcoExchange

On this platform, staff can exchange or trade their
unwanted items simply by providing photos and
descriptions of the items which will be posted for all
other staff to view. Staff can also decide whether to
donate the trade proceeds to their preferred charity
or to donate the items to charity via the Gift Cycle if
unsold.

Gift Cycle

Via the Gift Cycle, staff can donate unwanted
items to those in need through various charitable
organisations, with assistance provided by the
Group.
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Environmental

GHG Emissions

Metrics 2024 2023
Operations — GHG emissions intensity 0.6 tCO e/staff 1.0tCO,e/staff
Operations — Total GHG emissions™ 347.0tCO,e 526.41CO,e
Scope 1 GHG emissions™ 12.5tCOe 12.8tCOe
Scope 2 GHG emissions (market-based) "' 261.2tCO,e 456.3tCO,e
Scope 3 GHG emissions (Category 3, 5 and 6 only) 73.3tCO,e 57.3 tCO.e
Category 3: Fuel- and energy-related activities 9.21C0O.e 17.1tCOe
Category 5: Waste generated in operations 13.6 tCOe 14.61CO,e
Category 6: Business travel 50.5tCO.e 25.61CO.e
Portfolios — GHG emissions intensity 31.7 tCO,e/HK$ million 41.7 tCO,e/HK$ million
outstanding outstanding

Partnership for Carbon Accounting Financials (PCAF) 2.6 2.4

weighted-average data quality scores

Further details on the Group’s GHG calculation methodologies and limitations to the relevant emissions data are outlined in
the Appendix of this report.

Resource Efficiency

Metrics 2024 2023
Energy
Total electricity consumption 627,524 kwWh 838,342 kwWh
Total fuel consumption 12,979 kWh 17,706 kWh
Energy consumption per unit office area 51.1 kWh/meter? 86.3 kWh/meter?
Energy consumption per staff 1,147.9 kwh/staff 1,695.2 kwh/staff
“ Total operations-related GHG emissions consist of Scope 1, Scope 2 and Scope 3 (Category 3, 5 and 6) emissions only.
1 Scope 1 emissions include diesel consumption by company vehicles and fugitive emissions from air conditioners and fire extinguishers. Regarding the

emissions associated with company vehicles, the emissions factors applied in 2024 are sourced from the United Kingdom’s “Government conversion
factors for company reporting of GHG emissions” to replace the now-repealed factors in Appendix 2 of the “How to prepare an ESG report” published
by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

1 The Group relocated the data centre from its office to an external site in 2024, hence the emissions associated with the data centre’s energy supply
have been excluded from Scope 2 emissions and are not included in Scope 3 emissions for 2024 as the relevant emissions are deemed immaterial.

7 Scope 2 emissions include indirect emissions from purchased electricity including those used to charge the electric vehicles of the Group.

1 This covers financed emissions from corporate bonds, listed equities, project finance and business loans of the Group.
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Social
Products and Services
Metrics 2024 2023
Amount of monetary losses as a result of legal proceedings associated with Nil Nil
marketing and communication of financial product-related information
Accumulative amount of infrastructure loan assets securitised HK$5,872 million  HK$2,927 million
Community Investment
Metrics 2024 2023
Amount of staff donations HK$11,090 HK$10,200
Number of hours of staff volunteer services 71 hours 27 hours
Governance
Staff Demographics
Metrics 2024 2023
Staff
By gender
Female 53% 53%
Male 47% 47%
By age group
50 and above 23% 22%
4010 49 34% 37%
30t0 39 34% 30%
Below 30 9% 11%

By staff category by gender
Senior staff

Female 26% 27%
Male 74% 73%
Staff turnover rate 8.1% 9.6%
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Training and Development

Metrics 2024 2023
Total staff training hours 10,423 hours 7,432 hours
Average staff training hours 19 hours/staff 15 hours/staff
Staff training by type of training

Compliance/legal knowledge 17.5% 22.1%
Information technology skills 16.6% 17.9%
Managerial/leadership skills 11.8% 6.2%
Professional/business knowledge 43.8% 40.7%
Others 10.3% 13.1%

Compliance and Risk Management

Metrics 2024 2023

Quarterly review on effectiveness of existing information and Yes Yes
technology-related processes and systems by management committees

Annual testing conducted on business continuity and data recovery Yes Yes

Quarterly submission of risk management report to the Board Yes Yes

Any material non-compliance with laws and regulations which are applicable to No No

the Group's operations
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Appendix — GHG Calculation Methodologies

In 2024, a Group-level ESG Data Management Manual was developed to specify the collection and calculation
methodologies for the Group’s ESG data, including its GHG emissions data.

The methodologies for quantifying Scope 1, 2 and 3 (Category 3, 5 and 6) GHG emissions are based on the Greenhouse
Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard (GHG Protocol), while the methodologies for quantifying
financed emissions are based on the PCAF — The Global GHG Accounting and Reporting Standard Part A: Financed
Emissions which are in conformance with the requirements set forth in the Corporate Value Chain (Scope 3) Accounting
and Reporting Standard of the GHG Protocol. The measurement approaches, inputs and assumptions have been chosen to
align with market practices for calculating GHG emissions.

The Group adopts the operational control approach in the GHG Protocol, covering all Scope 1 and Scope 2 GHG emissions
from operations over which it has operational control™. The reported GHG emissions cover four types of GHGs specified in
the Kyoto Protocol, including carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide and hydrofluorocarbons.

Attribution Factor and Source of Emission Factors for Financed Emissions*

Emission Source Attribution Factor Source of Emission Factors
Project finance e Qutstanding amount e Verified GHG emissions data of the project in
e Total project equity and debt accordance with the GHG Protocol

e Emission factors specific to the project’s energy
consumption-based or production-based
primary physical activity data

e Emission factors for the project’s sector per unit
of revenue or from similar projects

Business loan e Qutstanding amount e Verified GHG emissions data from the borrower
e Total equity plus debt of the in accordance with the GHG Protocol
borrowers e Emission factors specific to the borrower’s
energy consumption-based primary physical
activity data

e Emission factors for the borrower’s sector per
unit of revenue or from similar projects

Corporate bond e Qutstanding amount e GHG emissions data from Bloomberg,
e Total equity plus debt for bonds or sustainability report of the issuers and/or proxy
revenue of the issuers data
Listed equities e Qutstanding amount ¢ GHG emissions data from Bloomberg,
e Total equity plus debt for equity sustainability report of the issuers and/or proxy

investments or revenue of the issuers data

* The financed emissions from these sources are included in the ‘Portfolios — GHG emissions intensity’ in “GHG Emissions” section of this report, and
the Group's other emissions sources under Scope 3 (Category 15), such as those attributable to the sovereign bonds held or the MPP, are not included
in the metric as they are excluded from the Group’s decarbonisation target.

19 For project finance and business loans, equity share approach would be adopted in case the borrower owns an interest but does not have operational
control over the infrastructure project.
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Appendix — GHG Calculation Methodologies (Continued)
Limitations of Financed Emissions Measurements

The financed emissions disclosed in this report are subject to uncertainties relating to, among others, measurement,
consistency, reliability and data quality resulting from limitations inherent in the methodologies and the quality and
availability of data from third-party sources. For example, in relation to project finance and business loans, there may be
variations in the way that project companies and borrowers calculate and report their emissions. Further, where company-
specific disclosures are not available, estimated and proxy data with lower data quality may be used. It is also conceivable
that for infrastructure financing, the attribution factor would increase when equity is recovered once the commercial
operations date is reached and the distribution test is met. As a result, given a higher proportion of project emissions
attributed to the lenders, the financed emissions intensity may increase. The gross emissions of infrastructure projects
may also increase due to post-completion ramp up of assets. Additionally, the Group generally depends on third-party
data providers (e.g. Bloomberg) for investee emissions data in relation to its treasury investments, and third-party data sets
that feed into the Group's emissions calculations may be subject to time lag in reported emissions figures or variations
in reporting timelines and methods used. While it is expected that third-party data quality would improve over time as
companies continue to expand their disclosures to meet growing regulatory and stakeholder expectations, there may be
fluctuations in data quality scores due to a number of reasons, including the processes by which data is collected and
recorded by third-party data providers.
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Performance Highlights

The major achievements of the Group for the year included:

helping homebuyers borrow a total of HK$47.9 billion
in mortgage loans through the Mortgage Insurance
Programme (MIP)

approving 7,924 applications since the launch of the
Reverse Mortgage Programme (RMP) in July 2011,
with an average property value of around HK$5.7
million

taking a total of around 10,830 policies for the life
annuity business in 2024 with total premiums of
HK$4.4 billion

extending the application period of the 80%
Guarantee Product and the 90% Guarantee Product
under the SME Financing Guarantee Scheme (SFGS)
to end-March 2026 and extending the maximum loan
guarantee periods of the 80% Guarantee Product and
90% Guarantee Product by three years to ten years
and eight years respectively

allowing the borrowing enterprises for both existing
and new loans under the SFGS to apply for principal
moratorium for up to 12 months during a 12-month
application period which will end on 17 November
2025, and offering the partial principal repayment
options to new loans under the 80% Guarantee
Product and 90% Guarantee Product in order to
alleviate the repayment pressure on the borrowing
enterprises and help them address challenges
brought about by economic restructuring

1

approving more than 27,400 and 14,700 applications
for loans amounting to HK$118.4 billion and HK$26.5
billion since the launch of the 80% and 90% Guarantee
Products, respectively, benefitting around 22,400 local
SMEs and 374,400 related employees'. Over 3,100
applications have chosen the principal moratorium
option

approving more than 67,000 applications for loans
amounting to about HK$143.7 billion since the
launch of the Special 100% Loan Guarantee (100%
Guarantee Product), benefitting around 40,000 local
SMEs and 400,000 related employees. Over 46,900
applications have chosen the principal moratorium
option. The 100% Guarantee Product’s application
period expired at the end of March 2024

extending the application period of the Dedicated
100% Loan Guarantee Schemes (DLGS) for the
cross-boundary passenger transport and the travel
industries for six months to the expiry on 28 October
2024. A total of 227 applications amounting to about
HK$0.22 billion have been approved since their
launch, benefitting about 120 licensed travel agents
and helping some 650 vehicles resume service.
Separately, more than 100 applications amounting
to about HK$36.3 million have been approved under
the DLGS for battery electric taxis since its launch for
replacement of 110 existing non-electric taxis with
battery electric taxis

being on track in executing the implementation
plan of the Group’s Infrastructure Financing
and Securitisation (IFS) business to accumulate
infrastructure loan assets and develop the IFS brand
of the Group

The numbers of benefitted enterprises and benefitted employees
have been adjusted to avoid double counting of enterprises using
both the 80% and 90% Guarantee Products.
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completing the second issuance of infrastructure
loan-backed securities (ILBS). The public issuance
consists of multiple classes of US dollar-denominated
senior secured notes backed by the cash flows from
a diversified portfolio of projects and infrastructure
loans across multiple geographies and sectors, with
a total size of US$423.3 million. Within the capital
structure of the ILBS, there is an US$107 million
sustainability tranche backed by social, green and
sustainable assets. The Sustainability Tranche is
issued in accordance with the HKMC's Social, Green
and Sustainability Financing Framework, which
aligns with the Green Bond Principles, Social Bond
Principles and Sustainability Bond Guidelines released
by the International Capital Market Association. It
demonstrates the HKMC's commitment to green and
sustainable development

purchasing about HK$392.0 million of residential
mortgage loans

issuing HK$103.5 billion of debt securities (HK$88.4
billion of which with maturity of one year or above),
thus promoting the development of the local debt
market and maintaining the Group’s position as the
most active issuer of the Hong Kong dollar (HKD)
corporate bond market during the year, while being a
major offshore Renminbi (CNH) corporate bond issuer
in 2024

o issuing a triple-tranche HKD benchmark bonds
totalling HK$12 billion in February 2024, marking it
the largest-ever HKD senior unsecured public bond
transaction and the largest 10-year HKD public bond
issuance in the institutional market at the time of
issuance

. launching its third social bond issuance of
approximately HK$23.8 billion equivalent (or US$3
billion equivalent) in October 2024. The issuance
marked the largest social bond issuance in Asia
Pacific, breaking the record set by the Group in 2023

. maintaining the Group’s long-term foreign and local
currency ratings of AA+ by S&P Global Ratings (S&P)
and Aa3 by Moody'’s Investors Service, Inc. (Moody’s)
as at end-2024, same as the HKSAR Government

. safeguarding excellent credit quality, with a non-
performing loan ratio of 0.13% across all asset classes
and over-90-day delinquency ratios of 0.05% for the
mortgage insurance portfolio and 0.16% for the Hong
Kong residential mortgage portfolio

The Group maintained a solid financial position in 2024:

. capital adequacy ratio of 19.9% as at 31 December
2024, which is well above the minimum requirement
of 8% stipulated by the Financial Secretary

. solvency ratios of the Group’s two insurance
subsidiaries, calculated in accordance with Insurance
(Valuation and Capital) Rules (Cap. 41R) under the new
Risk-Based Capital regime effective from 1 July 2024,
were about 4 times for general insurance business
and 1.7 times for annuity business as at 31 December
2024, both well above the minimum statutory
requirements stipulated by the Insurance Authority
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Market Overview

General Economic Conditions

Global economic growth generally sustained in 2024.
Interest rates in the advanced economies stayed high
during the year and the future pace of interest rate cuts
by the US Federal Reserve remains uncertain. In Mainland
China, the economy continued to expand steadily due in
part to strengthened policy support.

The Hong Kong economy recorded moderate growth in
2024 with growing exports of goods and services. However,
various factors including geopolitical tensions and global
economic and interest rates outlook posed uncertainties
on different fronts. Against this backdrop, the Hong Kong
economy grew modestly during the year at 2.5% year-on-
year in real terms.

Property Market

Following the abolition of the demand-side management
measures for residential properties by the Government and
the adjustments of the supervisory measures for property
mortgage loans by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(HKMA), sentiment in the residential property market
improved in the first quarter of 2024. However, following a
period of stabilisation, the local residential property market
retreated from April 2024 and market sentiment stayed
cautious for the rest of the year.

Overall, the number of residential property transactions in
2024 increased by 23.5% year on year to 53,099, while the
consideration of transactions recorded a 16.7% year-on-
year increase (Figure 1).

Figure 1

Agreements for Sale and Purchase of Residential Building Units
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Transaction volumes in the primary and secondary markets
fluctuated throughout the year. In general, residential
property prices? recorded a 7.1% cumulative decrease in
2024, compared with a 7.0% drop in 2023 (Figure 2).

Figure 2

Private Domestic Price Index (1999 = 100)
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2 Source: The Private Domestic Price Index published by the Rating and
Valuation Department
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Mortgage Market

As of December 2024, the Best Lending Rates (BLRsS) were
at the range of 5.25%-6% following the interest rate cuts by
the US Federal Reserve. The Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate (HIBOR) recorded a fluctuating pattern throughout the
year. According to the Monthly Statistics Bulletin published
by the HKMA, the one-month HIBOR in terms of period
average® started high in the first three months of the year
at the range of 4.53%-4.76%. It began to decrease in April
reaching 3.89% in September before returning to a higher
track and be at 4.46% in December 2024. Mortgage lending
grew, with the total outstanding value of all residential
mortgage loans rising by 1.37% to HK$2,006.25 billion. The
gross value of new loans drawn down* decreased by 26.2%
year on year in 2024, following a drop of 21.6% in 2023
(Figure 3).

Figure 3

New Residential Mortgage Loans Drawn Down
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Overall, HIBOR-based mortgages appeared to be more
favoured by borrowers during the year. As at December
2024, 91.3% of new mortgage loans were benchmarked
against HIBOR, while BLR-based mortgages and fixed-rate
plans accounted for 4.1% and 0.6% respectively. (Figure 4).

Figure 4

Pricing of New Residential Mortgage Loans Approved

Dec/24
Nov/24
Oct/24
Sep/24
Aug/24
Julr24
Jun/24
May/24
Apr/24
Mar/24
Feb/24

Jan/24
Dec/23
Nov/23
0Oct/23
sep/23
Aug/23
Jul/23
Jun/23
May/23
Apr/23
Mar/23
Feb/23
Jan/23
Dec/22
Nov/22
Oct/22
Sep/22
Aug/22
Julr22
Jun/22
May/22
Apr/22
Mar/22
Feb/22
Jan/22

0% 10% 20% 90% 100%

8 with reference to BLR
11 with reference to HIBOR

30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80%

[ Fixed rate
M Others

Source: Hong Kong Monetary Authority

76 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2024



Under the HKMA's prudent supervision of the mortgage
lending sector, the asset quality of residential mortgage
loans remained excellent in 2024. The over-90-day
delinquency ratio of mortgage loans was steady at 0.08%-
0.12% throughout the year, reflecting banks’ prudent
underwriting standards. The combined ratio, which includes
both the delinquent and rescheduled loans, also maintained
at 0.08%-0.12% during the year (Figure 5). The estimated
number of residential mortgage loans in negative equity
was 38,389 cases at end-December 2024, with an aggregate
value of HK$195.1 billion recorded®. These cases were
mainly related to bank staff housing loans or residential
mortgage loans under mortgage insurance programme,
which generally have a higher loan-to-value ratio.

Figure 5

Delinquency Ratio of Residential Mortgage Loans
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Banking-Sector Exposure

The total outstanding value of property-related loans in 2024
amounted to HK$3,426.02 billion, representing about 45.7%
of banks’ total loans (Figure 6). Of these property-related
mortgage loans, private residential properties accounted
for HK$1,873.53 billion (end-2023: HK$1,853.59 billion) and
subsidised flats accounted for HK$132.72 billion (end-2023:
HK$125.52 billion).

Figure 6

Total Loans and Private Residential Mortgage Loans of

All Authorized Institutions
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Asset Acquisition

On the back of liquidity in the market, banks have no
urgency to offload mortgage loans or other assets to the
Group. The Group is prepared to provide liquidity to the
market as and when required. In 2024, the Group acquired
mortgage assets of around HK$392.0 million being staff
mortgage loans from the Hospital Authority.

Funding

Global financial markets and the real economy remained
uncertain in 2024, hinging on factors such as the sticky
inflationary pressure and escalating geopolitical tensions.
Amidst the volatile market conditions, the Group managed
to secure prudent pre-funding for loan purchases and
refinancing activities. Given the Group'’s strong background
as a wholly government-owned entity and solid credit
ratings, the Group raised debts totalling HK$103.5 billion in
2024, with HK$88.4 billion having maturity of one year or
above, in a cost-effective manner. At the end of the year,
the Group's total outstanding debts amounted to HK$148
billion. Being one of the most active bond issuers in Hong
Kong, the Group will continue to issue debt securities
in both the local institutional and retail markets and
diversify its funding sources and investor base to overseas
institutional markets. This will not only help broaden the
Group's funding base, but also provide institutional and
retail investors with high-quality debt instruments to
satisfy their need for portfolio diversification and vyield
enhancement. The Group has various debt issuance
programmes that allow the issuance of debt securities in an
efficient and effective manner. With its strong credit ratings,
the Group’s debt issues have been well received by the
investment community.

In 2022, the Group established its Social, Green and
Sustainability Financing Framework (SGS Framework)
as part of its extended effort to expand and implement its
sustainability strategy as an integral part of its business
strategy. The SGS Framework focuses on the Group's
sustainable initiatives, and demonstrates how the Group
and its subsidiaries support, and are aligned with, Hong
Kong's long-term sustainability visions.

The Group will use the SGS Framework as the basis to
structure and issue social, green and/or sustainability
bond(s) and asset-backed securities. Net proceeds will be
allocated to support projects falling within one or more of
the eligible social asset categories or eligible green asset
categories.

Medium Term Note Programme

The Group established the multi-currency Medium Term
Note (MTN) Programme in June 2007 to broaden its investor
base and funding sources in the international market. To
meet growing funding demand, the size of MTN Programme
was expanded gradually to US$30 billion from its initial size
of US$3 billion. The programme enables multi-currency
issuances and incorporates flexible product features to
increase its appeal to local and overseas investors with
different investment horizons and requirements. An
extensive dealer group comprising major international and
regional financial institutions is appointed to support MTN
issuance and provide secondary market liquidity. In 2024,
the Group launched 154 MTN issues with total issuance
amount of HK$103.5 billion under the MTN Programme.
There were 123 issues amounting to HK$88.4 billion of one
year or longer maturity, while the remaining 31 MTN issues
totalling HK$15.1 billion were of less than one year.

The Group successfully launched its triple-tranche HKD
benchmark bonds totalling HK$12 billion, making it the
largest-ever HKD senior unsecured public bond transaction
and the largest 10-year HKD public bond issuance in the
institutional market at the time of issuance. The triple-
tranche issuance comprised HK$8 billion two-year, HK$3
billion five-year and HK$1 billion ten-year bonds. The
issuance was well received by a diverse group of high-
quality local and overseas institutional investors with strong
orderbook of over HK$37 billion and final allocation to over
180 accounts.
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The Group also successfully launched its third social bonds
of approximately HK$23.8 billion equivalent in October
2024. The issuance marked the largest social bond issuance
in Asia Pacific, breaking the record set by the Group in
2023. The triple-currency social bond issuance with four
tranches comprised HK$7 billion two-year, HK$8 billion five-
year, CNH2 billion seven-year and US$850 million three-
year social bonds. The issuance was well received by local
and overseas institutional investors, with a combined
peak orderbook of around HK$55 billion equivalent and
final allocation to over 200 accounts. Moreover, the two
HKD tranches totalling HK$15 billion was the largest-
ever institutional bond denominated in HKD, while the
CNH tranche was the first ever 7-year institutional bond
denominated in CNH at the time of issuance. The issuance
helped to establish new benchmarks across the yield curve
for the market and further facilitated the bond market
development in Hong Kong.

For this landmark social bond transaction launched during
the year, the Group was presented with notable awards
by the following well recognised organisations locally and
internationally:

— HKQAA's Hong Kong Green and Sustainable Finance
Awards 2024

° Outstanding Award for Green and Sustainable
Bond Issuer (Public Sector) — Largest Amount
of Social Bonds

—  The Asset Triple A Sustainable Finance Awards 2025
° Best Social Bond in Hong Kong

These awards demonstrated the Group's successful
achievement and market recognition in promoting ESG and
sustainable finance in Hong Kong, thereby underscoring the
pivotal role of the Group in the development of local debt
market and investor confidence in Hong Kong's economy.

Debt Issuance Programme

The Debt Issuance Programme (DIP) was established in July
1998 targeting institutional investors in the Hong Kong dollar
debt market. It was set up with an initial programme size of
HK$20 billion, which was doubled to HK$40 billion in 2003.
The DIP provides a flexible and efficient platform for the
Group to issue debt and transferable loan certificates with a
tenor of up to 15 years. All debt securities issued under the
DIP were matured by end-2023.

Retail Bond Issuance Programme

Dedicated to the promotion of the retail bond market in
Hong Kong, the Group pioneered a new offering mechanism
in November 2001 and established the HK$20 billion Retail
Bond Issuance Programme in May 2004. Since 2001, the
Group has issued retail bonds totalling HK$13.7 billion.
When the market environment is conducive, the Group
aims to issue retail bonds regularly to provide an additional
investment tool for Hong Kong's retail investors.

Revolving Credit Facility Provided by the Exchange
Fund

In January 1998, during the Asian Financial Crisis, the
Exchange Fund extended a HK$10 billion Revolving Credit
Facility (RCF) to the Group. This RCF has provided the
Group with an important liquidity fallback to enable the
Group to maintain smooth operation under exceptional
circumstances so that it can better fulfil its mission to
promote banking and financial stability in Hong Kong.
Following the outbreak of the global financial crisis in
2008, the size of the RCF was increased to HK$30 billion
in December that year. In October 2020, the RCF was
further increased to HK$80 billion to provide the Group
with additional support to achieve its policy objective. Both
actions demonstrated the HKSAR Government's recognition
of the importance of, and further support for, the Group.
The RCF was used by the Group during times of market
stress in 1998 and 2008 to partially fund the acquisition
of Hong Kong residential mortgage assets from the local
banks. In both cases, the loans drawn under the RCF
were fully repaid with funds raised from the Group's cost-
effective debt issuance when the markets stabilised. There
was no drawdown under the RCF in 2024.
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Credit Rating

The Group’s ability to attract investment in its debt
securities is underpinned by its strong credit ratings,
which are equivalent to those of the HKSAR Government,
according to S&P and Moody's.

Credit Ratings of the HKMC

S&P Moody's
Short-term  Long-term  Short-term  Long-term
Local Currency A1+ AA+ P-1 Aa3
Foreign Currency A1+ AA+ P-1 Aa3
Qutlook Stable Negative

(as at 31 December 2024)

The credit rating agencies have made favourable
assessments on the Group'’s credit standings. The following
comments are extracts from the credit rating reports of S&P
and Moody's in December and November 2024 respectively:

S&pP

“We equalize our ratings on HKMC with the ratings on the
government of Hong Kong, the corporation’s sole ultimate
owner. This reflects our view of an almost certain likelihood
of timely and sufficient extraordinary support from the
Hong Kong government if needed. We do not assign a
stand-alone credit profile (SACP) to HKMC because it is not
a significant ratings driver. Our view of an almost certain
likelihood of extraordinary government support for HKMC is
based on our assessment of the corporation’s critical policy
role to, and integral link with, the Hong Kong government.”

“HKMC has a well-established market position, with a
unique role to address local banks’ liguidity and balance
sheet management needs by purchasing mortgage and
loan portfolios from banks, especially in times of stress. ...
A variety of stressful market conditions have tested HKMC's
business model. For example, when global financial markets
and the local economy were under stress in late 2008 and
early 2009, HKMC enlarged its mortgage acquisitions in
response to banks’ requests, and enhanced its mortgage
insurance program.”

“We believe HKMC benefits from the presence and
effective oversight of its experienced and competent board
members. The management team is capable, effective,
and experienced, in our view. HKMC's strategic positioning
is clear and consistent with its capability and market
conditions. The corporation has always operated within
its financial and risk management standards, which we
consider to be rigorous and clear.”

“We expect HKMC to manage its funding and liquidity with
reasonable prudence. The corporation has very strong debt
capital market access through its senior debt programs. It
has been issuing medium-term notes to finance its special
100% loans guaranteed under the SFGS. We expect HKMC
to maintain adequate levels of highly liquid assets to cover
its short-term funding needs.”

Moody's

"HKMC is wholly owned by the Hong Kong government for
the account of the Exchange Fund. The company carries
out policy mandates, including the promotion of financial
and banking stability in Hong Kong; wider homeownership;
development of the local debt capital markets; and
development of the retirement planning market. ... As part
of its mandate to promote banking stability, the company
acts as an alternative lender of last resort, as it purchases
residential mortgages from banks in times of stress. ...
HKMC has several important policy mandates in Hong Kong.
In the past five years, the company undertook additional
policy initiatives to reinforce its links with the government.
We expect the government to continue to leverage HKMC
to support the provision of financial services and economic
development in Hong Kong. We expect HKMC's policy role
to continue.”

“We expect the government to continue to provide capital
and liquidity support to HKMC because of the company’s
policy roles and importance. ... The government provided
HKMC with a HKD5 billion capital injection to set up the
annuity business in 2018, and an additional HKD7.5 billion
of aggregate capital injection in 2021, 2022 and 2023. It also
increased its Revolving Credit Facility (RCF) for HKMC to
HKD8O0 billion in October 2020 from HKD30 billion.”
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“"HKMC has very close links with the government, which
directly influences and supervises HKMC's operations
by appointing its board members and management.
Most of the members on the board of directors are from
government departments, the executive council and the
legislative council. The financial secretary serves as the
chairman and executive director of HKMC, and the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority’s chief executive serves as deputy
chairman and executive director.”

“The company has very good access to capital markets
because of its strong financial fundamentals and
government affiliation. ... As of 30 June 2024, the company
had sufficient liquid assets, including the Exchange Fund’s
RCF, to repay all of its outstanding debt.”

“In line with our general view on finance companies, HKMC
has low exposure to environmental risks. ... The company’s
public policy mandates are in line with supporting the well-
being of most Hong Kong residents and companies. ...
HKMC has not shown any governance shortfall in recent
years and its risk management framework is commensurate
with the company’s risk appetite.”

Mortgage-backed Securitisation

The Group strives to promote the development of the
mortgage-backed securities (MBS) market in Hong Kong.
MBS is an effective financial instrument that can channel
long-term funding from the debt market to supplement the
need for long-term financing generated by mortgage loans.
Banks and financial institutions can make use of MBS to
manage risks inherent in mortgage loans, such as credit
risks, liquidity risks, interest rate risks and asset-liability
maturity mismatch risks.

The Group has issued a total of HK$13.2 billion MBS since
1999. All MBS had been redeemed by 2013.

Infrastructure Financing and Securitisation

The Group launched the Infrastructure Financing
Securitisation (IFS) business in 2019 to accumulate
infrastructure loan assets and develop the IFS brand of
the Group. In the early stage, the Group purchases and
accumulates infrastructure loans from the secondary loan
market, as well as co-finances infrastructure projects with
multilateral development banks and commercial banks in
the primary market. The Group continues to participate
in a step-by-step manner in the infrastructure financing
market on commercially viable and financially sustainable
terms, while observing prudent commercial principles
and risk management policies. In response to the rapidly
changing macro-economic environment, the Group has
taken a prudent approach with corresponding adjustment
in its asset acquisition strategy and will remain vigilant on
their development. Since formal launch of the business in
2019, the Group has accumulated over US$2.2 billion of
infrastructure loans spreading over Asia Pacific, Middle
East and Latin America. The Group continues to team
up with industry players to facilitate the development
of commercially viable infrastructure projects globally,
leveraging on the Master Cooperation Agreement
with International Finance Corporation, Memoranda of
Understanding with China Export & Credit Insurance
Corporation and 20 investment and commercial banks.

On 11 September 2024, the Group, via Bauhinia ILBS
2 Limited (the special purpose vehicle established for
the ILBS issuance), successfully closed a publicly rated
securitisation transaction which consists of multiple classes
of US dollar-denominated senior secured notes backed
by the cash flows from a diversified portfolio of projects
and infrastructure loans across multiple geographies and
sectors, with an issuance size of US$423.3 million. The
notes (except for the subordinated notes) are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and offered to a diversified
group of professional investors. The Group has multiple
roles in this transaction, including the Sponsor, Retention
Holder of the subordinated notes and Collateral Manager.
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The ILBS issuances are widely recognised by industry
players and professional investors. In 2024, Bauhinia ILBS
1 issuance was awarded “The Asset Triple A Awards 2024
— Most Innovative Deal of the Year” by The Asset whilst
Bauhinia ILBS 2 issuance was awarded the “Outstanding
Award for Green and Sustainable Bond Issuer (Infrastructure
Financing and Securitisation) — Largest Single Sustainability
Bond” by Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency, “Best Bond
Deal”, "Best Infrastructure Deal” in Hong Kong and "Best
Structured Finance Deal” in Hong Kong and Asia-Pacific by
FinanceAsia. The issuances aim at enriching the local debt
capital market and promoting the securitisation market in
Hong Kong.

Mortgage Insurance Programme

The Mortgage Insurance Programme (MIP) helps potential
homebuyers who have limited resources for substantial
down payment for the purchase of a property. From a
banking industry perspective, the MIP allows banks to
engage in higher loan-to-value (LTV) lending without
incurring additional credit risk and jeopardising the stability
of the banking system. The MIP creates a win-win situation
for both homebuyers and banks. Over the years, the MIP
has been established firmly as an integral part of mortgage
financing in Hong Kong. Demand for the MIP has eased in
2024, and the volume of loans drawn down under the MIP
decreased to HK$47.9 billion in 2024 from HK$83.1 billion
in 2023 (Figure 7). Since 1999, the MIP has helped around
235,000 families achieve their dream of home ownership,
with an aggregate loan drawdown of HK$869.8 billion.

Figure 7

Mortgage Loan Amount Drawn Down of HKMCI MIP
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During the year, technical adjustments to the MIP were made
in light of the HKMA's adjustments on the countercyclical
macroprudential measures on property mortgage loans. For
instance, the requirement to lower the debt-to-income ratio
limit of mortgage applicants who borrowed or guaranteed
other outstanding mortgages was lifted.

In August 2024, a new arrangement was put in place under
the MIP to approve on a case-by-case basis applications
from eligible homebuyers to rent out their self-occupied
properties with conditions, so as to meet their special needs
arising from changes in personal or family circumstances.

82 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2024



Fixed Rate Mortgage Scheme

Announced in the Financial Secretary’s 2020-21 Budget, the
Group introduced a scheme of fixed-rate mortgages for 10,
15 and 20 years under the Fixed Rate Mortgage Scheme
in May 2020. It aims to provide an alternative financing
option to homebuyers for mitigating their risks arising from
interest rate volatility, thereby enhancing banking stability
in the long run. The maximum loan amount of each private
residential mortgage under the scheme is HK$10 million.
To continue filling the market gap in respect of fixed-rate
mortgage products, the scheme was made permanent in
November 2021. Starting from February 2022, the Group
determines the fixed interest rates from time to time in
accordance with factors such as cost of funds, business
and market conditions. As at end-December 2024, nine
banks had joined the scheme and a total of 155 applications
had been received since launch in May 2020.

HKMC Retire 3

To reinforce its positioning as a unique market player
and trustworthy provider of retirement planning solutions
that cater for the needs of people at different life stages,
the Group launched in late June 2021 the "HKMC Retire
3" brand, with the Reverse Mortgage Programme (RMP),
the Policy Reverse Mortgage Programme (PRMP) and the
HKMC Annuity Plan (Annuity Plan) promoted together
as a holistic solution for retirement planning. These three
products share the characteristics of providing retirees with
an immediate, stable and lifelong stream of income after
retirement. The Group continued to develop and promote
the products through marketing them under the "HKMC
Retire 3" brand, proactive customer engagement, and
expanding the distribution channels. In 2024, the Group
launched a marketing campaign which was effective in

raising public awareness on the benefits of “"HKMC Retire
3". A video series under this campaign has recorded over
10 million viewings and more than 25,000 responses on
online platforms. Other channels including public transport
(e.g. bus, MTR and taxi), television and radio have also been
used to deliver the message. The HKMC YouTube Channel,
with over 9,500 subscribers, continues to be an effective
platform for financial education and promotion.

As for public engagement, the Group organised four
public seminars in 2024 to introduce the “"HKMC Retire 3"
brand and its retirement products. These seminars, which
targeted the general public from all walks of life, received
overwhelming response in registration and were effective
in arousing the interest of participants. Many of them were
enthusiastic to enquire into the benefits of the "HKMC
Retire 3" products, some of whom joined consultation
sessions to explore further on how the products could suit
their personal financial needs and enrich their retirement
life. To reach a wider audience, a mobile information
centre, in the form of a roving truck, was deployed to
tour across Hong Kong and station in various residential
neighbourhood to familiarise the public with the "HKMC
Retire 3" products through interactive games, exhibitions
and product enquiries. The Group also organised a series
of talks in collaboration with institutional partners and non-
governmental organisations to promote the development
of the retirement planning market. The various activities
and the roving exhibition successfully reached over 15,000
persons.
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The Group values the overall quality of retirement life of
its customers, hence the loyalty programme “AMIGOS By
HKMC” (AMIGOS) was launched in 2019 to facilitate a close
connection between the Group and its customers. Response
to the loyalty programme has been encouraging. As at end-
December 2024, the AMIGOS had recruited over 10,000
members. During the year, AMIGOS organised a series of
engagement activities, including workshops, guided tours
and luncheons which were well received. These activities
not only encouraged members to live a fulfilling retirement
life, but also provided ample opportunities for direct
interactions with members who could potentially refer more
new customers to the Group. AMIGOS also proactively
recruited a number of information subscribers who were
not yet eligible for AMIGOS membership but were interested
in receiving relevant information. Some of the information
subscribers subsequently joined the PRMP, the RMP and/or
the Annuity Plan and became members of the AMIGOS.

The Group remains a staunch supporter of improving
financial literacy in Hong Kong. In recognition of its
ongoing effort and contribution, the Group was awarded
the Certificate of Appreciation 2024 by the Investor and
Financial Education Council. The Group continues to help
citizens establish proper retirement financial planning
concepts through continuous education and promotion.
What's more, the Group has been disseminating information
to AMIGOS members and information subscribers to raise
their awareness of phishing financial scams and safeguard
their financial well-being.

Reverse Mortgage Programme

With the Group’s ongoing efforts in educating the public
on retirement solutions, receptiveness to the RMP has
continued to grow. More and more people welcome the
idea of using the RMP as an instrument to generate a stable
stream of monthly income after retirement. The Group has
been offering fixed-rate mortgage plans under the RMP
since September 2018. In June 2024, the interest rate of the
standard fixed-rate mortgage plan was adjusted to 4.5% p.a.
from 4% p.a. for the first 25 years of the loan tenor. During
the year, 881 applications were received under the fixed-
rate mortgage plan, accounting for 87% of the 1,017 RMP
applications received in 2024.

Policy Reverse Mortgage Programme

To better meet the needs of retirees through an alternative
retirement planning option, the Group launched the PRMP
in May 2019 by replicating the business model of the
RMP. As at the end of December 2024, around 140 PRMP
applications had been received since the programme’s
launch, among which around 50 were drawn down during
the year. The Group has established a mechanism with
insurance companies and insurance broker companies for
the referral of potential customers, which contributed to
the majority of PRMP applications received in 2024. Joint
promotions were staged with the insurance companies and
insurance broker companies to promote the PRMP and the
RMP as a holistic solution of retirement planning.
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The Group has also established collaboration with large
organisations in Hong Kong to provide retirement planning
information and PRMP and RMP promotional offers to their
existing and retired staff.

Life Annuity Business

The Group introduces promotional offers periodically to
promote the Annuity Plan while addressing the needs
of senior citizens. During the year, the Group launched
“Lifelong Monthly Income Booster” and premium discount
campaign for the Annuity Plan in order to provide greater
protection to senior citizens. This campaign offered a 25%
increase in lifetime monthly annuity payouts for the first
HK$300,000 premium of new applications per customer,
and a 2% premium discount for the remaining premium
amount. These initiatives enhanced retirees’ peace of mind
and enabled senior citizens to enjoy increased financial
flexibility. As of the end of 2024, the life annuity business
achieved around 170% year-on-year sales volume growth,
empowering more senior citizens to transform their
savings into a life-long stream of retirement income. The
overwhelming response also underscores growing market
receptiveness to the Annuity Plan.

In respect of public education initiatives for retirement
financial planning, while awareness of the Annuity Plan
has grown over the years, there are rooms to further
enhance public understanding of the benefits of annuities.
Accordingly, the Group has strengthened public education
initiatives in this respect. Central to this strategy is the new
publicity campaign featuring a new character, “Mr. Well-
Planned”. Using relatable, everyday life scenarios, this
campaign effectively addresses common questions from
the public, thereby promoting retirement financial planning
and encouraging the adoption of the Annuity Plan in a light-
hearted yet effective manner.

Furthermore, to enhance the financial well-being of
senior citizen communities, the Group organised over 80
outreach activities and strengthened collaborations with
corporations and professional organisations to promote the
understanding of longevity risk and highlight the importance
of life annuity products for retirement financial planning.

SME Financing Guarantee Scheme

The 80% and 90% Guarantee Products under the SME
Financing Guarantee Scheme (SFGS) are backed by the
Government's guarantee commitment. The 80% Guarantee
Product was launched in May 2012 to help SMEs obtain
loans for general working capital or purchase of equipment
or other assets to support business operations. The 90%
Guarantee Product was launched in December 2019 to
provide additional support to smaller-sized enterprises
and businesses with relatively less operating experience to
obtain financing. The guarantee fees are set aside to pay
default claims from participating lenders and out-of-pocket
expenses to be incurred under the arrangement, with any
shortfall to be borne by the Government.

Introduced in April 2020 during the COVID-19 epidemic,
the 100% Guarantee Product aimed to alleviate the burden
of paying employee wages and rents by SMEs which are
suffering from reduced income, thereby helping to minimise
enterprise shutdowns and layoffs. The loans are fully
guaranteed by the Government and sold to the HKMC after
loan drawdown by participating lenders. The application
period for the 100% Guarantee Product expired in end-
March 2024.

The Financial Secretary announced in the 2024-25 Budget
in February 2024 the extension of the application period for
the 80% Guarantee Product and 90% Guarantee Product
to end-March 2026 based on the Government's total
guarantee commitment of HK$290 billion.

To alleviate the repayment pressure on borrowing
enterprises, and help them address challenges brought
about by economic restructuring, the Chief Executive
announced in “The Chief Executive’s 2024 Policy Address”
in October 2024 that, for both existing and new loans,
borrowing enterprises could apply for principal moratorium
for up to 12 months; the maximum loan guarantee periods
of the 80% Guarantee Product and 90% Guarantee Product
would be extended by three years to ten years and eight
years respectively; and partial principal repayment options
would be offered to new loans under the 80% Guarantee
Product and 90% Guarantee Product. These measures took
effect on 18 November 2024.
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A total of 35 Authorized Institutions participate as lenders
under the SFGS. As at 31 December 2024, the Group had
approved more than 27,400, 14,700 and 67,000 applications
for loans amounting to HK$118.4 billion, HK$26.5 billion
and HK$143.7 billion since the launch of the 80%, 90% and
100% Guarantee Products respectively, benefitting around
22,400 local SMEs and 374,400 related employees® under
the 80% and 90% Guarantee Products, and around 40,000
local SMEs and 400,000 related employees under the 100%
Guarantee Product. Over 50,000 applications have chosen
the principal moratorium arrangement by borrowers under
all Guarantee Products.

Dedicated 100% Loan Guarantee Schemes

Following the Financial Secretary’s announcement in the
2023-24 Budget, the Group launched the Dedicated 100%
Loan Guarantee Schemes (DLGS) to support the business
resumption of the cross-boundary passenger transport and
travel industries, and to encourage taxi owners to replace
their existing liquefied petroleum gas, petrol or hybrid taxis
with battery electric taxis (e-Taxis).

The DLGS for Travel Sector aimed to assist licensed
travel agents and local tour coach registered owners in
resolving short-term funding difficulties, hiring staff as
soon as practicable and accelerating operational capability
enhancement, to complement the pace of resumption of
inbound and outbound tourism activities.

The objective of the DLGS for Cross-boundary Passenger
Transport Trade was to allow eligible registered vehicle
owners or ferry operators/owners of cross-boundary
passenger transport to apply for loans for the purpose of
vehicle or ferry repair and maintenance, buying insurance,
etc. with a view to resuming services as soon as possible.

6 The numbers of benefitted enterprises and benefitted employees
have been adjusted to avoid double counting of enterprises using
both the 80% and 90% Guarantee Products.

The DLGS for e-Taxis, which aims to promote the use of
e-Taxis as one of the Government’s measures to develop
green transport and help achieve the carbon neutrality
target of Hong Kong, provides low interest rate loans fully
guaranteed by the Government for eligible taxi owners to
purchase e-Taxis to replace their liquefied petroleum gas,
petrol or hybrid taxis.

The DLGS for the cross-boundary passenger transport and
travel industries were launched on 29 April 2023. As at the
end of December 2024, 227 applications for a total loan
amount of HK$0.22 billion had been approved, benefitting
about 120 licensed travel agents and helping some 650
vehicles resume service. The application period expired on
28 October 2024.

The DLGS for e-Taxis was launched separately on 4
September 2023 for a five-year application period. As at
the end of December 2024, 105 applications for a total
loan amount of HK$36.3 million had been approved for
replacement of 110 existing non-electric taxis with battery
electric taxis.

The 100% Personal Loan Guarantee
Scheme

Following the Financial Secretary’s announcement in the
2021-22 Budget, the Group launched the 100% Personal
Loan Guarantee Scheme (PLGS) in April 2021 to provide a
supplementary financing option to individuals suffering from
cessation of main recurrent incomes from employment
in Hong Kong amid the COVID-19 epidemic. The PLGS
is backed by the Government's financial commitment
of HK$15 billion. The Group is designated as the loan
purchaser and the administrator of the PLGS.

Given the local economic recovery and decreased
unemployment rate, the application period of the PLGS
expired at the end of April 2023. The Group has approved
around 67,000 applications for a total loan amount of
HK$4.7 billion, benefitting more than 59,000 borrowers.
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Global economic growth and the financial markets generally
held up and performed well in 2024. Major economies
recorded stable growth with inflation eased closer to policy
targets, while major central banks progressively lowered
their policy rates. However, the new US administration’s
policies on the economy, tax and trade added uncertainties
to the inflation path and in turn affects how much room the
US Fed has in adjusting monetary policy. Meanwhile, an
escalation in trade frictions among major economies, along
with geopolitical tensions, impacted real economic activities
and triggered volatility in the financial markets. The increase
in volatility saw the financial markets turn more cautious
amid concerns over rising inflation and US Treasury yields
in the fourth quarter of 2024.

In Mainland China, the economy grew by 5.0% in 2024 over
the previous year. Major economic indicators pointed to
a pick-up in growth momentum towards the end of the
year while investor confidence improved, following the
Central Government’s announcements of a series of policy
measures in the third quarter to stimulate the economy,
stabilise the property market and boost the capital market.

In Hong Kong, the economy maintained its growth
momentum despite the challenging external environment.
Exports of goods and services continued to grow amid
improvement in external demand, an increasing number
of visitor arrivals and cross-border economic activities.
Overall consumer price inflation rate stayed modest and
averaged 1.1% for 2024 as whole. The job market remained
stable, with the unemployment rate staying low at 3.1% in
the fourth quarter. Residential property market sentiment
remained uncertain, with a drop of 7.1% in average
residential property price index in December 2024 as
compared with a year ago. Against this backdrop, the Hong
Kong economy posted a moderate growth of 2.5% in gross
domestic product in 2024, further to 3.2% growth in 2023.

Amid uncertain market conditions, the Group’s core
operations remain resilient and stand ready to face any
financial turbulence ahead in performing its strategic policy
roles and attaining its social objectives with strong financing
capability and solid capital position.

Income Statement

Financial Performance

Net loss of the Group for the year was HK$418 million (2023:
a net loss of HK$260 million). The increase in accounting
loss was largely due to negative impact of property price
drop on fast-growing reverse mortgage business which
were partly mitigated by the increase in net interest
income together with the return from placements with the
Exchange Fund.

For better assessment of the financial performance,
after excluding (i) the accounting results of the annuity
business; (i) the impact of property price change on reverse
mortgage insurance business; and (i) effect of accounting
adjustments of loan portfolios with insurance cover
provided by the HKMCI at consolidation level after adoption
of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 17 “Insurance
Contracts” (HKFRS 17), the adjusted profit for the year and
return on equity would be HK$787 million (2023: HK$724
million) and 4.8% (2023: 5.3%) respectively. The embedded
value of annuity business under the Insurance Ordinance
basis was about HK$12.4 billion which comprised HK$11.2
billion of total equity and HK$1.2 billion of present value of
future profits, indicating a solid financial position to develop
the business in the long term.

The capital adequacy ratio of the Group stood solid at
19.9% (2023: 21.6%) SO as to preserve capital for business
development. The respective solvency ratios of the
Group’s two insurance subsidiaries as at 31 December
2024, calculated in accordance with Insurance (Valuation
and Capital) Rules (Cap. 41R) under the new Risk-Based
Capital regime effective from 1 July 2024, were about 4.0
times for general insurance business and 1.7 times for
annuity business, each well above the minimum regulatory
requirements.
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Table 1

Summary of financial performance 2024 2023
HK$ million  HKS million
Operating loss before impairment (518) (393)
Loss before tax (553) (413)
Loss for the year (418) (260)"
Return on equity (1.5)%' (1.0)%
Cost-to-income ratio (232.9)%' (471.0)%'
Capital adequacy ratio 19.9% 21.6%

! After adjustments to exclude (a) the accounting results of the
HKMCA, (b) the impact of property price change on the insurance
results of the reverse mortgage business; and (c) the accounting
adjustments after adoption of HKFRS 17 in respect of loan portfolios
with insurance cover provided by the HKMCI, the adjusted profit for
the year, return on equity and cost-to-income ratio for 2024 would be
HK$787 million, 4.8% and 27.6% respectively (2023: HK$724 million,
5.3% and 28.1% respectively).

Net Interest Income

The HKMC Group earned a net interest income of HK$618
million, HK$221 million higher than that for 2023. The
increase was mainly attributable to the enlarged debt
investment with yield enhancement. The net interest margin
was 0.4% (2023: 0.2%) (Table 2).

Table 2
Net Interest Income 2024 2023
HKS$ million  HK$ million
Net interest income 618 397
Average interest-earning assets 169,946 177,939
Net interest margin? 0.4% 0.2%
2 After excluding the impact of the purchase of loans with the special

100% loan guarantee under the SFGS and the DLGS under which
the Group only recovered the funding costs without any net interest
margin earned, the adjusted net interest margin would be 0.8% (2023:
0.5%).

Insurance Service Result

Insurance service result, which reflected insurance revenue
less insurance service expenses, taking into account
the impact of reinsurance contracts held, was a loss of
HK$1,627 million for 2024 (2023: a loss of HK$179 million).
Insurance revenue mainly reflects the consideration to

which the HKMC expects to be entitled in exchange for
the provision of insurance contract services in the form of
contractual service margin (CSM) release, while insurance
service expenses comprise the incurred claims and other
incurred insurance service expenses and losses on onerous
groups of contracts and reversals of such losses. The
increase in loss of insurance service results was mainly
due to higher losses on new annuity policies written driven
by an increase in policies written upon the launch of the
enhanced annuity payouts campaign, and an increase in
loss on onerous contracts of reverse mortgage business
due to the drop in property price in 2024, partly mitigated
by the amortisation of CSM from mortgage insurance
business.

Insurance Finance Expenses, Net

Insurance finance expenses comprise the change in the
carrying amount of insurance contracts liabilities arising
from the effect of the time value of money, financial risk
and changes therein. Insurance finance expenses, net
amounted to HK$405 million for 2024 (2023: HK$1,698
million). The improvement in insurance finance expenses
was mainly attributable to the decrease in insurance
contract liabilities of annuity business driven by the increase
in discount rates adopted at the end of 2024 as compared
to that of 2023.

Other Income

Other income was HK$1,258 million (2023: HK$1,411 million),
mainly representing investment income of HK$1,374 million
(2023: HK$1,268 million) from placements with the Exchange
Fund, loss of HK$211 million (2023: a gain of HK$52 million)
arising from fair valuation adjustments at consolidation
level for the loans with insurance cover by the HKMCI, a
gain of HK$79 million (2023: HK$43 million) from change in
fair value of financial instruments which largely represented
the marked-to-market gain of derivatives for the purpose of
hedging interest rate risk, and an exchange loss of HK$28
million (2023: a gain of HK$7 million) arising primarily from
revaluation of US dollar and offshore renminbi exposures
in cash and debt investments. The above exchange 10ss
represented the net results of the exchange difference from
the financial assets and the marked-to-market revaluation
on corresponding hedging derivatives for managing their
foreign currency exposures.
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Operating Expenses

The Group continues to maintain stringent cost controls
to contain expenses and improve operating efficiency.
Amid the increase in resources utilised for supporting
the Group’s core missions and certain policy initiatives
of the HKSAR Government, operating expenses (net of
recovery of operating expenses from the special 100% loan
guarantee under the SFGS and DLGS, and expenses directly
attributable to the insurance cashflows incorporated in
the insurance service result) increased by 12% to HK$362
million (2023: HK$324 million), less than budget. Without the
recovery of HK$166 million (2023: HK$162 million) from the
special 100% loan guarantee under the SFGS and DLGS, and
the incorporation of HK$286 million (2023: HK$261 million)
included in insurance service result, the gross operating
expenses for 2024 would be HK$814 million (2023: HK$747
million). Staff costs, which were contained at 60.6% of
gross operating expenses before taking into account the
costs recovery from the Government and incorporation into
insurance service result, amounted to HK$493 million (2023:
HK$439 million).

Allowance for Impairment

Asset quality remained strong, with the delinquency ratio
of the Group’s mortgage portfolio staying low at 0.16%
(2023: 0.03%). A provision on impairment allowance of
HK$34.9 million was made in 2024 (2023: HK$20.0 million) in
accordance with the approved provisioning policy. During
the year, there was no loans written off (2023: HK$0.3
million) with a recovery of HK$0.1 million (2023: HK$0.5
million) from loans written off previously.

Segmental Analysis
Table 3 below sets out the profit/(loss) before tax
contributed by various business segments for 2024.

Table 3

Asset
Purchase Inter-
segment
Insurance Elimination Total
HK$ milion ~ HK$ million  HK$ million

and  General Life

Insurance
HKS million

Servicing
HKS million

Year ended 31 December 2024
Profit/(Loss) before tax 141 (174) (519) 1) (553)
Year ended 31 December 2023

(Loss)/Profit before tax (34) 148 (804) 277 (13

The profit before tax in 2024 for asset purchase and
servicing was HK$141 million, mainly attributable to the
net interest income from debt investments with yield
enhancements and loan portfolios along with the improved
market conditions, partly offset by the operating expenses.

General insurance’s loss before tax in 2024 was HK$174
million, mainly attributable to the loss on onerous contracts
from reverse mortgage insurance business as a result
of the drop in overall value of secured properties, which
was partly offset by net interest income earned from bank
deposits and debt investments, CSM amortisation from the
mortgage insurance business, and placement income from
the Exchange Fund.

Life insurance recorded a loss before tax of HK$519 million
in 2024, mainly attributable to the loss in insurance results
of annuity business in particular from high demand of
new policies written upon the launch of the enhanced
annuity payouts campaign, partly offset by the income
from placements with the Exchange Fund. The embedded
value of the annuity business at the end of 2024 was about
HK$12.4 billion, indicating a solid financial position to
develop the business in the long term.
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Loan Portfolio

During the year, the Group acquired loans with the special
100% loan guarantee under the SFGS and DLGS of about
HK$5.2 billion (2023: HK$24.7 billion), infrastructure loans
of about HK$3.5 billion (2023: HK$2.7 billion) and residential
mortgages of about HK$0.4 billion (2023: HK$0.1 billion).
After accounting for prepayments and repayments of
loan portfolios during the year, the outstanding balance
of the loan portfolio was HK$95.5 billion (2023: HK$109.5
billion), comprising mainly loans with the special 100%
loan guarantee under the SFGS and DLGS, infrastructure
loans and residential mortgage portfolio at amortised
cost of HK$82.8 hillion, HK$7.2 billion and HK$2.8 billion
respectively, and residential mortgages at fair value through
profit or loss of HK$2.6 billion.

Investment Securities

The Group adopts a prudent, low-risk approach in
managing its surplus funds and investment activities in
accordance with the investment guidelines approved by
the Board. As at 31 December 2024, the total investment
portfolio was HK$18.8 billion (2023: HK$17.1 billion), which
largely comprised high-quality debt investments as well as
infrastructure related bond. There was no default loss from
investment securities.

Placements with the Exchange Fund

As at 31 December 2024, the placements with the Exchange
Fund was HK$49.2 billion (2023: HK$34.1 billion) which
solely comprised the capital investments of the HKMCI and
HKMCA and premium investments of the HKMCA.

Insurance Contract Liabilities and Reinsurance
Contract Liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance contract
liabilities, mainly consisting of the estimated present
value of future cashflows, risk adjustment and the CSM,
amounted to HK$25.0 billion (2023: HK$19.4 billion) which
comprised HK$6.0 billion (2023: HK$5.0 billion) and HK$19.0
billion (2023: HK$14.4 billion) for general and life insurance
business respectively.

The Group operates the MIP on a risk-sharing basis with
approved reinsurers. At the end of 2024, the total risk-in-
force was about HK$115.5 billion (2023: HK$121.1 billion), of
which HK$12.2 billion (2023: HK$13.0 billion) was ceded to
approved reinsurers. The risk-in-force exposure borne by
the Group decreased to HK$103.3 billion (2023: HK$108.1
billion).

The Group operates the RMP as an insurer to provide
mortgage insurance cover for a premium on reverse
mortgage loans advanced by participating lenders in Hong
Kong. After taking into account the undrawn future payout
of reverse mortgage loans along with the reinsurance
arrangement, the risk-in-force exposure borne by the Group
increased to HK$21.4 billion (2023: HK$18.6 billion), with the
corresponding outstanding loan balance totalling HK$9.0
billion as at 31 December 2024.

Debt Securities Issued

In 2024, the Group issued HK$103.5 billion of debt securities
under the MTN Programme, including the HK$12 billion
triple-tranche Hong Kong dollar benchmark issuance
(comprising HK$8 Dbillion two-year, HK$3 billion five-year
and HK$1 billion ten-year public bonds) and the third social
bond issuance of approximately HK$23.8 billion equivalent
in triple-currency (comprising HK$7 billion two-year, HK$8
billion five-year, CNH 2 billion seven-year and US$850
million three-year bonds). All the non-Hong Kong dollar
debts issued under the MTN Programme were hedged
into Hong Kong dollars or US dollars. The Group continued
to adopt a prudent pre-funding strategy, with the total
outstanding balance of the debt securities maintained at
HK$148.3 billion as at 31 December 2024 (2023 HK$161.7
billion).
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Capital Management

To ensure the Group would not incur excess risk when
expanding its business and balance sheet in proportion
to its capital base, capital adequacy and the use of capital
were monitored closely by the Group. During the year,
the Group was in compliance with the Guidelines on
Capital Adequacy Ratio (Guidelines) issued by the Financial
Secretary with reference to the Basel Il risk-based capital
adequacy framework.

In accordance with the Guidelines, the calculation of
the CAR follows the basis of consolidation for financial
reporting with the exclusion of regulated subsidiaries which
are subject to separate requirements on the maintenance
of adequate capital (i.e., the HKMCI and the HKMCA, as
regulated by the Insurance Authority). After excluding
the investment cost of these unconsolidated regulated
subsidiaries, the CAR remained solid at 19.9% as at 31
December 2024, well above the minimum ratio of 8%
stipulated in the Guidelines on CAR.

The respective solvency ratios as at 31 December 2024,
calculated in accordance with Insurance (Valuation and
Capital) Rules (Cap. 41R) under the new Risk-Based Capital
regime effective from 1 July 2024, of the Group’s two
insurance subsidiaries were about 4.0 times for general
insurance business and 1.7 times for annuity business, both
well above the minimum statutory requirements stipulated
by the Insurance Authority.

Dividend

Having considered the capital requirements for business
development, no dividend was declared for 2024 (2023: Nil).
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Risk Management

The Group operates on prudent commercial principles.
The principle of “prudence before profitability” guides
the design of the overall risk management framework,
disciplines as well as day-to-day business execution. Over
the years, the Group has continuously made refinements
to its risk management framework to reflect changes in the
markets and its business strategies.

The Board is the highest decision-making authority
of the Group and holds ultimate responsibility for risk
management. The Board, with the assistance of the
Corporate Risk Management Committee (CRC), has the
primary responsibility of formulating risk management
strategies in the risk appetite statement and of ensuring
that the Group has an effective risk management system
to implement these strategies. The risk appetite statement
defines the constraints for all risk-taking activities, and
these constraints are incorporated into risk limits, risk
policies and control procedures that the Group follows to
ensure risks are managed properly.

The CRC is responsible for overseeing the Group's various
types of risks, reviewing and approving high-level risk-
related policies, overseeing their implementation, and
monitoring improvement efforts in governance, policies
and tools. Regular stress tests are reviewed by the CRC to
evaluate the Group’s financial capability to weather extreme
stress scenarios.

The CRC is chaired by an Executive Director, with members
including the Chief Executive Officer, Senior Vice Presidents,
General Counsel and senior staff from the Risk Management
Department.

Under the steer of the CRC, the Group manages primarily
credit risk, market risk, longevity risk, property price risk,
operational risk, legal and compliance risk, leveraging risk,
and environmental, social and governance risk arising from
its businesses through various management committees
such as the Infrastructure Financing and Securitisation
Investment Committee (IFSIC), Infrastructure Financing and
Securitisation Collateral Manager Committee (IFSCMC),
Credit Committee (CC), Transaction Approval Committee
(TAC), Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO), Operational
Risk Committee (ORC), Longevity Risk Committee (LRC) and
Environmental, Social and Governance Committee (ESGC).
Other than the IFSIC, which is chaired by an Executive
Director, all of these management committees are chaired
by the Chief Executive Officer with members including
the relevant Senior Vice Presidents, General Counsel, and
senior staff from the relevant functional departments.

The insurance subsidiaries have their own Risk Committee
(RC) to monitor insurance risk and other relevant risks. Each
RC is chaired by an Executive Director of these subsidiaries,
with members including the Chief Executive Officer and the
relevant senior staff of these subsidiaries. The RC of the
HKMCA includes independent and non-executive directors
to provide independent risk oversight of its operation.

Credit Risk

Loan Assets and Guarantee Portfolio

The Group maintains loan and guarantee portfolios of retail
and commercial loan assets, which primarily comprise
mortgage loans. Credit risk is the Group’s primary risk
exposure. It is the default risk presented by loan borrowers
and counterparties.

(@  Default risk
The Group adopts a four-pronged approach to
safeguard and maintain the credit quality of its assets,
Mortgage Insurance Programme (MIP) and SME
guarantee portfolios:

o careful selection of counterparties, including
Approved Sellers, Approved Servicers, Approved
Reinsurers and Lenders

o prudent eligibility criteria for asset purchase,
insurance and guarantee applications
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° effective due diligence processes for mortgage
purchase, default loss, insurance and guarantee
claims

° enhanced protection for higher-risk
transactions.

Losses may arise from the recovery shortfalls of
defaulted loans under the Mortgage Purchase
Programme (MPP). To mitigate this risk, the Group
establishes prudent loan purchasing criteria and
conducts due diligence reviews as part of the loan
purchase process to maintain the credit quality of
loans. In addition, depending on the projected risk
exposure of each underlying loan portfolio, credit
enhancement arrangements are agreed upon with
Approved Sellers on a deal-by-deal basis to reduce
potential default losses.

Losses may also arise from a default on loans under
the MIP’s insurance coverage. To mitigate this risk,
each MIP application is underwritten by the Group
in accordance with a set of eligibility criteria and
each claim from a participating bank is reviewed
by the Group to ensure the fulfilment of all MIP
coverage conditions. To reduce the risk of possible
concentration of this default risk, the Group transfers
a portion of the risk-in-force to Approved Reinsurers
through reinsurance arrangements.

Similarly, losses may arise from a borrower’s
default on loans in the SME guarantee portfolio. The
borrower’s default risk of each guarantee application
is assessed by the lender in accordance with their
credit policies. In addition, the Group adopts prudent
eligibility criteria, conducts administrative vetting and
credit reviews to better understand the credit quality
of the applications, and carries out a due diligence
review on each default claim to ensure the loan’s
compliance with the Group's eligibility criteria and the
lenders’ internal credit policies.

®)
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Credit performances of the loan and guarantee
portfolios are tracked and reported on a regular
basis to closely monitor any emerging risks, and to
implement risk-mitigating measures in a timely way.

Seller/Servicer counterparty risk

Counterparty risks may arise from the failure of an
Approved Seller/Servicer of an acquired portfolio to
remit scheduled payments to the Group in a timely
and accurate manner.

The Approved Sellers/Servicers are subject to a risk-
based eligibility review and ongoing monitoring of
their loan servicing quality and credit standing.

Reinsurer counterparty risk

Reinsurer counterparty risk refers to the failure of
an Approved Reinsurer to make claim payments to
the Group. To mitigate reinsurer counterparty risk
effectively, the Group has a framework in place for
the assessment of mortgage reinsurers’ eligibility and
requested collateral on the risk exposures.

The Group performs annual and ad-hoc reviews of
each Approved Reinsurer to determine the eligibility
for ongoing business allocation and risk-sharing
portions.

Treasury counterparty risk

Treasury counterparty risk arises when there is
a delay or failure from treasury counterparties to
make payments with respect to treasury instruments
transacted with the Group. Treasury counterparties
are managed by a rating-based counterparty
assessment framework and a risk-based counterparty
limit mechanism. The treasury counterparties are
continually monitored and the counterparty limits are
adjusted based on the assessment results.

Furthermore, the Group has set up bilateral collateral
arrangements with swap counterparties to mitigate
treasury counterparty risk.
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(e) Lender risk
The Group is exposed to lender risk in SME lending
that arises from: (a) a lender’s underwriting being
non-compliant with its credit policy; (b) a lender’s
loosely formulated credit policy that is not specific
enough or sufficiently defined for compliance; and
(c) the moral hazard of a lender being less prudent in
underwriting a guarantee-protected application. The
Group manages lender risk through the review of the
lenders’ credit policies and the due diligence reviews
on claims.

() Insurer counterparty risk

Insurer counterparty risk arises when there is a
delay or failure from the life insurer in meeting its
obligations under the life insurance policy assigned
to the Group under the Policy Reverse Mortgage
Programme (PRMP). To mitigate insurer counterparty
risk, the life insurance policy to be assigned to the
Group must be issued by an insurer authorised under
the Insurance Ordinance. Furthermore, the insurers
are subject to ongoing monitoring.

The CC or RC as appropriate is responsible for setting the
credit policies and eligibility criteria and is the approval
authority for accepting applications to become Approved
Sellers/Servicers under the MPP, Approved Reinsurers
under the MIP and Reverse Mortgage Programme (RMP),
Approved Lenders under the SFGS and eligible treasury
counterparties. It is also responsible for setting risk
exposure limits for counterparties. The CC and RC monitor
the operating environment closely and put in place timely
risk-mitigating measures to manage the credit risk.

The TAC or RC as appropriate conducts in-depth analysis of
pricing economics and associated credit risks for business
transactions, while taking into consideration the latest
market conditions and business strategies approved by the
Board.

Infrastructure Loans

Credit risk arises when the counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, leading
to potential or actual financial losses to the Group. The
credit risk related to the IFS business is managed through
prudent underwriting criteria, in-depth due diligence
reviews conducted by in-house experts and independent
consultants, exposure management through divestment
or other risk sharing arrangement. All investments have
taken into consideration the transaction structures with
appropriate risks and returns, acceptable project risks and
mitigation measures, including delay risk, construction
risk, performance risk, operational risk, commercial risk,
financial risk, counterparty risk, concentration risk, legal and
compliance risk, regulatory risk, political risk, currency risk,
interest rate risk and environmental and social risks, subject
to ongoing monitoring and a review mechanism. The Group
also adopts a robust internal credit rating methodology
and a loss given default methodology to evaluate expected
losses arising from an infrastructure loan default.

In terms of the risk governance structure, a dedicated
division, inclusive of a risk control unit, performs the credit
assessment, day-to-day monitoring, reporting and risk
management of infrastructure investments. The IFSIC is the
governing forum to manage the infrastructure investments
and is responsible for overseeing compliance with
applicable rules, guidelines and policies, and for approving
and monitoring the infrastructure investments and issuance
of infrastructure loan-backed securities.

Market Risk
Market risk arises when the Group's income or the value
of its portfolios decreases due to adverse movements in
market prices. Market risk consists of interest rate risk,
asset-liability maturity mismatch risk, liquidity risk and
currency risk.

(@ Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk arises when changes in market
interest rates affect the interest income associated
with the assets and/or interest expenses associated
with the liabilities.
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The primary objective of interest rate risk
management is to limit the potential adverse effects
of interest rate movements. The interest rate risk
faced by the Group is two-fold, namely interest rate
mismatch risk and basis risk. The Group makes
prudent use of a range of financial instruments,
mainly interest rate swaps, t0 manage interest rate
mismatch risk.

The Group also uses the duration gap (i.e., the
difference in interest rate re-pricing intervals between
assets and liabilities) as an indicator to monitor,
measure and manage interest rate mismatch risk.

Depending on the prevailing interest rate outlook and
market conditions, the Group proactively re-balances
the duration gap of its asset-liability portfolio under
the guidance and supervision of the ALCO.

Basis risk represents the difference in benchmark
rates between the Group’s Prime-based interest-
earning assets and its HIBOR-based interest-bearing
liabilities. Over the past few years, the Group has
consciously adopted a strategy that acquires more
HIBOR-based assets. As a result, the Prime-HIBOR
basis risk for the Group has been substantially
reduced.

Asset-liability maturity mismatch risk

Asset-liability maturity mismatch risk can be more
specifically characterised as reinvestment risk and
refinancing risk. Reinvestment risk refers to the risk
of a lower return from the reinvestment of proceeds
that the Group receives from prepayments and
repayments of its loan portfolio. Refinancing risk is the
risk of refinancing liabilities at a higher level of interest
rate or credit spread.

Reinvestment risk is managed through the ongoing
purchase of loan assets to replenish the rundown in
the retained portfolios, and through the investment of
surplus cash in debt securities and cash deposits, to
fine-tune the average life of the overall asset pool.

©

The Group manages its refinancing risk through
flexible debt issuance with a broad spectrum of
maturities. This serves to adjust the average life of
the overall liability portfolio in a dynamic fashion. In
addition, refinancing risk can be mitigated by adjusting
the maturities of assets in the investment portfolio, or
off-loading loan assets through securitisation.

The Group uses the asset-liability maturity gap ratio to
measure, monitor and manage asset-liability maturity
mismatch risk to ensure a proper balance between
the average life of the Group's assets and liabilities.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk of the Group not
being able to repay its obligations such as the
redemption of maturing debt, or to fund committed
purchases of loan portfolios. Liquidity risk is managed
by monitoring the daily inflow and outflow of funds,
and by projecting the longer-term inflows and
outflows of funds across the full maturity spectrum
and under different market conditions.

Given its strong background as a wholly government-
owned entity and its solid credit rating, the Group
is efficient in raising funds from debt markets with
both institutional and retail funding bases. This
advantage is supplemented by the Group's portfolio
of highly liquid investments, which is held to enable
a swift and smooth response to unforeseen liquidity
requirements. The HK$80 billion Revolving Credit
Facility from the Exchange Fund further provides the
Group with a liquidity fallback even if exceptional
market strains last for a prolonged period.

The Group manages pre-funding prudently through
well-diversified funding sources (Table 1). Such
diversification allows the Group to pursue a pre-
funding strategy at the lowest possible cost, while
offering safeguards against the difficulty of raising
funds in distorted market conditions.
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Table 1: Current Funding Sources for the Corporation

Funding Source Description
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Currency risk

Currency risk arises from the impact of foreign
exchange rate fluctuations on the Group's financial
position and foreign currency-denominated cash
flows. The Group manages its currency risk strictly in
accordance with the investment guidelines approved
by the Board and under the supervision of the
ALCO, which sets daily monitoring limits on currency
exposure.

To ensure adequate checks and balances, transaction
execution is segregated among the front, middle
and back offices which are assumed by the Treasury
Department, the Risk Management Department, and
the Operations Department, respectively.

The ALCO is responsible for the overall management
of market risk. It follows the prudent risk management
principles and investment guidelines approved by the
Board. Regular meetings are held to review the latest
financial market developments and formulate relevant
asset-liability management strategies.

Placements with the Exchange Fund

The HKMCA places its annuity premium receipts in
the Investment Portfolio (IP) and Long Term Growth
Portfolio (LTGP) of the Exchange Fund to earn an
investment return. Furthermore, the HKMCA and the
HKMCI have been placing their paid-up capital and
retained earnings to the IP since April 2019 to manage
the return on capital. The Group is exposed to market
risk when the investment return falls short of the
expected level. The risk of loss could result from
adverse movements in interest rates, equity prices,
property prices and foreign exchange rates. The
Group actively monitors and reviews the investment
portfolio to determine the strategic asset allocation
between IP and LTGP.

The RCs of the HKMCA and the HKMCI are the
governing forums for managing all risks arising from
their placements with the Exchange Fund.

Longevity Risk

Longevity risk under the RMP and the PRMP refers to the
heightening risk of longer payouts. The longer the payout
and loan period, the larger the loan balance will accrue over
time, and the lesser the buffer will be from the enforcement
of collateral to cover the outstanding loan balance. A 10ss
may arise if there is a shortfall in the recovery amount after
the disposal of the property under the RMP or the claim of
death benefits of the life insurance policy under the PRMP.

Longevity risk under the HKMC Annuity Plan (Annuity Plan)
is the risk that the actual life expectancies of annuitants
are longer than expected, resulting in a longer stream of
monthly payouts, which in turn could materially impact the
long-term sustainability of the Annuity Plan.

The Group takes on longevity risk through setting prudent
actuarial assumptions in mortality rates as well as future
improvement in life expectancy. An annual risk analysis
is conducted to assess the potential financial impact of
longevity risk, as well as the interaction among the various
risk factors under the RMP, the PRMP and the Annuity Plan.
The mortality assumptions are reviewed on a regular basis.

The LRC is the governing forum that manages the longevity
risk of the Group. Its duties include approving longevity risk
management policies, hedging transactions and reviewing
longevity experiences and exposures of the Group. It also
monitors and analyses the general trend, technological
changes and their implications for human longevity.
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Property Price Risk

Property price risk arises from fluctuation in the value of
property that acts as collateral for the Group’s loan and
guarantee portfolios under the MPP, MIP and RMP. The
Group manages property price risk by soliciting valuations
from professional surveyors on each property securing
a loan purchase or loan application, setting prudent
assumptions in the recoverable value of the collateralised
property, restricting maximum loan-to-value ratios of the
loans under the relevant programmes and conducting
stress tests to examine the impact of adverse market
conditions.

The CC and RC are the governing forums that manage the
property price risk of the Group.

Operational Risk

Operational risk represents the risk of losses arising from
inadequacies, or the failure of internal processes, people or
systems, or external interruptions.

The Group actively manages operational risk with its well-
established internal controls, authentication structures and
operational procedures. The operational infrastructure is
well designed to support the launch of new products in
different business areas. Rigorous reviews are conducted
before the implementation of operational or system
infrastructure, to ensure adequate internal controls are in
place to mitigate operational risks.

To ensure an efficient and effective discharge of daily
operations, the Group pursues advanced technological
solutions alongside robust business logistics and controls to
carry out its operational activities and business processes.
The Group also implements prudent measures to institute
appropriate checks and balances, thereby ensuring its
operations are controlled properly. Effective internal
controls help minimise financial risk and safeguard assets
against unauthorised use or loss, including the prevention
and detection of fraud , as well as cybersecurity threats.

In relation to cybersecurity and information risk, which
represents the loss of confidentiality, integrity or availability
of information and systems that may have an adverse
impact to the Group, the following specific measures have
been implemented to mitigate such risks:

Preventive security architecture design and
awareness programs;

° Detective measures to identify abnormal system
activities in pre-empting cybersecurity threats;

o Continuous collection and analysis of external
cybersecurity threats for ongoing control
enhancement; and

° Establishment of structural response plans to
minimise the impact of potential security events.

To ensure all line functions in the Group maintain an
effective operational risk and internal control framework,
the ORC establishes key risk indicators to track the key
operational risk items and monitor the effectiveness of the
risk-mitigating measures. Operational risk incidents are
also reported for operational risk management. In addition,
the ORC provides directions and resolves issues related to
policies, controls and the management of operational issues
as well as ensuring prompt and appropriate corrective
actions in response to audit findings related to operational
risks and internal controls.

Legal and Compliance Risk

Legal and compliance risk arises from the failure to
comply with statutory or regulatory obligations and any
unenforceability of legal documents in safeguarding the
interests of the Group.

The Corporation manages such risk with the assistance of
the Legal Office (including the Compliance Function).

The Legal Office, headed by the General Counsel, advises
the Group on legal matters. When new products or business
activities are considered, the Legal Office will advise on
the relevant laws and the necessary legal documentation.
Where appropriate, external counsel will be engaged to
assist the Legal Office in providing legal support to the
Group.
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The Compliance Function is part of the Legal Office and
is led by the Chief Compliance Officer, who reports to the
Chief Executive Officer through the General Counsel. Where
appropriate, the Compliance Function will engage external
counsel to advise on compliance matters.

The ORC is the governance committee for legal and
compliance risk.

Leveraging Risk

To ensure the Group would not incur excessive risk when
expanding its business and balance sheet in proportion
to its capital base, the Financial Secretary acted as the
regulator of the Group and issued the Guidelines on Capital
Adequacy Ratio (CAR) taking reference principally from
the Basel Il risk-based capital adequacy framework. The
minimum CAR is set at 8%. As at 31 December 2024, the
Group's CAR was 19.9%.

The prudent use of regulatory capital is monitored closely in
accordance with the capital guidelines. The Chief Executive
Officer reports the CAR and the daily minimum ratio to the
Board of Directors on a quarterly basis. An early warning
system is also in place. If the CAR drops to the threshold
level of 14%, the Chief Executive Officer will alert the
Executive Directors and consider appropriate remedial
actions. If the CAR falls to 12% or below, the Board of
Directors will be informed and appropriate remedial actions
will be taken.

The capital requirements of the insurance subsidiaries are
subject to the regulatory requirements of the Insurance
Authority. As at 31 December 2024, the respective solvency
ratios of the HKMCA and the HKMCI were at about 1.7 times
and 4.0 times.

Environmental, Social and Governance Risk

ESG issues pose potential risk on the Group’s operations,
reputation and performance. The Group manages ESG risk
under the ESG risk management framework, which mainly
includes ESG risk appetite, ESG risk assessment, climate risk
stress testing and monitoring risk level by ESG risk metrics.
The ESGC is the governance committee for managing the
ESG risk.
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Corporate Governance Practices
The missions of the Corporation are to promote:

o stability of the banking sector

o wider home ownership

o development of the local debt market

o development of retirement planning market.

The Corporation operates on prudent commercial
principles and is committed to ensuring a high standard of
corporate governance to improve the overall accountability,
transparency and long-term sustainability of its operations.
The Corporation’s corporate governance practices are
set out in its Code approved by the Board. The Code is
premised on the principles of fairness, transparency,
accountability and responsibility to all stakeholders and has
been issued to the sole shareholder, Directors and staff
members. The Code is also available on the Corporation’s
website (www.hkmc.com.hk).

Monitoring of compliance with the Code starts with self-
assessment by each department each year, which is to be
followed by an independent review by the Chief Internal
Auditor of the Control Self-assessment Forms completed
by each department. A compliance report will then be
submitted to the Board for review. The Board is empowered
to require that appropriate action be taken in relation to any
non-compliance.

In February 2025, the Chief Internal Auditor conducted an
independent review of the Control Self-assessment Forms
provided by each department in relation to the compliance
with the Code for 2024. Based on the audit findings on the
Corporation’s internal control systems and the completed
Control Self-assessment Forms for the year, the Chief
Internal Auditor was of the opinion that the Code had been
complied with in all material respects.

Enhancements to the Corporate Governance
Code

Maintaining a robust and sensible framework of corporate
governance for the effective and prudent management of
the Corporation is always a top corporate priority. To ensure
that the Corporation’s corporate governance practices are

commensurate with the best standards, the Corporation
will review the Code from time to time and will adopt any
relevant development in corporate governance practices.

Sole Shareholders

All the shares of the Corporation are held by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region for the account of the Exchange Fund.

The Board

The Board is responsible for leading the Corporation and
promoting its success in an accountable and effective
manner. To provide strategic leadership and effective
control of the Corporation, the Board meets in person
at least four times a year to oversee the Corporation’s
business strategy and policies, budgeting and planning,
organisational and financial performance, risk management,
human resources as well as community relations. In order
to ensure that well-balanced decisions are made by the
Board, the composition of the Board includes officials from
the Government, and representatives from political parties,
banking sector and the accounting and legal professions.
Directors are encouraged to attend Board meetings to
ensure that issues are properly discussed.

The Code requires that Directors are provided with
appropriate information before Board meetings to enable
them to be updated on the affairs of the Corporation, and
make informed decisions at the meetings. During the year
under review, four Board meetings were held.

The Code also requires Directors to avoid situations which
may, or may be seen to, compromise their personal
judgement or integrity in the performance of their duties as
Directors of the Corporation or lead to conflict of interests.

Directors are requested to declare their or their respective
connected entities” material interests in any matter to be
considered by the Board. If a Director or any of his or her
connected entities has a conflict of interests in a matter
to be considered by the Board, such Director will abstain
from, and not be counted in the quorum in respect of,
voting on such matter at the Board meeting. In respect
of each financial reporting period, the Corporation will
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seek confirmation from Directors in respect of their and
their respective connected entities’ material interests
in significant transactions, arrangements or contracts
involving the Corporation or its subsidiaries. Material
related-party transactions between the Corporation and its
counterparties will be identified and disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements each year in accordance with
the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

As at 31 December 2024, there were 12 Directors all of
whom were duly appointed by the shareholder of the
Corporation. Information about Directors is set out in the
Board of Directors section of the Annual Report and also
available on the Corporation’s website. All Directors, other
than the four Executive Directors, are non-executive and
are not actively involved in the day-to-day management of
the Corporation. Non-Executive Directors, however, do play
an important role in bringing their independent judgement,
considerable knowledge and diverse expertise to the
Board's deliberations which in turn provide effective steer
to Management in pursuit of the Corporation’s policies. The
Corporation does not remunerate its Directors.

For newly appointed Directors, the Corporation will provide
an induction briefing on the business activities, strategies
and objectives of the Corporation.

The term of a Non-Executive Director is generally one
year. Under the Articles of Association of the Corporation,
all Non-Executive Directors will retire at the next Annual
General Meeting following their appointment but are eligible
for re-election.

The Corporation maintains a directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance policy for its Directors and officers against legal
proceedings and other claims arising in the course of
discharge of their duties in respect of the Corporation.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

During 2024, the Hon. Paul Chan Mo-po was the Chairman
and Mr Colin Pou Hak-wan was the Chief Executive Officer
from 26 to 31 December 2024 with Mr Raymond Li Ling-
cheung being the Chief Executive Officer from 1 January
to 25 December 2024. The roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer were separate and not performed by
the same individual, which ensured a clear division of
responsibilities between the Board and the executive

functions of the Corporation’s Management. The Board is
responsible for laying down strategic direction and business
guidelines, approving financial objectives and closely
monitoring the Corporation’s performance on an ongoing
basis. The Chief Executive Officer, who is accountable
to the Board, is responsible for leading Management in
implementing the Board'’s decisions in a proper and efficient
manner. The Chief Executive Officer also ensures that
adequate information relating to the Corporation’s business
is reported to the Board on a regular basis.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is accountable to the Board and
its main duty is to ensure that all company secretarial
procedures are followed by the Corporation and the Board.
In addition, the Company Secretary ensures that Board
Papers are provided to Directors in a timely manner prior
to each Board meeting. Directors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary with a view to
ensuring that applicable laws, rules and regulations are
complied with in respect of Board proceedings.

The schedule for 2024 Board meetings was provided to
Directors in advance to facilitate Directors’ attendance
at Board meetings. The Code requires that Board Papers
should generally be sent to Directors at least seven days
before the relevant Board meeting so that Directors could
be properly briefed before the Board meeting. Board Papers
typically contain comprehensive background or explanatory
information about the agenda items and include supporting
documents, analyses, research findings, projections,
budgets and forecasts, where appropriate. However, any
Director adjudged to have a conflict of interests in an
agenda item for the Board meeting will not be provided with
the relevant Board Paper.

All the minutes of Board meetings and Audit Committee
meetings are generally taken in sufficient detail, including
the matters considered, decisions reached, concerns
raised by Directors and dissenting views expressed at
the meetings. All minutes of Board meetings and Audit
Committee meetings are kept by the Company Secretary
and made available for inspection by any Director, except
where a Director has a conflict of interests in any matter
discussed under an agenda item, the relevant minutes or
materials would be withheld from such Director.
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Audit Committee

During the year under review, the Audit Committee
comprised the following members:

o Mr Clement Chan, Non-Executive Director
(Chairman of the Audit Committee)

o Mr Howard Lee, Executive Director

o The Hon. Paul Tse, Non-Executive Director

o Ms Margaret Kwan, Non-Executive Director

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the
Corporation’s financial statements, the composition
and accounting principles adopted in such statements,
the results of the financial audits, and the Corporation’s
management procedures to ensure the adequacy and
effectiveness of its internal control systems.

The Audit Committee holds regular meetings with
Management, the Chief Internal Auditor and external
auditor. The Audit Committee also meets on an ad hoc
basis to consider special issues requiring its attention. The
Chairman of the Audit Committee summarises the reviews
conducted by the Audit Committee, and highlights any
major issues in a report for submission to the Board for
Directors’ consideration. In 2024, the Audit Committee held
three meetings.

Internal Auditor

The Group Internal Audit (GIA) Department operates
independently of Management and plays a major role in
assessing the internal control systems of the Corporation.
The GIA Department is led by the Chief Internal Auditor, who
reports directly to the Chairman of the Audit Committee
on all matters relating to the Corporation’s internal
controls. The Chief Internal Auditor also reports to the Chief
Executive Officer on day-to-day administrative matters of
the GIA Department, and has authority to communicate
directly with the Chairman of the Audit Committee without
reference to Management.

Each year, the Audit Committee formally approves the
annual Internal Audit Work Plan drawn up by the Chief
Internal Auditor based on his independent risk assessment
and observations of relevant risk management topics
discussed at meetings of the Operational Risk Committee
and the Corporate Risk Management Committee.
In accordance with the annual Internal Audit Work
Plan, the GIA Department adopts a risk-based audit
approach in conducting its independent reviews of the
Corporation’s internal control systems. After each review,
the GIA Department discusses the audit findings and
recommendations with the relevant department heads,
Senior Management and Executive Director. Internal audit
reports are submitted to the Audit Committee for review
and, thereafter, to the Board for information.

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2024

105



Corporate Governance Report

Over the years, Management has adopted an active approach
in considering audit findings and recommendations made
by the Chief Internal Auditor and has closely monitored their
implementation.

External Auditor

The Corporation’s external auditor is PricewaterhouseCoopers.
Detailed information in respect of the auditor’'s remuneration
is disclosed in the Corporation’s financial statements. The
auditor is allowed to communicate freely with the Chief
Internal Auditor and the Audit Committee. To ensure
its independence with respect to the Corporation, the
auditor would issue a letter, on an annual basis, to the
Audit Committee to confirm its independence based on
the requirements under Part 4A of the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. For the purpose of the audit
of the Corporation’s financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2024, PricewaterhouseCoopers has
confirmed its independence to the Audit Committee.

Financial Reporting

The Corporation aims to present a clear, balanced and
comprehensible assessment of its performance, financial
position and prospects to its stakeholders and the general
public. Directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements, and there is a statement by
the auditor regarding its reporting responsibilities in the
Independent Auditor’'s Report on such financial statements.
Directors are to ensure that financial statements are
prepared so as to give a true and fair view of the financial
status of the Corporation. The annual and interim results of
the Corporation are announced in a timely manner after the
end of each relevant period.

Internal Controls

The Board has the overall responsibility for the
Corporation’s internal control systems and, through
the Audit Committee, conducts periodic reviews on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the systems.

Various committees have been established to ensure the
efficient operation and prudent risk management of the
Corporation. These include the Corporate Risk Management

Committee and Infrastructure Financing and Securitisation
Investment Committee which are both chaired by an
Executive Director to oversee the risks of the Corporation
from an enterprise-wide perspective, and the Operational
Risk Committee, the Credit Committee, the Transaction
Approval Committee, the Asset and Liability Committee, the
Longevity Risk Committee, the Environmental, Social and
Governance Committee and the Infrastructure Financing
and Securitisation Collateral Manager Committee, each
chaired by the Chief Executive Officer. Each of these
committees has clear and well-defined terms of reference.
The risk management framework of the Corporation is set
out in the Risk Management section of the Annual Report.

The internal control systems are designed to provide
reasonable assurance against material misstatement or
loss, manage risks of failure in the operational processes
and the attainment of business objectives, safeguard assets
against unauthorised use, ensure the maintenance of
proper accounting records for internal use and publication,
and ensure compliance with policies and applicable
legislation and regulations.

Compliance Reporting

The Compliance Function is part of the Legal Office and
is established for focused management of regulatory and
compliance risk.

The Compliance Function is led by the Chief Compliance
Officer who reports to the Chief Executive Officer through
the General Counsel. In accordance with the Group
Compliance Policy and the Group Compliance Manual
of the Corporation, the Compliance Function monitored
and advised departments of the Corporation on their
compliance practices with a focus on conflict of interests,
anti-corruption, competition, privacy and personal data
protection, anti-money laundering and counter-terrorist
financing and environmental, social and governance
matters for 2024. The Compliance Function conducted a
compliance audit in 2024 to help ensure robust compliance
practices.

To provide transactional support, the Compliance Function
undertook reviews of and participated in the sign-off of
key programmes and programme enhancements during
the year. It also organised training to strengthen staff
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knowledge on compliance matters. To enhance staff
knowledge on compliance matters, Compliance Function
implements an annual compliance test with different
modules for relevant staff from different departments and
subsidiaries of the Corporation.

Code of Conduct

The Corporation requires the highest standards of integrity
and conduct from its staff members. The requirements
and the relevant legal obligations are clearly set out in the
Corporation’s Code of Conduct which forms part of the
Staff Handbook. The Code of Conduct sets out, in particular,
provisions in regard to potential conflicts of interests that
may arise between personal interests of staff members
and the interests of the Corporation, and other provisions
designed to ensure that staff carry out their job duties
properly, ethically, impartially and free from improper
influence.

A copy of the Code of Conduct is available on the
Corporation’s intranet to all staff members.

Staff members are required to confirm their compliance
with the Code of Conduct on an annual basis. Based
on the confirmation received from the staff members,
Management was satisfied that staff members had
complied with the Code of Conduct in 2024.

Communication

The Corporation attaches great importance to communication
with the public. The Annual Report of the Corporation
contains comprehensive information on its business
strategies and developments. The Corporation’s
website (www.hkmc.com.hk) offers timely access to the
Corporation’s press releases and its business information.
The Corporation also maintains a telephone hotline to
service enquiries from the public.

HKMCI and HKMCA

The Corporate Governance Codes of the HKMCI and the
HKMCA (wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Corporation and
authorised insurers under the Insurance Ordinance to carry
on general insurance business and long term insurance
business in or from Hong Kong respectively) closely follow
the Corporation’s Code, incorporating best corporate
governance practices. During the year, the Board of each
subsidiary is comprised of members from the Board of the
Corporation and from Senior Management of the respective
subsidiary. Directors of the HKMCI and the HKMCA were
appointed by the Financial Secretary as the shareholder’s
representative of both subsidiaries. The Audit Committee
of each subsidiary provides regular reporting to the
Corporation’s Audit Committee.

In February 2025, the Chief Internal Auditor of the
Corporation and the Head of Internal Audit of the HKMCA
conducted independent reviews of the Control Self-
assessment Forms provided by each department or function
of the HKMCI and the HKMCA in relation to compliance with
the Corporate Governance Codes of the HKMCI and the
HKMCA for 2024 respectively. Based on the audit findings
on the internal control systems of both subsidiaries, and
the completed Control Self-assessment Forms for the year,
the Chief Internal Auditor of the Corporation and the Head
of Internal Audit of the HKMCA were of the opinion that
the Corporate Governance Codes of the HKMCI and the
HKMCA had been complied with in all material respects
respectively.

Conclusion

The Board was satisfied with the corporate governance
practices of the Corporation during 2024. In 2025,
the Corporation will continue to review its corporate
governance framework and improve those practices as
appropriate in the light of ongoing experience, regulatory
changes, international trends and developments in order
to enhance the Corporation’s efficiency and effective
management in pursuit of its missions.
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iFAST Global Markets (Hong Kong) e

In our recent seminar, we invited Mr. Terry Chui. also known as “Lum Sir.” Founder
of Homebloggerhk. to share his insights and real-life case studies on retirement
planning. We were aso privileged to have representatives from The Hong Kong
Mortgage Corporation Limited (HKMC), deliver insightful presentations on the
Policy Reverse Mortgage Programme (PRMF)*, and the Reverse Mortgage
Programme (RMP)A,

Participants had the opportunity for one-on-one consultation with HKMC. gaining a
deeper understanding on both PRMPA & RMPA.

Thank you to everyone who attended this event! We look forward to continuing our
mission of providing knowledge and tools for a secure financial future.

#iFAST #iFASTGlobalMarkets #HKMC #PRMP #RMP #RetirementPlanning
#WealthManagement

 The Policy Reverse Mortgage Programme and the Reverse Mortgage Programme
are operated by HKMC Insurance Limited. The programmes are subject to relevant
terms and conditions.
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To the Sole Member of The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation
Limited

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”),
which are set out on pages 225 to 409, comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2024,

o the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended,

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA'S
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

. Valuation of insurance contracts

o Impairment allowance for infrastructure loan portfolio
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BEETEE
Key Audit Matter

BB NAEERRETEE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

REBEHMLE
Valuation of insurance contracts

SEHNEA BRI AME28 -

Refer to Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

ERFCERATAEEEFRRER AR (EAA
Z 2B B AR LKBEBIMIEHRELELE 1757 R
RO | BRREEY BEBRGEATFBERIE
NERRBEH - EERRBRENEEE248511E
BT(ZT =% :19283EBx) Lith E&E
RZE-_NF+_A=+—HGEEAEEHEEN11%
TE=F:10%) °

The issuance of the policies under the HKMC Annuity
Limited and HKMC Insurance Limited (wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company) have given
rise to the recognition of insurance contracts on
the consolidated statement of financial position of
the Group in accordance with HKFRS 17 Insurance
Contracts. The insurance contract liabilities
recognised amounted to HK$24,851 million (2023:
HK$19,288 million), being approximately 14% of the
total consolidated liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2024 (2023: 10%).

FERAONENRERE(BHRERE]) AW
R ([ERRBYE ) 2 METE  FEHTHE
FEH)ARRAEREL A - HAIEE -

The insurance contracts are measured as the total of
the fulfilment cash flows (“FCF") and the contractual
service margin (“CSM"), the determination of
which requires judgement about uncertain future
outcomes.

RIEBFEMBRELRNE17ROAEERNERE
EERREL R FIEMBEITE

The application of the measurement requirements
under HKFRS 17 includes the use of methodologies
that are applied in models.

RIER AT EA T ANERSETRBRE - %5
BRI AT T E -
The methodologies applied in models use various

assumptions. These assumptions are subject to
estimation uncertainty.

ZIERZEAZEREEEGNERAITO A EINETERF -
BRE TR EFHERRE QB ERNREE B2 A EPEH -

We have performed our planned audit procedures using an
integrated team of assurance and actuarial resources, including
our understanding and evaluating the key internal controls over
the actuarial process of the valuation of insurance contracts.

EEEBOGEREZERNZET  RAESHFERANNENR
TRERE KRB EEITATRT -

With the involvement of our PwC actuarial experts, we have
carried out the following procedures in relation to the FCF and
CSM of the insurance contracts:

o  FHERMERRIDENREMERBHEAES - ER

Assessing the appropriateness of the methodologies
adopted and reviewed material changes as applicable;

o FHMAANEIERR(BEUMEAER RTX YPEERERR
XHIWAEN  UREEEBMIEHBNRE &

Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions
used including discount rates, mortality, property prices,
and expenses, and management’s rationale for the
judgement applied; and

o  HARRAKMBEBAEM -

Evaluating the overall reasonableness of the insurance
contracts.

B EEERARAERRENNEIREHE - CEDERE

EH o

We found that management'’s judgements used in measuring
insurance contracts were supported by the evidence obtained.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

ERERASHRERS
Impairment allowance for infrastructure loan
portfolio

SDEFNRAMBHRERAMTE20 -

Refer to Note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RZZFE-_WF+-_A=+—H ' E£EH7290E
BIL(CTE =4 : 7361 B8 T) NERERMA L
8530088 T (—F — =4 : 23008 /5 T) B R E
B -

As at 31 December 2024, the Group recorded an
impairment allowance of HK$53 million (2023: HK$23
million) for its infrastructure loan portfolio amounted
to HK$7,290 million (2023: HK$7,361 million).

ERER AT EEZERESNREREFEAE
AIEMEBHNAREERERL - EKETCH
EREREAMRENERELE R REE - 1F
REREFREZEN D  EEEFHEBREY
EEBRRL  WAFHEBERFIRE

The Group developed an expected credit loss (“ECL")
model with a forward-looking view, for estimating
the impairment allowance for its infrastructure loan
portfolio. The Group also established the governance
processes and controls over the impairment
assessment of its infrastructure loan portfolio. As
part of the governance processes and controls,
management assessed the overall ECL model and
determined that it continues to remain appropriate.

ZMEEEZERAS RER B ERTTEINETERF -
BREATEA :

We have performed our planned audit procedures in relation to
the assessment of impairment allowance for the infrastructure
loan portfolio which include the following:

TR FHERARBERHENERRF - BRENEEE
B AIEERRMNERM O REZFBEROBE - L
RERBHERRERENNG(BRFELRBASERF
MER)

Understanding, evaluating and testing the governance
processes over the impairment assessment, which
included the ECL methodology, selection of forward-
looking scenarios and probability assigned to these
scenarios, and management’'s assessment of the overall
impairment allowance (which included the results of the
annual back-testing procedures);

TH  ERARERES B ENMERANES  E8
EREUE B RIS RIS (BEE 0 EE) niTE s
RAHEHTA - HRED R

Understanding, evaluating and testing key internal
controls over management'’s staging classification via
their assessment of quantitative and qualitative credit
indicators (including default indicators) that would drive
the assignment of internal loan rating which in turn
determines staging classification;
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BEETEE
Key Audit Matter

BB NAEERRETEE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

EEEREEMNERZERNSBMOE - HIRENE
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Management determines the staging classification
of individual infrastructure loan based on (i) whether
there is a change in the credit quality, particularly
whether there is evidence which indicates a significant
increase in credit risk (“SICR") since origination;
and (i) whether there are default indicators which
might trigger migrations to credit impaired loans as
detailed in Note 3.2. These indicators are quantitative
and qualitative in nature. The assessment of these
indicators involve significant management judgement,
which affects the staging classification and the
impairment allowance.

RETRERER  SEESZRBEBEX I
MATEMEEREL AR - IR EHAERMEI2HF
e BEEBEENEHREENS  HRABRLEE
B RBETESE  YEREMAMBEBEEE  EEAM

EFI&*%EEH:' ZEEFERRBETIRABRTR - M
FADEERIBE  KMPEEORE LRERE -

In determining the impairment allowance, the
Group considers historical loss rates, and adjusts
for forward-looking factors. Forward-looking
adjustments are detailed in Note 3.2. The Group
selected a forward-looking view based on the outlook
of global economy, relevant regional economic
indicators, and specific industry sector data, taking
into consideration of any relevant events. The
loans are then rated under various scenarios and
the probability is assigned to each scenario which
affects the probability of default and the impairment
allowance.

&t%EJrEEﬁEEP)‘E’\EEEW?A 1FTEEL ey D B D
RIEERSR MEAE LSS NEBRENERH
-}

Our audit focused on the determination of the
staging classification as detailed in Note 4.1 and
forward-looking scenarios, both of which are
inherently subject to significant judgement by
management.

ﬁzﬂﬂﬂﬁvt EEEANGE
RESCHF ©

MM EREHERERNEERSE - UERFRE
/'\HH \*E‘ ré-;; G

Assessing management's credit reviews of the
infrastructure loans on a sampling basis to evaluate the
appropriateness of the staging classification as at the year
end;

ERFINEEEROIFT  fHAATEEBSE R
ERROBENAEERBEXM &

DEEEZ

Assessing the reasonableness and supporting
documentation of the forward-looking scenarios and
probability assigned to these scenarios with support of our
credit experts; and

R —_F_MOF+ - A=+—BEHNEEEFASRE
BEETHREARARDPRR - U EZRERENE
BEEMY -

Assessing the overall reasonableness of the impairment
allowance for the infrastructure loan portfolio, including
performing sensitivity testing and stand-back procedures,
made as at 31 December 2024.

DRERENEREHE - CREERER

We found that management’s judgements used in calculating
the impairment allowance were supported by the evidence
obtained.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group'’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and review of the audit work performed
for purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Tam Man Kit, James.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 May 2025
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Consolidated Income Statement

BE-Z-_NE+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
A BWA Interest income 6 8,146,214 7,901,337
B Interest expense 7 (7,528,253) (7,504,428)
HER B2 WA Net interest income 617,961 396,909
R A Insurance revenue 8 1,320,030 1,128,783
RERBRTFE X Insurance service expenses 12, 28 (3,299,828) (1,586,402)
Fris B BiREE LRI A SRR Net income from reinsurance
contracts held 10 352,922 278,699
REERIGEE Insurance service result (1,626,876) (178,920)
IR BRI E A Net finance expenses from insurance
WS F R contracts issued 9 (414,920) (1,700,443)
Fris B BIRR A 4/ Net finance income from reinsurance
B A F R contracts held 9 10,268 2,932
R B B 3% 2 R BE Insurance finance expenses, net (404,652) (1,697,511)
E A Other income 1 1,258,034 1,410,775
REFIRET Total operating loss (155,533) (68,747)
S Operating expenses 12 (362,166) (323,822)
REPREA R EEHE Operating loss before impairment (517,699) (392,569)
B Change in impairment allowances 14 (34,911) (19,987)
BRELRIES B Loss before taxation (552,610) (412,556)
TIE Taxation 15(a) 134,570 153,054
KREEEE Loss for the year (418,040) (259,502)

F2REAVEFAEMTE AR A MR —#D -

financial statements.

The notes on pages 232 to 409 are an integral part of these consolidated
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE-Z-_NE+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2024

2023
T
HK$'000
NEEEIE Loss for the year (418,040) (259,502)
Hip2mus (i) Other comprehensive income/(loss):
HEWEEF > BZER Items that are or may be reclassified
FIER : subsequently to profit or loss:
AP EZ L AEME2EIES  Debt instruments at fair value through
MEKTAE : other comprehensive income:
— N FEEHFHE — change in the fair value, net 15,213 8,698
— BB EEE) TR — change in the loss allowance, net 14 147 477
REM 2 ERERERRIR SR Cash flow hedges recognised in other
EplE comprehensive income:
— ANEEEFHE — change in the fair value, net (20,022) (120,247)
Fras 3R & 4UM B A A Finance income from insurance
contracts issued 9 339,509 68,493
FriFa BRR A AR B 752 Finance expenses from reinsurance
contract held 9 (124,574) (60,393)
IRIET I8 Deferred taxes 15(b) (52,454) (13,759)
AEFEEMEEKES(BE) Other comprehensive income/(I0ss)
HBR T IE for the year, net of tax 157,819 (116,731)
AEEZTHEBARE Total comprehensive loss for the year (260,221) (376,233)

F2REAVEFAEMTE AR A MR — 7D -

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R=Z=-MF+=A=+—AH
as at 31 December 2024

BE ASSETS
ReEREHES Cash and short-term funds 16 52,647,182 51,821,051
JE U FI| B K P 53X Interest and remittance receivables 17 3,221,379 3,370,378
TESRTAE Derivative financial instruments 18 664,618 828,542
BNRRER S A Loans with 100% guarantee
EREOER from the Government 19 82,782,698 97,362,356
BREAFE Loan portfolio, net:
— URFEE — fair value through profit or loss
FFAB 20(a) 2,596,858 1,907,045
— IREESHE AT IR — amortised cost 20(b) 10,117,117 10,230,417
‘?“#&i g Investment securities:
NEEZ{EETA — fair value through other
ﬁﬁﬁiﬁuﬁzx comprehensive income 21(a) 3,721,821 2,509,537
— URAFEZEEA — fair value through profit or loss
B 21(b) 9,774 9,870
— R SRR AN G| R — amortised cost 21(c) 15,105,470 14,573,985
HNE B ST TK Placements with the Exchange Fund 22 49,244,684 34,070,393
TN OE ~ &e Prepayments, deposits and other assets
K& E 24 385,987 1,582,032
BREANEE Reinsurance contract assets 28 1,081,689 761,043
EEEE Fixed assets 25 246,899 276,160
EEAT Total assets 221,826,176 219,302,809
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SEBKRREK Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2023
T4
HK$'000
aE LIABILITIES
FERTFILE Interest payable 26 3,342,324 3,684,415
FERTIRIE - FERTRISE Accounts payable, accrued expenses
REMEE and other liabilities 27 4,132,666 4,107,469
PTESRMTA Derivative financial instruments 18 1,740,649 2,825,522
HHARI A A S Current tax liabilities 15(b) 223,782 156,851
REANAG Insurance contract liabilities 28 24,850,887 19,288,197
BREBAHARE Reinsurance contract liabilities 28 195,009 87,648
BEEITERES Debt securities issued 29 148,299,636 161,718,497
EERTEA G Deferred tax liabilities 15(b) 174,488 307,254
BEHAEE Total liabilities 182,959,441 192,175,853
= EQUITY
oA AELRAR Capital and reserves attributable
Kt to the equity holder:
A&z Share capital 30 26,500,000 14,500,000
REB =T Retained profits 8,397,399 9,358,885
[2\ 22 15 A Contingency reserve 3,560,638 3,017,192
1R [ B TS Ak Insurance finance reserve 386,483 224,002
N ERE Fair value reserve 23,518 8,158
E S Hedging reserve (1,303) 18,719
FELSAE R Total equity 38,866,735 27,126,956
BERERAE Total liabilities and equity 221,826,176 219,302,809

BERER-E-_RERA-+TBHERERE  Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 May
F1T o 2025.

REX YUE Wai Man, Eddie T E POU Hak Wan
BlFEF#H7TESE Deputy Chairman and Executive Director #7728 F344%; Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

F2RNEBAVE FIH I RIRE MEHMEMN—E9 o The notes on pages 232 to 409 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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GARBSBE
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-Z-_NE+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2024

R& REBEHN ERAEE RREBEE ATERE HHRE B
Insurance
Share  Retained Contingency finance  Fair value Hedging

capital profits reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
TAT TAL TAL TAL TAL THL TATL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

MZZZ=F—F—B#%¢: Balance asat 1 January 2023 12,000,000 10,142,109 2493470 229,661 (1,017) 138966 25,003,189
TEEEE Loss for the year - (259,502) - - - - (259,502)
Hi2E(EE) M Other comprehensive (lossyincome - - - (5,69) 9,175 (120,247) (116,731)
rEERE(EE)/ Total comprehensive (0ss)/income

hsas for the year - (259,502) - (5,659) 9175 (120247)  (3762%9)
A2 (FzF30) Capital injection (Note 30) 2,500,000 - - = = - 2500000

R B FIE A 2 i EEARE Transfer of 50% or 75% of relevant

RERI50%575% premium eamed from retained
ZERGEE profits to contingency reserve - (701,073) 701,073 - - - -

AR E e E =R E % Release of contingency reserve

to retained profits - 177,351 (177,351) - - - -
RZB-ZF Balance as at 31 December 2023
TZA=tT-B&R 14,500,000 9,358,885 3,017,192 224,002 8,158 18719 27,126,956
TEEEE Loss for the year - (418,040) - - = - (418,040)
Ef2E%eE/(B8)  Other comprehensive income/(loss) - - - 162,481 15,360 (20022 157,819
REE2ENE/ Total comprehensive income/(loss)
(B8 % for the year - (418,040) - 162,481 15,360 (2002 (260221)
& (i 30) Capital injection (Note 30) 12,000,000 - = = - - 12000000

H{R A2 7 A\ 2 i B4R Transfer of 50% or 75% of relevant

{RBH50% 3 75% premium earned from retained
ZRREE profits to contingency reserve - (733,164) 733,164 - - - -

mERF ERDZRBER Release of contingency reserve
to retained profits - 189,718 (189,718) - - - -

R-E-MmE+=A Balance as at 31 December 2024
=T-HEH 26,500,000 8,397,399 3,560,638 386,483 23,518 (1,303) 38,866,735

E2RNEAVE Fsif s A A EHRERN—385 - The notes on pages 232 to 409 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-Z-_NE+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2024

2023

TAT
HK$'000

REEBEIRERE cash flows from operating activities
AREEZRIAIERE Loss before taxation for the year (552,610) (412,556)
AT SIBEL TR Adjustments for:
A2 A Interest income 6 (8,146,214) (7,901,337)
FEZ Interest expense 7 7,528,253 7,504,428
fi% B A Dividend income 11 (289) (265)
R EINEE ST R K Income from placements with the
Exchange Fund 11 (1,374,291) (1,267,546)
AT EE T ABEREE Net loss/(gain) on investments at fair
BB () F 5 value through profit or loss 11 48 (238)
HERAFEE (LT AEMEE  Net gain on disposal of investments
ek H 1% B Uk 25 % 8 at FVOC| 11 (400)

BEREEN AT EEZE)FE Net change in fair value of loan portfolio 11 210,636 (51,532)

e Depreciation 12 89,748 82,158

BB EES) Change in impairment allowances 14 34,911 19,987

TR T AR EEE Change in fair value of financial

instruments (420,384) 114,773
SN Interest received 7,983,911 7,701,804
EENEEN Interest paid (7,345,111) (7,120,070)
KRR BER AGEEEALL  Cash flows used in operating activities
XBERAZRERE before changes in operating assets
and liabilities (1,991,792) (1,330,394)
JREIER A HEE =& A &9 Change in time deposits with original

TEHFEREE) maturity of more than three months (9,480,000) 3,948,172
JFEE 1 e 3k Change in remittance receivables 53,591 26,446
FERRE - e RHEMEEE Change in prepayments,

deposits and other assets 1,196,045 2,943,872
BTRET S B EROERE Change in loans with 100% guarantee

from the Government 14,579,658 (7,200,121)
ERHEeE Change in loan portfolio (820,232) (79,732)
FERIRIE « Rt & Change in accounts payable,

Hih g EE accrued expenses and other liabilities 43,352 (8,697,735)
HBR BRBRIZ IR G &Y Change in insurance contract liabilities,

BEEHE net of reinsurance 5,564,340 3,225,962
PE o, =58 Exchange differences 432,959 (364)
mREIEL (FR)2RE Cash generated from/(used in) operation 9,577,921 (7,163,894)
RE(B)FIE Taxation refunded/(paid) 16,281 (74,017)
B EE S (FR) 2 Net cash generated from/(used in)

&5 operating activities 9,594,202 (7,237,911)
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REZFBZHERE

Cash flows from investing activities

BEETEEE Purchase of fixed assets (38,734) (39,557)
BEUQAFEEFTA Purchase of investment securities
EMEEKGEHNESRE at fair value through other
comprehensive income 21(a) (1,512,090) (1,440,325)
BB IR A AR TIR 9B 58 & Purchase of investment securities
at amortised cost 21(c) (6,434,043) (3,945,347)
& RIEREHE A TS RIR Proceeds from sale and redemption
of investment securities 6,130,939 2,703,685
HNBE FL S 17 5K Placements with the Exchange Fund (13,800,000) (3,395,000)
HMNE B SR Withdrawals from the Exchange Fund - 3,449,524
B ETRERE Dividend received from listed
investments 289 265
B EEER RS F5E Net cash used in investing activities (15,653,639) (2,666,755)
RIS EE AR SR FE Net cash outflows before financing (6,059,437) (9,904,666)
METE2HERE Cash flows from financing activities
RITERETERIE Proceeds from bank borrowings 22,143,958 64,455,326
BEBITER Repayments of bank borrowings (22,143,958) (64,455,326)
BITIETS R %ﬁﬁ?%?k Proceeds from issue of debt securities 29 103,114,200 98,146,625
fEE B 3%171E %51 Redemption of debt securities issued 29 (117,658,640) (69,456,323)
HENRHEAS Principal elements of lease payments 25(b) (39,908) (35,182)
JEE TSR Proceeds from capital injection 30 12,000,000 2,500,000
REES (EH),ELE Net cash (used in)/generated from
2B e financing activities (2,584,348) 31,155,120
BeRERBELER (BL), Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
HEHNFEEE cash equivalents (8,643,785) 21,250,454
FUESRERESIEE Beginning cash and cash equivalents 51,128,198 29,883,316
ERHUEERZERELERZE Effect of exchange rates on cash and
cash equivalents (8,582) (5,572)
FRAESRERRELER Ending cash and cash equivalents 16 42,475,831 51,128,198

F2REAEFEMTE RERA MBI — B0

The notes on pages 232 to 409 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited (Company) and its subsidiaries (collectively
the Group) have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ((HKFRSs) which is a collective
term and includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRS), Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASSs) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
financial instruments) carried at fair value.

The accounting policies and the methods of computation used
in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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2.

Summary of material accounting policies

2.1. Adoption of HKFRSs

@)

New and amended standards effective on 1 January
2024

The Group has adopted the following amendments
to HKFRSs which are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
(the 2020 Amendments")
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments”)
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements
and HKFRS 7

The nature and impact of the new and revised HKFRSs
that are applicable to the Group are described below:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements
that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability
arising in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure
the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the
gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains.
Since the Group has no sale and leaseback transaction
with variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate occurring from the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, the amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.
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SmEBEHRERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current, including
what is meant by a right to defer settlement and that
a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting
period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement. The amendments also clarify that a liability
can be settled in its own equity instruments, and that
only if a conversion option in a convertible liability is
itself accounted for as an equity instrument would the
terms of a liability not impact its classification. The 2022
Amendments further clarify that, among covenants of
a liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those
with which an entity must comply on or before the
reporting date affect the classification of that liability
as current or non-current. Additional disclosures are
required for non-current liabilities that are subject to
the entity complying with future covenants within 12
months after the reporting period. The amendments
shall be applied retrospectively. The amendments
did not have any impact on the measurement,
recognition or presentation of any items in the Group'’s
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and
require additional disclosure of such arrangements.
The disclosure requirements in the amendments
are intended to assist users of financial statements
in understanding the effects of supplier finance
arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and
exposure to liquidity risk. As the Group does not have
supplier finance arrangements, the amendments did
not have any impact on the consolidated financial
information of the Group.
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New standards and amendments issued but not yet

effective

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these consolidated financial statements.
The Group intends to apply these revised HKFRSs, if
applicable, when they become effective.

HKFRS 18
HKFRS 19
Amendments to

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 21

Annual improvements
to HKFRS Accounting
Standards — Volume 11

Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements®

Subsidiaries without Public
Accountability: Disclosures®

Amendments to the Classification
and Measurement of Financial
Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Lack of Exchangeability’

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 and HKAS 72

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2025

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2026

3 Effective for annual/reporting periods beginning on or after 1

January 2027

0 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described

below.
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HKFRS 18 replaces HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements”. While a number of sections have
been brought forward from HKAS 1 with limited
changes, HKFRS 18 introduces new requirements for
presentation within the statement of profit or loss,
including specified totals and subtotals. Entities are
required to classify all income and expenses within
the statement of profit or loss into one of the five
categories: operating, investing, financing, income
taxes and discontinued operations, and to present
two new defined subtotals. It also requires disclosures
about management-defined performance measures in
a single note and introduces enhanced requirements
on the grouping (aggregation and disaggregation) and
the location of information in both the primary financial
statements and the notes. Some requirements
previously included in HKAS 1 are moved to HKAS
8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors”, which is renamed as HKAS 8
“Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements”. As a
consequence of the issuance of HKFRS 18, limited,
but widely applicable, amendments are made to HKAS
7 “Statement of Cash Flows”, HKAS 33 “Earnings Per
Share” and HKAS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”. In
addition, there are minor consequential amendments
to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 18 and the consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs will be effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027
with earlier application permitted. Retrospective
application is required. The Group is currently analysing
the new requirements and assessing the impact of
HKFRS 18 on the presentation and disclosure of the
Group's consolidated financial statements.
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HKFRS 19 allows eligible entities to elect to apply
reduced disclosure requirements while still applying
the recognition, measurement and presentation
requirements in other HKFRSs. To be eligible, at the end
of the reporting period, an entity must be a subsidiary
as defined in HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial
Statements”, cannot have public accountability and
must have a parent (ultimate or intermediate) that
prepares consolidated financial statements available
for public use in compliance with HKFRSs. Earlier
application is permitted. As the Group has public
accountability, it is not eligible to elect to apply HKFRS
19.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 clarify the
date on which a financial asset or financial liability
is derecognised and introduce an accounting policy
option to derecognise a financial liability that is settled
through an electronic payment system before the
settlement date if specified criteria are met. The
amendments clarify how to assess the contractual
cash flow characteristics of financial assets with
environmental, social and governance and other similar
contingent features. Moreover, the amendments
clarify the requirements for classifying financial
assets with non-recourse features and contractually
linked instruments. The amendments also include
additional disclosure requirements for investments in
equity instruments designated at FVOCI and financial
instruments with contingent features. The amendments
shall be applied retrospectively with an adjustment
to opening retained profits (or other component of
equity) at the initial application date. Prior periods are
not required to be restated and can only be restated
without the use of hindsight. Earlier application of
either all the amendments at the same time or only
the amendments related to the classification of
financial assets is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group'’s
consolidated financial statements.
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Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10
and in HKAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction
when the sale or contribution of assets constitutes
a business. For a transaction involving assets that
do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’'s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture.
The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 was removed by the HKICPA.
However, the amendments are available for adoption
now. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial
Statements.

Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity
shall assess whether a currency is exchangeable
into another currency and how it shall estimate a
spot exchange rate at a measurement date when
exchangeability is lacking. The amendments require
disclosures of information that enable users of
financial statements to understand the impact of a
currency not being exchangeable. Earlier application
is permitted. When applying the amendments, an
entity cannot restate comparative information. Any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments
shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits or to the cumulative
amount of translation differences accumulated in a
separate component of equity, where appropriate, at
the date of initial application. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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“Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards
— Volume 11" set out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS
7 (and the accompanying Guidance on implementing
HKFRS 7), HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 and HKAS 7. Details of
the amendments that are expected to be applicable to
the Group are as follows:

o HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”:
The amendments have updated certain wordings
in paragraph B38 of HKFRS 7 and paragraphs IG1,
IG14 and IG20B of the Guidance on implementing
HKFRS 7 for the purpose of simplification or
achieving consistency with other paragraphs
in the standard and/or with the concepts and
terminology used in other standards. In addition,
the amendments clarify that the Guidance on
implementing HKFRS 7 does not necessarily
illustrate all the requirements in the referenced
paragraphs of HKFRS 7 nor does it create
additional requirements. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

o HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”: The
amendments clarify that when a lessee has
determined that a lease liability has been
extinguished in accordance with HKFRS 9, the
lessee is required to apply paragraph 3.3.3 of
HKFRS 9 and recognise any resulting gain or 1oss
in profit or loss. In addition, the amendments
have updated certain wordings in paragraph
5.1.3 of HKFRS 9 and Appendix A of HKFRS 9 to
remove potential confusion. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”:
The amendments clarify that the relationship
described in paragraph B74 of HKFRS 10 is just
one example of various relationships that might
exist between the investor and other parties
acting as de facto agents of the investor, which
removes inconsistency with the requirement in
paragraph B73 of HKFRS 10. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

HKAS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”: The
amendments replace the term “cost method”
with “at cost” in paragraph 37 of HKAS 7
following the prior deletion of the definition of
“cost method”. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

2.2. Consolidation

240 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2024

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December 2024.

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has control.
The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.
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2.3.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interests in that subsidiary,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investment in the subsidiaries is stated at cost less provision
for impairment allowances. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income
statement for all interest-bearing financial instruments using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument but does not consider expected credit losses.
The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts.
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2.4.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
except for financial assets that subsequently become credit-
impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

Other income

@)

(©

Fee income

Fees are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Upfront
arrangement fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate are recognised as an adjustment
to the effective interest rate in determining interest
income on the loans.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Income from placements with the Exchange Fund

Changes in fair value of the placements with the
Exchange Fund classified as “financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss” is recognised as income or
loss in the year in which they arise.
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2.5. Financial assets

@)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through OCI, or through profit or loss); and

3 those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI.

The Group has classified the placements with the
Exchange Fund as financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.
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Subsequent measurement of the Group’s financial
assets are classified into the following categories,
depending on the Group's business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset:

o amortised cost: assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain
or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at amortised cost and is not part of
a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or
loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired.

. fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI): assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through OClI,
except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in profit
or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in other income/(l0ss).

. fair value through profit or loss (FVPL): assets
that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost
or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss
on investment that is subsequently measured at
FVPL and is not part of a hedging relationship is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net in
the income statement within other income/(l0ss)
in the period in which it arises.
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2.6.

2.7.

() Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses (ECLS) associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 3.2
provides more details of how the ECLS is measured.

Equity securities and investment funds

Equity securities are measured at FVPL unless an election is
made to designate them at FVOCI upon initial recognition.

For equity securities at FVPL, changes in fair value are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

The election of FVOCI is made upon initial recognition
on an instrument-by-instrument basis and once made is
irrevocable. Gains and losses on these equity securities are
recognised in OCI, which are not reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss, including when they are derecognised.

Investment funds are measured at FVPL. Changes in fair
value of these funds are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and financial
liabilities measured at amortised cost. All the financial
liabilities are classified at inception and recognised initially at
fair value.

Debt securities issued in the statement of financial position
represent notes issued under the Medium Term Note (MTN)
Programme.

These notes are initially designated as either (i) financial

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss; or (i) financial
liabilities at amortised cost.
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2.8.

The notes classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost
are initially recognised at fair value, which is the fair value of
the consideration received, net of transaction costs incurred.
The notes are subsequently stated at amortised costs; any
difference between proceeds net of transaction costs and
the redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period of the debt securities using the effective
interest method.

On redemption/repurchase of the notes, the resulting gains
or losses, being the difference between the redemption/
repurchase amount and the carrying amount, are recognised
in the income statement in the period in which the
redemption/repurchase takes place.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Purchases and sales of investment securities are recognised
on the trade date, the date on which the Group purchases
or sells the assets. Loan portfolio and receivables are
recognised when cash is advanced to the borrowers.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. When the Group neither transfers or retains
substantially all the risks and reward of ownership of a
financial asset and retains control of the transferred asset, it is
required to recognise the financial asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement in the financial asset. Under
the continuing involvement approach, the Group continues
to recognise part of the transferred asset. The Group also
recognises continuing involvement asset and liability, which
represents the extent of the Group's continuing exposure to
the risks and reward of the transferred asset.
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2.9.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
and debt securities issued are recognised on the trade
date. Other financial liabilities are recognised when such
obligations arise. Financial liabilities are derecognised from
the statement of financial position when and only when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired.

The Group does not recognise an asset and a liability, when
the Group enters into an arrangement to pass through cash
flows from an asset and that arrangement meets specified
conditions. In these cases, the Group acts more as an agent
of the eventual recipients of the cash flows than as an owner
of the asset. Accordingly, to the extent that those conditions
are met the arrangement is treated as a transfer and
considered for derecognition even though the entity may
continue to collect cash flows from the asset. Conversely, to
the extent the conditions are not met, the entity acts more
as an owner of the asset with the result that the asset should
continue to be recognised.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subseqguently remeasured at their fair value. Fair values are
obtained from market prices in active markets, including
recent market transactions, and valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flow models and options pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets
when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value
is negative. Interest receivables and payables arising from
derivatives are separately presented in the statement of
financial position.
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The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial
recognition is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the
consideration given or received).

Certain derivatives embedded in financial liabilities are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of
the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the income statement.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or
loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being
hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as either: (i)
hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or
firm commitments (fair value hedge); or (i) hedges of highly
probable future cash flows attributable to a recognised asset
or liability, or a forecast transaction (cash flow hedge).
Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated in this
way provided certain criteria are met.

At the inception of the hedging, the Group documents the
economic relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, including whether changes in cash flows of
the hedging instruments are expected to offset changes in
the cash flows of hedged items. The Group documents its
risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
its hedge transactions. The Group also documents its
assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing
basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging
transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair
values or cash flows of hedged items.
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Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualified as fair value hedges are
recorded in the income statement, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability
that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of
a hedged item for which the effective interest method
is used, is amortised to income statement over the
period to maturity.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualified as cash
flow hedges are recognised in OCI and accumulated in
equity as hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to
the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the
income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the
income statement in the periods in which the hedged
item will affect income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or
when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in
equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised
when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised
in the income statement. When a forecast transaction
iS no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss that was reported in equity is immediately
transferred to the income statement.

Derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting
purposes

Derivative instruments entered into as economic
hedges that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
held at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the
fair value of any derivative instrument are recognised
immediately in the income statement.
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2.10.0ffsetting financial instruments

2.11.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are accounted as assets held
for sale and reported in “Other assets” and the relevant
loans are derecognised. The repossessed collateral assets
are measured at lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.

2.12.Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is the
person or group that allocates resources to and assesses
the performance of the operating segments of an entity. The
Group has determined the Chief Executive Officer as its chief
operating decision maker.

2.13.Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (functional currency).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000)
which is the Company’s functional and the Company’s
and the Group’s presentation currency.
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Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at period-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are
translated with the closing rate as at the reporting
date. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency are translated with
the exchange rate as at the date of initial recognition;
non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are
measured at fair value are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

In the case of changes in the fair value of monetary
assets denominated in foreign currency classified
as FVOCI, a distinction is made between translation
differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of
the security and other changes in the carrying amount
of the security. Translation differences related to
changes in the amortised cost are recognised in profit
or loss, and other changes in the carrying amount,
except impairment, are recognised in OCI.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
instruments held at FVPL are reported as part of the
fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial instruments classified as FVOCI, are
included in the fair value reserve in equity.
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2.14.Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives.

shorter of the end of the useful life of
the right-of-use asset or the end of the

Right-of-use assets on
leased properties for

own Use lease term
Leasehold improvements over the unexpired period of the lease
Furniture and fixtures over the unexpired period of the lease
Computer three years
Office equipment three years
Motor vehicle four years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

2.15.Impairment of investment in subsidiaries

Impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary is
required upon receiving a dividend from that subsidiary if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary concerned in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the subsidiary in the Company's
statement of financial position exceeds the carrying amount
of the subsidiary’s net assets including goodwill in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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2.16.Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in OCI
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
OCl or directly in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures its tax
balances either based on the most likely amount or the
expected value, depending on which method provides a
better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. Deferred tax is
determined using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is
realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is
provided on temporary differences arising from investment
in the subsidiary, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2.17.Employee benefits

(@)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long-
service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of each reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave, maternity or
paternity leave are recognised when the absence
oCCurs.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created constructive obligations.

Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme
and a defined contribution scheme, the assets of which
are generally held in separate trustee-administered
funds. These pension plans are generally funded by
payments from employees and by the Group.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident
fund scheme and defined contribution scheme are
expensed as incurred.
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2.18.Leases

@)

As a lessee

0]

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at
the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the
date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Unless
the Group is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the leased asset at the end of the
lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease
term.

Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds it recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use.
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Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the
Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable.
The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain
to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate.

In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased
to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the lease of low-
value assets recognition to leases of assets that
are considered as low value. Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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2.19.Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise balances with original maturities
of three months or less, including cash and balances with
banks that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

2.20.Dividend distribution

2.21

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting
period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

.Insurance and reinsurance contracts classification

The Group issues insurance contracts in the normal course
of business, under which it accepts significant insurance
risk from its policyholders. In general, the Group determines
whether it has significant insurance risk, by comparing
benefits payable after an insured event with benefits payable
if the insured event had not occurred. Insurance contracts
can also transfer financial risk.

In the normal course of business, the Group uses
reinsurance to mitigate its risk exposures. A reinsurance
contract transfers significant risk if it transfers substantially
all of the insurance risk resulting from the insured portion
of the underlying insurance contracts, even if it does not
expose the reinsurer to the possibility of a significant loss.

The Group issues reinsurance contracts in the normal course
of business to compensate other entities for claims arising
from one or more insurance contracts issued by those
entities.
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2.22.Insurance and reinsurance contracts accounting
treatment

@)

Level of aggregation

HKFRS 17 requires an entity to determine the level of
aggregation for applying its requirements. The level
of aggregation for the Group is determined firstly by
dividing the insurance contracts written into portfolios.
Portfolios comprise groups of contracts with similar
risks which are managed together. Portfolios are
further divided based on expected profitability at
inception into three categories: onerous contracts,
contracts with no significant risk of becoming onerous,
and the remainder. This means that, for determining
the level of aggregation, the Group identifies a
contract as the smallest “unit’, i.e., the lowest common
denominator. The Group then makes an evaluation of
whether a series of contracts can be treated together
in making the profitability assessment based on
reasonable and supportable information, or whether
a single contract contains components that need to
be separated and treated as if they were stand-alone
contracts. HKFRS 17 also requires that no group for
level of aggregation purposes may contain contracts
issued more than one year apart. Accordingly, each
portfolio is disaggregated into groups of contracts that
are issued within a calendar year (annual cohorts).

The Group has defined portfolios of insurance and
reinsurance contracts issued based on its product lines
due to the fact that the products are subject to similar
risks and managed together. The expected profitability
of these portfolios at inception is determined based on
the existing actuarial valuation models which take into
consideration existing and new business.

The groups of contracts for which the fair value
approach has been adopted on transition include
contracts issued more than one year apart.

258 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2024



RESHNEEDR

s VIREAKRA/EBRIEN
B4R ;

e  IREABITEFEEX
A] BE 1 I EL 1R R RERK A
BRIESHNNEHESR
&

e  HAARWBRTAKNAENR -

IR A BRRENEED S

e  VRHERBELFKSE

B & AR ;

s VIRERRTEEEX

ARt EEFREN S
HHR K

Ha R T A KAER

-

AEEIZ T & FE MR ER
HBFENRRA QAR

B %48 Bl = (R HA FE Y A
IRETE

o MAPREFAANS
—EMREHA - K
HEINHAE - BRKE
F—ENFOHBEH X

e HEREMEOERIME -
REBEMBRER %A
RIB IR 2 B o

The insurance contracts portfolios are divided into:

o a group of contracts that are onerous at initial
recognition;

. a group of contracts that at initial recognition
have no significant possibility of becoming
onerous subsequently; and

. a group of the remaining contracts in the
portfolio.

The reinsurance contracts held portfolios are divided
into:

o a group of contracts on which there is a net gain
on initial recognition,;

. a group of contracts that have no significant
possibility of a net gain arising subsequent to
initial recognition; and

. a group of the remaining contracts in the
portfolio.

Recognition

The Group recognises groups of insurance contracts
that it issues from the earliest of the following:

e the beginning of the coverage period of the
group of contracts;

3 the date when the first payment from a
policyholder in the group is due, or when the first
payment is received if there is no due date; or

o for a group of onerous contracts, as soon as
facts and circumstances indicate that the group
iS onerous.
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The Group recognises a group of reinsurance contracts
held it has entered into from the earliest of the
following:

o the beginning of the coverage period of the
group of reinsurance contracts held. However,
the Group delays the recognition of a group
of reinsurance contracts held that provide
proportionate coverage until the date when
any underlying insurance contract is initially
recognised, if that date is later than the
beginning of the coverage period of the group of
reinsurance contracts held; and

° the date the Group recognises an onerous group
of underlying insurance contracts if the Group
entered into the related reinsurance contract
held in the group of reinsurance contracts held at
or before that date.

Only contracts that individually meet the recognition
criteria by the end of the reporting period are included
in the groups. When contracts are identified to meet
the recognition criteria in the groups after reporting
date, they are added to the groups in the reporting
period in which they are identified to meet the
recognition criteria. The Group adds new contracts to
the group in the reporting period in which that contract
meets one of the criteria set out above.

Onerous groups of contracts

The Group has determined whether any contracts
issued form a group of onerous contracts before the
earlier of the beginning of the coverage period and
the date when the first payment from a policyholder
in the group is due. The Group looks at facts and
circumstances to identify if a group of contracts are
onerous based on:

. pricing information;

results of similar contracts it has recognised; and

. environmental factors, e.g., a change in market
experience or regulations.
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Contract boundary

The Group includes in the measurement of a group of
insurance contracts all the future cash flows within the
boundary of each contract in the group. Cash flows
are within the boundary of an insurance contract if
they arise from substantive rights and obligations that
exist during the reporting period in which the Group
can compel the policyholder to pay the premiums,
or in which the Group has a substantive obligation to
provide the policyholder with services. A substantive
obligation to provide services ends when:

. the Group has the practical ability to reassess
the risks of the particular policyholder and, as
a result, can set a price or level of benefits that
fully reflects those risks; or

o the Group has the practical ability to reassess the
risks of the portfolio of insurance contracts that
contain the contract and, as a result, can set a
price or level of benefits that fully reflects the risk
of that portfolio; and

. the pricing of the premiums for coverage up to
the date when the risks are reassessed does not
take into account the risks that relate to periods
after the reassessment date.

A liability or asset relating to expected premiums or
claims outside the boundary of the insurance contract
are not recognised. Such amounts relate to future
insurance contracts.
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Insurance contracts — initial measurement

The Group measures a group of insurance contracts as
the total of:

. fulfilment cash flows; and

o a CSM representing the unearned profit the
Group will recognise as it provides service under
the insurance contracts in the group.

Fulfilment cash flows comprise unbiased and
probability-weighted estimates of future cash flows,
discounted to present value to reflect the time value
of money and financial risks, plus a risk adjustment for
non-financial risk.

The Group’s objective in estimating future cash
flows is to determine the expected value, or the
probability-weighted mean, of the full range of possible
outcomes, considering all reasonable and supportable
information available at the reporting date without
undue cost or effort. The Group estimates future cash
flows considering a range of scenarios which have
commercial substance and give a good representation
of possible outcomes. The cash flows from each
scenario are probability-weighted and apply the current
discount rates to reflect the time value of money and
the financial risks related to those cash flows.

When estimating future cash flows, the Group includes
all cash flows that are within the contract boundary
including:

. premiums and related cash flows;

. claims and benefits, including reported claims
not yet paid, incurred claims not yet reported
and expected future claims;

o an allocation of insurance acquisition cash flows
attributable to the portfolio to which the contract
belongs;
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o claims handling costs;

o policy administration and maintenance costs,
including recurring commissions that are
expected to be paid to intermediaries; and

. an allocation of fixed and variable overheads
directly attributable to fulfilling insurance
contracts.

The Group does not provide investment-return
services in respect of contracts that it issues, nor
does it perform investment activities for the benefit of
policyholders.

The Group incorporates, in an unbiased way, all
reasonable and supportable information available
without undue cost or effort about the amount,
timing and uncertainty of those future cash flows.
The Group estimates the probabilities and amounts
of future payments under existing contracts based on
information obtained, including:

. information about claims already reported by
policyholders;

. other information about the known or estimated
characteristics of the insurance contracts;

. historical data about the Group’s own experience,
supplemented when necessary with data from
other sources. Historical data is adjusted to
reflect current conditions; and

current pricing information, when available.

The measurement of fulfilment cash flows includes
insurance acquisition cash flows which are allocated
as a portion of premium to profit or loss (through
insurance revenue) over the period of the contract
in a systematic and rational way on the basis of the
passage of time. The Group does not elect to accrete
interest on insurance acquisition cash flows to be
allocated to profit or loss.
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The Group’s CSM is a component of the insurance
asset or liability for the group of insurance contracts
that results in no income at initial recognition. The
level of aggregation for CSM is on a group of contracts
basis consistent with the level of aggregation specified
above. If the fulfilment cash flows allocated to the
group of insurance contracts, together with any
previously recognised insurance acquisition cash flows
and any cash flows arising from the contracts at the
date of initial recognition in total are a net outflow,
the group of contracts is considered to be onerous. A
loss from onerous insurance contracts is recognised in
profit and loss immediately.

For reinsurance contracts, the Group recognises any
net gain or net cost as a CSM at initial recognition.
If any net cost of obtaining reinsurance coverage
relates to an insured event that occurred before
the purchase of the group of reinsurance contracts
held, it is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
In addition, if the underlying insurance contracts
are in an onerous position, the Group is allowed to
recognise a reinsurance gain immediately in profit or
loss for the portion of claims that the Group expects
to recover from the reinsurance, if the reinsurance
held was entered into prior to or at the same time as
the onerous contract. Consequently, a loss-recovery
component is created and adjusted for the group of
reinsurance contracts. This determines the amounts
that are subsequently presented in profit or loss as
reversals of recoveries of losses from the reinsurance
contracts and are excluded from the allocation of
reinsurance premiums paid. The Group adjusts the
loss-recovery component to reflect changes in the loss
of an onerous group of underlying insurance contracts.
The carrying amount of the loss-recovery component
must not exceed the portion of the carrying amount of
the loss of the onerous group of underlying insurance
contracts that the Group expects to recover from the
group of reinsurance contracts.
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Measurement of reinsurance contract cash flows is
consistent with the underlying insurance contracts, but
with an adjustment for any risk of non-performance by
the reinsurer.

Insurance contracts — subsequent measurement

The CSM at the end of the reporting period represents
the profit in the group of insurance contracts that has
not yet been recognised in profit or loss, because it
relates to future service to be provided.

For each profitability group of insurance contracts, the
carrying amount of the CSM of the group at the end of
the reporting period is adjusted by the Group to reflect
the effect of the following changes:

3 the effect of any new contracts added to the
group;

. interest accreted on the carrying amount of the
CSM during the reporting period, measured at
the discount rates at initial recognition;

o the changes in fulfilment cash flows relating to
future service, except to the extent that: (i) such
increases in the fulfilment cash flows exceed
the carrying amount of the CSM, giving rise to a
loss; or (i) such decreases in the fulfilment cash
flows are allocated to the loss component of the
liability for remaining coverage (LRC); and

. the amount recognised as insurance revenue
because of the transfer of services in the
period, determined by the allocation of the CSM
remaining at the end of the reporting period
(before any allocation) over the current and
remaining coverage period.
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The discount rate is determined periodically and only
the set of locked-in discount rates for a group of
contracts in each period will be applied for subsequent
measured. The discount rate used for accretion of
interest on the CSM is determined using the bottom-up
approach (Note 4.4(b)).

The CSM is recognised into insurance revenue over
the duration of the group of insurance contracts
based on the respective coverage units. The locked-in
discount rate is the rate applicable at the date of initial
recognition of contracts that joined a group for each
annual cohort.

The changes in fulfilment cash flows relating to future
service that adjust the CSM comprise:

. experience adjustments that arise from the
difference between the premium receipts
(and any related cash flows such as insurance
acquisition cash flows) and the estimate, at
the beginning of the period, of the amounts
expected. Differences related to premiums
received (or due) related to current or past
services are recognised immediately in profit
or loss while differences related to premiums
received (or due) for future services are adjusted
against the CSM;

. changes in estimates of the present value of
future cash flows in the liability for remaining
coverage, except those relating to the time
value of money and changes in financial
risk (recognised in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income rather than adjusting the
CSMy;
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o differences between any investment component
expected to become payable in the period and
the actual investment component that becomes
payable in the period; and

3 changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial
risk that relate to future service.

Except for changes in the risk adjustment, adjustments
to the CSM noted above are measured at discount
rates that reflect the characteristics of the cash
flows of the group of insurance contracts at initial
recognition.

Where, during the coverage period, a loss is created
for a group of insurance contracts becoming onerous
when there is an increase in fulfilment cash flows
that exceeds the carrying amount of the CSM. Once
a change in fulfilment cash flows reduces CSM to nil,
the excess establishes a loss which is recognised in
profit and loss immediately for the net cash outflow.
A loss component is established by the Group for the
liability for remaining coverage for such onerous group
depicting the losses recognised. Any subsequent
decrease in the fulfilment cash flows will reverse the
losses previously recognised in profit and loss. Any
remaining loss will be released based on a systematic
allocation of subsequent changes relating to future
service in the fulfilment cash flows.

The Group measures the carrying amount of a group
of insurance contracts at the end of each reporting
period as the sum of (i) the liability for remaining
coverage comprising fulfilment cash flows related to
future service allocated to the group at that date and
the CSM of the group at that date; and (i) the liability
for incurred claims (LIC) for the Group comprising the
fulfilment cash flows related to past service allocated
to the group at that date. The fulfilment cash flows at
the reporting dates are measured using the current
estimates of expected cash flows and current discount
rates.

For reinsurance contracts, the carrying amount
represents the sum of the asset for remaining
coverage and the asset for incurred claims. The asset
for remaining coverage comprises: (a) the fulfilment
cash flows that relate to services that will be received
under the contracts in future periods; and (b) any
remaining CSM at that date.
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The Group derecognises insurance contracts when:

the rights and obligations relating to the contract
are extinguished (i.e., discharged, cancelled or
expired); or

the contract is modified such that the
modification results in a change in the
measurement model or the applicable standard
for measuring a component of the contract,
or the modified contract would have had a
substantially different contract boundary, or the
modified contract would have been included
in a different group of contracts. In such cases,
the Group derecognises the initial contract
and recognises the modified contract as a new
contract.

Insurance acquisition cash flows

Insurance acquisition cash flows arise from the costs of
selling, underwriting and starting a group of insurance
contracts (issued or expected to be issued) that are
directly attributable to the portfolio of insurance
contracts to which the group belongs.
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Presentation

The Group has presented separately in the statement
of financial position the carrying amount of portfolios
of insurance contracts issued that are assets, portfolios
of insurance contracts issued that are liabilities,
portfolios of reinsurance contracts held that are assets
and portfolios of reinsurance contracts held that are
liabilities.

The Group disaggregates the amounts recognised in
the consolidated income statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income into insurance
service result, comprising insurance revenue and
insurance service expenses from investment results,
which comprises insurance finance income or
expenses.

The Group does not disaggregate the change in risk
adjustment for non-financial risk between a financial
and non-financial portion and includes the entire
change as part of the insurance service result.

The Group separately presents income or expenses

from reinsurance contracts held and from insurance
contracts issued.
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Insurance revenue

The Group's insurance revenue depicts the
performance of insurance services through
provision of coverage and other services arising
from a group of insurance contracts at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which
the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those services. Insurance revenue from a group
of insurance contracts is therefore the relevant
portion for the period of the total consideration
for the contracts, (i.e., the amount of premiums
paid to the Group adjusted for financing effect
(the time value of money) and excluding
investment components). The total consideration
for a group of contracts covers amounts related
to the provision of services and is comprised of:

o expected insurance service expenses for
claims and other insurance expenses,
excluding any amounts allocated to the loss
component of the liability for remaining
coverage,

o the risk adjustment for non-financial risk,
excluding any amounts allocated to the loss
component of the liability for remaining
coverage,

o the CSM release; and

o amounts related to recovery of insurance
acquisition cash flows.

For management judgement applied to the
amortisation of CSM, please refer to Note 4.4(d).
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Insurance services expenses

The insurance service expenses arising from
insurance contracts are recognised in profit
or loss as they are incurred. The insurance
service expenses comprise: (a) incurred claims
and other insurance expenses; (b) losses on
onerous contracts and reversal of such losses; (c)
adjustments to liability for incurred claims; and
(d) related to amortising of insurance acquisition
cash flows.

Loss components

The Group has grouped contracts that are
onerous at initial recognition separately from
contracts in the same portfolio that are not
onerous at initial recognition. Groups that
were not onerous at initial recognition can also
subsequently become onerous if assumptions
and experience changes. The Group has
established a loss component of the liability
for remaining coverage for any onerous group
depicting the future losses recognised.

A loss component represents a notional record
of the losses attributable to each group of
onerous insurance contracts (or contracts
profitable at inception that have become
onerous). The loss component is released based
on a systematic allocation of the subsequent
changes in the fulfilment cash flows to: (i) the
loss component; and (ii) the liability for remaining
coverage excluding the loss component. The
loss component is also updated for subsequent
changes in estimates of the fulfilment cash
flows related to future service. The systematic
allocation of subsequent changes to the loss
component results in the total amounts allocated
to the loss component being equal to zero by
the end of the coverage period of a group of
contracts (since the loss component will have
been materialised in the form of incurred claims).
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Loss-recovery components

When the Group recognises a loss on initial
recognition of an onerous group of underlying
insurance contracts or when further onerous
underlying insurance contracts are added to a
group, the Group establishes a loss-recovery
component of the asset for remaining coverage
for a group of reinsurance contracts held
depicting the recovery of losses.

Where a loss component has been set up
subsequent to initial recognition of a group of
underlying insurance contracts, the portion of
income that has been recognised from related
reinsurance contracts held is disclosed as a loss-
recovery component.

Where a loss-recovery component has been
set up at initial recognition or subsequently, the
Group adjusts the loss-recovery component to
reflect changes in the loss component of an
onerous group of underlying insurance contracts.

The carrying amount of the loss-recovery
component must not exceed the portion of the
carrying amount of the loss component of the
onerous group of underlying insurance contracts
that the Group expects to recover from the group
of reinsurance contracts held. On this basis,
the loss-recovery component recognised at
initial recognition is reduced to zero in line with
reductions in the onerous group of underlying
insurance contracts and is nil when loss
component of the onerous group of underlying
insurance contracts is nil.
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Insurance finance income and expense

Insurance finance income or expenses comprise
the change in the carrying amount of the group
of insurance contracts arising from:

. the effect of the time value of money and
changes in the time value of money,; and

. the effect of financial risk and changes in
financial risk.

The Group disaggregates insurance finance
income or expenses on insurance and
reinsurance contracts issued between profit or
loss and OCI for general insurance business.
The impact of changes in market interest rates
on the value of the insurance and related
reinsurance assets and liabilities are reflected in
OCl in order to minimise accounting mismatches
between the accounting for financial assets and
insurance assets and liabilities. The impacts from
differences between current period rates and
locked-in rates are presented in OCI.

For general insurance business, the Group'’s
invested assets which are deposits and debt
securities investments backing the groups of
insurance contracts measured under the GMM
are measured at amortised costs. As a result, the
effect of the time value of money for the groups
of insurance contracts are reflected in profit or
loss and the effect of financial risk and changes
in financial risk is reflected in OCI.

The Group systematically allocates expected
total insurance finance income or expenses over
the duration of the group of contracts to profit
or loss using discount rates determined on initial
recognition of the group of contracts for which
changes in assumptions that relate to financial
risk do not have a substantial effect on the
amounts paid to the policyholder.
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In the event of transfer of a group of insurance
contracts or derecognition of an insurance
contract, the Group reclassifies the insurance
finance income or expenses to profit or loss as
a reclassification adjustment of any remaining
amounts for the group (or contract) that were
previously recognised in OCI.

With respect to the annuity business, insurance
finance income or expenses on the issued
insurance contracts is not disaggregated because
the related financial assets are managed on a fair
value basis and measured at fair value through
profit or oss.

Net income or expense from reinsurance
contracts held

The Group presents on the face of the
consolidated income statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income the net
amounts of expected recovery from reinsurers
and an allocation of the reinsurance premiums
paid. The Group treats reinsurance cash flows
that are contingent on claims on the underlying
contracts as part of the claims that are expected
to be reimbursed under the reinsurance contract
held. Amounts relating to the recovery of losses
from reinsurance of onerous direct contracts
are included as amounts recoverable from the
reinsurer. For reinsurance cash flows that are
not contingent on claims on the underlying
contracts (for example, some types of ceding
commissions), they are treated as reduction
in reinsurance premiums paid. The allocation
of reinsurance premiums paid represents the
total of the changes in the asset for remaining
coverage that relate to services for which the
Group expects to pay consideration.
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2.23.Loans that transfer significant insurance risk

There are contracts issued by the Group with a feature
combining a loan component with an agreement to
compensate the borrowers by waving the borrowers’
outstanding debt (for example, repayment of the loan
balance and payment of interest) if a specified uncertain
future event adversely affects the borrowers (for example,
death). The insurance risk transferred by these contracts
arises primarily from guarantees provided to the borrowers
of the maximum amount of outstanding debt that is
repayable if specified uncertain future events occur.
Following the adoption of HKFRS 17, the loan component is
no longer allowed to account separately from an insurance
contract. On the other hand, it is allowed to apply HKFRS 9 to
account for both components of such contracts in entirety.
The Group has applied HKFRS 9 to such contracts. The
objective of the Group's business model is to hold relevant
loans with insurance cover to collect contractual cash flows
until maturity rather than to sell. However, the cash flows
of these contracts fail to meet the “solely for payments
of principal and interest” test in view of the non-recourse
feature as the credit risk of the Group is exchanged for the
performance of underlying collateral value for repayment
of loan balance and payment of interest. Accordingly, such
contracts (with both loan and insurance components in
entirety) are measured as fair value through profit or loss
under HKFRS 9. The determination of the fair value of these
loans is based on income approach by discounting future
cash flows (including annuity payout, premium and interest
income, loan prepayment, collateral property value and so
on) to present value at a rate that market participant would
use when pricing the similar asset.

2.24.Contingency reserve

For general insurance business, 50% or 75% of the relevant
premiums or insurance premium earned, depending on
the respective product, under Insurance Ordinance basis
is set aside as a contingency reserve for a period of time
in accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as
considered appropriate by the directors. Withdrawals from
the contingency reserve can be made to meet excess claims
at any time during the period. At the end of the reporting
period, the unutilised balance of the contingency reserve can
be released to retained profits.
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3.

Financial risk management

3.1. Strategy in using financial instruments

The major activities of the Group are (i) to purchase
portfolios of mortgages or loans; (i) to raise financing for its
purchase of assets through issuance of debt securities; (iii)
to develop infrastructure financing business; (iv) to provide
mortgage insurance cover in respect of mortgage loans
and reverse mortgage loans originated by participating
lenders and secured on residential properties in Hong Kong,
life insurance policies and other assets, if applicable; (v) to
operate a scheme for the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (Government) providing
guarantee on loans advanced by participating lenders for
local small and medium enterprises (SMES) and to operate
a scheme for the Government providing 100% guarantee
on loans advanced by participating lenders for unemployed
individuals; and (vi) to offer life annuity products in or
from Hong Kong. By their nature, the Group’s activities
are principally related to the use of financial instruments
including cash, loans, debts, investments, and derivatives.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks and those activities involve the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and management of some degree of risk
or combination of risks. The Group manages the risks
in a prudent manner in sustaining the Group’s financial
performance.

The Corporate Risk Management Committee is set up at
group level to provide oversight of the enterprise-wide
risk matters including financial and non-financial risks.
The policies and limits for various risks are monitored and
reviewed regularly by various management committees
of the Company, including Infrastructure Financing and
Securitisation Investment Committee (IFSIC), Credit
Committee, Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO),
Transaction Approval Committee (TAC), Environmental,
Social and Governance (ESG) Committee, and Operational
Risk Committee (ORC) which report to the Corporate Risk
Management Committee.
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The IFSIC executes oversight and approval authority
over all investments in infrastructure loans. The Credit
Committee oversees the credit policies and standards for
asset acquisition. The ALCO oversees the implementation
of market risk management and investment guidelines
approved by the Board of Directors. The TAC conducts an in-
depth analysis of pricing economics and associated risks for
business transactions, whilst taking into consideration the
latest market conditions and business strategies approved
by the Board. The ESG Committee is established to direct
and oversee the development and implementation of ESG
strategy having regard to the relevant requirements and
guidelines. The ORC is responsible for ensuring that all
business entities and line functions maintain an effective
operational risk and internal control framework. The ORC is
also responsible for providing directions and resolving issues
related to policies, controls and management of operational
issues referred to by line functions, as well as ensuring
prompt and appropriate corrective action in response to
audit findings related to operational risks or internal controls.
In addition, Group Internal Audit Department is responsible
for the independent review of the internal control systems of
the Group.

The Group established Longevity Risk Committee to manage
longevity risk of the Group. Its duties include approving
longevity risk management policies and hedging transactions
and reviewing longevity experiences and exposures of the
Group. It also monitors and analyses the general trend,
technological changes and their implications for human
longevity.

In respect of general insurance business, a Risk Committee
is established by HKMC Insurance Limited (HKMCI) as an
independent oversight committee to assist its Board to
oversee implementation of risk management framework
and manage all risks faced by the HKMCI. For HKMC Annuity
Limited (HKMCA), a Risk Committee is established to
manage the enterprise-wide risk matters, including financial
and non-financial risks.

The most important types of risks are credit risk, market risk
which includes currency risk, interest rate risk and equity
price risk, liquidity risk and insurance risk.
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3.2. Creditrisk

The Group's principal financial assets are its cash and
short-term funds, investment securities, placements with
the Exchange Fund, loan portfolio and loans with 100%
guarantee from the Government under the SME Financing
Guarantee Scheme (SFGS) and Dedicated 100% Loan
Guarantee Schemes (DLGS). The credit risk on liquid funds
and investment securities is limited because the credit
ratings of the counterparties, mainly sovereigns, quasi-
sovereign agencies, banks and companies, should meet the
minimum requirement in accordance with the investment
guidelines approved by the Board of Directors. The capital of
the HKMCA and the HKMCI as well as premium receipts of
the HKMCA are placed with the Exchange Fund managed by
the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (HKMA). The credit risk
on the placements with the Exchange Fund is very limited as
it is exposure to the Government. Regarding loans with 100%
guarantee from the Government, the credit default risk of the
loans is fully guaranteed by the Government.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its loan
portfolio, which is the risk that a loan borrower will be unable
to pay amounts in full when due. The Group therefore has a
prudent policy for managing its exposure to credit risk.

To maintain the quality of the loan portfolios, the Group
adheres to a prudent risk management framework to (i)
select Approved Sellers with established criteria; (ii) adopt
prudent asset purchasing criteria; (iii) conduct effective
and in-depth due diligence reviews; (iv) implement robust
project structures and financing documentation; (v) perform
an ongoing monitoring and reviewing mechanism; and
(vi) ensure adequate protection for higher-risk assets or
transactions.

The Group undertakes ongoing credit review with special
attention paid to problem loans. Business units will monitor
these loans and take recovery action such as establishing
relief plan with borrowers in order to maximise recoveries.
Loan impairment assessment is performed regularly and
impairment allowance is charged to income statement in
accordance with the guidelines approved by the Credit
Committee.
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Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group has implemented guidelines on the acceptability
of specific classes of collateral on credit risk mitigation,
which are subject to regular review.

Loan portfolio and loans with 100% guarantee from the
Government

The principal collateral types for residential mortgage
portfolio mainly consist of properties located in Hong Kong.
For hire purchase receivable, the collateral types include taxi
and public light bus licenses. Residential mortgage portfolio
and hire purchase receivable are generally fully secured
by collateral. The current collateral value of properties is
determined with the use of public indices on a portfolio
basis. The principal collateral types for infrastructure loan
portfolio mainly consist of security interests in the assets of
the borrowers and assignment of key project documents
and/or charge over bank accounts but the actual security
varies projects to projects.

Regarding loans with 100% guarantee from the Government,
no collateral is sought as the credit default risk of the loans is
fully guaranteed by the Government. Please refer to Note 19
for more details.

Time deposits with banks, investment securities and
placements with the Exchange Fund

Collaterals are generally not sought for time deposits with
banks as the exposures are considered to be low risk due
to the nature of the counterparties and short-term maturity.
Investment securities and placements with the Exchange
Fund are generally unsecured.
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Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into ISDA master agreement with all
counterparties for derivative transactions where each party
will be able to settle all outstanding amounts on a net basis
in the event of default of the other party. The Group also
executed Credit Support Annex (CSA) with all counterparties
in conjunction with the master agreement. Under CSA,
collateral is passed between the parties to mitigate the
counterparty risk inherent in outstanding positions.

For financial instruments such as derivatives, exposures
are monitored against counterparty risk limits established
in accordance with the investment guidelines and credit
risk policy of the Group. These counterparty risk limits
are subject to regular review by the Credit Committee
on an annual basis. At any one time, the amount subject
to counterparty risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments favourable to the Group (i.e. assets with positive
fair value), which in relation to derivatives is only a small
fraction of the contract, or notional values used to express
the volume of instruments outstanding. This counterparty
risk exposure is managed as part of the overall credit limits
with counterparties, together with potential exposures from
market movements.

Mortgage insurance contracts, other guarantee and
insurance contracts

The details are disclosed in Note 3.5.

Settlement risk arises in any situation where a payment in
cash, securities or equities is made in the expectation of a
corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily
settlement limits are established for each counterparty to
cover the aggregate of all settlement risk arising from the
Group's market transactions on any single day.
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Expected credit loss (ECL) measurement

For financial assets, the following credit risk modelling
applies:

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. It considers available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information with the following indicators
incorporated:

o external credit rating (as far as available);

o actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations;

o significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same borrower,

. significant changes in the value of the collateral
supporting the obligation or in the quality of third-party
guarantees or credit enhancements; and

o significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the
payment status of borrowers in the group and changes
in the financial conditions of the borrower.

A three-stage approach to measuring ECLs is applied on
loan portfolio, cash and short-term funds and investment
securities accounted for at amortised cost and FVOCI.
Financial assets migrate through the following three stages
based on the change in credit quality since initial recognition:
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Stage 1: 12-month ECLS

For exposures where there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that are
not credit impaired upon origination, the portion of the
lifetime ECL associated with the probability of default events
occurring within the next 12 months is recognised.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECLs — not credit impaired

For credit exposures where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that are not
credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECLs — credit impaired

Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred.
For financial assets that have become credit impaired, a
lifetime ECL is recognised and interest income is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
(net of impairment provision) rather than the gross carrying
amount.

ECLs are derived from unbiased and probability-weighted
estimates of expected loss. The amount of the ECLS is
recognised using an impairment allowance account with the
movement in this account charged to income statement.

At initial recognition, impairment allowance is required for
ECLs resulting from default events that are possible within
the next 12 months (12-month ECLS). At each reporting
date, the Group assesses whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk for financial assets since
initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring
over the expected life between the reporting date and
the date of initial recognition. In the event of a significant
increase in credit risk, impairment allowance is required
from all possible default events over the expected life of
the financial assets (Lifetime ECLS). If, in a subsequent
period, credit quality improves and reverses any previously
assessed significant increase in credit risk since origination,
then the impairment allowance reverts from Lifetime ECLS to
12-month ECLS.
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Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage
in a repayment plan with the Group. Loans are written off
after all the necessary procedures have substantially been
completed and the amount of the loss has been determined.
Where loans have been written off, the Group continues
to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover
the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are
recognised in profit or loss.

No impairment allowance was made on interest and
remittance receivables, deposits and other assets as the
amount was immaterial.

The Group uses three categories for loans which reflect their
credit risk and how the loan loss provision is determined for
each of those categories.

(@) Loans with 100% guarantee from the Government

These loans are fully guaranteed by the Government as
detailed in Note 19. The Group uses three categories
for loans which reflect their credit risk:

Stage 1. It represents performing loans with low risk
of default and the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet contractual cash flows.

Stage 2. It represents loans with significant increase
in credit risk since the moment of acquisition,
for example there is interest or principal
payment overdue between 30 days and 60
days.

Stage 3: It represents loans with significant increase in
credit risk with interest or principal payment
overdue for over 60 days, or loans with
default notice submitted by banks.
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HRZEERNENEBEBRRAK
FIER AR - ZREBFH
BRRBEEM - SRR
B8 °

R-ZE-_mFE+=-A=+—H
As at 31 December 2024

Given the default loss of these loans are fully
guaranteed, no impairment allowance is recognised in
view of the minimal default risk of the Government.

F—MEE FoMEE E=MEE B
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

FER FET TR TR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

74,154,028 1,754,591 6,874,079 82,782,698

IRE AR E Gross carrying amount
BB R Impairment allowance
R E {8 Carrying amount

74,154,028 1,754,591 6,874,079 82,782,698

RZE_=F+=-A=+—~H
As at 31 December 2023

F—FER FEREER FE=PEER HaE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FATT FHTT FHIT FATT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

92,050,026 2,015,090 3,297,240 97,362,356

IR ARE Gross carrying amount
RER Impairment allowance
MR EE Carrying amount

92,050,026 2,015,090 3,297,240 97,362,356

284  The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2024



NG (b)  Loan portfolio

AEBEMEEBREERER
B ERER B LA T -

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the
Group’s ECL model on loans is as follows:

xRl
Category

F—FEE

Stage 1

F_PEER

Stage 2

e —

FE=PEE

Stage 3

Write-off

HRINES
Definition of category

ERAENRBRERIE - B EHENE

f
TAaNBRERE

Borrowers have a low risk of default and
a strong capacity to meet contractual
cash flows.

ERWMEERBRAEEN: WBFE
R/HECERBPBBIOKR - IR

Loans for which there is a significant
increase in credit risk; a significant
increase in credit risk is presumed if
interest and/or principal repayments
are more than 30 days past due.

FER/SRAEERBIEHOKX « K
ABRES M B o

Interest and/or principal repayments
are 90 days past due, borrowers with
bankruptcy or properties repossessed.

I 484 32 TE AR AT IR B HR ) 8 B AR
There is no reasonable expectation of
recovery on the delinquent interest
and/or principal repayments.

BRERFEHERBENER
Basis for recognition of
ECL provision

1218 A TR ERE B E5 18 (W0 & E M TE HR S B
L1218 A - Bl TE HA &5 18 1 H TE HR 4F AP
HE-)

12-month ECLs (Where the expected
lifetime of an asset is less than 12
months, expected losses are measured at
its expected lifetime.)

BEMFEREEER — ABELEERE

Lifetime ECLs — not credit impaired

BEMEREEER —EFERE

Lifetime ECLs — credit impaired

Asset is written off
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However, in certain cases, the Group will also consider a
loan to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
enhancements held by the Group.

Over the term of the loans, the Group accounts for its credit
risk by appropriately providing for ECLS on a timely basis.
In calculating the ECL rates, the Group considers historical
loss rates for each category of loan portfolio, and adjusts for
forward-looking macroeconomic data.

Loan portfolio at amortised cost consists of residential
mortgage portfolio, infrastructure loans and others which are
hire purchase receivable and microfinance loans.

The Group have adopted a range of economic cycle stages
for the assessment of mortgage loans and hire purchase
receivable by portfolio basis. Probabilities are assigned to
different economic cycle stages for the assessment. Based
on market outlook, Credit Committee members form a view
on the likelihood of each economic cycle stage. The default
probability is based on the weighted average of likelihood
of different economic cycle stage and the corresponding
default probability.

For infrastructure loans assessed by individual project
basis, the Group has selected a forward-looking view
based on outlook of global economy, relevant regional
economic indicators, specific industry data, and taking
into consideration of the impact of any special events.
Infrastructure loans are rated under various scenarios. The
probability table is set up to determine the probability of
each scenario under each forward-looking view.
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TREBRBHEKAIIRNE
RESNEERBRIHT o

R-B-MNFE+=A=+—8H
As at 31 December 2024

TR S5 2RI BE A9 Loan portfolio at

R
Stage 1

FET
HK$'000

EIEER
Stage 2
FET
HK$'000

FE=FE
Stage 3
THET
HK$'000

The following table contains an analysis of the credit risk
exposure of loan portfolio at amortised cost.

e
Total
FET
HK$'000

ERHEE amortised cost
IRE A Gross carrying amount
EERB\BEZRMS Residential mortgage
portfolio 2,807,202 3,844 5,501 2,816,547
EEER Infrastructure loans 7,290,487 - - 7,290,487
HAth Others 69,504 - 2,221 71,725
10,167,193 3,844 7,722 10,178,759
(B B Impairment allowance
FEIIBEFKHES Residential mortgage
portfolio (6,849) - - (6,849)
HEE% Infrastructure loans (52,940) - - (52,940)
HAih Others (259) - (1,594) (1,853)
(60,048) - (1,594) (61,642)
R & Carrying amount 10,107,145 3,844 6,128 10,117,117

R-Z—=

N—

F+=-—HA=+—H
As at 31 December 2023

TR S5 Ak 2RI MR A9 Loan portfolio at

—FEER
Stage 1
FBT
HK$'000

—FEER
Stage 2
T

HK$'000

E=[EE
Stage 3
FAT

HK$'000

B4EE amortised cost
VPEEZ" & Gross carrying amount
EERBEZRMS Residential mortgage
portfolio 2,795,317 5,042 4,501 2,804,860
EEER Infrastructure loans 7,361,398 - - 7,361,398
HAth Others 87,938 - 2,441 90,379
10,244,653 5,042 6,942 10,256,637
BB Impairment allowance
FEIIBEFKHES Residential mortgage
portfolio (2,134) - - (2,134)
HEs Infrastructure loans (22,555) - - (22,555)
EAth Others (184) - (1,347) (1,531)
(24,873) - (1,347) (26,220)
IREE Carrying amount 10,219,780 5,042 5,595 10,230,417
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J‘%‘:::@i-i—*ﬂ:-t——ﬁ The impairment allowance for loan portfolio as at 31
BB 2 AR A I (B 4 ER B D December 2024 reconciles to the opening impairment
@TﬁéﬁZﬁﬂEﬁDT _ allowance as follows:

E-RB EoREB 2 ok
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

TR TR TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-ZZ-=F—H—HH# Impairment allowance

B as at 1 January 2023 13,222 5 1,447 14,674
EEENETRER Loans purchased and repayment 10,033 - - 10,033
FEE““@J?J%FEE’J Net measurement of impairment

arising from changes of stage - (5) - (5)
Movement due to changes in

credit risk 1,618 = 217 1,835

Hﬂz@iﬁmﬁliﬁ% Recoveries of loans not
written-off = = (32) (32)
11,651 (5) 185 11,831
BRES KR Transfer to stage 2 = - - -
BYEE=KER Transfer to stage 3 = = - -
G Write-offs - = (285) (285)

RZE-_=F+_H Impairment allowance as at
=+—RRRERE 31 December 2023 (Note 20)

GEX) 24,873 - 1,347 26,220
EE% BT RER Loans purchased and repayment 27,402 - = 27,402
PRERE B AR Net measurement of impairment
WETEFE arising from changes of stage - 2 - 22
REERREZEMm Movement due to changes in
EENEE credit risk 7,773 - 264 8,037
e Bl KA 88 S Recoveries of loans not
written-off = = (39) (39)
35,175 22 225 35,422
BREFRR Transfer to stage 2 = - - _
BREE= IZE. B Transfer to stage 3 = 22) 2 -
HisH Write-offs - = - =

RZE-ME+ZA Impairment allowance
=t+-HWRERE as at 31 December

(B¥3E20) 2024 (Note 20) 60,048 = 1,594 61,642
EURERES Change in loan impairment
allowance 35,175 22 225 35,422
E?ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ@ Net change in loan commitment
BREEEE impairment allowance 2,211) - - 2,211)
W E B M E K Recoveries of loans
previously written-off - - (128) (128)

REZ-Z_NF Total change in impairment
+=A=t+—HiEE allowance recognised
REZREINHERE  in profit or loss for year
BB (i 14) ended 31 December 2024
(Note 14) 32,964 22 97 33,083

REE-Z-=F Total change in impairment
+ZA=+—BI%5E allowance recognised
PIERTERRRERSE  inprofit or loss for year
28 (e 14) ended 31 December 2023
(Note 14) 18,710 () (327) 18,378
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RZZEZME+=RA=+—H
MREREHESRERRFE
HIVDREREEIRNT

Cash and short-term funds

The impairment allowance for cash and short-
term funds as at 31 December 2024 reconciles to
the opening impairment allowance as follows:

FET
HK$'000

R-TE-_=F—F—BHRERERE Impairment allowance as at 1 January 2023 3,104
BIARIE R IER R R E R = E) Change in the impairment allowance recognised

(F¥=E14) in profit or loss during the period (Note 14) 1,043
RZEBE_=F+-_A=1+—HH Impairment allowance as at 31 December 2023

B (5L 16) (Note 16) 4,147
HRNRERERREREE Change in the impairment allowance recognised

(FfzE14) in profit or loss during the period (Note 14) 1,502
RZZE-_NE+=ZA=+—HH Impairment allowance as at

WERE (M 16) 31 December 2024 (Note 16) 5,649

REBEHENIRERS - AF
B{EA FRREDRITHED
FERIEEEFRMIRTT ©

REEEET — AR EERE -
&AM BN FER 5 F RN
BEAFEIEENEEREER
BRACE  WIRIRATHE R E
REBIEETTHE - AEER
BERENEREERE A%
B ARBE2HEHER 2 LA
ROBHEIR - E B RIS
O EER  BEETHREN
REGRREBEEREE
& o BHIEBE R R AT AT 1
BEREEME -

According to the approved investment guidelines,
the Group can only place deposits with note-
issuing banks or banks with a certain minimum
credit rating.

The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the external credit rating of each
counterparty and the corresponding historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking macroeconomic data to determine the
ECLs for impairment allowance. The Group has
selected a range of possible economic outcomes,
based on outlook of global economy and relevant
economic indicators, taking into consideration
the impact of any special events, as the most
suitable views to the portfolio. A probability rate
table is set up to determine the probability rate
for the forward-looking views.
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All of these financial assets are considered to be
low risk in view of all deposit banks are rated at
investment grade by rating agencies, and thus
the impairment allowance recognised during the
period was limited to 12-month ECLs for stage 1.
During the year, the increase in the impairment
allowance was mainly due to the increase in
deposits with banks and there was no transfer to
stages 2 and 3.

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December
2023, the minimum acceptable short-term
credit ratings are A-2 (Standard and Poor's), P-2
(Moody's) and F-2 (Fitch's).

Investment securities

Investment securities are composed of debt
securities and investment funds, while debt
securities comprise conventional debt securities
and infrastructure-related bonds.

According to the approved investment
guidelines, conventional debt securities can only
be invested with a certain minimum credit rating.
The proportion of investments according to rating
categories is monitored and reviewed by ALCO.
Investment in infrastructure-related bonds which
are secured by project assets and other typical
security package for infrastructure financing, is
governed and monitored by IFSIC.



RIFINERE &R RS R RT AR
(RELR BakEE)RE
RINEHME B R R B IR L AR
RBEETH AR - T
REBRMREEE F LT ER
BT - MFBHARH LB
ERMBITHE  MIRAESE

The table below presents an analysis of debt
securities by rating classification as at the end
of the reporting period, based on external credit
rating agency’s ratings (Standard and Poor’s,
Moody's and Fitch’s) or internal ratings based
on the rating models provided by external credit
rating agency. In the absence of issue-specific

TARGERE MW ° ratings, the ratings for the issuers are reported.
UAFERE R AR A
STAHMEE JIIRMEHRRE
KEHNEHRE Investment
Investment  securities at
securities at amortised Fob ]
FVOCI cost Total
R-ZE-_WME+=-A=+—H FTHERT TART THET
As at 31 December 2024 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA /Aaa AAA/Aaa 182,621 665,399 848,020
AA-Z AA+/ A3 ZE Aal AA-to AA+/Aa3 to Aa1 2,745,410 6,790,367 9,535,777
A-EA+/A3EAT A-to A+/A3 t0 A1 793,790 7,153,171 7,946,961
BBB* BBB* - 501,383 501,383
axE Total 3,721,821 15,110,320 18,832,141
3 HEiZEBES @ Infrastructure-related bonds

AT EZE TR SHRK AR

B FIRHEHIEE

A B AEIR Investment

Investment securities at
securities at amortised Rk
FVOCI cost Total
R_E-_=F+_-_A=+—H FHTT FHT FHET
As at 31 December 2023 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA Aaa AAA/Aaa = 395,913 395,913
AA-Z AA+/Aa3 E Aal AA-t0 AA+/Aa3 t0 Aa1 1,622,326 3,878,862 5,501,188
A-EA+/A3ZEAT A- 10 A+/A3 t0 A1 887,211 10,303,881 11,191,092
Fak ] Total 2,509,537 14,578,656 17,088,193
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The following table contains an analysis of the
credit risk exposure of investment securities
for which impairment allowance is recognised.

=REER o There was no transfer to stages 2 and 3 during
the period.
E—RE ERE E=RE wEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
R-ZB-ME+=-A=+—H TERT TERT TERT FTHET
As at 31 December 2024 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
IREEE Gross carrying amount
— DRAFEEZ{ A —FVOC
Hith 2 HE = 3,721,821 - - 3,721,821
— JREE S R AN B R — amortised cost 15,110,320 - - 15,110,320
B Impairment allowance
— B ARTIIR — amortised cost (4,850) - = (4,850)
IREE Carrying amount
— ARAFEZEFA  —FVOCI
Hih 2 HE = 3,721,821 - - 3,721,821
— JR SE K AT iR — amortised cost 15,105,470 - - 15,105,470
18,827,291 - - 18,827,291
E—EER E B E=PEER 45
NERCH Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RZZEZ=F+-fA=+—8H FHET FET FHET FHT
As at 31 December 2023 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
IRERE Gross carrying amount
—UAFEEEA —FVOCl
H 2 EKE 2,509,537 - - 2,509,537
— RE R AR — amortised cost 14,578,656 - - 14,578,656
RE R Impairment allowance
— TR SER AT IR — amortised cost (4,677) = = @,671)
IREE Carrying amount
—UAFEEEA —FVOCl
H 2 EKE 2,509,537 - - 2,509,537
— RE R ATIIR — amortised cost 14,573,985 - - 14,573,985
17,083,522 - - 17,083,522
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BEREZHIRAT

The impairment allowance for investment securities
as at 31 December 2024 reconciles to the opening
impairment allowance as follows:

E—MEE EZIEE B HE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

TAT TAT TAT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-Z-=%—HF—H
R BB B

Impairment allowance
as at 1 January 2023

— AAFEZ{EEA —FVOC
Hih 2 mEz= 398 - - 398
— REHERATR  —amortised cost 4,582 - - 4,582
HARNERERN Change in the impairment
EREE allowance recognised in
profit or loss during the
period
— AFEZETA  —FVOCI (Note 14)
H 2 E s
(PFigE14) 477 - = 477
— IR R AT — amortised cost
(BHizE14) (Note 14) 89 = - 89
R-ZZE-_=%F+=H Impairment allowance
=+—BERHMERE asat31December 2023
— AAFEEZ{EEA —FVOC
Hih2mz= 875 - - 875
— IR SR AR — amortised cost
(BzE21(0) (Note 21(c)) 4,671 - - 4,671
HRR B R R Change in the impairment
REREE allowance recognised in
profit or loss during the
period
— UAFEZ{LET A —FVOCI (Note 14)
H b2 mEilas
(FiFaE14) 147 - - 147
— B ABIE  —amortised cost
(PffE14) (Note 14) 179 - - 179
R-Z-m&£+=H Impairment allowance
=+—HHRMERHE asat 31 December
2024
— UAFEEL — Fvocl
STAHEMEZmEKE 1,022 - - 1,022
— REGERARGIE  — amortised cost
(BiFEE21(c)) (Note 21(c)) 4,850 - - 4,850
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() Investment securities at amortised cost

Investment securities at amortised cost
include listed and unlisted debt securities. The
impairment allowance on investment securities
at amortised cost as at 31 December 2024
reconciles to the opening impairment allowance
as follows:

FTExT
HK$'000

R-E-=F—H—BHFERAE Impairmentallowance as at 1 January 2023 4,582
HARERERRREREEE Change in the impairment allowance
(FFEE14) recognised in profit or loss during the
period (Note 14) 89
R-ZBE-_=F+_"A=+—HH Impairment allowance as at 31 December
BB (FTEE21(c)) 2023 (Note 21(c)) 4,671
HINR B ER AR EREE Change in the impairment allowance
(PfizE14) recognised in profit or loss during the
period (Note 14) 179
R-ZZE-_HWFE+=-A=1+—HH Impairment allowance as at 31
WER M (M 21(c) December 2024 (Note 21(c)) 4,850

AEEDEY —EEE
B ZEEENEE
RXZHFHOINBEERF
R ABDEEFR(RE
SMNERIE B AT AR R IR
M RFARIEEIAETT) RAEME
MBEEEBELE
YRBATHEERBRE
BBETHE  ARE
HERBNREBERES
B AREERERR
B = AR E 1R
% WERBEMERE
HHEER EEET
AREMEEERSE R
HAERBEERL 2l
EMERABAE LS
EEEME o

The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the external credit rating or
internal credit rating (based on rating model
provided by external credit rating agency) of each
counterparty and the corresponding historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking macroeconomic data to determine the
ECLs for impairment allowance. The Group has
selected a range of possible economic outcomes,
based on outlook of global economy and relevant
economic indicators, taking into consideration
the impact of any special events, as the most
suitable views to the portfolio. A probability rate
table is set up to determine the probability rate
for the forward-looking views.

294  The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2024



(ii)

Fr B 12 8 55 B 7R 1| R /9
BHEREMEERRBR
—E-_@mFEF+ A
=+ —HHERALEKR
RIEM ARBE=FT
—HE+=ZA=+—H
I 4F FE R R (B B
ERNE —RBERTHI2
BREHEEBE - F
W OREEEE T E
AR R IR X AR B IR
B3R B BHIE AT EL o

HUAFEREHAR
AR FFRE

AAFEETAEM
EHERENELFERER
FLEMRIFELMEEE
FeRZEZWF+=
B=1+—HHNUAFE
BLET A H b 2 Wk
B 7B 518 B R (B B e B
HAVIRERELIRAT ¢

(ii)

All of these investment securities carried at
amortised cost are considered with no significant
increase in credit risk as at 31 December 2024,
and thus the impairment allowance recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2024 was limited
to 12-month ECLs under Stage 1. During the
year, the increase in the impairment allowance
was mainly due to the increase in investment
securities at amortised cost.

Investment securities at FVOCI

Investment securities at FVOCI include listed
and unlisted debt securities. The impairment
allowance on investment securities at FVOCI as
at 31 December 2024 reconciles to the opening
impairment allowance as follows:

FHT
HK$°000

R-EBE_=%—HF—H

TA EL A 2 T W o e 8 M O L R £
HIATME s iR MR E B (R

(F&E14)

Impairment allowance recognised

RZE_=F+-_A=+—H
R E b 2 B S FE R R R B B
HIRRIE S ERE R E R EE S

(fizE14)

R-ZE_WFE+=-A=+—H
REM2E W SRR E R E

in OCl as at 1 January 2023 398
Change in the impairment allowance

recognised in profit or loss during the

period (Note 14) 477
Impairment allowance recognised

in OCI as at 31 December 2023 875
Change in the impairment allowance

recognised in profit or loss during the

period (Note 14) 147
Impairment allowance recognised

in OCI as at 31 December 2024 1,022
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The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the external credit rating of each
counterparty and the corresponding historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking macroeconomic data to determine the
ECLs for impairment allowance. The Group has
selected a range of possible economic outcomes,
based on outlook of global economy and relevant
economic indicators, taking into consideration
the impact of any special events, as the most
suitable views to the portfolio. A probability rate
table is set up to determine the probability rate
for the forward-looking views.

All of these financial assets are considered to
be low risk in view of all investment securities
at FVOCI are rated at investment grade by rating
agencies, and thus the impairment allowance
recognised for the year ended 31 December
2024 was limited to 12-month ECLS under Stage 1.
During the year, the increase in the impairment
allowance was mainly due to the increase in
investment securities at FVOCI.

In preparing the ECL, Credit Committee had formed
three forward-looking views (that is good, normal and
bad) based on market conditions, real economies
and a designated period of historical macroeconomic
variables to formulate the probability rating for three
scenarios (that is optimistic, base and pessimistic)
under each forward-looking view. The good view
assumed a high probability of optimistic scenario
outcome whereas the bad view assumed a high
probability of pessimistic scenario outcome. A
designated period of historical data that covers peaks
and troughs of economic cycles were selected to
ensure the selection of scenarios stays unbiased.
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The weightings assigned to each economic
scenario, base, pessimistic and optimistic as at
31 December 2024, were maintained at the same
weightings as at 31 December 2023 in view of
market conditions, for the Group’s infrastructure
loans, deposits and debt investments, of which
the impairment allowance is provided based on
credit ratings (either external or internal) and
forms the majority of total impairment allowance.

Sensitivity analysis of ECL

The Group applies three alternative macro-
economic scenarios (base, pessimistic and
optimistic scenarios) on the forward-looking
views to reflect probability-weighted range
of possible future outcomes in estimating
ECL. The table below provides approximate
levels of provisions of impairment under the
normal, bad and good forward-looking views
for the infrastructure loans, deposits and debt
investment portfolio of the Group:

2024 2023
EHREHEE EHRBHEE

EESEHLHE EEEH SR
Amount Amount
change from

change from

the reported ECL the reported ECL

FH&xT FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
#hn, (i) #hn,/Crid)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)

TEEEEEE : ECL:
— EREX — normal view (32,965) (16,541)
— RrEE — bad view - _
— RIFEE — good view (39,200) (20,078)
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(H ERFTFAFEARFREME (H  Maximum exposures to credit risk of the financial
EREEMRERT AEES assets of the Group before taking into account of
B EN RS =B R EER collateral held or other credit enhancements are
EARFENES - equal to their gross carrying amounts.
@ EEREER (g Credit-impaired loans
2024 2023
THET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
WEERAES AR Gross impaired loan portfolio 2,221 2 441
BB EFRE Allowance for loan impairment in
BiE— F=EER respect of such advances — Stage 3 (1,594) (1,347)
627 1,094
WoZE-—pmEt+r—A=+—08 There were no credit-impaired loans for the
R-_E-—=&+-A=+— residential mortgage portfolio as at 31 December
H RREERELEE 2024 and 31 December 2023. Allowance for loan
B AE S o B R E B impairment is assessed after taking into account
B DEERRAEASSES of collateral held for impaired loans.
@ -
y  KEmE (n)  Repossessed properties
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The Group obtained assets by taking possession
of collateral held as security.

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as
practicable, with the proceeds used to reduce
the outstanding indebtedness and are classified
in the statement of financial position within “Other
assets”. If excess funds arise after repayment
of the outstanding indebtedness, they are
distributed to the beneficiaries of the assets
under the applicable laws.
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3.3. Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the
risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate,
currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to
general and specific market movements and changes in the
level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest
rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity
prices. The Group’s exposures to market risk primarily arise
from the interest rate management of the entity’s financial
instruments of different repricing characteristics, or from the
net exposure of the foreign currency denominated financial
instruments. The Group hedges a major proportion of its
existing interest rate risk of the fixed-rate bond issuance
using fair value hedges in the form of interest rate swaps
by swapping into floating-rate funding to better match the
floating-rate assets. The Group also hedges the net exposure
of the foreign-currency denominated debts issued and
assets by the use of cross-currency swaps as fair value
hedges and economic hedges respectively.

The management of market risk is principally undertaken
by the Treasury Department using risk limits approved
by the Board of Directors. Strategies on interest rate
risk management, financing, hedging, investments are
formulated by ALCO. Regular meetings are held to review
the latest conditions in the financial markets and the asset-
liability portfolio mix. The Treasury Department is responsible
for monitoring financial market movements and executing
transactions in the cash, derivatives, debt and investment
markets in accordance with the strategies laid down by
ALCO. The middle office monitors the compliance of risk
limits and performs stress tests to assess the potential size
of losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The results
of the stress tests are reviewed by ALCO.
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A principal part of the interest rate risk management is to
monitor the sensitivity of projected net interest income under
different interest rate scenarios and to mitigate the negative
impact through hedging operations. A 20 basis points parallel
downward shift of the interest rate curve as at 31 December
2024 would increase the future net interest income for the
next twelve months by less than HK$1 million (2023: less
than HK$1 million) and decrease by less than HK$1 million
(2023: less than HK$1 million) for a similar upward parallel
shift.

As at 31 December 2024, if interest rates at that date had
experienced a 20 basis points parallel shift downwards, profit
for the year would have been higher by around HK$30 million
(2023: HK$39 million) and the fair value reserve would have
been higher by around HK$20 million (2023: HK$14 million) as
at 31 December 2024. If interest rates had experienced a 20
basis points parallel shift upwards, profit for the year would
have been lower by HK$30 million (2023: HK$39 million) and
the fair value reserve would have been lower by around
HK$19 million (2023: HK$14 million).

As at 31 December 2024, with all other variables held
constant, if the Hong Kong dollars had weakened by 100
price interest points against the US dollars, profit for the
year would have been around HK$14 million higher (2023:
HK$10 million). Conversely, if the Hong Kong dollars had
strengthened by 100 price interest points against the US
dollars, profit for the year would have been around HK$14
million lower (2023: HK$10 million).

As at 31 December 2024, with all other variables held
constant, if the Hong Kong dollars had weakened by 100
price interest points against foreign currencies other than US
dollars, profit for the year would have been higher by HK$0.2
million (2023: HK$0.5 million). Conversely, if the Hong Kong
dollars had strengthened by 100 price interest points against
foreign currencies other than US dollars, profit for the year
would have been lower by HK$0.2 million (2023: HK$0.5
million).
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The Group is exposed to financial risk arising from changes
in the rate of return on the placements with the Exchange
Fund, which is set annually (the placements include
Investment Portfolio which rate of return will reset in January
while the return of Long-Term Growth Portfolio will only be
available in March in the following year). As at 31 December
2024, if there were an increase/decrease of 0.1% in the
current year rate of return, it is estimated that, with all
other variables held constant, the Group's income from the
placements with the Exchange Fund would have increased/
decreased by approximately HK$38 million (2023: HK$34
million).

As at 31 December 2024, with all other variables held
constant, if the price of exchange-traded funds had
decreased by 1%, profit for the year would have been around
HK$0.1 million lower (2023: HK$0.1 million). Conversely, if the
price of exchange-traded funds had increased by 1%, profit
for the year would have been around HK$0.1 million higher
(2023: HK$0.1 million).

The increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates, exchange rates and equity prices for a 12-month
period.

An analysis showing the impact of interest rate curve
movement on profit before tax and equity driven by
insurance and reinsurance contracts is included in Note
3.3(0).

(@) Foreign currency exposure

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations
in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rate on
its financial position and cash flows. The Board sets
allowable currencies for investment purposes. The
ALCO sets limits on the currency exposure that may be
undertaken, which is monitored daily. At funding side,
the multi-currency feature of the MTN programme
enables the Group to issue notes in major currencies,
including US dollars, renminbi, Singapore dollars, British
pounds, Australian dollars, Euro and Japanese yen. All
foreign currency-denominated debts are hedged into
Hong Kong dollars or US dollars.
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The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency exchange rate risk. Included in the
tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,
categorised by currency.

B

HKD
TER
HK$'000

xR
usD
TER
HK$'000

Hgshe
Other foreign
currencies
TEx
HK$'000

et
Total
TEx
HK$'000

R-ZE-MF As at 31 December 2024
T=A=t-8H
SHEE Financial assets
BekEHEs Cash and short-term funds 51,641,868 992,467 12,8471 52,647,182
JEMR R B R BE R Interest and remittance
receivables 2,200,462 741,030 279,887 3,221,379
fTESRTA Derivative financial instruments 664,618 - - 664,618
BRREAESEERE  Loans with 100% guarantee
MER from the Government 82,782,698 - - 82,782,698
ERAAFE Loan portfolio, net
—URTEREGA  —FPL
B 2,596,858 - - 2,596,858
— IRE R AR — amortised cost 3,539,734 5,511,228 1,066,155 10,117,117
BHEE Investment securities:
—NDATEZGA  —FVOCl
A 2E KR 494,313 2,159,566 1,067,942110 3,721,821
—URATEREFIA  —FWPL
B 1,318 8,456 - 9,774
— REHIATIR — amortised cost 1,846,188 12,277,696 981,586 A 15,105,470
INEESTFH Placements with the Exchange
Fund 49,244,684 = = 49,244,684
ReREMEE Deposits and other assets 71,423 308,900 88 380,411
SHEELE Total financial assets 195,084,164 21,999,343 3,408,505 220,492,012
SRER Financial liabilities
JERTFIE Interest payable 2,454,023 612,558 275,743 3,342,324
EFTIRIE « JEAtRET  Accounts payable, accrued
REMARE expenses and other liabilities 2,210,375 1,922,291 - 4,132,666
fTEEMTA Derivative financial instruments 1,740,649 - - 1,740,649
BRIERES Debt securities issued 103,576,603 26,302,558  18,420,475** 148,299,636
SHEEAE Total financial liabilities 109,981,650 28,837,407 18,696,218 157,515,275
FRFE Net position? 60,992,512 (6,838,064)  (15,287,713) 38,866,735
BEBERINF Off-balance sheet net notional
BEREY position® (34,136,902) 18,058,822 15,241,661 (836,419)
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Amounts included cash and short-term funds in Australian
dollars of HK$12 million and renminbi of HK$0.4 million.

Amounts included loan portfolio, net at amortised cost in
Australian dollars of HK$1.1 billion.

Amounts included investment securities at FVOCI in renminbi
of HK$1.1 billion.

Amounts included investment securities at amortised cost in
renminbi of HK$0.5 billion and Euro of HK$0.4 billion.

Fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.

Amounts included debt securities issued in Australian dollars of
HK$0.6 billion and renminbi of HK$17.6 billion, fully hedged into
Hong Kong dollars.

“Net position” represents the difference between total assets
and total liabilities.

"Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the
difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements and their
fair values.
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BT

HKD
FET
HK$'000

e
usb
THL
HK$'000

HAoh&
Other foreign
currencies
TET
HK$'000

Total
TET
HK$'000

RZB-=% As at 31 December 2023
+-A=+-H
SRHEE Financial assets
BekEfge Cash and short-term funds 49,456,858 2,326,572 37,6217 51,821,051
JEMH B K [ 50 Interest and remittance
receivables 1,756,009 1,123,738 490,631 3,370,378
fTHEERMTA Derivative financial instruments 828,542 - - 828,542
B2 AD BEE  Loans with 100% guarantee from
HER the Government 97,362,356 - = 97,362,356
ERHEAFE Loan portfolio, net
—UAFEEEGIA  —FVPL
B& 1,907,045 - = 1,907,045
— B ERANTIR  —amortised cost 3,523,735 5,520,608 1,186,074/1 10,230,417
BHEE Investment securities:
—UATEELEA  —FVOCl
Hip 2 - 1,785,727 723,810 2,509,537
—UATESLGTA  —FVPL
Bs 1,308 8,562 = 9,870
— B ERCRTIR  —amortised cost 3,709,195 9,378,134 1,486,656MA 14,573,985
INEEESTFR Placements with the
Exchange Fund 34,070,393 = = 34,070,393
BeREMEE Deposits and other assets 1,050,545 523,531 91 1,574,167
SREELS Total financial assets 193,665,986 20,666,872 3,924,883 218,257,741
SRIBE Financial liabilities
&2 Interest payable 2,153,898 1,057,906 472,611 3,684,415
FERTIRIE - FEETRIS K Accounts payable, accrued
HiaE expenses and other liabilities 3,067,433 1,040,036 - 4,107,469
TESRIE Derivative financial instruments 2,825,522 - - 2,825,522
BRIEEES Debt securities issued 105,581,434 30,424,259* 25,712,804%% 161,718,497
TRARLESE Total financial liabilities 113,628,287 32,522,201 26,185,415 172,335,903
R FE Net position® 61,242,817 (11,855,329)  (22,260,532) 27,126,956
EEERINE Off-balance sheet net notional
LEEAY positiont (44,000,532) 20,124,483 22,221,762 (1,654,287)
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A Amounts included cash and short-term funds in Australian
dollars of HK$34 million and renminbi of HK$4 million.

AN Amounts included loan portfolio, net at amortised cost in
Australian dollars of HK$1.2 billion.

AAN- Amounts included investment securities at amortised cost in
renminbi of HK$1.5 billion.

S Fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.

* Amounts included debt securities issued in Australian dollars of
HK$1.2 billion and renminbi of HK$24.3 billion, fully hedged into
Hong Kong dollars.

# “Net position” represents the difference between total assets
and total liabilities.

# “Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the
difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements and their
fair values.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value
interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group takes on exposure to the
effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates on both its fair value and cash flow risks.
Interest margins may increase as a result of such
changes but may reduce or create losses in the event
that unexpected movements arise. The ALCO sets
limits on the level of interest rate mismatch that may
be undertaken, which is monitored regularly.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to
interest rate risks. Included in the tables are the assets
and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the
earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates. The
carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to reduce the Group's
exposure to interest rate movements, are included
under the heading “Non-interest bearing”.
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—-@ANE  ZEANL —-ENE
ZZfA E-f ik FitE
—fiARn Over Over Over BENE Non-

Upto 1monthto 3monthsto  1yearto Over interest ]
1month 3 months 1year 5 years 5 years hearing Total
T Thn Tn Thn TEn Tén Tén
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZE-MET=A=1-A As at 31 December 2024

SREE Financial assets
ReREHES Cash and short-term funds 24,421,783 27,881,330 - - - 344,069 52,647,182
JEUHIE RER Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 339 3221319
fiEeRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 664,618 664,618
BRREBSBEROER Loans wit 100% guarantee
from the Government 82,782,698 - - - - - 82,782,698
ERESFE Loan portfolio, net
—UATERHAER —FVPL 225,843 - - 33,034 2,337,981 - 2,596,858
— B SR — amortised cost 5,383,365 2,077,927 2,062,443 340 593,042 - 10,117,117
EFRE Investment securiies:
—ATERGIALZARE  —FVOC 212,175 233,278 592,321 2,526,782 97,265 - 3721821
—WATERGH AR —FVPL - - - - - 9774 9,774
— R AT — amortised cost 504,668 1,285,373 2,169,752 8,698,347 2,447,330 - 15,105,470
NEESRH Placements with the
Exchange Fund - - - - - 49,244,684 49,244,684
REREMEE Deposits and other assets 308,854 - - - - 71,557 380,411
SREESE Total financial assets 113,899,386 31477908 4824516 11258503 5475618 53,556,081 220,492,012
SREE Financial liabilities
FEfTFI8 Interest payable - - - - - 334234 3342324

FERTIRIE - ERtEI RAMEE  Accounts payable, accrued
expenses and other liabiliies 2,530,790 - - -

1601876 4,132,666

fTEERIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1740649 1,740,649
BEERES Debt securities issued 4209731 25292645 34,290,741 77,962,455 6,544,064 - 148,299,636
SRABLE Total financial liabilities 6,740,521 25,292,645 34,290,741 77,962,455 6,544,064 6,684,849 157,515,275
FlEsRERDESE Total interest sensitivity gap* 107,158,865 6,185,263  (29,466,225) (66,703,952) (1,068,446

HEGETE(BASEMLELE)  Interest rate derivatives (notional
amounts of net position) (9,833,311) (12,905912)  8,088484 11,677,601 2,136,719

* Rt APTE SR T AHB T & Before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments
BB FETCENTE - on the debt securities issued.

306 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2024



—EE

E-E ERf A&
—f@ARRA Qver RENE Non-
Upto  Tmonthto  3monthsto 1yearto Over Interest
1 month 3months 1 year 5years 5Yyears bearing Total
T T T T Thr ThL
HKS'000 HKS'001 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS'000
WZBZ=F+tZR=1-H As at 31 December 2023
SREE Financial assets
ReREES Cash and short-term funds 16,105,303 35,279,605 - - - 136,143 51,821,051
A8 RER Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 3,310,378 3,370,378
fELBIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 828,542 828,512
BRREFH BERNER Loans with 100% guarantee
from the Government 97,362,3% - - - - - 97,3623%
EFAAEE Loan portfolio, net
—WATEE A AER —FVPL 123982 = = 10478 1772625 = 1907,045
— B AT iR — amortised cost 5,760,482 2,705,732 1,150,741 43 573019 = 10,230417
BARRE Investment securities:
—UATER(GEARR2ENE  —ROC = 93,768 86,418 2,054,381 214970 = 2,509,537
—NATER G ARR —FVPL - - - - - 9870 9870
— BB AT IR — amortised cost 78,081 651,720 5,165,533 5,504,348 3,174,303 = 14,573,985
NEESRR Placements with the
Exchange Fund - - - - - 34070393 34070393
RERAMEE Deposits and other assets 523485 - - - - 1,050,682 1,574,167
SHEELE Total financial assets 119,953,649 38,770825 6,402,692 7,569,650 5,794,917 39,766,008 218,257,741
HAR Financial liabiltes
T HIS, Interest payable - - - - - 3,684,415 3684415
FERIRE - EsrBI RAMEE  Accounts payable, accrued
expenses and other liabiltties 2,761,647 - - - - 1,345,822 4,107,469
fTEeRIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 280552 2825522
BETERER Debt securities issued 2,833208 50,261,710 55,784,241 49,158,797 3,680,541 - 161718497
PHAREE Total financial liabilities 5,994,855 50,261,710 95,784,241 49,158,797 3,680,541 7855759 172335903
HegEERDEE: Total interest sensitivity gap* 114,358,794 (11490885  (49.381549)  (41,589,147) 2114376
MEGETE(BESEMLEEE)  Interest rate derivatives (notional
amounts of net position) (6499,036) (15610349 5057,665 15,596,706 (199.273)
* Rt ALTES B T AN 31T * Before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments

BEBHFEESHNTE - on the debt securities issued.
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€ RERBREEANIEER (c) Interest rate risk on insurance and reinsurance
contracts
LA D4 TR AT B HAth & 2R The following analysis is performed for reasonably
BAERBER T EHER possible movements in interest rate curve with all
SIRFRE B EET - BRER other variables held constant, showing the impact on
b & BRER & A BB AT &R profit before tax and equity driven by insurance and
MEIERH L © reinsurance contracts.

ARHBITLEB/(TB): HERBiA B R
HEHA  BAGIGRE (BfFE (IR
BAINYE RRINYE RRINYE RRINYE

Impact on

profit  Impact on
Parallel upward/ Impacton  hefore tax equity  Impacton
(downward) shift of profit net of gross of equity net of
interest rate curve; before tax reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance
THET TET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

25 26 25bp 511,664 432,302 659,888 432,302
(25) 225 (25) bp (534,788) (450,211) (695,738) (450,211)

MERERFITLE,/(TH) : HEBA ot e B3 el
HEBAT AT GRS (BB (ks
HMNTE RRINFE FRIOFE RRIWFE

Impact on

profit Impact on
Parallel upward/ Impact on before tax equity Impact on
(downward) shift of profit net of gross of  equity net of
interest rate curve: beforetax  reinsurance  reinsurance  reinsurance
T THT THT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

25 [EEE 25bp 410,267 326,945 502,231 326,945
(25) (E A2 (25) bp (429,464) (340,548) (530,681) (340,548)
ERETHZERSEERR The impact shown in the above table covers entire
HE ER—Ho(FEARZL insurance portfolio, part of which, mainly reverse
EZRBEZ)RAFERASE mortgage loans, are held in the loan portfolio of the

ENEFHEAFEES o Group at fair value.
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3.4. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk of the Group not being
able to repay its payment obligations or to fund committed
purchases of loans. Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring
the actual inflows and outflows of funds on a daily basis and
projecting longer-term inflows and outflows of funds across a
full maturity spectrum. The Group has established diversified
funding sources to support the growth of its business and
the maintenance of a balanced portfolio of liabilities. Sources
of liquidity are regularly reviewed by ALCO.

(@ Undiscounted cash flows analysis

The tables below present cash flows payable by
the Group under non-derivative financial liabilities,
derivative financial liabilities that will be settled on
a net basis, derivative financial instruments that will
be settled on gross basis, and insurance liabilities by
remaining contractual maturities as at the end of the
reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the tables
are the projected contractual undiscounted cash flows
including future interest, claims and benefits payments
as appropriate on the basis of their earliest possible
contractual maturity. The Group’s derivatives include
interest rate swaps that will be settled on net basis;
Cross currency swaps and currency forwards that will
be settled on gross basis.
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() ETETERERAGRE) ()  Non-derivative cash inflows/(outflows)

=EARL -ENE
2-F BRE
—fBARK Oover Over Over RENE

Upto  1monthto 3 monthsto 1 year to Over &g
1month 3 months 1year 5 years 5 years Total
TiEn TiEn TR TiEn TiEn T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

W-Z2-MmE+=A=+-H  Asat31December 2024

af Liabilities
EMRE - EiRIR Accounts payable,

EfaE accrued expenses

and other liabilities

—REAE — lease liablties (4,648) (9.297) @183 (131327) (5757)  (192,3866)
RRaHEE Instrance contract iabilities (132,437)  (244,006)  (1,112,028)  (5,645880) (27,442,513) (34,576,864)
BREANAR Reinsurance contract liabilties (1,115) (2,233) (6,256) (54156)  (275:869)  (339,629)
BRIERES Debt securities issued

— 58D — principal portion (3,912,281) (23,421,321) (35,032,647) (79,729,622)  (6,697,163) (148,793,034)
— 55 — nterest portion (198971)  (1,899,583)  (3491,350)  (6784,746)  (1,628,996) (14,003,646)

(4,249,452)  (25,576,440) (39,684,118)  (92,345,731)  (36,050,298) (197,906,039)

A —Ep b
fa ZhE
—f@AR Over Over Over RENE

Upto Tmonthto  3monthsto 1yearto QOver
1 month 3months 1 year 5years 5years
AT T TAT AL TEL
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

W=B-=%+-A=+—H  Asat31December 2023

Ak Liabilities
EMEE R R Accounts payable,

iR accrued expenses

and other liabilities

—HEAR — ease liabilities (2,3%9) (8716) (34,671) (147 456) (28783) (217,984)
ReatERE Insurance contract liabilities 1,209 (272,381) (745731)  (4109907)  (20584,627)  (25711943)
BREBAVAR Reinsurance contract liabilities 4,570 (987) (4,380) (21,693 (65,158) (87,648)
BETELES Debt securities issued

X — principal portion (1834,661)  (46,322548)  (57,514,499) (51,818 468) (3870511)  (161,360,687)

—HEHA — interest portion (126337 (2380489 (3430233 (3684544 (1351395  (10,97299)

(1957,577)  (48,981,627)  (61,729514)  (59,782,068)  (25,900,474)  (198,351,260)
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iy PTEIERERACRit) (i) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)

—fEANE  ZERME —ENE
Z=f@R B-F gt
AR Over over Over RENE

Upto  1monthto 3 monthsto 1 year to Over ok
1month 3 months 1year 5 years 5 years Total
TER TAn TAR TER AR TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-ZB-mE+=F=+-8  Asat31December 2024

BT R ELEEH Derivative financial
ITESRTA: instrument settled:
—BREHRE —0n net basis (193,100) (3,649) 68,577 (205,674) (18,883) (352,729)
—BEaE — 0N gross hasis
ikt Total outflow (2,612,157)  (9,358,072) (14,355,600) (37,833,127)  (4,442,210) (68,601,166)
MALE Total inflow 2,399,452 9,241,245 14,218,156 37,971,719 4323924 68,154,496

(405,805) (120,476) (68,867) (67,082) (137,169) (799,399)

—Ep
A 5 E¥ik
—fAARA Over Over Over

Upto  1Tmonthto  3monthsto 1year to 0
1 month 3months 1year 5years 5years Total

AT TiEn TR

] AL TR TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'0

00 HKS'000 HKS'000

WZZE-=F+-A=t—-H  Asat31December 2023

BTSIRELEH Derivative financial
ITESRTE: instrument settled:
—FERE — on et basis (160,101) 8970 3622 (57,049) (35.299) 124,805
— Rk —on gross hasis
iojurtic Total outflow (980,472 (30720341)  (11,389.820)  (32.812,102) (2870885 (78,773,620)
MABE Total inflow 892,614 30,301,411 11,047,507 32,766,483 2883 774 77,891,789

(247,959) (427,900) 4391 (102,668) (22410 (757,026)
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EH A D

TRREREHREALHIH
BRGEE 2WBRAEER
B B2 -

(b) (b)  Maturity analysis

The table below analyses the assets and liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date.

R=B-mET=A=+-H

As at 31 December 2024

ISR
Repayable

on demand
TET
HK$'000

—-f8RRk
Upto
1 month
TET
HK$'000

-BANE
Z=fA
Over

1 month to
3 months
T
HK$'000

ZEANL
2-F

Over

3 months to
1 year
T
HK$'000

—ENE
E3ik3
Over
1yearto
5 years
T
HK$'000

IFENULE
Over

5 years
THT
HK$'000

ERH
Undated
TR
HK$'000

aE
Total
TR
HK$'000

EE Assets
REREHAS (188) Cash and short-term funds (gross) 913,754 23,854,077 27,885,000 - - - - 52,652,831
BRRERS BERNER Loans with 100% guarantee
from the Government 42,060 1179226 1,803,777 8,549,097 41,141,100 30,067,438 - 82,782,698
EFaES Loan portfolio
—NATEE(GARR —FVPL - - - - - - 2,596,858 2,596,858
— REH AR (88) — amortised cost (gross) 312 126069 118207 632746 3,811,014  5490,076 335 10,178,759
BHRE Investment securities
—NAFERIALMRERE —ROC - 155098 - 592321 2877137 97,265 - 371821
— WATES( A ER —FVPL - - - - - - 9,774 9,774
— B ATR (88) — amortised cost (gross) - 232882 8584 2,292,098 9,823,178 2,753,578 - 15,110,320
SHEESHEH Placements with the Exchange Fund - - - 377157 14,743,389 30,730,138 - 49,244,684
956,126 25,547,352 29,815,568 15,837,419 72,395818 69,138,495 2,606,967 216,297,745
1 Liabilities
BRIERES Debt securities issued - 3,909,800 23373275 35090701 79,381,796 6,544,064 - 148,299,636
- 3909800 23373275 35090701 79,381,796 6,544,064 - 148,299,636
E
ESikS
HE3E  —fERR Over  REMNE
Repayable Upto  Tmonthto 3monthsto  1yearto Over ERH it
on demand Tmonth  3month 1year 5 years 5years Undated Total
BT THT BT T T T i TAn
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
RZE-=F+-F=1-H As at 31 December 2023
AE Assets
BeRRHES (88) Cash and short-term funds (gross) 118772 15413817 35,282,609 - - - - 51825198
BRRERABEROER Loans with 100% guarantee
from the Government 46,102 1,075,873 1816511 9651688 49444714 35327468 - 97,362,35%
EZa4 Loan portfolio
—RATEE( AR —FVPL - - - - - - 1907045 1,907,045
— REHRATIR(48) — amortised cost (gross) 919 116,963 159,081 507763 4066023 540562 22 10256637
BERE Investment securities
—KATER(: —Rvocl - - 93768 848 2,054,381 24,970 - 2509537
— NATHER(AR —FVPL - - - - - - 9870 9870
— REHRATIR(48) — amortised cost (gross) - 78,083 558082 5166848 5600134 3175509 - 15786%
NEESER Placements with the Exchange Fund - - - 619546 12958372 14921475 - 34070393
1175793 1668473 37910051 21603263 74123624 59105048 1917177 212519692
2 Liabilities
BRIERES Debt securities issued - 2833208 46240752 57084223 51879773 3680541 - 161718497
- 2833208 46240752 57084223 1879773 3680541 - 161,718,497
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Apart from the above, interest and remittance
receivables, prepayments and other assets, interest
payable, accounts payable, accrued expenses and
current tax liabilities are expected to be recovered or
settled within twelve months from the reporting date.
Other assets and liabilities included in the consolidated
statement of financial position are expected to be
recovered or settled in a period more than twelve
months after the reporting date.

In addition, the Exchange Fund has committed to
providing the Group with a HK$80 billion revolving
credit under the Revolving Credit Facility since 2020,
which enables the Group to maintain smooth operation
under exceptional circumstances, so that it can better
fulfil its mandate to promote banking and financial
stability in Hong Kong.
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3.5. Risks arising from insurance contracts

(@)

Insurance contracts and reinsurance contracts

Through its general insurance subsidiary, the Group
provides mortgage insurance cover to participating
lenders for first credit losses, in general, of up to 50%
of the property value of a residential mortgage loan in
Hong Kong with loan-to-value ratio 90% or below at
origination, or other thresholds as specified from time
to time. The general insurance subsidiary also provides
insurance cover in respect of reverse mortgage loans
originated by participating lenders and secured on
residential properties and, if applicable, other assets,
and in respect of policy reverse mortgage loans
originated by participating lenders and secured on
life insurance policies. Through its life subsidiary, the
Group offers annuity product to personal customers.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the
possibility that the insured event occurs and the
uncertainty of the amount of the resulting claim. By
the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk is
random and therefore unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory
of probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the
principal risk that the Group faces under its insurance
contracts is that the actual claims exceed the carrying
amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur
because the frequency or severity of claims are greater
than estimated. Insurance events are random and the
actual number and amount of claims and benefits will
vary from year to year from the estimate established
using statistical technigues.
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Accordingly, the main risks that the Group is exposed
to are, as follows:

o property price risk — risk of outstanding loan is
higher than value of collateral;

. mortality risk — risk of loss arising from the
incidence of policyholder death being later than
expectation;

3 expense risk — risk of loss arising from expense
experience being different from expectation;

. loan default risk — risk of default of repayment
to mortgage loan; and

3 policyholder decision risk (non-death termination)
— risk of loss arising due to policyholder
experiences (lapses and surrenders) being
different from expectation.

The Group aims to ensure that sufficient reserves are
available to cover the liabilities associated with the
insurance that it issues. The risk exposure is mitigated
by diversification across the portfolios of insurance
contracts. The variability of risks is also improved by
careful selection and implementation of underwriting
strategy guidelines, as well as the use of outwards
reinsurance arrangements. In addition, the assumptions
are reviewed regularly with regular experience studies
conducted.
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The Group purchases reinsurance as part of its risk
mitigation measures. The reinsurance contract is quota
share reinsurance which is taken out to reduce the
overall exposure of the Group to certain classes of
business. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are
estimated in @ manner consistent with the underlying
insurance contract liabilities and in accordance with
the reinsurance contracts.

The Group's placement of reinsurance is diversified as
far as practicable to avoid being dependent on a single
reinsurer or a single reinsurance contract. The Group
conducts comprehensive assessment including the
financial strength and credit ratings of the reinsurers in
accordance with the reinsurance policy under the Risk
Management Framework. The approved reinsurers are
subject to periodic reviews.

The Group monitors closely and review regularly on
the exposure to key insurance risks. The nature of the
Group’s exposure to insurance risks and its objectives,
policies and processes used to manage and measure
the risks have not changed from the previous period.
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Sensitivities

The following sensitivity analysis shows the impact
(gross and net of reinsurance held) on CSM, profit
before tax and equity for reasonably possible
movements in key assumptions with all other
assumptions held constant. The correlation of
assumptions will have a significant effect in determining
the ultimate impacts, but to demonstrate the impact
due to changes in each assumption, assumptions
had to be changed on an individual basis. It should be
noted that movements in these assumptions are non-
linear. Sensitivity information will also vary according

to the current economic assumptions.

FERRBAN

Insurance contracts issued

HRRAER  BREARR Hign Hign
(HERBRR) (BRERR) (NRERR) (BEERR)
BREL* NEE (2§ nEE 2 S

Impacton  Impacton  Impacton Impact
profit before  profit before equity on equity
Changein  taxnetof tax gross of net of gross of
HK$'000 assumptions* reinsurance  reinsurance  reinsurance  reinsurance

NEERERBAL Property price growth
percentage -05%  (1,747,881)  (1,795057)  (1,486,789)  (1,426,673)
A Mortality rates -10.0% (784,932) (785,090) (706,880) (678,761)
(53 Expenses #00% (101587 (101,587) (96,653) (96,653)
ENE Default rates +10.0% (2,988) (3,371) (2,907) (3,281)
FRTLRIEE Non-death termination rates +10.0% 13,254 13,238 11,259 10,287

Insurance contracts issued

\mpacton \mpacton Impact on \mpacton

profitbefore ~ profit before equity equity
Change in taxnetof  taxgrossof net of gr0ss of
HK$'000 assumptions*  reinsurance  reinsurance  rensurance  reinsurance

NEEREREAL Property price growth
percentage 05% (1,701,190 (1,703 495) (1,470,814) (1,377,094)
RER Mortality rates -10.0% (674,531) (674,797) (619.132) (699,680)
% Expenses +10.0% (62,465) (62,528) (58,079) (58,143)
ek apd Default rates +10.0% (2.654) (2953 (2484) (2,765)
R LR Non-death termination rates +10.0% 11,592 11,581 10,292 9708

* J:i%ﬁﬁﬂﬁx& ST ERE *

The impact on change in the assumptions shown in the above

table covers entire insurance portfolio, part of which, mainl
(EBAREZRBER) KA POTHONO, v maiy
ERAE B M E %A A F ?_if_ reverse mortgage loans, are held in the loan portfolio of the
Ao Group at fair value.

BEERRES - HEP—*B
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3.6. EMBERRBHAFHE
(@ AFEfE

TRINTEAFEREGE
HEGE)ERANERTA -

3.6. Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

(@) Fair value estimation

The following table shows financial instruments
recognised at fair value, by valuation method.

5-F A= e ol -] £E F=[
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level2 Level3
iR TEr TER iR THL TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
&E Assets
fAESRIA Derivative financial instruments - 664,618 - 664,618 - 828,542 - 808,542
BFEAEE Loan portfolio, net
—URTER{ABR —FWPL - - 259858 2,596,858 - - 1,907,045 1,907,045
FHRE Investment securities
—UATER{GA  —FOC
E2ENE 3,605,206 116,615 - 378 2,509,537 - - 2,509,537
—HATEREFA  —FPL
B 9774 - - 9,774 9870 = = 9870
NEELER Placements with the Exchange Fund - - 19,244,684 49,244,684 - - 34070393 34070393
3,614,980 781,233 51,841,542 56,237,755 2,519,407 828,542 35,977,438 39,325,387
&ff Liabilities
FESRIA Derivative financial instruments - 1,740,649 - 1,740,649 - 2,825,522 - 2825522

RAEE  E—BHE_EW
SBTAZMLEEHE - I
EEARBL B -

) SH—EWe@ITA

RIERM SR 50T R’
TA EAFEERE
BERHNMSRE -
mEMSEREAIART S
Ho A FE B R 5 B
RHE BRI TEW
T TERFEEBNKE
ERBIRGHRE Mz
SEMARBAFELE
ERMERET SR
5 MRBAFEFE
MEEXBES @S
AEBMELE E&E@
BEEEZEHEANKEE
RERQFENER &
ZARGEAFE- M
ERTARNBREES

— & o
=

There was no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 nor
transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the reporting date. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm'’s length basis. If an asset or a liability
measured at fair value has a bid price and an
ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread
that is most representative of fair value in the
circumstances shall be used to measure fair
value. These instruments are included in Level 1.
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Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 2 derivatives comprise interest rate swaps,
currency swaps and currency forwards. These
derivatives are fair valued using forward interest
rates and forward exchange rates, if applicable,
from observable yield curves.

Level 2 debt securities are fair valued using
quoted market prices in less active markets, or if
not available, a discounted cash flow approach,
which discounts the contractual cash flows using
discount rates derived from observable market
prices of other quoted debt instruments of the
counterparties.
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(iii)

Financial instruments in Level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in Level 3.

Loan portfolio at FVPL

Certain loan portfolio accounted for at fair value
through profit or loss at consolidation level is
included in Level 3 with fair value determined
by using an internal model based on income
approach by discounting future cash flows
which are dependent on the expected terms
of the loans, annuity payout, premium and
interest income, loan repayment and the value of
collaterals (for example, the residential properties
or insurance policies securing the loans). The
Group is exposed mainly to collateral risk arising
from drop in residential property price. The
information of sensitivity to long term property
price growth assumption is included in Note
3.5(b).

IMNEE B TFFK Placements with the Fxchange Fund
ANEBEZET AEE The placements with the Exchange Fund,
E’J INE RS TFRETAFE accounted under fair value through profit or loss,
“EEQAFELZ2ER are included in Level 3 with fair value determined
S REFEREEFREE by reference to the principal amount and the
TE ° estimated rates of investment return.
FZESRITAENAQFE Movement in Level 3 fair value measurement as
B 22FHU0T follows:
2024
UAFELIEFA HNEEE NAT NEES
BRENERAES B EaMETAA T3
Loan Placements with Loan  Placements with
portfolio  the Exchange portfolio the Exchange
at FVPL Fund at FVPL Fund
TR TEL TEL TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
w—A—H Asat 1 January 1,907,045 34,070,393 1,225,736 32,798 933*
RUTEERAMME  Gainsand losses recognised in
RER
— B (firsEn) — profit or loss (Note 11) (210,636) 1,374,291 51,532 1,067,546
—HtEE — other liabilities - - = 58,438
&7 Placement - 13,800,000 - 3,395,000
b Withdrawal - - - (3,449 524)*
R Drawdown 942,198 - 642,650 -
B Repayment (40,403) - (12,066) =
H Amortisation (1,346) - (807) -
W“t-A=1-H As at 31 December 2,596,858 49,244,684 1,907,045 34,070,393
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& BT _——F A * Since 2021, the Group has placed on behalf of the

5] 3 LB 2R B U AR 1 Government HK$6 billion with respect to the advance
EEA S AEREAR payment received from the Government for purchasing
BEXEI THERDN loans under 100% Personal Loan Guarantee Scheme
T8 1~ 218 R BT 1 AR (PLGS), of which HK$3 billion has been withdrawn to
OEBT EFER purchase of loans under PLGS for the Government and
EX 301878 7t B BT I8 HK$3.4 billion was withdrawn by the Government in
BREAFEEREIT 2023. As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023,
MER  RZT==%F there is no outstanding balance of the advance payment
BB HEE34 BT © placed with the Exchange Fund or accrued interest.

R-ZZE-_MFE+=A
=t+—BR-_ZT_=F
+=ZA=+—H ' &
FINE B TF IRAITEL
FIBLERRKEST RS o

WHAAFEFENESRHEE (b) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities not
MEENLTE measured at fair value

RZZEZMNF+=—A=+—H The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
RZB_=F+_A=+— instruments not presented on the Group's statement of
B AEEIW KRR T BRI K financial position at their fair values are not materially
BRATEERBZS R IAD different from their fair values as at 31 December
IREEE N FEIREERD 2024 and 31 December 2023 except for the following
@ o bR B IR EME R R FEEE financial instruments, for which their carrying amounts
WERIAIN  TRAIEAR and fair values and the level of fair value hierarchy are
FTEAENEHIAZIKRE disclosed below:

B AFERAFERER

7l :

REE kA
Carrying ATE %-5 %-F  Camying R¥{E S-E 5E

amount  Fairvalue Level 1 Level 2 amount  Fairvalue Level 1 Level2
TEn TEr Thx TEn AT T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

SHEE Financial assets
BHRE Investment securiies
— BB AR — amortised cost 15105470 14,820,124 11,614,626 3205498 14573985 14261730 10493866 3,767,364
SRHER Financial liabilities
BRIERES DeDt securities issued 148,299,636 148,086,035 - 148,086,035 161718497 161,602,374 - 161602374
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HErEMmI AR TEREERD
MTTERERRR

(i)

(iii)

The following methods and significant assumptions
have been used to estimate the fair values of financial

instruments:
RekEiiEs (i)  Cashand short-term funds
ReEREHESBER Cash and short-term funds include bank deposits
THEFR  XRMERRE and are stated net of impairment allowance.
BERIIR - F BT The fair value of floating-rate deposits is the
B FEEAREE - carrying amount. The estimated fair value of

ERFER(FRAEE D
RNBER) Bfa st R FE
TERERRREERER
BEBNERTEEMS
MEREGFHRARE L
MRAETRE - Btk
TFHRORFEHENE
HRIEI(E

BFRER D BERD (ii)

B A RN R E B
HEIR - BT AE R
MWENBERE®EES B
ER MY ESIRBE
B At ERAE
MIEmEASATFENS
BIHET ©

BERMAAFHE (iii)
BRHEA RN R E &
BEHNE - NEDE K
BEZRETEFERETE

Hit - ERAESHIE®R
BAAFENEERMHT -

12 B 55 PR N 51 IR O 78 55
BE

78 7 1B T HIRR R B B
BRI - LB HKA
SR ERBRE 2 AT
BEATERLR XD
BRERNFERER -
i REEERIS B B E L
AIRAABRRBAEE
AR R EERERE
Z B HF e E K E
EN AR BE TS EUE
B E T AR AFE °
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fixed-rate deposits, which are normally less than
six months, is based on discounted cash flows
using prevailing money-market interest rates
for debts with similar credit risk and remaining
maturity. Therefore, the fair value of the deposits
is approximately equal to their carrying value.

Loans with 100% guarantee from the Government

Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment
allowance. With the 100% guarantee provided
by the Government to cover the default loss of
the loans, no impairment allowance is provided.
Therefore, the carrying value of loan portfolio is a
reasonable estimate of the fair value.

Loan portfolio, net

Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment
allowance. An insignificant portion of loan
portfolio bears interest at fixed rate. Therefore,
the carrying value of loan portfolio is a
reasonable estimate of the fair value.

Investment securities at amortised cost

Investment securities are stated net of
impairment allowance. Fair value for investment
securities at amortised cost is based on market
prices or broker/dealer price quotations, which
are the clean prices. Where this information is
not available, fair value has been estimated using
quoted market prices for securities with similar
credit, maturity and yield characteristics, or
valuation technigues which maximise the use of
observable market data.



(vii)

(viii)

HibEE

EETERIEAEZHMA
BREENERITERE
HFHEWHRE  EAF
EERIREERE °

BHITIERES

RFELBLENRTS
BEXNFEFE - 2R
AEMHRENES
SERNE MR R HR
B 35 B Wi 2 o b AR 3 R
AR REMBRIG

H o
Ean

HipB (&

HihBEEERR I i
B AR TR
BB (K EE33) &
NF B E AT 8 AT e 3
R E RER (B
RREMBMAS) HEA
FEEREERES °

& WA B % B 5K K% B A
R

FE &I B 1% 98 S R R -
HREHSEZERAR
FHE @A R E sk
BE  EQAFEERE
BHEE ERBHSE
HEAHEF—EAR
Yem - B E HE R E
EMRE -

(Vii)

(viii)

Other assets

These mainly represent receivables from
debt securities issued for settlement after the
reporting date with the fair value approximating
the carrying amount.

Debt securities issued

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on
quoted market prices, which are the clean prices.
For those notes where quoted market prices are
not available, a discounted cash flow model is
used based on a current yield curve appropriate
for the remaining term to maturity.

Other liabilities

These mainly represented the guarantee fee
and fund received (net of claims and related
expenses) under the special concessionary
measures of the SFGS (Note 33) and the PLGS,
with the fair value approximating the carrying
amount.

Interest and remittance receivables and interest
payable

Accrued interest is recognised separately with
the fair value approximating the carrying amount
as it is expected to be recovered or settled
within twelve months from the reporting date.
Remittance receivables are expected to be
recovered within one month from the reporting
date with the fair value approximating the
carrying amount.
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3.7. Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital, which is a
broader concept than the equity on the face of the statement
of financial position, are:

o to comply with the capital requirements set by the
Financial Secretary of the Government (Financial
Secretary) and the Insurance Authority for its
insurance subsidiaries,

. to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholder;

o to support the Group's stability and growth,

o to allocate capital in an efficient and risk-based
approach to optimise risk adjusted return to the
shareholder; and

o to maintain a strong capital base to support the
development of its business.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are
monitored daily by the management in accordance with the
Guidelines on Capital Adequacy Ratio (Guidelines) issued by
the Financial Secretary, by reference largely to Basel Il risk-
based capital adeqguacy framework. The minimum Capital
Adequacy Ratio (CAR) stipulated in the Guidelines is 8%.

The Chief Executive Officer is required to submit a report
to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis by reference
to the Guidelines issued by the Financial Secretary. If the
CAR drops to the threshold level of 14%, the Chief Executive
Officer will alert the Executive Directors. If the CAR falls to
12% or below, the Board of Directors will be informed and
appropriate remedial actions will be taken. During the period,
the Group complied with all of the capital requirement set
out in the Guidelines by the Financial Secretary.

324 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2024



RBEARFT R XIS EAXRLEAE
EMREHERENGEER - B
BREER [ZRESREE] (Plnk
AR MNMBLRRE - IIRRZE
WEXEETREBMEES  YARERTE
MR RABNE RN (PIInER 8
AFxRR) BHRITHAREER
H o RERATHRANIRESRBE
IR E R AN E ARERE R IORR - AR
FERIERE R R B E TR & ET ADNRE
BEMNFEF -

TR R EHIRAEAREREK

Pursuant to the Guidelines on the CAR, the calculation
basis of capital ratio follows the basis of consolidation for
financial reporting with the exclusion of subsidiaries which
are “regulated financial entities” (e.g. insurance companies).
It is because these entities are supervised by a regulator
and are subject to the maintenance of adequate capital (e.g.
solvency ratio) to support business activities comparable to
those prescribed for banks. The investment cost of these
unconsolidated regulated financial entities is deducted from
the capital base whilst the corresponding related exposures
are also excluded from the calculation of risk-weighted
assets.

The table below summarises the composition of capital base
and the CAR as at the end of the reporting period.

2024 2023

FHExT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

&S (B 5 30) Share capital (Note 30) 26,500,000 14,500,000

et Reserves 9,032,222 8,931,860

B Impairment allowance 71,803 34,837
kR : Deductions:

—REEENBRRINIKRE

— investment in regulated subsidiaries (27,500,000) (15,500,000)

— HAf (640,826) (329,703)
BARERE AR Total capital base 7,463,199 7,636,994
BEARTE R K Capital Adequacy Ratio 19.9% 21.6%

EHREVEERAT —T-—mEFH 325



SmEBEHRERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38. SRS ERESRARBZHE 3.8. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
TREE D RER KB HERE AR The disclosures set out in the tables below pertain to
MERFIEELHHN S RMEEN DR financial assets and financial liabilities that are not offset in
BE EZTEENBEBEXRGFE the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position but
HEETSOREEUERIANES are subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or
WA © R A ERFEFFRE similar agreements that cover similar financial instruments.
B TR - RIBGUREMERE ER R The disclosures enable the understanding of both the gross
Bt N & #t o and net amounts, as well as provide additional information

on how such credit risk is mitigated.

2024
HBEEREREHBRRR
GeE% HEneE: Ly #3 2
RREH Related amount Related amount
REE not set off in not set off in
Carrying  the consolidated statement Carrying the consolidated statement
amounts of financial position* amounts of financial position*
onthe ——— onthe
consolidated fT£2BIA consolidated ) a
statementof  Derivative  BEEAR P8+ statement of Derivative
financial financial Cash Net financial financial
position  instruments collateral amount* position instruments collateral
T T T TER BT BT TAT ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
fTESBIEL Positive fair values for
FHATE derivative financial
instruments 664,618 (646,152) (17,552) 914 828,542 (828,542) = =
SRER Financial liabilities
fTESRIEY Negative fair values for
BEATE derivative financial
instruments 1,740,649 (646,152) (297,386) 797111 2,825,522 (828,542) (496,847) 1,500,133

# [HHEEEI R ELRE BN R E G Amounts under “Related amount not set off in the consolidated
e | B FREE TS BAM statement of financial position” represent the amounts of financial
HEEEEIRMIHERORNESRE liabilities/assets position that are subject to netting arrangements or
&/ BESHE- similar agreements including CSA.

* FERIE R R A E R SR BT * Net amount represents financial assets/liabilities that are subject
HARNEMEEBF  BWELE to netting arrangements or similar agreements but the Group's
BHRS5EFEY HIWIEHEEMN counterparty does not have equivalent financial liabilities/assets
TREE BEEANEBEL - position with the Group to offset upon default.
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Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

4.1

4.2

Impairment allowances on loan portfolio

The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess ECLS on
a regular basis. In determining ECLS, the Group makes
judgements as to whether there is any significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition and where appropriate,
default and impairment indicators. It is required to exercise
judgements in making assumptions and estimates to
incorporate relevant information about past events, current
conditions and forecast of economic conditions. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

The carrying amount of loan portfolio as at 31 December
2024 is disclosed in Note 20.

Fair value of financial instruments

The majority of valuation techniques employ only observable
market data. However, the placements with the Exchange
Fund are valued on the basis of valuation techniques which
are determined by reference to the estimated rates of
investment return, approximate the carrying value. Details of
the fair value measurement of financial instruments are set
out in Note 3.6.
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4.3 Securitisation of infrastructure loans

For the securitisation of infrastructure loans, the Group
transfers a portfolio of loans to the special purpose entity
(SPE). On consolidation basis, the Group assesses whether
it controls the SPE, and the Group controls the SPE if and
only if the Group has (a) power over the SPE; (b) exposure
or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the
SPE; and (c) the ability to use its power over the SPE to
affect the amount of the Group’s returns. If the Group has
existing rights to give the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the SPE, is exposed to variable returns from its
involvement with the SPE and has the ability to affect SPE's
returns through its power over the SPE, consolidation of the
SPE is required.

When performing the consolidation assessment of SPE,
the Group considers its role as collateral manager to act
for the SPE that has a decision-making power which may
impact the returns of SPE. In addition, the Group prepares
a quantitative test to assess whether its exposure to the
variability of returns that would be deemed to have control
over the SPE. Whether the Group has a control over the SPE
and is therefore required to consolidate the SPE depends on
whether the Group has the ability to use its power to affect
the SPE’s returns as a “principal” or an “agent”. Based on the
above analysis, the Group is not required to consolidate the
SPE.

The Group also considers whether the securitised loans
could meet the necessary requirements for derecognition.
Loans are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the loans have expired or where the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
When the Group neither transfers or retains substantially
all the risks and reward of ownership of a loan and retains
control of the transferred loan, it is required to recognise
the loan to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
in the loan. Under the continuing involvement approach,
the Group continues to recognise part of the transferred
loan. The Group also recognises continuing involvement
asset and liability, which represents the extent of the
Group's continuing exposure to the risks and reward of the
transferred loan.
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4.4

Insurance and reinsurance contracts

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below. The Group based
its assumptions and estimates on parameters available
when the consolidated financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes
or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the
Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they occur.

(@) The methods used to measure insurance contracts

The Group primarily uses deterministic projections to
estimate the present value of future cash flows.

The following assumptions were used when estimating
future cash flows:

Mortality

Assumptions are based on standard industry table,
according to the type of contract written. They
reflect historical experience and are adjusted when
appropriate to reflect the Group’s own experiences.
An appropriate, but not excessive, allowance is made
for adverse selection and mortality improvements.
Assumptions are differentiated by policyholder gender
and age.

A decrease in expected mortality rates will increase the

expected claim cost which will reduce future expected
profits of the Group.
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Property price

Assumption are determined based on historical market
performance and long-term projection. A decrease in
the expected level of property price will reduce future
expected profits of the Group.

For Mortgage Insurance Programme, a drop in property
prices, where the collateral value falls below the
outstanding balance of the mortgage loan, will increase
the severity of claims.

For Reverse Mortgage Programme, future property
prices would affect the cash flow projections of the in-
force insurance contracts.

Loan default rate

Loan default rate is according to the best estimate to
the default rate of mortgage loan. They reflect historical
experience and are adjusted when appropriate to
reflect the Group’s own experiences.

An increase in the expected level of loan default rate
will reduce future expected profits of the Group.

Expenses

Operating expenses assumptions reflect the projected
costs of maintaining and servicing in-force policies
and associated overhead expenses. The current level
of expenses is taken as an appropriate expense base,
adjusted for expected expense inflation if appropriate.

An increase in the expected level of expenses will
reduce future expected profits of the Group.

Non-death termination

Lapses relate to the termination of policies due to
non-payment of premiums. Surrenders relate to the
voluntary termination of policies by policyholders.
Policy termination assumptions are determined using
statistical measures based on the Group’s experience
and vary by product type and policy duration.

The cash flows within the contract boundary include an
allocation of overheads directly attributable to fulfilling
insurance contracts. Such overheads are allocated to
groups of contracts using methods that are systematic
and rational, and are consistently applied to all costs
that have similar characteristics.
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FERRREY Insurance contracts isstied

(b) Discount rate

Insurance contract liabilities are calculated by
discounting expected future cash flows at a risk-free
rate, plus an illiquidity premium where applicable.
Risk-free rates are determined by reference to
those inferred from either swap rates or zero-
coupon government bond yields of that currency
(whichever of higher liquidity/market depth). This
method is comparable to the risk-free rate generation
methodology adopted under Hong Kong Risk-Based
Capital (HKRBC) regime. The illiquidity premium is
determined by reference to observable market rates
including corporate debt rates.

Discount rates (forward rates) applied for discounting
of future cash flows are listed below:

BAEH
Portfolio duration

RZB-MET=A=t1-H F_-#+-A=1-H

As at 31 December 2024 As at 31 December 2023
5E 05 plIf:3 NE 1% 5E 0% NE NE

Syears 10years 20years 30years  Tyear  Syears 10years  20years  30years

432%  495%  436%  486%  478%  3B%  499% 3% Ae1%

EHREBEERAT —T-—mEFH 331



SmEBEHRERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FF < Rl L B Y L B S

FE SRRV fe Y [ e R B A AR
BiTRE S QK EIES Ak
RS ME ST FEPTESL
B HEEIEPT B V(B o il
TR D BURE T RV AT R
R IR M) R AR 45 R A& DA
f2 B AN £5 18] 4 L ik AR e Y A2
B AEEHSFESREARARE
R AT BT A EL A i 5t 0 R
17 AREHABRRE DN
FeRERNERFHENEE
BRENZE -

ERRAERAREERETE -
HERBRBAADEERE
MR AEBEZBFRRARR
REARGIE NREHEHERD
sTEITDAEE IF & BhE R HO

A
AR o

IR B i 5118 B I bR B2 TN FE E Y
BERERERE T
R - WA B AE LA R BR 55 75
BAEDMUBENERKTE -

AR E FES B E R R B B
BRFEMBRR_E_=F
N = F — [ FI e o

Risk adjustment for non-financial risk

The risk adjustment for non-financial risk is the
compensation that is required for bearing the
uncertainty about the amount and timing of cash flows
that arises from non-financial risk as the insurance
contract is fulfilled. Because the risk adjustment
represents compensation for uncertainty, estimates
are made on the degree of diversification benefits and
expected favourable and unfavourable outcomes in a
way that reflects the Group’s degree of risk aversion.
The Group estimates an adjustment for non-financial
risk separately from all other estimates. The Group
does not consider the effect of reinsurance in the risk
adjustment for non-financial risk of the underlying
insurance contracts.

The risk adjustment was calculated at Group level
and then allocated down to each group of contracts
in accordance with their risk profiles. The Group
determines the risk adjustment for non-financial risk
based on Margin Over Current Estimate (MOCE)
calculation methodology under HKRBC regime.

The MOCE reflects the uncertainty of liability cash
flows related to non-hedgeable risks, and is calibrated
to reflect the 75th percentile confidence level.

The methods and assumptions used to determine the
risk adjustment for non-financial risk were not changed
in 2023 and 2024.
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Amortisation of the CSM

The CSM is a component of the asset or liability for
the group of insurance contracts that represents the
unearned profit the Group will recognise as it provides
services in the future. An amount of the CSM for a
group of insurance contracts is recognised in profit or
loss as insurance revenue in each period to reflect the
insurance contract services provided under the group
of insurance contracts in that period. The amount is
determined by:

o identifying the coverage units in the group;

3 allocating the CSM at the end of the period (before
recognising any amounts in profit or loss to
reflect the insurance contract services provided
in the period) equally to each coverage unit
provided in the current period and expected to
be provided in the future; and

. recognising in profit or loss the amount allocated
to coverage units provided in the period.

The number of coverage units in a group is the
guantity of insurance contract services provided by
the contracts in the group, determined by considering
the quantity of the benefits provided and the expected
coverage period. Contractual payments under
different scenarios and the respective probabilities are
considered when determining the quantity of benefit
provided. The total coverage units of each group of
insurance contracts are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period to adjust for the reduction of
remaining coverage for claims paid and cancellation
of contracts in the period. For the MIP insurance
contracts, the quantity of benefits is the contractually
agreed risk-in-force insured over the period of the
contracts while the quantity of benefits for the RMP
and the PRMP contracts is the contractually agreed
outstanding balance at death insured over the period
of the contracts. With respect to annuity product, the
coverage unit for amortisation will be the maximum of
(a) expected annuity payment; and (b) expected death
payment if there is a CSM.

For reinsurance contracts held, the CSM amortisation
reflects the expected pattern of underwriting of the
underlying contracts because the level of service
provided depends on the quantity of benefits provided
by the underlying contracts in-force.
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4.5 100% guarantee under the SME Financing Guarantee
Scheme (100% SFGS) and DLGS

As refer to Note 19, under 100% SFGS and DLGS, eligible
loans originated by the participating lenders are sold to the
Group, and the Government provides a financial guarantee
to the Group on these loans. The loans are classified as
financial assets measured at amortised cost under HKFRS 9.

In formulating the accounting treatment of 100% SFGS and
DLGS, the Group applied judgement on whether the loans
purchased from the participating lenders as recognised on
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position
should be de-recognised as a result of the arrangement
with the Government; whether the contracts between the
participating banks and the Group and the contract between
the Government and the Group should be considered
together in the determination of accounting treatments; and
whether the contractual cash flow of the loans represent
“solely payments of the principal and interest” (SPPI).

When performing this assessment, the Group considers
several factors including, whether the Group has transferred
the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the loans,
whether the contracts between the Government and Group
are considered together and whether the contractual cash
flows met the SPPI criteria etc.

Segment information

The Group is principally engaged in asset purchase and servicing,
general insurance and life insurance businesses in Hong Kong.
Other activities such as debt issuance to fund the loan purchase
and investment to reinvest the surplus funds from loan receipt are
considered ancillary to asset purchase business.

General insurance includes mainly mortgage insurance, reverse
mortgage and SME financing guarantee businesses. Life insurance
includes annuity business. Asset purchase and servicing include
loan acquisition business and other activities such as debt
issuance.

334  The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2024



TRINTAEE LD EBRIWA ~ @A R The following tables represent revenue, profit and other
HihER o information for operating segments of the Group.

BEEER
HHERRE bk SE
Asset —RiFR AERR Inter-

purchase General Life segment g
and servicing insurance insurance  elimination Total
THET THER THT THT THER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HE-E-_ME+-A=t—-HLLEE Yearended 31 December 2024

FHEMA Net interest income 432,744 331,252 (146,035) - 617,961
FREEEEE Net insurance business results - (647,213)  (1,594,263) 209,948 (2,031,528)
HiglA Other income 308,886 162,772 1,221,874 (435,498) 1,258,034
BB/ (BR) Operating incomey/(0ss) 741,630 (153,189) (518,424) (225,550) (155,533)
e Operating expenses (566,343) (20,685) - 224,862 (362,166)
KetmEmNELRH/ (BE) Operating profit/(loss) before impairment 175,287 (173,874) (518,424) (688) (517,699)
AEREEY Change in impairment allowances (34,454) (227) (230) - (34,911)
BHAET/ (BR) Profit/(loss) before taxation 140,833 (174,101) (518,654) (688) (552,610)

BERS
Asset

purchase General Life segment +
and servicing insurance insurance elimination Total
TATL TATL BT TATL TATL
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

BE-T--E+-FA=f-HILFE Yearended31December 2023

FFIBHA Net interest income 225,059 309,548 (137,698) - 396,909
FRBEREE Net insurance business results - (296,301) (1,805,804) 225,674 (1,876,431)
HiA Other income 271,89 138,533 1,139,374 (139,028) 1,410,775
gEW A/ (ER) Operating income/(0ss) 496,955 151,780 (804,128) 86,646 (68,747)
mETH Operating expenses (510,889) (3492 - 190,559 (323,822)
RiDRERREE (BR)/ & Operating (loss)/profit before impairment (13934) 148,288 (804,128) 277,205 (392,569)
ARG Change in impairment allowances (20,106) 62 57 - (19.987)
BHA(BR) /A (Loss)/profit before taxation (34,040) 148,350 (804,071) 271,205 (412,556)
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BEEER
HHEBRY
Asset -RRR

ABRR
General Life
insurance insurance
TiEn TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000

purchase
and servicing
TR
HK$'000

Pk E

Inter-
segment b

elimination Total

TR
HK$'000

TER
HK$'000

RZZ-ME+-A=1+-H As at 31 December 2024
PEEE Segment assets 165,630,756 24,736,861 34,361,081 (2,902,522) 221,826,176
AUEE Segment liabilities 157,586,492 6,984,385 22,112,903 (3,724,339) 182,959,441

IR SR
purchase General Life segment
and servicing insurance insurance elimination Total
FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZE-=F+-fA=1-H As at 31 December 2023
DEEE Segment assets 180,014,995 11,662,145 30,648,507 (3,022,833) 219,302,809
PHER Segment liabilities 172,060,725 6,075,852 17,987,590 (3948,314) 192,175,853

6. FIBUA

6. Interestincome

2024

THxT
HK$'000

2023
TAT
HK$'000

BER4EE Loan portfolio 757,120 643,081
B RRMHE A 5 B ERAOERK Loans with 100% guarantee from

the Government 4,533,483 4,231,367

RekEHES Cash and short-term funds 2,048,875 2,434,607

BHEE Investment securities 806,736 592,282

8,146,214 7,901,337
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IR

Interest expense

2024 2023

THET TET

HK$'000 HK$'000

WITEARREBEITEREES Bank loans and debt securities issued 7,363,943 7,314,481
HEAE Lease liabilities 8,338 2,591
HAith Others 155,972 187,356
7,528,253 7,504,428

FRA R B MR B WA R FEZFA
BarEEE -

RBRUA

TREJFAEBNRBREA BB -

EESTRREASENEE Amounts relating to the changes
in the liability for remaining
coverage

AHRBMAESRRRIE % Expected insurance service expenses

All interest expenses are for financial liabilities that are not at fair
value through profit or loss.

Insurance revenue

The table below presents an analysis of the total insurance
revenue recognised in the year:

2024

Frgs Fras ]
RESY  BRBRAK it A 26
Insurance  Reinsurance Insurance  Relnsurance
contracts contracts contracts

contracts
issued issued Total issued issued Total
TR TET TET B BT THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

incurred in the period 449,877 4,743 454,620 371,710 835 372,545
FEBERNEREZES  Change inthe risk adjustment
for non-financial risk (66,511) 19 (66,492) (21,84) 1 (21,840)
RERNERNEH Amount of CSM recognised in profit or
RskmesE loss 677,693 - 677,693 584,290 - 584,290
EM4E  RERBUAL  Otheramounts including experience
BERAE adjustments for premium receipts - - - 45 - 45
EERERREERSHEN Amounts relating to recovery of
&8 insurance acquisition cash flows
PEBEBREREREERS  Alocation of the portion of premiums
ERRNREDS that relate to the recovery of insurance
acquisition cash flows 254,209 - 254,209 193,743 - 193,743
RIEBKA Insurance revenue 1,315,268 4762 1,320,030 1,127,947 836 1,128,783
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Expected insurance service expenses incurred in the period comprise claims
and other expenses which the Group expects to pay on insured events that
occurred during the period. Refer to Note 2.22(f) for the full list of the cash
flows included.

Change in risk adjustment shows amount of risk which expired during the
period. Refer to Note 2.22 for the details of accounting policy.

The CSM is recognised in profit or loss over the coverage period of the
corresponding group of contracts based on coverage units. Refer to Note
4.4(d).

Such adjustments exclude those that relate to future service which adjust the
CSM.

Acquisition cash flows are allocated in a systematic way on the basis of the
passage of time over the coverage period of the group of contracts. Refer to
Note 2.22(e) for details of accounting policy.
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Fissss RIB &4 FiasssBR
BEEX FiABRES N
A5 (ZH) W N FE

TREJNFANIEE K E b 2w s iR
RV R A S RABF BT

Net finance (expenses)/income from insurance
contracts issued/reinsurance contracts issued/
reinsurance contracts held

The table below presents an analysis of net insurance finance
result recognised in profit or loss and OCI in the year:

iR & N MR BT 75 Insurance finance income/(expenses)

WA (XH) from insurance contracts issued
EE S Interest accreted (885,204) (721,952)
F| = &E'ﬁﬂ BRSNS  Effect of changes in interest rates and

other financial assumptions 429,217 (1,041,004)
wE ﬁiﬂﬂéﬁ = RIRVIAERE  Effect of measuring changes in estimates

RO FI = TS 29 AR 7S W e at current rates and adjusting the CSM

0 EQ@JE‘/’ at the rates on initial recognition 382,457 139,395
R RBREANNTE Net finance expenses from

S HFEEE insurance contracts issued (73,530) (1,623,561)
2573 Represented by:

I8 R A © 58 Amounts recognised in profit or loss (413,039) (1,692,054)
EC, L {th 2 EWN R TR 5 Amounts recognised in OCI 339,509 68,493
s BRRENNRR Insurance finance income/(expenses)

MW A (X H) from reinsurance contracts issued

E=R i) Interest accreted (7,282) (1,421)
ﬂ = &E'ﬁﬂ BRSNS E  Effect of changes in interest rates and

other financial assumptions 3,601 (7,009)
RE R R 5T IR R Effect of measuring changes in estimates

RO FI = TS 29 AR 75 W e at current rates and adjusting the CSM

RETEZH e at the rates on initial recognition 1,800 41
BREARTELRRES) Changes in non-performance risk

of reinsurer - -
s BRREANEE HFEEE Net finance expenses from

reinsurance contracts issued (1,881) (8,389)
257 - Represented by:

KBRS 58 Amounts recognised in profit or loss (1,881) (8,389)
Eéﬁmiﬁﬂﬂl SRR 5 Amounts recognised in OCl = -
i BEREEANEREETH  Reinsurance finance income/(expenses)

WA () from reinsurance contracts held
2558 Interest accreted 16,118 (96)
F| = &E{ﬂ; Bis R e F L Effect of changes in interest rates and

other financial assumptions (25,026) 2,150
LE R R 5T RIRaERE  Effect of measuring changes in estimates
E'ﬁ@zuﬂ EENRBKE N at current rates and adjusting the CSM
ATE %1 at the rates on initial recognition (100,854) (54,790)
BIR ﬁ@ AT B4R Changes in non-performance risk of
reinsurer (4,544) (4,725)
IiFEBRREANEES HFEE Net finance expenses from
reinsurance contracts held (114,306) (57,461)
255 : Represented by:
EATE m R & 58 Amounts recognised in profit or loss 10,268 2,932
REAM 2 EREERN T Amounts recognised in OCI (124,574) (60,393)

EHREREERAT —T-—mEFH 339



SmEBEHRERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10. Fifs A BRSO iFEE

T8 HALG [B] HA R 2 A B9 1R B AR 7S s Expected recovery for insurance service

2024

TR
HK$'000

10. Net income from reinsurance contracts held

2023
T
HK$'000

expenses incurred in the period (6,476) (78,716)
FE B[R fe 19 [2 e S = 2 B Change in the risk adjustment for
non-financial risk 13,159 13,158
RIBRERNE LR K CSM recognised in profit or loss (75,073) (67,383)
BRI £ R 5 46 B R Y Amount relating to the changes
BEEHRBEHSE in the assets for remaining coverage (68,390) (132,941)
HNEENBRRREMASZA Amounts recoverable for claims and
Al E & 58 other expenses incurred in the period 25,335 74,054
FTEERREEEEMEED Changes in amounts recoverable
EEdEERELE) arising from changes in liability
for incurred claims 1,584 792
e Rl R A R R A E BT Changes in amounts recoverable arising
EARn kLl 4zEE s from changes in risk adjustment for
non-financial risk 5,802 513
HEEURBE BB Changes in fulfilment cash flows which
BHBEeREEH relate to onerous underlying contracts 388,591 336,281
Al M ERER A B U B /)& 58 Amount recoverable from reinsurers 421,312 411,640
FEFEBRBREANNRAFE Net income from reinsurance
contracts held 352,922 278,699
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11.

HA

KBINEES TR

11. Other income

Income from placements with the

2024

TR
HK$'000

2023
TAET
HK$'000

Exchange Fund 1,374,291 1,267,546
VE W =28 Exchange difference (187,457) (12,336)
PTHE T H R ¥ e * Gain from derivatives and hedging* 238,006 62,005
ARFEZ (LR ABED Net (loss)/gain on investments at fair value
®A& (BR),/ W75 through profit or loss (48) 238
HENATES Lt AREMEE  Netgain on disposal of investments at FVOCI
I 25 B93% & My W e )8R 400 =
BEREEN AT EES)FH Net change in fair value of loan portfolio
(B % 3.6(a)ii)) (Note 3.6(a)ii)) (210,636) 51,532
EERENREBA Dividend income from listed investments 289 265
TTEERRA Administrative fee income 9,042 8,972
HAt Others 34,147 32,553
1,258,034 1,410,775
* STHETE RS U A TSI MBI AR : () * Gain from derivatives and hedging represented the aggregate of (i) HK$631

million fair value gain on hedging instruments designated as fair value hedge
(2023: HK$1,996 million) and HK$531 million fair value loss on the hedged
items (2023: HK$1,851 million); and (i) HK$138 million fair value gain on
derivatives mainly for hedging foreign currency exposures which are not
qualified as hedges for accounting purposes (2023: HK$83 million loss).

B AATFEL R TAAFER6.31
BB (CE=4F : 19.96 B8 7T) R¥hiA
BEATFEERNEBST(ZT=_=F:
1851 L) + K (ii) = 2 A 1EL N E RS
BRFARAEFE A ANITETART
B 2E1.38EET(ZZT - =4F : F5188,300
BB °
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12. #MHEISHZH

BEMAREEEENSTHANER TR :

12. Expenses by nature

An analysis of the expenses incurred by the Group in the reporting

period is included in the table below:

2023
FHIT
HK$'000
EEMNA : Staff costs:
— & MER — salaries and benefits 458,385 408,110
— RIRE A — pension costs — defined
— REHENETE contribution plans 26,280 23,165
E=Yokn Directors’ fees = =
MEEREARANTEHEEN Emoluments in respect of directors’
HEMREmN T2 other services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the
company:
— e SRR RIEA — salaries, allowances and bonus 8,065 7,135
— BRIRFTEIFT{EZ 3R — retirement scheme contributions 726 703
& (Hf3E25) Depreciation (Note 25) 89,748 82,158
B 48 & =T IR 7S Financial information services 16,201 16,065
RS & Consultancy fees 97,741 94,260
MSHEEMES ST Marketing and advertising expenses 40,813 47,087
/NG Premises 17,602 14,556
H s Other operating expenses 59,282 52,966
e E R/ EERTE]  Recovery of operating expenses from
NMEOBHEREREETZ 100% SFGS and DLGS (Note 31(a))
R S I (HI5E31() (166,388) (161,609)
648,455 584,596
REREERESREEEN Amounts attributed to insurance acquisition
FEME 2 R Bt BB X cash flows incurred and other directly
attributable expenses (286,289) (260,774)
HEas s Other operating expenses 362,166 323,822
BEREEE Claims and benefits 787,624 614,310
Bt R R A LR EE Losses on onerous insurance contracts 2,257,995 778,349
REREER S REEH Amortisation of insurance acquisition
cash flows 254,209 193,743
RE2 AR TS = Insurance service expenses 3,299,828 1,586,402
3,661,994 1,910,224
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13. ZE(RTEN S 13. Auditor’s remuneration

2024 2023
FET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EZ RS Audit services 4,605 6,472
H b AR %5 Other services 4,382 4,228
8,987 10,700
14. BIEEBHEE) 14. Change in impairment allowances

e MEHES (BI5E3.2(c) Cash and short-term funds (Note 3.2(c)) 1,502 1,043
BHEE Investment securities:
— R AT IR — amortised cost (Note 3.2(d)(i))
(B EE3.2(d)(0)) 179 89
— AT EE LT AEMD — FVOCI (Note 3.2(d)(ii)
2 ME (FTEE3.2(d)ii) 147 477
BERHAE  BIEEFES Loan portfolio, including loan
(FI3E3.2(0)) commitments (Note 3.2(0)) 33,083 18,378
34,911 19,987
15. BilE 15. Taxation
(a) HFEEWBSRABBIES : (a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents:
2024 2023
Tz FHETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BBFEH Hong Kong profits tax:
— EHITIE — current tax 50,650 140,723
— BEFERE — adjusted in respect of past years - (2,416)
IRIERRIE Deferred taxation:
— ARFEERE — credit for current year (185,220) (291,361)

(134,570) (153,054)
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PN F B E A W (E AT IE SR BDE AR Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
16.5%( —F = = 4F : 16.5%) B Fi =X (2023: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the
STRAANGHRE - BLEHIEAE year. Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
BEEL165% (=T Z=4F : 16.5%) differences under the liability method using a principal
MEEREAE TR ER - taxation rate of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%).

AREEHBRT R EIENTIBEER R The taxation on the Group's loss before taxation differs from
BHERGTENERSENEENT ¢ the theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation

rate of Hong Kong as follows:

2023
FET
HK$'000
MrEiATE 1R Loss before taxation (552,610) (412,556)
12165% (—ZE==4 : 16.5%) Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%
R R 5T E (2023: 16.5%) (91,181) (68,072)
RIS 2 Tax effect of:
— BARB WA — income not subject to taxation (443,699) (451,919
— PA AR — expenses not deductible for
taxation purposes 415,517 322,794
— RIER T IBE 18 — tax losses not recognised 5,060 83,600
— BEEERE — adjustment in respect of prior years = (2,416)
— Hfb — others (20,267) (37,041)
BIEELE Taxation credit (134,570) (153,054)
(b) EABMRARAMBIERES : (b) Provision for taxation in the statement of financial

position represents:

2023
F&TT
HK$'000

BEHRIBEEE Current tax assets (included in
GtATHEMEE]) “Other assets”) 38 38
EHFIEAE Current tax liabilities 223,782 156,851
BEEFIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 174,488 307,254

398,270 464,105
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RERTE(BE) BENEBHEMKE The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities and

DRERNEFHMOT the movements during the year are as follows:
HERER
HititE
MEFBRE Impairment RBRENER
Accelerated allowances Insurance
tax and other WEESR contract faEg
depreciation provisions Tax losses liabilities Total
T T T TEn T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
WZE-=%—F—H Asat1January2023 8,208 (3,774 (148,905) 729,327 584,856
RlzsRA% /(EA)  Charged/(credited) to
income statement 165 (3,355) 5028 (293,199) (291,361)
REMZAREATE  Chargedto OC = - - 13759 13759
RZE-=%+-F As at 31 December 2023
=t+-H 8,373 (7.129) (143,877) 449,887 307,254
PR A/ Charged/(credited) to
(BA) income statement 28 (6,077) (26,244) (153167) (185,220)
REf2EREAMB  Charged to OCI = - - 52,454 52,454
R=B=RE As at 31 December 2024
+=ZA=+-H 8,641 (13,206) (170,121) 349,174 174,488
RZZE-_ME+_A=1+—HEZ-Z There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation as
ZEFTZ A=+ —HEEEARE at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023. Deferred tax
HIRLETIE - BEHIBEERIRNE assets are recognised to the extent that sufficient future
B SR IR B R B A ] (IR AV 1B taxable profits will be available for realisation. The unused
TR EWHR o KRBT EE A R tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely.
HAggEE o
RTZEAA - EEAERREERIE There is no significant amount of deferred tax assets/
BE/REREEE - liabilities to be settled within twelve months.
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16. IREREHIES 16. Cash and short-term funds
2024 2023
FET TFETT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
$E1TIE S Cash at banks 913,754 1,128,772
RITEETER Time deposits with banks 51,739,077 50,696,426
ReMBHELR Gross cash and short-term funds 52,652,831 51,825,198
He MEHESHRERE Impairment allowance on cash and
(Hf3E3.2(0) short-term funds (Note 3.2(c)) (5,649) (4,147)
52,647,182 51,821,051
HBETREERTNE  BeRkEZERBEIER For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and
AENTEREE A= 8 sA N - cash equivalents comprise the following balances with

original maturities of three months or less.

2024 2023
F#&x TFETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RITIR % Cash at banks 913,754 1,128,772
SRITEBATFER Time deposits with banks 41,562,077 49,999,426
RENERRSIBR Cash and cash equivalents 42,475,831 51,128,198
17. FEWFI B REESR 17. Interest and remittance receivables
2023
FETT
HK$'000
PATR 278 i) JE U 2, Interest receivables from:

— F AL — interest rate swap contracts 2,575,665 2,767,783
— EBEHERE — investment securities 191,886 154,657
— RITEHTER — time deposits with banks 297,330 250,373

B E KU S Interest receivables and instalments,
KEZ RS H R in transit from loan portfolio 156,498 197,565

3,221,379 3,370,378

346 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2024



18. T €mTH

(a)

TTETRHER

AEERATITET RS A AEH
e Bl

EREHNA O RERRB AL
TERIE R B S EIMNEmAGE - B
R A R B S DA — 43R M B4R
A—HBRTRENEE - HFHEHE
K F R RMEASEIR - [RET
BRI ZERXZ TS REBRA
T ARENEERRARSHEFR
RERTEEAMBEERRANNE

A - REBERBRENEBE R ZEH
FRBRERKS  FEZNERHEER

G
AA

o

ETREESRTIANEEESE AN
e MR RIERH TARZHE—E
FEEEVEAE - HER MRS BB AR IR
ReERENTRIATEZRNAF
& - Bt - AR RS EE R
EEHBEBER - BEE TSN RE
KRS E AR RE) - FTET ARTEE
HAKBEELER(BE)HTH (R
BINTE - TESRITANGLK
FECEETE - DA NS
BE RTAETESMEERBEY
NFHAE - FIRE AR ATRIRE) o Prfs
BNTET AR TESRN T

18. Derivative financial instruments

(a)

Use of derivatives

The Group uses the following derivative instruments to
hedge the Group's financial risks.

Currency forwards are commitment to purchase or sell
foreign currency at a pre-specified exchange rate on a future
date. Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result in
an exchange of currencies or interest rates or a combination
of all these. No exchange of principal takes place except
for certain currency swaps. The Group’s credit risk
represents the potential cost to replace the swap contracts
if counterparties fail to perform their obligations. This risk
is monitored on an ongoing basis under a prudent treasury
counterparty risk management framework.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments
provide a basis for comparison with instruments recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position but do
not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows
involved or the current fair value of the instruments and,
therefore, do not indicate the Group's exposure to credit or
price risks. The derivative instruments become favourable
(assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations
in market interest rates or foreign exchange rates relative to
their terms. The aggregate contractual or notional amounts
of derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to
which instruments are favourable or unfavourable, and thus
the aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and
liabilities, can fluctuate significantly from time to time. The
fair values of derivative instruments held are set out below.
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&R/ /
258 AV 2558 R
Contract/ Fair values Contract/ Fair values
notional 8E g notional BE afE
amounts Assets Liabilities amounts Assets Liabilities
T Fign T T THTL TbT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
e RBHREHAE Derivatives not qualified as hedges
MiTETR for accounting purposes
— Fli — interest rate swaps 4,601,054 35,329 (2.802) 6771769 55,587 (4,779)
— EitisE — currency swaps 8,109,388 152,812 (8,338) 7322928 34,270 (39,197)
— EEREAH — currency forwards 2,878,363 5,204 (3,024) 2,715,097 669 (5,897)
193,345 (14,164) 90,526 (19,873)
ATEERITAETER Fair value hedge derivatives
— Fl&izH — interest rate swaps 110,629,191 212,397  (596,795) 99,654,192 283,590 (737,144)
— BB — currency swaps 52,465,683 258,420  (1,127,930) 61158725 454426 (1,800,484)
470,817 (1,724,725) 738016 (2537,628)
RemEmiTELR Cash flow hedge derivatives
— EMeE — currency swaps 388,397 456 (1,760) 2,998,250 - (238,021)
456 (1,760) - (238,021)
BRRTETA Total recognised derivative assets/
B/ (R 0E (iabilities) 664,618 (1,740,649) 88502 (2825520)
(b) ¥fihiESH (b) Hedging activities
iWHTE T AER A FELIRHIA SR Derivatives may qualify as hedges for accounting purposes if
i EEREmE - STEIEA they are fair value hedges or cash flow hedges.
IREFRF S R ERE ©
(i) AFEHH (i)  Fair value hedges
AEENRFEEHREZRE The Group's fair value hedge principally consists of
ARREREZEITEBESA interest rate and currency swaps that are used to
B K AT B A E B P 5| B protect interest rate risk and foreign currency risk
1) 2= [ Ba A0 NG [ Bz A ) 2= A0 resulting from any potential change in fair value of
B¥tEHE o underlying debt securities issued.
(i) BEREH (i)  Cash flow hedges
AEEGFHABREREHANE The Group hedged the portion of foreign exchange
Bt B AN SHERN £ risks arising from variability of cash flows from foreign
TERSREBMEERINE currency denominated financial instruments using
B pER D © currency swaps under cash flow hedge.
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19.

B R E 5 BRRIER

BSBER/MEREEREE

AEER_F_TFEHREFEREOBEHR )
ERERRTS - WEBREEFED /N
BB AR D i AT 2B A S AN S e s A S B

B AR AN E -
RIRULETE) - TKEE B BB HE
E’\Htﬂj%\f%ﬁé %52 HEE B KBS A

ﬁL%%H’JEﬁﬁ$E HEBBER -
ZEEFABT2RER -

BRI R BIE BB R F N 2.5% 2
NHHE - ZFEFNBEHNBRASEES
MBS R —REERITHRAXE
BRXERT -

ZEEREREFHZRI0FE -
AEERGERNT=

a3
EAAEBEBTER -

BS ERAEREIHEE

AEER_FT_=FHHIBIBERER
HIRETE - RS ERBIABREHE
REARNBREESLETIRR SN
FREIRATRIER - AREE T ERER
BRET  UBPHEREREEXELTEN

TEIBABR  JUHMERNLTEERR
AEE L -

RIBUETE] - ERHS BN EFHREIL
E’iﬁtﬁ%#ﬁé Ei% BB B SR A S LA

BERENOARAEEHERBAER
ZEERBBRT2EER -

BN BB BB 4 FI % 2.5% % 14
FIE - REERHSENG AR EE L
B A R AR B — ARAE I RATIR B 14 9
REEA -

19.

Loans with 100% guarantee from the
Government

100% SFGS

The Group introduced special 100% SFGS in 2020. This measure
aims to alleviate the burden of paying employee wages and rents
by small and medium-sized enterprises which are suffering from
reduced income, thereby help minimise enterprise shutting down
and layoffs.

Under this scheme, loans are originated by participating lenders.
Upon origination, these participating lenders would sell the loans
to the Group without recourse. These loans are fully guaranteed by
the Hong Kong Government.

An interest rate of the Prime Rate minus 2.5% per annum is
charged to the borrowers. These loan interest, net of the funding
costs and relevant general operating and administrative expenses
incurred by the Group, are passed to the Government.

The maximum repayment period of the loan under the guarantee
is 10 years, with an option of principal moratorium for up to forty-
two months.

DLGS

The Group introduced DLGS in 2023. This measure aims to assist
eligible operators, registered vehicle or ferry owners of cross-
boundary passenger transport, licensed travel agents, local tour
bus operators and registered owners to support their business
resumption, and to encourage taxi owners to replace their
liquefied petroleum gas, petrol or hybrid taxis with electric taxis.

Under this scheme, loans are originated by participating lenders.
Upon origination, these participating lenders would sell the loans
to the Group without recourse. These loans are fully guaranteed by
the Hong Kong Government.

An interest rate of the Prime Rate minus 2.5% per annum is
charged to the borrowers. These loan interest, net of the funding
costs and relevant general operating and administrative expenses
incurred by the Group, are passed to the Government.
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BOBTIEREERAELRE D BER
ERFEHEFENBEERNEFTENER
BBARERMER - BERBFED
BB K - BRI ERE ARE
EREFAECHERNE  NEHBER
AREREEEFORERS - —REE
RATEBASZ o Fat B W S grz (anE)
HEXBA - AEEARKEXER °

The maximum repayment period of the loan under the guarantee
is 10 years, with an option of principal moratorium for up to twelve
months.

Accordingly, loan default losses are covered by the Government’s
guarantee in relation to loans with special 100% SFGS and
DLGS, and no impairment allowance is recognised in view of the
minimal default risk of the Government. All loan interest received
is set aside to meet the funding costs, general operating and
administrative expenses in relation to the purchase and servicing
of the loans of the Group. The remaining balance of the interest
received, if any, will be passed to the Government. The Group is
responsible for the operation of the product.

2024 2023

TR TET

BTt A 2 A ERANER -

HK$'000 HK$'000

Loans with 100% guarantee from

the Government under:

— B BRI EEERE — 100% SFGS 82,555,165 97,172,516
— BN BEERER=ESE — DLGS 227,533 189,840
82,782,698 97,362,356

20. EREESIEE
(a) MAFEESLHANBEHEE

20. Loan portfolio, net

(a) Loan portfolio at FVPL

e
2023
T 7T
HK$'000
FEZRBERES Residential mortgage portfolio 2,572,791 1,892,572
HtWEREE Other loan portfolio 24,067 14,473
2,596,858 1,907,045
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(b)

(c)

REBERAIIRNERES (b) Loan portfolio at amortised cost

2023
FAT
HK$'000
FERIBEE KA Residential mortgage portfolio 2,816,547 2,804,860
EEER Infrastructure loans 7,290,487 7,361,398
HAftb Others 71,725 90,379
10,178,759 10,256,637

BB ERE (H3E3.20) Allowance for loan impairment

(Note 3.2(h))

— FERBEREES — residential mortgage portfolio (6,849) (2,134)
—EZFZER — infrastructure loans (52,940) (22,555)
— HAb — others (1,853) (1,531)

(61,642) (26,220)
10,117,117 10,230,417
EREEBEEEGEERES (c) Total allowance for loan impairment as a percentage
EREEFSEHROERE of the outstanding principal balances of the loan
portfolio

2024 2023

,\mﬂﬁﬁéﬁ%@“ﬁﬁ TX4H4  Total allowance for loan impairment

BB D as a percentage of the gross
loan portfolio 0.61% 0.26%
ELEERRERER EZRERR Allowance for loan impairment has been made after taking
JERITE ° into account the current market value of the collateral.

2024 2023

FEERBSEEEERHES  Grossimpaired loan portfolio as a
REEHBE D (MFE3.29) percentage of gross loan portfolio
(Note 3.2(g)) 0.02% 0.02%
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21. BHKRE

(a) AFEEZFAEME2EI
AR HIRE

B EIRNERES

21. Investment securities

(a) Investment securities at FVOCI

2024
TERT

2023
THAET
HK$'000

HK$'000

Debt securities at fair value:

—REBLM — listed in Hong Kong 1,846,255 1,067,317

— REBIRIN LT — listed outside Hong Kong 1,758,951 1,442,220

3,605,206 2,509,537

—3Em — unlisted 116,615 -
AAFEEZ LT AEMBETR Total FVOCI securities

WS o5 L w5 3,721,821 2,509,537

UATFEEC AR M2 EREHE
SOEERES  HPANRLRE
EREE RS - TAEBISALE
R ES 2 E BN B EABBK

FVOCI securities comprise debt securities where the
contractual cash flows are solely principal and interest and
the objective of the Group’s business model is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial

BEHRETERTECRHEENE assets.
EE °
BETHRBREANDITAREEZ 5T FVOCI securities are analysed by categories of issuers as
AHMEEWROEBESOT ¢ follows:
2024 2023
F#&x TFETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RIT R E & RS Banks and other financial institutions 971,385 711,499
NalhE Corporate entities 837,460 931,689
N Y Public sector entities 1,044,727 361,587
PR Central governments 868,249 504,762
3,721,821 2,509,537
ARAFEZ T AR 2 E KRR E The movement in FVOCI securities is summarised as follows:
SR EghmaT
2023
TATT
HK$'000
n—A—H As at 1 January 2,509,537 1,244,974
Bl Additions 1,512,090 1,440,325
& K EE Sales and redemption (281,942) (195,990)
B Amortisation 1,746 1,442
NE(EEEF) Change in fair value 25,687 33,396
N[ 5, Z=RE Exchange difference (45,297) (14,610)
R+-_A=+—H As at 31 December 3,721,821 2,509,537

BRRE FEERRAKEEER
0 B0 B R Y 5 3.2(d) B

Information on the impairment, credit quality and the
Group's exposure to credit risk are disclosed in Note 3.2(d).
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(b)

(c)

UaEEZTANERNES (b)

R&E

Investment securities at FVPL

AT EFRNZ SEEES Exchange-traded funds at fair value:

—RBEBLEM — listed in Hong Kong 9,774 9,870
AR EZ LT AR Total FVPL securities
EHaeE 9,774 9,870

e [CERSRN s T e S
ATEB(CH AR 2T RS2
RBFEEE S NBHEEH AL
ATER{CE AR -

RATESCAA BRSO EENED
BRI

The Group classifies investment securities in exchange-
traded funds at FVPL, which do not quality for measurement
at either amortised cost or FVOCI.

The movement in FVPL securities is summarised as follows:

2023

FET

HK$'000

Rn—H—H As at 1 January 9,870 9,628

NEEED Change in fair value (48) 238

HNESTE 3, 22 %8 Exchange difference (48) 4

RT=ZHA=+—8” As at 31 December 9,774 9,870
HEERAIIRMEFIRE (c) Investment securities at amortised cost

2B 5H AN D1 R BV 1B 7% 8 55

Debt securities at amortised cost:

—REBLEM — listed in Hong Kong 5,715,799 6,631,315
— RBEBRINET — listed outside Hong Kong 6,190,447 4,172,749
11,906,246 10,804,064
—3JEm — unlisted 3,204,074 3,774,592
RN ATIRAFE SR E Gross investment securities
4a%E at amortised cost 15,110,320 14,578,656
RSN TRV B AR E R  Impairment allowance on
LB (M 5E3.2(d)) investment securities at amortised
cost (Note 3.2(d)) (4,850) (4,671)
PR S R AN B IR 1Y) P55 4B B8 Total amortised cost securities 15,105,470 14,573,985
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AEBERREFEATREZBR
B DEREFRE D BAREIHEK
AFIME :

e XBEANBEABEEEMN
WEREKHESRE &

o  REANKKERTERBNE
EREDZEANIMNAREM
NEERZEORE

REITHIBIRR 2 TR E AT 35K
ARHREFESFLAT

The Group classifies investment securities at amortised cost
only if both of the following criteria are met:

o the asset is held within a business model with the
objective of collecting the contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding.

Amortised cost securities before impairment are analysed by
categories of issuers as follows:

2024 2023

TExT T 7T

HK$'000 HK$'000

RIT R E A S phikE Banks and other financial institutions 4,520,414 6,077,582
NG Corporate entities 6,149,201 5,794,619
N T Public sector entities 1,936,527 1,070,127
AR SR AT Central governments 2,002,795 1,636,328
Hith (EZBEEES) Others (infrastructure-related bond) 501,383 -
15,110,320 14,578,656

Rl (L A1) 422 8 B P 7R 51 ) 2 ) S D
BT -

The movement in amortised cost securities before
impairment is summarised as follows:

2023

FH&TT

HK$'000

n—HA—H As at 1 January 14,578,656 13,147,658
140 Additions 6,434,043 3,945,347
HE M EEE Sales and redemption (5,848,597) (2,507,695)
By Amortisation 68,635 51,452
HNEEEE 2= 5E Exchange difference (122,417) (58,106)
R+=—_A=+—8 As at 31 December 15,110,320 14,578,656
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22. Placements with the Exchange Fund

The Group has classified the placements of the HKMCA and the
HKMCI with the Exchange Fund as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. As at 31 December 2024, the balance of the
placements with the Exchange Fund amounted to HK$49.2 billion
(2023: HK$34.1 billion) (Note 31(a)), comprising a total principal
sum of HK$42.5 billion (2023: HK$28.7 billion) plus income earned
and accrued but not yet withdrawn as at the reporting date, which
represented the premium and capital placements made by the
HKMCA and the HKMCI.

The placements with the Exchange Fund are invested in the
Investment Portfolio and Long-Term Growth Portfolio of the
Exchange Fund, subject to a lock-up period. The rate of return on
the placements with the Exchange Fund is determined annually.
For Investment Portfolio, the rate of return is calculated on the
basis of the average annual rate of return on the portfolio over
the past six years or the average annual yield of three-year
Government Bond in the previous year (subject to a minimum of
zero percent), whichever is the higher. With respect to the Long-
Term Growth Portfolio, the rate of return is determined based on
the current year time-weighted rate of return.
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23. MIBABHRE

RZB_ME+_A=+—H " ' ARAH
IEMBARFENT

23. Interests in subsidiaries

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31
December 2024 are as follows:

AEMER I .56

ERTRARRAHE
(BB HERI)
Particulars of issued and

RN
(FEKEA)
FERONEDE
Percentage of
shares held by

RSNl P
(FHKEA)
FERONEDE
Percentage of
shares held by
the Company's

Place of FTEEE fully paid up share capital the Company subsidiary
incorporation Principal activities (Class of shares) (or its nominee)  (or its nominee)
AARIBEEBRAR Eib RAEEETEERIBREN 1,000,005 7 (@) 100% TR
HKMC Mortgage Management Limited Hong Kong ERRE  AEENEEZ  HKS1,000,000 (Ordinary) N/A
HREERE  REEEE
ERRREFEER ML
Zi
Mortgage purchase and
servicing, servicing of
outstanding microfinance
oans, and origination of
reverse mortgage loans and
policy reverse mortgage
loans, all for the Group
BRRERRERAR &b —RRBER 15,000,000,000 77 (£ BR) 100% TEm
HKMC Insurance Limited Hong Kong General insurance business HK$15,000,000,000 (Ordinary) N/A
ERFEERAR BB RERBER 12,500,000,000 77 (£ BR) 100% TEm
HKMC Annuity Limited Hong Kong Long term insurance business  HK$12,500,000,000 (Ordinary) N/A
HKMC Premier Solutions Limited &5 AASEREEHRER 100787 (L) TER 100%
Hong Kong BRI RAERE HK$100 (Ordinary) N/A
Provision of marketing and
business development

services and related facilities
to the Group
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24, AfTRIE - HERHEMBEE

24. Prepayments, deposits and other assets

2024 2023

T T

HK$'000 HK$'000

NECHEFEH Corporate club debentures 910 910

EE S IFH R W OE CSA receivables 308,854 523,485
EiRE BB EE D 31TE AR Receivables from securities issued

FE UG IE for settlement after the reporting date - 1,000,000

HiEE Other assets 76,223 57,637

385,987 1,582,032
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25. BE&EE 25. Fixed assets
(a) BElE&EELE (a) Movement in fixed assets
BREE
nEN
FREEE BAERE
Right-of-use BRR%ER
assets on Office
leased HEWEXE  equipment, RE
properties  Leasehold furniture 2K Motor g
for own use improvement and fixtures  Computers vehicle Total
TET TEx TiEx TET FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
WZZE-=%-F—H  Costasat1lanuary 2023
PR 201418 60792 19,509 332,557 1,154 615,430
1 Additions 132,726 47% 1867 30,586 565 170,542
Wi/ be Written-off/disposals 41,293) (3,18¢) (707) 7,619 - (52,805)
NZE-=%+_f Cost as at 31 December 2023
=+—BHRA 292,851 62,400 20,669 355,524 1,719 733,167
) Additions 24,705 3,185 3606 28991 - 60,487
Wi/ He Written-off/disposals (23589) (284) 5 7772) = (31,650)
R-E-_ME+-H Cost as at 31 December 2024
=t-HRMEA 293,967 65,305 24,270 376,743 1,719 762,004
RZZZ=F—F—HK  Accumulated depreciation
ZEE asat 1 January 2023 (93,749) (32,385) (13063) (287,564) (893) (427,654)
& (HE12) Depreciation charge (Note 12) (39527) (10,096) 2920 (29473) (142) (82,158)
s/ hE Written-off/disposals 41,293 3186 707 7,619 = 52805
R-E-=F+-f Accumulated depreciation
ZT—BMEGTE as at 31 December 2023 (91,983) (39,295) (15,276) (309,418) (1,035) (457,007)
& (K 12) Depreciation charge (Note 12) (50,797) 7,952 (2,766) (27.997) (236) (89,748)
i/ e Written-off/disposals 23,589 24 5 7772 - 31,650
RZZ-mE+ZR Accumulated depreciation
=T-RNRHE as at 31 December 2024 (119,191) (46,963) (18,037)  (329,643) (1,271)  (515,105)
RZE-NE+=A As at 31 December 2024
==
KA Cost 293,967 65,305 24,270 376,743 1,719 762,004
ZETE Accumulated depreciation (119,191) (46,963) (18,037)  (329,643) (1,271)  (515,105)
REFHE Net book amount 174,776 18,342 6,233 47,100 448 246,899
W=B-=£+-A As at 31 December 2023
==k
AR Cost 292,851 62,404 20,669 355,524 1719 733167
ZiE Accumulated depreciation (91,983) (39,295) (15,276) (309,418) (1,035) (457,007)
REFE Net book amount 200,868 23109 5393 46,106 684 276,160

358 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2024



(b)

HE

BN K5I R A B E & & 5 a0
T

Leases

The statement of financial position shows the following
amounts relating to leases:

EREEE —8BF

Right-of-use assets — buildings 174,776 200,868

HEBE: Lease liabilities:
——FR — within 1 year 49,262 34,049
—HiB—F — over 1year 127,707 161,075
176,969 195,124

HERERESHHMNT

The movement in lease liabilities is summarised as follows:

®n—H—H As at 1 January 195,124 109,781
1% 40 Addition 21,753 120,525
BoE Amortisation 8,338 2,591
HENHFI LD Interest portion of lease payments (8,338) (2,591)
HENRAE RS Principal portion of lease payments (39,908) (35,182)
MRZZT-_WFE+_A=+—H Asat31December 2024 176,969 195,124
BE-_T-_mE+—-—A=+—HItE The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31
. S 4 7 458 550,828,000 December 2024 was HK$50,828,000 (2023: HK$39,514,000).
HBIT(ZE =% : 39,514,000%7T) °

HE-_Z_NWF+-_A=1+—HILtF
E - {3 FAAE & E 3 HN 24,705,000 7 7T
(ZZT =% :132,726,000% ) °

malaks T ABEENSEN
T~

EREEENE —B8F

Additions to the right-of-use assets for the year ended 31
December 2024 were HK$24,705,000 (2023: HK$132,726,000).

The consolidated income statement shows the following
amounts relating to leases:

2023

TAET
HK$'000

Depreciation charge of right-of-use
assets — buildings 50,797 39,527

Interest expense

8,338 2,591
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AEEEESTHAE  MEHEE
Bl R7NF - BHH T ATt &R
RIEE -

RASELELT SN MEHEE
HeBREE MK ILRERE - KED
BHRERRIEERETHARET
£ - MIFERMMHEA -

26. FEFFFIR

The Group leases various offices and rental contracts are
mainly made for fixed periods of six years but may have
extension options as described below.

Extension and termination options are included in property
leases of the Group for operational flexibility. The majority of
extension and termination options held are exercisable only
by the Group and not by the respective lessor.

26. Interest payable

2024 2023

FER T

AT B IERERFR -

HK$'000 HK$'000

Interest payable from:

— BETEKES — debt securities issued 2,907,719 3,182,932
— MEEBHEH — interest rate swap contracts 429,198 499,175
—HEMaE — other liabilities 5,407 2,308

3,342,324 3,684,415

liabilities

27. FEFTIRIE « FEETRIZ R HEME 27. Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other
&

2023

FHTT

HK$'000

FEASIRIE K FE AT 52 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 2,988,126 1,937,813
HihaE Other liabilities 894,445 1,901,803
HEa & (F5E25(0) Lease liabilities (Note 25(b)) 176,969 195,124
H b Other provision 73,126 72,729
4,132,666 4,107,469

HihBEEEREFNEMEERAET
A4S BB RS (A 3E33) REASEER
T2 (MH3E31(@) TR B B B R B RER (B
K 8 2= & 18RI R 52 ) 894,445,000 7T (=
T — =4 : 1,901,803,000/87T) °

Other liabilities represented mainly the guarantee fee
and fund received (net of claims and related expenses) of
HK$894,445,000 (2023: HK$1,901,803,000) under the special
concessionary measures of the SFGS (Note 33) and the PLGS
(Note 31(a)).
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28. RIGEBERBIRIGEE 28. Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets

BENBETHAFEBRRAN - 3% The breakdown of portfolios of reinsurance contracts held,

e X RAFEZBRREHNRESHAE insurance contracts issued and reinsurance contacts issued, that

HNRTE are in an asset and those in a liability position is set out in the table
below:

2024 2023
EE &8 i BE afa ik

Assets Liabilities Net Assets Liabilities Net
FET TET TER AL TAT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FEEBRBEN Reinsurance contracts held
— iRk — general insurance 1,081,689 - 1,081,689 761,043 - 761,043
FERRREH Insurance contracts issued
— iRk — general insurance - 6,017,192 6,017,192 - 4,991,968 4,991,968
ASRR — life insurance - 18,833,695 18,833,695 - 14296229 14,296229
- 24,850,887 24,850,887 - 19288197 19,288,197
FERBERREA Reinsurance contracts issued
ASRE — life insurance - 195,009 195,009 - 87,648 87,648
28.1 R EBRIESY - IEER 28.1 Reinsurance contracts held, insurance contracts
[GEHIRFTEEBRESH issued and reinsurance contract issued
(@) HMEEBRBAEL IR (@ Roll-forward of net asset or liability for reinsurance
A RFIERBRRE LW contracts held, insurance contracts issued and
EEFENEEFREY (B reinsurance contracts issued showing the liability for
TRB TN REAERFTELS remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims
RBEET)
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iy FRBBRBREH — — (i)  Reinsurance contracts held — general insurance
A IR
FrfsE BiRE & A E The roll-forward of the net asset or liability for
EFEIAEFHEED reinsurance contracts held, showing assets for
(BAREZTHRRAR remaining coverage and amounts recoverable
B 3 765 P A D8R TR on incurred claims arising business ceded to
REEREELRRT reinsurers is disclosed in the table below:
I El & 58) N T RIFE -
BTRREE ThELE
Assets for Amounts
remaining coverage recoverable
g
WEEESS WEEEDS MEERE
Excluding
Ioss-recovery Loss-recovery Incurred
component component claims
(i T Thn Thn ThT
Notes HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS'000
R—A-ANERRANEE ReinsLirance contract assets
asat 1 January 249,002 506,104 5,937 761,043
BAURRRGARENERED Changes in the consolidated
income statement and

consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

ERRNRELE Allocation of reinsurance premiums
HATREEEZSAENLE Amounts relating to the changes
in the assets for remaining coverage 3 (68,390) - - (68,390)
ARELNRRREMFZN Amounts recoverable for claims and other
AYEEE expenses incurred in the period - - 25,335 25,335
FECRRAREHELN Changes in amounts recoverable
AESERS arising from changes in iabilty
forincurred claims - - 7,386 7,386
HEELEESDEED Changes in fulflment cash flows which
BHELTEREY Telate o onerous underlying contracts b - 388,591 - 388,591
FERERRANN(FR)/MAZE  Net(expenses)/income from
reinsLirance contracts held (68,390) 388,591 3211 352,922
ERRADMETE k) /MAFE  Netfinance (expenses)income
from reinsurance contracts C (119,542) 9,780 = (109,762)
ERRATTROERESNT 2 Effect of changes in non-performance
risk of reinsurers (4,544) - - (4,544)
(124,086) 9,780 - (114,306)
GARRRREASENSREHEE  Total changesin the consolidated income
statement and consolidated statement
of comprehensive income (192,476) 398,371 32,721 238,616
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BIRBEE HhELE
Assets for Amounts
remaining coverage recoverable
et
KEFESS WEEESS FELHRE
Excluding
loss-recovery Loss-recovery Incurred
component component claims
iR T T Tén TEn
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ReRE Cash flows

BARBRENGR Premiums and similar expenses paid 96,082 - - 96,082

BhEE Amounts received - - (21,099) (21,099)

Renesy Total cash flows 96,082 - (21,099) 74,983

EHENHR Other reclassification 7,132 - (85) 7,047

Rt=A=T-RNERREH Reinsurance contract assets

BE as at 31 December 159,740 904,475 17,474 1,081,689

Bt Notes:

a. BRENRES LR a. Included within the allocation of reinsurance premiums
BAEBEEARNTH are non-recoverable expenses incurred by the Group,
B - BEITHRE directly attributable to fulfilment of reinsurance
EBERBRENEEN contracts held.

2710

b. Wi FT R & b. Changes in the expected fulfilment cash flows on
KHER ) TEEE AR reinsurance contracts held which relate to groups of
LRMEERIBE NE underlying insurance contracts are recognised in profit
R AIELARBRBR S 4V and loss if the changes in expected fulfilment cash
AREENREE R flows from the group of underlying insurance contracts
RBEEHNHIESHELD issued was also recognised in profit and loss.

FEARETR ©

c. N5 B 5 B AR R BE 7S C. The Group disaggregates net reinsurance finance

WAFERNERRE income between profit or loss and other comprehensive

fio 2 T3 2 B -
BB 2 BIM 2 2.220)
e

income. Please refer to Note 2.22()(v) for details.
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; ThESE
Assets for Amounts
remaining coverage recoverable
TREREE EEESA FELRR
Excluding
loss-recovery Loss-recovery Incurred
component component claims
BT TAL TAL AL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
R-A-BHERRANEE Reinsurance contract assets
asat 1January 204,413 167,408 4,552 376,373
SABERRGA2EKEZES  Changes in the consolidated
income statement and

consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

BRENRELE Allocation of reinsurance premiums
HAMRBAEZDABNLE Amounts relating to the changes
in the assets for remaining coverage  a (132,941) - - (132,941)
BREENRRREMFERN Amounts recoverable
hEEE for claims and other expenses
incurred in the period - - 74,054 74,054
FELRRAREPELN Changes in amounts recoverable
hEEEE arising from changes in liability
forincurred claims - - 1,305 1,305
SERHARAORRY Changes in fulfiment cash flows
BORETERD which relate to onerous
Underlying contracts b - 336,281 - 336,281
FrABRRALNN () MAFE Net (expenses)income from
reinsurance contracts held (132,941) 336,281 75359 218,699
BRRANMETE H) /WAFE  Netfinance (expenses)/income
from reinsurance contracts © (55,151) 2415 = (52,736)
BRBATTENEREDNTE  Effect of changes in non-performance
risk of reinsurers (4,725) - = (4,725)
(59,876) 2415 = (57,461)
GARERREAZERERZSEE Total changes in the consolidated
income statement and consolidated
Statement of comprehensive
income (192,817) 333,696 75,359 221,238
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BT

Assets for Amount
remaining coverage recoverable
TeEhEEESS e FELRR
Excluding
loss-recovery Loss-recovery Incurred
component component claims
i F7 TAL BT
Notes HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ReRE Cash flows
ERRERENRS Premiums and similar expenses paid 24,877 - - 264,877
BhisE Amounts received - - (73,960) (73.960)
ReNENs Total cash flows 24877 - (73.960) 190917
EHERAR Other reclassitication (27471) - (1) (27,485)
Rt=A=t-REEREAY Reinsurance contract assets
EE as at 31 December 249,002 506,104 5931 761,043

fi

a2y

BRENFREDSEES
BEASEELENTA
WERFS - EETTAH
EBERBRAENEREE
@ -

i 48 B9 AT 2% B ARBR &
WERNEREDHR
EnBERBEAME
7 BIEERRRA K
AR R FT RSB B
R A KNTREELD
RenEZEHNTNE

& E % B AR R B 7S
WA FEN R R H
f2ERE 2B
#1555 2 B MY L 2.220)
(U

Notes:

Included within the allocation of reinsurance premiums
are non-recoverable expenses incurred by the Group,
directly attributable to fulfilment of reinsurance
contracts held.

Changes in the expected fulfilment cash flows on
reinsurance contracts held which relate to groups of
underlying insurance contracts are recognised in profit
and loss if the changes in expected fulfilment cash
flows from the group of underlying insurance contracts
issued was also recognised in profit and loss.

The Group disaggregates net reinsurance finance
income between profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Please refer to Note 2.22(i)(v) for details.
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iy FEERBREH — & (i) Insurance contracts issued — general insurance
R
R e NN EE The roll-forward of the net asset or liability for
FESEEFEE D (F insurance contracts issued, showing the liability
TREEMSR TREE for remaining coverage and the liability for
BERAEERRBE)RN incurred claims for portfolios, is disclosed in the
TER#EE ¢ table below:
204
BIRBAR fEtRRAE
LRC Lic
TEEEEND E&d2
Excluding loss Loss
component component
TEn TR TER Tén
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R—A-RNRBANAR Insrance contract liabiltes
asat 1 lanuary 3,408,458 1,526,940 56,570 4,991,968

BAURERGARENERED Changes in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive

income
REUA Insurance revenue
NFEAETRAY Contracts under fair valug approach (194,924) - - (194,924)
el Other contracts (723,591) - - (723,591)
(918,515) - - (918,515)
RERESEX Insurance service expenses
FELERREMHES Incurred claims and other expenses - (72,033) 140,670 68,637
RREERCTEEH Amortisation of insUrance acquisition
cash flows 3 238,000 - - 238,000
BRI ONERRZSERER Losses on onerous contracts and
reversals of those losses - 1,258,773 - 1,258,773
MELBREEEY Changes to liability for incurred claims - - 23,405 23,405
238,000 1,186,740 164,075 1,588,815
REREEE Insurance service result (680,515) 1,186,740 164,075 670,300
{RIaBHHE (A /it Insurance finance (income)/expenses b (239,808) 30,454 - (209,354)
GARRERGASERAZEESE  Total changes in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated Statement
of comprehensive income (920,323) 1,217,194 164,075 460,946
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BIRBAR fELREZEE
LRC LiC
TEBERD -t
Excluding loss Loss
component component
T T T Tén
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RefiE Cash flows

BliRE Prernium received 934,886 - - 934,886

ERBRREMERRY Claims and other directly attributable

expenses paid - - (106,370) (106,370)

BREEEs =g Instrance acquisition cash flows C (272,291) - - (272,291)

RenelE Total cash flows 662,595 - (106,370) 556,225

OS] Other reclassification d 10,276 1,551 (3,774) 8,053

RT=A=t-RHRRANER Insurance contract liabilities

as at 31 December 3,161,006 2,745,685 110,501 6,017,192

B Notes:

a. BEREREREAR a. Acquisition cash flows were allocated on straight-line
HHE R H FAREBAE A basis during the coverage period of the respective
LEZREDE - F2H group of contracts. Please refer to Note 2.22(e).
Mi5E2.22(e) ©

b. 7 55 B H AR B B b. The Group made an accounting policy choice to
B EEEREAM disaggregate insurance finance expense between profit
2HEHKZ2HASER or loss and other comprehensive income. The Group
BETBREE - AKE does not disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment
4% 1% IE & Bh R BR Y for non-financial risk between insurance service result
BB 78 B ) MR R and insurance finance expenses.

B 75 3£ 48 R 4R R B1 75
S ZEDHF ©

C. R )R T R A B 48 7 c. Insurance acquisition cash flows paid after the related
BXAHRBRERR group is initially recognised are adjusted to the liability
ERMEFEEH TR for remaining coverage.

BEE-
d. HitEH o RERR d. Other reclassification relates to where the accounting

BRNBEANRESR
EFEENETER
ERARBAZHBM
SR R E At B S SRR
HETHEEESR
B - B BRETE
AR E) A B A
B 15 R IR B £ 1T
FEFREE o

treatment of some overheads included with the cash
flows within the boundary of an insurance contract are
grouped under other financial statement line items in
the statement of financial position. A reclassification
is made with a corresponding adjustment to such
other financial statement line items in the statement of
financial position.
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TaEEE B85
Bxcluding loss L0ss
component component
i Thr T i Th
Notes HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
R-A—-BHRRANERE Insurance contract liabities
asat 1 January 2,908,854 735,890 3,712 367645
GRURRRGR2ENERED Changes in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income
REUA Insurance revenue
NFEETRAYN Contracts under fair value approach (265,247) - - (265,247)
Hah Other contracts (522,289) - - (522,289)
(787,53) - - (787,53)
REEREX Insurance service expenses
FELERREMES Incurred claims and other expenses - (35817) 58,652 2283
RBEERSREEH Amortisation of insLirance acquisition
cash flows 3 184,190 - - 184,190
BRI ONERRAZERER Losses on onerous contracts and
reversals of those losses - 818,615 - 818,615
FELRRNEERD Changes to iability for incrred claims - - 17m .M
184,190 782,798 75,863 1,042,851
RREREE Insurance service result (603,346) 782,798 75,863 255,315
REEHBRR Insurance finance expenses b 273 5715 - 28449
GARRRREFASENAREEE  Total changesin the consolidated income
statement and consolidated Statement
of comprehensive income (580612) 788,513 75863 23,764
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Rk

Excluding loss L0ss

component component
ST Thr T
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

RéfiE Cash flows

BhRE Premium received 1917867 - - 1917867

ERBRREMERRY Claims and otfer directly attributable

expenses paid - - (59943) (59.943)

RREERSTE Insrance acquisition cash flows (651,800 - - (651,800)

ReRstR Total cash flows 1,266,067 - (59,943) 1,206,124

HEH A8 Other reclassification (185,851) 2537 8938 (174,376)

RHZR=t-AfRRANAR Inurance contract liabiltes

asat 31 December 3,408,458 1,526,940 5,570 4,991,968

Bt Notes:

a. BERESRENZA a. Acquisition cash flows were allocated on straight-line
#)48 B &9 & AR B A R basis during the coverage period of the respective
EREDE - F2H group of contracts. Please refer to Note 2.22(e).

Fi5E 2.22(€) °

b. 7N 55 B 1 H A 1R B Bt b. The Group made an accounting policy choice to
B HEE=EREAM disaggregate insurance finance expense between profit
2HKEZHASER or loss and other comprehensive income. The Group
SEHRERE - AEH does not disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment
I £ 3 I £ B R R 5 for non-financial risk between insurance service result
[ B 3 B P MR B and insurance finance expenses.

RR 75 2% 48 % 1R B 81 75
S ZEDHF ©

C. R AR A B 48 5 c. Insurance acquisition cash flows paid after the related
BENHRBREER group is initially recognised are adjusted to the liability
EMEFEEHR TR for remaining coverage.

BEE-

d. HihEEH D HFERER d. Other reclassification relates to where the accounting
AHEEARNNE SR treatment of some overheads included with the cash
ERhEENETER flows within the boundary of an insurance contract are
EHWERAESMBR grouped under other financial statement line items in
SR A b B 7 Rk the statement of financial position. A reclassification

HEHTHRFIREESR
B - B BREET
R A A B A A
B 15 R IA B A 1T

is made with a corresponding adjustment to such
other financial statement line items in the statement of
financial position.
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@iy FEERRELH — ASE (i) Insurance contracts issued — life insurance
R
R e NN EE The roll-forward of the net asset or liability for
FESEEFEE D (F insurance contracts issued, showing the liability
THEENBR TRREE for remaining coverage and the liability for
RFIEAERREBE)RT incurred claims for portfolios, is disclosed in the
RIEE table below:
204
BTRIBERE fELREZER
LRC Lic
TaEFES E&d2
Excluding loss Loss
component component
T T T Tén
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R—A-RNRBANAR Insrance contract liabiltes
asat 1 lanuary 10,549,149 3,692,363 54,717 14,296,229

BAURRREARELERED Changes in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive

income
RERUA Insurance revenue
NHEETHAN Contracts under fair value approach (211,375) - - (211,375)
Hthadh Other contracts (185,378) - - (185,378)
(396,753) - - (396,753)
RERESEX Insurance service expenses
FELERREMHES Incurred claims and other expenses - (269,562) 617,506 347,944
RREERSTEEN Amortisation of insurance acquisition
cash flows 3 16,209 - - 16,209
BRIEGONERRZSERER L0sses on onerous contracts and
reversals of those losses - 1,322,103 - 1,322,103
16,209 1,052,541 617,506 1,686,256
REHS Investment components (569,450) - 569,450 -
RERELE Insurance service result (949,994) 1,052,541 1,186,956 1,289,503
RBEES Insurance finance expenses b 184,971 97,014 899 282,884
BANSRREASEREREDEE  Total changes i the consolidated income
statement and consolidated Statement
of comprehensive income (765,023) 1,149,555 1,187,855 1,572,381
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BTRRAE fELRRAE
LRC Lic
TEEEEND EERa
Excluding loss Loss
component component
Tén TEn TEn TEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ReRE Cash flows

EHRE Prernium received 4,259,102 - - 4,259,102

BRRREMERRS Claims and other directly attributable

£Xpenses paid - - (1,180,048) (1,180,048)

REEER G2 Insrance acaisition cash flows ¢ (113975) - - (113,975)

Renses Total cash flows 4,145,127 - (1,180,048) 2,965,079

RTZA=t+-BRREAHER Insurance contract liabilities

as at 31 December 13,929,253 4,841918 62,524 18,833,695

Bt Notes:

a. BERSRENZA Acquisition cash flows were allocated on straight-line
#MHE R B AR EIE A basis during the coverage period of the respective
BEHREDE - F2H group of contracts. Please refer to Note 2.22(e).
BizE2.22(e)

b. N5 B VE H A 1R B Bt The Group made an accounting policy choice to
BXEEBRIEREM disaggregate insurance finance expense between profit
2EKEZEDERN or loss and other comprehensive income. The Group
SETHERE - AEH does not disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment
4 45 IE S B R B for non-financial risk between insurance service result
B[ AR R IRE and insurance finance expenses.

BR 75 3% 48 K 4R B BA 75
S ZEAHF ©
C. R E R A B 48 Bl Insurance acquisition cash flows paid after the related

B NHRBBEER
EREABER TR
A -

group is initially recognised are adjusted to the liability
for remaining coverage.
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TMfEFE B85
Bxcluding loss L0ss
component component
i Thr ThL i Th
Notes HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
R-A—-BHRRANERE Insurance contract liabities
asat 1 January 8,406,988 3653860 36,009 12,096,857
GRURRRGR2ENERED Changes in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income
REUA Insurance revenue
NFEETRAYN Contracts under fair valuie approach (233983) - - (233.983)
HhAH Other contracts (101428) - - (101,428)
(340,411) - - (340,411)
REEREX Insurance service expenses
FELERREMES Incurred claims and other expenses - (235,276) 535,392 300,116
RBEEREREEH Amortisation of insLirance acquisition
cash flows a 9553 - - 9,553
BRIt ONERRAZERER Losses on onerous contracts and
reversals of those losses - w0 - mn7
9,553 (12,259 535,392 532,686
e Investment component w8891 = 176891 -
REREEE Insurance service result (807,749) (12259) 1012283 192275
REEHBRX Insurance finance expenses b 1,504,047 50,762 303 1,595,112
GARRFREASENAREEE  Total changesin the consolidated income
statement and consolidated statement
of comprehensive income 736,098 38,503 1,012,586 1,787,387
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TaEEE Bt
Excluding loss L0ss
component component
it T Thr T
Notes HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

RéfiE Cash flows

BhRE Premium received 1523810 - - 1523810

ERBRREMERRY Claims and otfer directly attributable

£Xpenses paid - - (993878) (993878)

RREERSTE Insrance acquisition cash flows C (117.947) - - (117.947)

RefEeR Tota cash flows 1405863 - (993879 411,985

RTZR=T-BHRBANAR Insrance contract liabilties

as at 31 December 10,549,149 3,692,363 54717 14,2929

B Notes:

a. BERESRERNRS a. Acquisition cash flows were allocated on straight-line
#) 48 B &) &R BRI R basis during the coverage period of the respective
LEZREDE - F2H group of contracts. Please refer to Note 2.22(e).
Mi5E2.22(e) ©

b. A= E e SRR B b. The Group made an accounting policy choice to
B HERR REAM disaggregate insurance finance expense between profit
2EkEZESEH or loss and other comprehensive income. The Group
EETBRERE - AKE does not disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment
I £ 5 IE £ 7 AR B for non-financial risk between insurance service result
2\ R 3 2K 2 B R R R and insurance finance expenses.

B 75 3£ 48 AR R B1 75
X ZEDH ©
c. A6 HE R A B 48 B C. Insurance acquisition cash flows paid after the related

BXNHRREER
EMBRABEHR TR
mEafE -

group is initially recognised are adjusted to the liability
for remaining coverage.
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vy FIREBRBREY — A (iv)  Reinsurance contracts issued — life insurance

SRR

e BREEaHNEE The roll-forward of the net asset or liability for
FESE BT (BERAE reinsurance contracts issued, showing the
MR TNRE & ERFT liability for remaining coverage and the liability
EERRBE) N TEE for incurred claims for portfolios, is disclosed in
3 the table below:
204
BT RIBER FELRZER
LRC Lic
TafEBRES EERD
Excluding loss Loss
component component
it 47 TaR Ta7
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-A-RARBADAR Insurance contract liabiltes
asat1 lanuary 79310 7,938 400 87,648

SAPERRSA2EKRZED  Changesin the consolidated income
statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

REBUA Insurance revenue
ATEETHAN Contracts under fair value approach - - - =
Hhoat Other contracts (4,762) - - (4,762)
(4,762) o = (4,762)
REREHX Insurance service expenses
HMELERREMES Incurred claims and other expenses - (1,241) 6,043 4,802
BRERONBRRZSFERE L08Ses on onerous contracts and
reversals of those losses - 19,955 - 19,955
- 18,714 6,043 24,751
REHS Investment components (3,659) - 3,659 -
REeREEE Insurance service result (8,421) 18,714 9,702 19,995
REHBLL Insurance finance expenses a 938 943 - 1,881
BANGRRIEASENGERESEE  Total changes in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated statement
of comprenensive income (7,483) 19,657 9,702 21,876
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BTRRAE FELHRRER

LRC LIC
TafEEESD EE3%
Excluding loss Loss
component component
T T Thn TEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BeRE Cash flows
EhRE Premium received 94,659 - - 94,659
ERBRREMERRY Claims and other directy attributable
£XDenses paid - - (9,174) (9,174)
RenelE Total cash flows 94,659 - (9,174) 85,485
RtZR=t-ANRRENER Insurance contract liabilities
as at 31 December 166,486 21,595 928 195,009
B Note:
a. 7N 55 [ 37 4% A5 AR B B a. The Group does not disaggregate insurance finance

B iR kA
2HEWEZEAH 0 T
A I 2 R ) A
fex 5 B B 3 N R BR AR
BEERRREBX
HZRDH

expense between profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and does not disaggregate changes in the risk
adjustment for non-financial risk between insurance
service result and insurance finance expenses.
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Bxcluding loss L0ss
component component
T T
HKS'000 HKS'000
R-A—-BHRRAY Insurance contract (assets)/liabiliies
(B%)/ B asat 1 January - - i i

GRURRRGR2ENERED Changes in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive

income
REHA Insurance revenue
AFEETHARN Contracts under fair valug approach - - - -
Hah Other contracts (836) - - (836)
(836) = = (836)
REEREX Insurance service expenses
FELERREMES Incurred claims and other expenses - (137) 3,055 2918
BRIEGONERRASERER Losses on onerous contracts and
reversals of those osses - 7947 - 7947
- 7810 3,055 10,865
REED Investment componets (533 - 53 .
ReRREE Insurance service result (1,369) 7810 3588 10,029
RipEHR Insurance finance expenses 3 8261 128 - 8,389
BAREERGASERAZEEESE  Total changes in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated Statement
of comprehensive income 6892 7938 3,588 18413
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Rk

Excluding loss L0ss

component component
5T Thr T
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

RéfiE Cash flows

BhRE Premium received 72418 - - 72418

ERBRREMERRY Claims and otfer directly attributable

£Xpenses paid - - (3,188) (3,188)

Reiieen Total cash flows 748 - (3189) 69230

Rt-R=t-ANRRANAR Insurance contract liabifties

as at 31 December 79310 7,938 400 87,648

BiE Note:

a. 7N 2 [ S £ 1 R PR B a. The Group does not disaggregate insurance
B HREEREAM finance expense between profit or loss and other
2EMEZ BT - IR comprehensive income and does not disaggregate
EARESE AR R changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk
% B E MR 2 AR between insurance service result and insurance finance
B HEERRBE B X expenses.

2D ©
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(b) FAFEBRBREXN - AFEER (b)
BRA O RMFEEBRRE KN
EEFEXEEFRLH(R
TIAKREREFREMGEE

Roll-forward of the net asset or liability for reinsurance
contracts held, insurance contracts issued and
reinsurance contracts issued showing estimates of the
present value of future cash flows, risk adjustment and

[E S T & A A RIS W e ) CSM
() FIFEEBEREEL (i) Reinsurance contracts held

TREJMEFABRR
BHMBEEFEXAE

The table below presents a roll-forward of the net
asset or liability for reinsurance contracts held,
showing estimates of the present value of future
cash flows, risk adjustment and CSM for reinsurance
held portfolios included in insurance unit.

ARBREBLHMATE B
R AR A B R AR 2R
EREMNRE - BB
BRADRM R -

2024

SRR RS
CSM

AREERE
Rt

FERERN
el E
Estimates of Risk
the present  adjustment for

value of future  non-financial Fair value
cash flows risk approach Others Total
iR T T T T Tén
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AFE

’-A-BHERRAK

Reinstrance contract (iabilities)/

(BfE)/4E assets as at 1 January (134,622) 351,089 157,515 387,061 761,043
SAURRRGA2EUHERHEE  Changes in the consolidated
income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
HESRBEBNEE Changes that relate to
current service
FEEXREERNAORKNE  CSMrecognised for the
services received - - (23,765) (51,308) (75,073)
HESHEREINERSEE Risk adjustment recognised for
the risk expired - 13,159 - - 13,159
BHRE Experience adjustment (2,258) - - - (2,258)
(2,259) 13,159 (23,765) (51,308) (64,172)
EARBREBNEE Changes that relate to
future service
BAARINAY Contracts initially recognised
in the period 3 (52,748) 1119 - 51,629 -
ARANRBRRNAT 2D Changes in estimates that
adjust the CSM 320,778 (242,952) 36,340 (114,166) =
PEFEANRERERETES  Changes i estimates that
(o not adjust the CSM b 111,155 298,553 - - 409,708
379,185 56,720 36,340 (62,537) 409,708
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2024

Gl e
CSM
ARBETE FERERN
REME L E AYER
Estimates of Risk
the present  adjustment for
value of future ~ non-financial Fair value
cash flows risk approach Others Total
LiFd Thn T T THr THn
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HRLREEBRNES Changes that relate to
past service
HEEERRIANAR Adjustments to incurred claim
component 1,584 5802 - - 7,386
BRREH () /WA ReinsLrance finance (expenses)/
income ¢ (125,730) - 2,894 13,074 (109,762)
BREANTENRREDNFE  Effectof changesinnon-performance
risk of reinsLrers (4,544) - - - (4,544)
(128,690) 5802 2,894 13,074 (106,920)
GAKSRREGAZANER Total changes in the consolidated
288 income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income 248,231 75,681 15,469 (100,771) 238,616
RefiE Cash flows
BARBRENHR Premium and similar expenses paid 96,082 - - - 96,082
BREBR Claims recovery received (21,099 - - - (21,099)
Renesy Total cash flows 74,983 - - - 74,983
EENDR Other reclassification 7,047 - - = 7,047
Rt=B=t-AHBRRAH  Reinsurance contract assets
&g as at 31 December 195,645 426,770 172,984 286,290 1,081,689
Bi%E Notes:
a. FRVBREREHN a. Please refer to Note 28.1(c)(iii) for a detailed breakdown
FHARRAAN - FE2EAMTEE of initially recognised contracts.
28.1(c)(iii) °
b. i FEBE T 32 3 R A b. Changes in the expected fulfiiment cash flows on
BRI TEH R AR reinsurance contracts held which relate to groups of
EREERB=EARE underlying insurance contracts are recognised in profit
72 AIEERRBR A 4 and loss if the changes in expected fulfilment cash
BRIEBRFTES B flows from the group of underlying insurance contracts
R A XN TEEE 4 issued are also recognised in profit and loss.
=NFER ©
C. REB S BREMBE C. The Group disaggregates net reinsurance finance
WAFREREERE income between profit or loss and other comprehensive

2 EW a2 E D o income. Please refer to Note 2.22()(v) for details.
+F 15 75 2 B B 3 2.22()

V) °
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’-A-BHERRAN

ReinsLirance contract (iabilities)/

i
!

Estimates of

the present

value of future

cash flows

ik ThL

Risk
adjustment for
non-financial
risk

Thr

Fair value
approach

Others

(8F)/E& assets as at 1 January (291,486) 304538 78,200 285,121 316,373
BARBERRSA2ENEZEY  Changesin the consolidated
income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
HEARERENED Changes that relate to
current service
SEESRERANANORKAE  CMrecognised for the
services received - - (26,347) #1,030) (67,383)
SERERREANEREE Risk acfustment recognised for
the risk expired - 13158 - - 13,158
E538E Experience adjustment (14431) - : - (14431
(14.431) 13,158 (26,347) (41,036) (68,656)
HRRBHRRNEE Changes that relate to
future service
BRI H Contracts initially recognised
inthe period a (189,909) 19111 = 174849 4,051
FRANRBRANENED Changes in estimates that
adjust the CSM 178,076 (240,523) 104,601 (42.154) -
TeREANRRUENEES  Changesin estimates that
(o not adust the CSM b 87,107 254,292 - - 341,99
75874 32,880 104,601 132,695 346,050
HREREEBNEE Changes that relate to
past service
HEEERZIANAR Adjustments to incurred claim
component 792 513 - - 1,305
B{RIER (i) /WA Reinsurance finance (expenses)/
income ¢ (64,078) - 1,061 10,281 (52,736)
BRRAGFEOERESNFE  Effectof changesinnon-performance
risk of reinsurers (4,725) - - - (4,725)
(68,011) 53 1,061 10,281 (56,156)
GAbERRGA ZARER Total changes in the consolidated
29i% income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (6,568) 46,551 79,315 101,940 21238
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Estimates of

thepresent ~ adjustment for
value of future non-financial Fair value
cash flows risk approach Others
Thr ThL Thr Thr
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 00 HK§/000
K3l | Cash flows
BARBRENAY Premium and similar expenses paid 24877 - - - 24,877
BREER Claims recovery received (73960) - - - (73960)
ReRetE Total cash flows 190917 - - - 190917
HEH A8 Other reclassification (27.485) - - - (27.485)
RTZA=Z+-BHBRKAY  Reinsurance contract (labilties)/
(BfE)/&& assets as at 31 December (134622 351,089 157515 37,061 761083
B E Notes:
a. FRVREREHNN a. Please refer to Note 28.1(c)(iii) for a detailed breakdown
SRR - F2 MM of initially recognised contracts.
28.1(c)(iii) °
b. HMEBMEERRE b. Changes in the expected fulfilment cash flows on
4RI B TEHI B 49 3R reinsurance contracts held which relate to groups of

B ERNBE A
R RIEARRRA L
ARIEBENMEA B
RRAEONTEBRRED

& RNEE K BRE VB G,
WAFERIBSERE
thEm 2 BDHF o
B2 B E2.220)

V) °

underlying insurance contracts are recognised in profit
and loss if the changes in expected fulfilment cash
flows from the group of underlying insurance contracts
issued are also recognised in profit and loss.

The Group disaggregates net reinsurance finance
income between profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Please refer to Note 2.22(i)(v) for details.
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iy FEERBREH — & (i) Insurance contracts issued — general insurance
R

TREJMBEZRRA
HWMBEEFERABF
BEY ERBETIARAR
RenEREMMGE -

The table below presents a roll-forward of the net
asset or liability for insurance contracts issued,
showing estimates of the present value of future
cash flows, risk adjustment and CSM.

2 58 2E B & #0 AR 75 W

Zs o
g

’-A-BfRBANAE

Insurance contract liabilities

AREERE
Ritfst

Estimates of
the present
value of future
cash flows
TER
HK$'000

FERERN
BA%

Risk
adjustment for
non-financial
risk

T
HK$'000

2024

ARRBRE
CSM

ATEL

Fair value
approach
TR
HK$'000

Others
TiEn
HKS$'000

Total
-7
HKS'000

asat 1 January 310,015 1,279,262 1,109,769 2,292,922 4,991,968
SAURRRGA2EUHERSEY  Changes in the consolidated
income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
EOREEENEE Changes that relate to
current service
SARERBREINEORENE  CMrecognised for the
services provided - - (236,495) (441,198) (677,693)
SERAREREINEREE Risk adjustment recognised for
the risk expired - 19,065 - - 19,065
BHRE Experience adjustments 46,750 - - - 46,750
46,750 19,065 (236,495) (441,198) (611,878)
EARBREBNEE Changes that relate to
future service
AN R D Contracts iniially recognised
inthe period (628,784) 36,801 - 612,909 20,926
EECrliv et Changes in estimates that
adjust the CSM 114,206 56,003 (11,080) (159,129) -
TeRBANRBUANEES  Changesin estimates that
o not adust the CSM 1,271,506 (33,659) - - 1,237,847
756,928 59,145 (11,080) 453,780 1,258,773
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2024

ARENE
(2}
ARBERE  FERERY
REMET BRA% AVEE
Estimates of Risk
the present  adjustment for
value of future  non-financial Fair value
cash flows risk approach Others Total
i Thn T T ThT Thn
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
RBCREERNEE Changes that relate to
past service
SEEERZHARELOEE  Adustmentstoliabiities for
incurred claims 2,031 21,374 - - 23,405
RERELE Insurance service result 805,709 99,584 (247,575) 12,582 670,300
R (RA) /B Insurance finance income)/
eXpenses b (321,261) - 20,357 91,550 (209,354)
GRNGRRGAZENGR Total changes in the consolidated
9% income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income 484,448 99,584 (227,218) 104,132 460,946
RefiE Cash flows
BhRE Premium received 934,886 - - - 934,886
BN RERAMAY (BERE Claims and other expenses
BARREES) paid (inclucing investment
components and premium
refunds) (106,370) - - - (106,370)
RREERSTE Insrance acquisition cash flows ¢ (2712,291) - - - (2712.291)
Reiieen Total cash flows 556,225 - - - 556,225
HENDR Other reclassification d 8,053 - - - 8,053
Rt=B=t-AHRREH Insurance contract liabilities
& as at 31 December 1,358,741 1,378,846 882,551 2,397,054 6,017,192
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BT -

BHMBERS N
FAERRAE - 2R
28.1(c)(i) »

AN 55 B S AR B B
BXHARERR R
Hofth 2 s 2 A
BRI REORE - ARE
I £ 3 JF & B B Y
e B ) 2B 2 B Y R IR
BR 75 55 48 B AR B B 75
X Z D o

A #1467 R A B8 48 5
B NHRBRBEER
EREBRABEHR TR
BRE -

H A B D HRERR
ERNBEANRESR
EFEENETER
ERRBEAZHHMN
LR A A B 7 R
HETHMEEES
B - B BAHETS
R 3R A A B A
B mRIAB AT
FEREE o
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Notes:

Please refer to Note 28.1(c)(i) for a detailed breakdown
of initially recognised contracts.

The Group made an accounting policy choice to
disaggregate insurance finance expense between profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. The Group
does not disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment
for non-financial risk between insurance service result
and insurance finance expenses.

Insurance acquisition cash flows paid after the related
group is initially recognised are adjusted to the liability
for remaining coverage.

Other reclassification relates to where the accounting
treatment of some overheads included with the cash
flows within the boundary of an insurance contract are
grouped under other financial statement line items in
the statement of financial position. A reclassification
is made with a corresponding adjustment to such
other financial statement line items in the statement of
financial position.



R-A-BHREAH

InsLrance contract (assets)/liabilities

Estimates of

the present

value of future

cash flows

i BT
Notes HKS'000

adjustment for
non-financial
risk

?

Fair value
approach
Tin

(BE)/8% asat1January (77,265) 991,310 1,348,995 143416 3,676,456
GENERRES2EYERED Changes in the consolidated
income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
ERREABNED Changes that relate to
current service
PFREREEINADREAE  CSMrecognised for the
Services provided - - (263488) (320802 (584,290)
FEOBEREINEREE Risk adjustment recognised for
the risk expired - 25560 - - 25,50
FEEE Experience adjustments (14219 - - - (14,219)
(14219 25,560 (263,488) (320802 (572,949)
HARBHEBHED Changes that relate to
future service
BANRERNAY Contracts nitally recognised
nthe period a (1,168,588) 51836 = 1123693 691
BELRBRRNETED Changes in estimates that
adjust the CSM (85,267) 29418 6,037 19812 -
MERERNRBREN G 2D Changes in estimates that
do not adjust the CSM 631828 172,284 - - 804,112
(592,027) 263538 6,037 1,143,505 811,003
RECREEBNEE Changes that relate to
past service
FAEERRH AR RS Adjustments to iabites for
incurred claims 8357 8,854 - - 171
RERELE Insurance service result (597,8%9) 287952 (257,451) 822,703 255315
(RIRETS (W) /B Insurance finance (income)/expenses b (46,579) - 18205 56,803 28,449
GalRRREAREhER Total changes in the consolidated
2988 income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprenensive income (644,468) 287952 (239,206) 879,506 283764
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A=k
Estimates of Risk
the present adjustment for
value of future non-financial Fair value
cash flows risk approach Others
iF3 T Thr
Notes HKS'000
BenE Cash flows
BRE Premium received 1917867 - - - 1917867
BRERREMFER (BERE Cleims and other expenses
B RRERZ) paid (nclucing investment
components and premium
refunds) (59943) = - = (59943
ReBERLT= Insurance acquisttion cash flows c (651,800) - - - (651,800)
RERELE Total cash flows 1,206,124 - - - 1,206,124
AERIR Other reclassification d (174,376) - - - (174,376)
WA= T-BHREAS Inurance contract liabities
af asat 31 December 310,015 1,219,262 1,109,769 2292922 4991968

B3 Notes:

a. FRVBREREHNE a. Please refer to Note 28.1(c)(i) for a detailed
AR - B2RM breakdown of initially recognised contracts.
28.1(c)(i) °

b. AN 52 B H A 1R B B b. The Group made an accounting policy
BxHoKREER R choice to disaggregate insurance finance
H A % Yoz 2 i #Y expense between profit or loss and other
BHBRER - AKE comprehensive income. The Group does not
3§ IE & Eb R R A disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment
BB AR E R IRR for non-financial risk between insurance
AR 75 E 4R R AR B B 75 service result and insurance finance expenses.
X ZEDHF ©

C. 45 HE R A B 48 B C. Insurance acquisition cash flows paid after
BIHHRREBEER the related group is initially recognised are
EREFABEZEHR TR adjusted to the liability for remaining coverage.
BEE-

d. HitEHHHERR d. Other reclassification relates to where the
ANBERNNBE SR accounting treatment of some overheads
EFREENETER included with the cash flows within the
ERWBEEMERK boundary of an insurance contract are
W P A B S 3R R grouped under other financial statement line
HE THEEESR items in the statement of financial position. A
B8 - EN D EAEIG reclassification is made with a corresponding
MRERFPEEEEAM adjustment to such other financial statement
B sR R IEE #ETHE line items in the statement of financial
JEFIEE position.
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(iii)

FIRBRRAEKN — AS

ol

TREJMBHRRA
AMBEEFERBEF
HEY BERETRK
RenEREMNMGKET -
2\ iz 58 BE B & #0 AR 755 W

Zs o
iy

’-A-BHRBANAE

Insurance contract liabilities

(iliy  Insurance contracts issued — life insurance

The table below presents a roll-forward of the net
asset or liability for insurance contracts issued,
showing estimates of the present value of future
cash flows, risk adjustment and CSM.

AREERE
Rttt

Estimates of

the present

value of future

cash flows

i3 TER
Notes HK$'000

FERERN
Risk
adjustment for
non-financial
risk

T
HK$'000

2024

ARRBRE
CSM

AV

Fair value
approach Others
TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000

Total
TExn
HKS'000

asat 1 January 14,150,143 146,086 - - 14,296,229
SANRRRGA2EUHERNSD  Changes in the consolidated
income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
HEHRBAENED Changes that relate to
current service
FERBRREINERER Risk adjustment recognised for
the risk expired - (8,102) - - (8,102)
RS Exgerience adjustments (24,498) = = g (24498)
(24,498) (8,102) - - (32,600)
BARBRERNES Changes that relate to
future service
BRERINEH Contracts initally recognised
inthe period 3 1,378,199 59,512 - - 14377111
TEREANRBRRNETES  Changesinestimates that
(o not adjust the CSM (132,006) 16,398 - = (115,608)
1,246,193 75910 - - 1,322,103
RERH£E Insurance service result 1,221,695 67,808 - - 1,289,503
RiEHH Instrance finance expenses b 202,884 - - - 282,384
GARRRREFAZERERS  Total changesinthe consolidated
2915 income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income 1,504,579 67,808 - - 1,572,387
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2024

aRRENE
CsM

AREERE  FERERN
RiEff EhEE AYER

Estimates of Risk
the present  adjustment for
value of future  non-financial Fair value
cash flows risk approach Others Total
i Thn Thn T Thr TEn
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
RéfE Cash flows
BhRE Premium received 4,259,102 - - - 4,259,102
EREENEST Claims and other expenses paid
(BERESHRREER) (including investment components
and premium refunds) (1,180,048) - - = (1,180,048)
RREEEARS Insurance acquisition cash flows C (113,975) - - - (113,975)
REnEnE Total cash flows 2,965,079 - - - 2,965,079
RtZA=t-RHREBAY Insurance contract liabilities
af as at 31 December 18,619,801 213,894 - - 18,833,695
BisE Notes:
a. FRVBREREHN a. Please refer to Note 28.1(c)() for a detailed breakdown
AR - MM of initially recognised contracts.
28.1(c)) »
b. 7N 5 B {E W A R B B1 b. The Group made an accounting policy choice to
BXHoFEERR disaggregate insurance finance expense between profit
Hfh % E a2 A or loss and other comprehensive income. The Group
SETECRERE - AKE does not disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment
7 4% 145 IF & Bh R B BY for non-financial risk between insurance service result
[ B 3 B 2 B PO R B and insurance finance expenses.
Rk 75 3£ 4& R AR BR BA 75
S 2 B o
C. R R A 48 B C. Insurance acquisition cash flows paid after the related
BENHREBESE group is initially recognised are adjusted to the liability
SMEABEHR TR for remaining coverage.

BAfE -
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Estimates of
the present adjustment for

value of future non-financial Fair value
cash flows risk approach
i BT Thn
Notes HKS'000
R-F-BHRBANER Insurance contract igbilties
asat1January 11,976,636 120171 - - 12,096,857

SANBEREARERERNEE  Changesin the consolidated
income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

REBREAENED Changes that relate to
current service
SEABEREINERAR Risk adjustment recognised for
the risk expired = (4,435) - = (4.435)
HEELS Experience adjustments (26:307) - - - (26,307)
(26,307) (4435) - - (30,742)
EAREHAENED Changes that relate to
future service
BANRERNAY Contracts nitially recognised
inthe period a 36,704 16090 - - 52,794
-E LRl e Changes in estimates that
(o not adjust the CSM 155,963 14,260 = = 170223
192,667 30,350 - - 223017
REREEE Insurance service result 166,30 5915 - - 192275
REETHLH Insurance finance expenses b 1,595,112 - - - 1,595,112
FRRGRREARENRRY Total changes in the consolidated
2907 income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprenensive income: 1761472 5915 - - 1,781,387
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Estimates of
the present adjustment for
value of future non-financial Fair value
cash flows risk approach
Thn Thn
HK$'000 HK$'000
g Cash flows
EHRE Premium received 1523810 - - - 1523810
BRBRRAMRR Claims and other expenses paid
(BERESARREER) (inclucing investment components
and premium refunds) (993878) - - - (993878)
RBEERLTE Insurance acquisttion cash flows c (117,947) - - - (117.947)
RERELE Total cash flows 411,985 - - - 111985
WA= T-BORRAN Insurance contract liabities
ffE as &t 31 December 14,150,143 146,086 - - 14296209
Bt Notes:
a. FRVBREREHNT a. Please refer to Note 28.1(c)(i) for a detailed breakdown
FEARAAE - SE2RKT of initially recognised contracts.
28.1(c)(i) °
b. 7N 55 B 1 A AR B B b. The Group made an accounting policy choice to
BxHoHEER R disaggregate insurance finance expense between profit
Hib2E K= 2 Hr or loss and other comprehensive income. The Group
BEBUREE - A5 E does not disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment
7 4% 1% I & Bh R BR A9 for non-financial risk between insurance service result
[ B 3 EE 2 B A R B and insurance finance expenses.
Pl 75 25 48 B AR B BA 75
S Z EAHF ©
c. R A T R A B 4 R c. Insurance acquisition cash flows paid after the related
BEAHRBERSR group is initially recognised are adjusted to the liability
EREFBEZH TR for remaining coverage.
BEE-
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(iv)  Reinsurance contracts issued — life insurance

The table below presents a roll-forward of the net
asset or liability for reinsurance contracts issued,
showing estimates of the present value of future
cash flows, risk adjustment and CSM.

2024

ARREHE  FERERN
Rt BREE  SHREUE
Estimates Risk

of the present  adjustment for
value of future  nonfinancial

cash flows risk CSM Total
(i3 T Ti#n Ti#n TERL
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-A-BHRRANEE Insurance contract liabiiies as at 1 January 86,694 954 - 87,648
GRURRRGARENEREE Changes in the consolidated income statement
and consolidated statement of comprehensive
income
REDRBERNED Changes that relate to current service
SR BTRREINEREE Risk adjustment recognised for the risk expired - (24) = (24)
FEELS Experience adjustments 64 - - 64
64 (24) - 40
HARBHABNED Changes that relate to future service
BMRINAY Contracts initally recognised in the period 18,759 1,189 - 19,948
AeRBELNRBRENEHED Changes in estimates that do not ajust the CSM (147) 154 - 7
18,612 1,343 - 19,955
RERELE Insurance service result 18,676 1,319 - 19,995
REEH Insurance finance expenses 3 1,881 - - 1,881
GElBRRGR 2GR Total changes in the consolidated income statement
L% and consolicated statement of comprehensive
income 20,557 1319 - 21,876

EHREBEERAT —T-—mEFH 391



SmEBEHRERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARELRE  FERERN
REMT BREE  SOREUE
Estimates Risk

of the present  adjustment for
value of future  nonfinancial

cash flows risk CSM Total
i T T T Tén
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RéhE Cash flows

BhiRE Premium received 94,659 - - 94,659

BARRREMES (RERE Claims and other expenses paid (including investment

B5 RRER) compongnts and premium refunds) (9,174) - - (9,174)
FERseR Total cash flows 85,485 - - 85,485
RT=A=t-AfRE Insurance contract liabilities

ANEE as at 31 December 192,736 2,213 - 195,009

B Note:

a. 7R & B 3 £ 5 1R R BE a. The Group does not disaggregate insurance
B R B R EAM finance expense between profit or loss and other
2EKEZEDHF o A comprehensive income. The Group does not
& EI &G IESFR disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment for non-

CEELEE T TS
R 18 FR A5 2 48 5 AR IR
B 2 A -
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R-A-BRRBAN(EE)/8F

Instrance contract (assets)/iabilities as at 1 January

Estimates

of the present
value of future
cash flows
Thr
HKS'000

%

Risk
adjustment for
non-financial

HK$'000

Total
a7
HK$'000

HK$'000

GRRERRARRARERED

RERREARNZS
RERSRRERNERER

Changes in the consolidated income statement
and consolidated statement of comprehensive
income

Changes that relate to current service

Risk adjustment recognised for the risk expired

2083

- (1)

R Experience adjustments - - 2,083
2,083 (1) - 2082

AAREHERNED Changes that relate to future service

BRMeRANaH Contracts initally recognised in the period 6,938 862 = 7800

reFEANRB LR Changes in estimates that do not adjust the CSM 54 93 - 117

6,992 955 = 7947

RREREE Insurance srvice result 9075 954 - 10029

BB Insurance finance expenses a 8,389 - = 8389

FRbERIGRZENER Total changes in the consolidated income statement

2918 and consolidated statement of comprehensive
income 17,464 954 = 18418

RefiE Cash flows

BHRE Premium received 7418 - : 7418

B REREMAY (BERE Claims and other expenses paid (including investment

BoRREER) components and premium refunds) (3,189) - - (3,188)
RERELE Totalcash flows 69230 B, B, 9230
RTZA=T-RfRR Insurance contract liabilties

ahafk as et 31 Decermber 86,691 954 - 87,648

Bt Note:

a. 7N 55 B 3 4% S 4R B B a. The Group does not disaggregate insurance
B ERBEREAM finance expense between profit or loss and other
2EREZEDHF o A comprehensive income. The Group does not
SEVEEFESHRA disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment for non-

B B 2 xR B B B Y
R AR 75 3 48 B AR R

B HZ Mo -

financial risk between insurance service result and
insurance finance expenses.
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() HEBRD (c) The components of new business

) FREBREAD 0)

FFARBEMSOFAITE
BREANAR (251
RIMBENBRRAL)
MFEB IO RN T RW

& .

Reinsurance contracts held

The components of new business for reinsurance
contracts held portfolios (all were reinsurance
contracts purchased) included in the insurance
unit is disclosed in the table below:

2024 2023

THExT TF&TT
BREEHNEE Reinsurance contracts assets HK$'000 HK$'000

REBEMARER Estimates of the present value of

(EE future cash inflows 25,405 116,545
REBEMHIRER Estimates of the present value of

flst future cash outflows (78,153) (306,454)
[ Fx 8 K Risk adjustment 1,119 19,111
B KBRS W as CSM 51,629 174,849
FIEFEEBRBREHN Cost of retroactive cover on

EENEHRBERA reinsurance contract assets

held - 4,051

394  The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2024



AR BRRA A

ST AGR B B ALY AT ER
RS OHEBH IR

THRBE

FrE3RRAN

Insurance contracts issued

FERMEH
Non-onerous
contracts
TERL
HK$'000

Insurance contracts issued

The components of new business for insurance
contracts issued included in the insurance unit is
disclosed in the table below:

2024
FiEtan @t
Onerous Non-onerous
contracts contracts
AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000

Onerous

contracts Total
TR AL
HK$'000 HKS'000

Total
TER
HK$'000

ARBLRE(TaE  Estimates of the present value of
RBEEHSRE)N  future cash outflows, excluding
RiafkE insurance acquisition cash flows 116,062 5,462,083 5,578,145 121423 1,584,877 1,706,300
RREBERSTEMst  Estimates of insurance acquisition
cash flows 257,568 301,104 558,672 664,319 21,906 692,225
KRB ERHBERGE  Estimates of the present value of
future cash outflows 373,630 5,763,187 6,136,817 785,742 1,612,783 2,398,525
FARESRARENGS  Estimates of the present value of
future cash inflows (1,015,838) (4,371,564) (5,387,402) (1,955,040) (1,575,369) (3,530,409
FERERNERAE  Riskadjustment for non-financial risk 29,299 67,014 96,313 45,605 231 6792
aHRE KR CSM 612,909 - 612,909 1123693 - 1123693
BEMAHRMAERE  Losses on onerous contracts at
HER initial recognition - 1,458,637 1,458,637 = 59,735 59,735

A IR o
EWMEBEEANTIEHAR
AEBEYEKE DA
REFAAARERE
B BABETSER
HARH R 2 X3 & BTN
EmATHAAERSER

B%
V=] °

New contracts were issued on market terms.
Onerous contracts were accepted as the Group
did not have an opportunity to reprice them
for the relevant group of policyholders and we
believe that the market has a high development
potential for future renewals and cross selling of
additional products.
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@iy FIRBEBRBREY (i)  Reinsurance contracts issued

2024

FERMAN  BRUGK B BB [
Non-onerous Onerous Non-onerous Onerous

contracts contracts Total contracts contracts
TEn Tan AR AT
MERRBAHL Insurance contracts issued HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FRBESEG (RaE  Estimates of the present value of
RBBERSHRE)N  future cash outflows, excluding

B insurance acquisition cash flows - 114,398 114,398 - 85,351 85,351
RRBERSRER  Estimates of insurance acquisition
cash flows - = = - - _

KBS ERERN G Estimates of the present value of

future cash outflows = 114,398 114,398 = 85,351 85,351
FEELTARENGE  Estimates of the present value of

future cash inflows - (95,639) (95,639) - (718413 (18413)
FEBERDAREE  Riskadustment for non-financial risk - 1,189 1,189 - 862 862

FiEARRMMIEDE  Losses on onerous contracts at
i) 3] initial recognition - 19,948 19,948 - 7,800 7,800
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28.2 SHIRFS W IR 1A IR AR AT

BB R ARREEFABRNE AR
BRERBERTRES

FREBRBAY Reinsurance contracts held
—RRiRE General insurance
FERRBEH Insurance contracts issued
—RiRE General insurance

28.2 CSM recognition in profit or loss

PR1E
Less than

1 year
TR
HK$'000

70,055

633,011

The disclosure of when the CSM is expected to be in profit or
loss in future years is presented below:

2024

1-5% 5-10% 1015 15-20% BiB205 @it
More than

1-5years  5-10years 10-15years 15-20 years 20 years Total

TR TER ThER TER TER TER

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

192,682 98,955 33,690 24,529 39,363 459,274

1,734,319 775,342 89,798 18,394 28711 3,279,605

FEABRRAN Reinsurance contracts held
—RiRE General insurance
FEERRAN Insurance contracts issued
—RiRE General insurance

PIME
Less than

1year
TR
HK$'000

66,994

579,844

2023

154 5106 10-15%F 15-20F RBNE
More than
1-5 years 5-10years  10-15years  15-20years 20 years Total
TAT TAT THT TAT AT b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

197,140 123147 53,003 38,341 65,951 544,576

1,676,870 895,958 159,957 34,26 5,216 3,402,691

AEBEFEHROFARRAALON
BRERA RGNS - AAEEM
RENBRAHTHRERELRAR -

AT BRER A NER S QO RFK
SN ERREEARBERRAN—
B o

The Group expects to recognise the CSM in profit or loss
for existing contracts within 60 years, which represents the
longest coverage period for the contracts in force issued by
the Group.

The expected timeline for the CSM recognition for

reinsurance contracts held is in line with insurance contracts
issued.
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29. BEITERBES

29. Debt securities issued

2024

TR
HK$'000

2023
T
HK$'000

TR0 88 B A 51l R 9 (B 7S 5% 35 Debt securities carried at amortised
cost
R HIE S MTN 5,799,769 11,548,631
TR SHAR ARG IR AV ETS 554258  Total debt securities carried at amortised
cost 5,799,769 11,548,631
EEAMWTERLURSHRY T Debt securities designated as hedged
WEBR S items under cash flow hedge
R HIE S MTN - 2,741,419
eEAYRIEE W AR &A% Total debt securities designated as hedged
WETE BB items under cash flow hedge = 2,741,419
EEBHHIER WL AFESHF Debt securities designated as hedged
W EH# 5 items under fair value hedge
R ER(E 5 MTN 142,499,867 147,428,447
EEAEDRIE B WA AT EE ) Total debt securities designated as hedged
R G157 5 1B items under fair value hedge 142,499,867 147,428,447
BEITERESER Total debt securities issued 148,299,636 161,718,497

ERTEFRESNESHANT

The movement in debt securities issued is summarised as follows:

2024 2023

THET TFETT

HK$'000 HK$'000

n—H—H As at 1 January 163,787,833 134,993,402
1T Issuance 103,507,595 98,329,402
W fEE Less: redemption (117,658,640) (69,456,323)
AN b, = KR Exchange difference 256,615 (78,648)
HEEEERE Total nominal value 149,893,403 163,787,833
REHITEE S Unamortised portion of discount (169,545) (114,053)
NFEFEE Fair value adjustment (1,424,222) (1,955,283)
R+=H=+—H As at 31 December 148,299,636 161,718,497
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30.

REFZBRITNES

Notes issued during the year comprise:

RHAE S MTN
BETLEAEE Amount issued at nominal value 103,507,595 98,329,402
2 UELAE Consideration received 103,114,200 98,146,625

PIAEBITHEBIEF DB A SEERA
B MBOZEEBIFEERT R
BEESMEBRERE -

(&N

All the debt securities issued are unsecured obligations of the
Group, and are issued for the purposes of providing general
working capital and refinancing.

30. Share capital

2024

2023
TAT
HK$'000

THxT
HK$'000

BETRER Issued and fully paid

20 1B A% E Ak 2 billion ordinary shares 26,500,000 14,500,000

AR A Eh T The movement in share capital is summarised as follows:
2024 2023
F#ET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
R—A—8 As at 1 January 14,500,000 12,000,000
EE Capital injection 12,000,000 2,500,000
R+=A=+—H As at 31 December 26,500,000 14,500,000
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31. HAMEALETIIMNEXRRS

@)

ARBRIREZEHEA
EESAE2EHEE - FA

B B B AR S
P R H

BREALIT BN EAR SN

T~

HRFERREEEEERNIRSE
ETHIEIA

(i)

(iif)

REBRAFERERHTEF
REEZFEATIRBEHOTE R
BERERBEREESE RSN
BRBRE2008BT(ZTE=_=
F1608BT)

REBRABBEE26/08

BIL(ZEZ=F : 24608 7%
TIEBRE (FAREESE

BEAEINER

CREEEEFRINEE DM
KRR AR B IRE B 80018
T RZEZWMF+=A
=+t —AUWEREERERE
AAMB(ZEZ=F: mEY
)

B

CREEEEFRINEESE
BABRAARRREABINE S
AHEEEIDERBTIEARE
(FFERABIR=ZZ=—F<A
Z+NB ZB=-=—FXA
—t+ttBR-_ZE-=FXA
Zt+tEHmMBEBEERANEE
BEBTLE RERNSER
2008 THIR) - EMER
ERARNBIMESFES QA
BINEE - MARREEEH
MEBES R EAREEIN
BEoERERA - BWNERR
BESFLARNERNE DR
B—EKFE &

RZZE-_WFE+=A+~8"
CREEEEFRINEE S M
ZAN/N T&Aﬁimm,%mﬁ
BERA BEWMERENAR
EIRERBR A RMEE am
ERRFEBFRE R A EN
BENEBR—EKF -

31. Material related party transactions

@)

The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries are wholly
owned by the Government for the account of the Exchange
Fund. During the year, the Group entered into or maintained
material transactions with the related parties as follows:

Transactions with the HKMA, a Government-related entity,
included the following:

(i)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

the Group paid a total fee amount of HK$2.0 million for
the year (2023: HK$1.6 million) to the HKMA in respect
of custodian and clearing agent services from the
Central Moneymarkets Unit;

the Group incurred a secondment fee of HK$26.7
million for the year (2023: HK$24.6 million) in respect of
secondees from the HKMA;

the Monetary Authority through the Exchange Fund
provided a revolving credit facility of HK$80 billion to
the Company, and there was no outstanding balance
and accrued interest as at 31 December 2024 (2023 nil
for both);

the Monetary Authority through the Exchange Fund
maintained its commitment to inject additional funds
up to HK$12.5 billion in aggregate (reduced from
the original amount of HK$20 billion after taking into
account the HK$2.5 billion capital injection each into
the HKMCA on 28 June 2021, 27 June 2022 and 27 June
2023 respectively) into the Company as equity for the
sole purpose of financing the Company’s additional
capital injection into the HKMCA and the Company
maintained its commitment to inject such additional
funds into the HKMCA as equity for the sole purpose of
maintaining the HKMCA’s margin of solvency above a
certain level; and

the Monetary Authority through the Exchange Fund
injected HK$12.0 billion capital into the Company on
16 December 2024, as equity for the sole purpose
of financing the Company’s capital injection into the
HKMCI as equity for the sole purpose of maintaining
the HKMCI's margin of solvency above a certain level.
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0]

(iii)

mERRQBRMNAK - LK
MBS AT/ NEREERT S
TEERER  ABFRER
SE2900FETHREEE
RAGE(BEAARBH N
TEREERFTETRENE D
BEFRERWER)  FIERHM
33 RED AR/ NERERE
R Bl BEEETE - BUTF
A 4% 78 R [ 22 ) 75 18 1.660 &
BIL(ZZEZ=F : 1616188
7)) EREBERRARAFE
MTTHFX

ANRREBAFRI R B
It - AR B S AGE R
BEERTI THEREES
HEEGoBER/NEREER
SFEITHEN  ARNERIE
BREARERTER - F1B
BIEE19

AR EB NG B &
It RARERAERED A
ERERBZIEE THE
BEREEEE B ERERSE
B ETHER  HBRFSE
ZERBARMEREEER K
T 9 48 4 (R 7 55 R 9 (B
TC - B RKE19 . KB EE
ERE » BUT MR FRE A A
HEOEBT(ZE=_=F:
10838 L)  EARBREREA
AIAFENITHRAY

Transactions with the Government included the following:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

the HKMCI provided 80%, 90% and 100% SFGS loan
guarantees with a total guarantee commitment up
to HK$290 billion reimbursable by the Government
(including guarantees on 100% SFGS loans acquired
by the Company), see Note 33 for details. With respect
to the day-to-day operation of the 100% SFGS, the
Government reimbursed HK$166.0 million (2023:
HK$161.6 million) to the HKMCI for the administrative
expenses incurred by the HKMCI for the year;

the Company entered into an agreement with the
Government, pursuant to which the Company
maintained its commitment to purchase from SFGS
lenders all 100% SFGS loans that are fully guaranteed
by the Government via the HKMCI, see Note 19 for
details;

the Company entered into an agreement with the
Government, pursuant to which the Company
maintained its commitment to purchase from DLGS
lenders all DLGS loans that are fully guaranteed by
the Government via the HKMCI with a total guarantee
commitment up to HK$9.1 billion reimbursable by the
Government, see Note 19 for details. With respect to
the day-to-day operation, the Government reimbursed
HK$0.4 million (2023: HK$0.1 million) to the HKMCI for
the administrative expenses incurred by the HKMCI for
the year;
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(iv) ARRRIZFERE DB RBERAF
RRIHE  RIBEWE - ARA
A2 EEAREE R E
MRAREBEEMEER - M
BRI ARARREEHES
ABB B P AR R KA 8
MER - RERBRARAAR
BERERMEANTEE NG
g - R IEBFKRIIAREER
BEARBE R B &R AL
R ZBNRFHIEECHE
ARFHHE - D183
BIL(ZTZ=F 1 147687
TT) o FA - BBRBARCHE
BRZERBASEERE
MEEA - BERRI0EET

ZEZ=F:9008 &) °
BEARFBE R B ERELH
R\ e % 10 3 R R T AECHE %

vy RZE-_NF+RA=+-—
B ARRREERB AR
B1RI78EBT(ZE=_=F:
949N EAB L) BB BT EFH
ERE - HF R AB34708 %
T(ZE-=%:21108 %
JL) °

AR B AN A A EL B A RIER AR
EERERY  AEBREATEE
EE - 2 REBRBR AR EENR
IR B METEIMERERE - ARFE
RZEREBIERRBEAZHERF]
BR - EREERRARIZZETHE
RBRIEE R BITHERS - BL2ERE
BEE AR BRRIGEIRBIREN
RREERHRREREA » AAF
ERZRBAIEEBHERREREA
ERXEAEHERRIER - e
AFEMENER

the Company and the HKMCI entered into an
agreement with the Government, pursuant to which
the Company committed to purchase all loans under
the PLGS from the participating Authorized Institutions
(Als) and the Government provided full funding to the
Company for the purchase of all PLGS loans. The HKMCI
is responsible for the operation and administration
of the PLGS. With respect to the advance payment
received from the Government to purchase loans
under the PLGS, a portion of such advance funding
was deposited with Als with an outstanding balance
of HK$189.3 million (2023: HK$147.6 million). The
HKMCI was appointed by the Government to act as the
administrator for the PLGS for a fee of HK$9.0 million
(2023: HK$9.0 million) for the year. Risks and rewards
arising from the PLGS loans rest with the Government;
and

the Company and the HKMCI held investment of
HK$1,297.8 million (2023: HK$949.1 million) in the Hong
Kong Government Bonds as at 31 December 2024
and the interest thereon was HK$34.7 million (2023:
HK$21.1 million).

The Company provided corporate support services to its
subsidiaries during the year for fees on an arm'’s length basis.
The Company had issued a parental guarantee in favour of
the participating lenders for the HKMCI's due performance
of its obligations under the insurance programmes and
schemes operated by the HKMCI. The Company had issued
a parental guarantee in favour of ceding partner insurers and
policyholders under the respective reinsurance agreements
or policies of the HKMCA to facilitate the development of the
local annuities market.
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FESHERA B RAE A TE SR ¢ Balances of amounts due to relevant related parties are as
follows:

HEES B
The Exchange Fund The Government

2024 2023 2024 2023
T FHT Ti#gx TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HNEE S F(HEE22) Placements with the Exchange Fund

(Note 22) 49,244,684 34,070,393 - =
EmBE (P27 %33)  Other liabilities (Notes 27 and 33) - - 894,445 1,901,803
(b) EEEEEAS (b) Key management personnel
FTEFTEEBABAEENEEEED Key management personnel are those persons having
REBEXRE - EBERESAEREL authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
WAL BEEERSAEEAS - controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,

including directors and senior officers.

FN - ETEZEBEEAENTMELE Compensation of the key management personnel for the
year comprised:

e MEME RS EF Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits 29,658 28,812
BERR1Z A2 T Post-employment benefits 2,573 2,537

32,231 31,349
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32.

33.

xiE
(a) &=&E

EHERETA

Authorised and contracted for

32. Commitments

(a) Capital
2024 2023
FATT
HK$'000

THxT
HK$'000

29,394 44,362

Bt EAAYEE B REEEERE R
SR -

(b) EAthikiE

RRAERAER

Undrawn loan commitments

The above capital commitments mainly relate to
commitments to purchase computer equipment and
software.

(b) Other commitments
2024 2023
FETT
HK$'000

TR
HK$'000

476,663 1,013,479

/R B R R ET S T B4 Bl
BRI

AEERRENTNEREERE TR
NERENRERREOERERE SRR
BENEREKRKT  ARRADBEHR/ B
BERRBMBGHER - BBTRE
RESERESE 290088 T °

BRANKRNAKERER  AFREERE
REMABIHERE  B$ELXZEAR
AR EREN RERRAS - A%
KA R R T BT » ATRERE 2R B T
RAEMBRZIRRER  BFSEAE
AR AEE B H IE MM EEL AER
FEERX HAKENGRAKERIE
BAEREANBARZORELREZE -
ERAEBERERRBTEEZTER
AEBERAE BILE MO R RN 5158
B o B - 5% 5 2 an HO B B A HE DR
BINAEBEEERBERINEAR

B BRI EREERAEINESF
15 B2HEMEE -

33. Special concessionary measures under the SME

Financing Guarantee Scheme

The Group provided loan guarantee products with 80% and 90%
guarantee coverage under the existing SFGS at a concessionary
guarantee fee rate, together with guarantee for 100% SFGS loans
acquired for a total guarantee commitment up to HK$290 billion
reimbursable by the Government.

Regarding the 80% and 90% guarantee products, all guarantee
fees collected under the special loan guarantee products are set
aside to meet the relevant default claims and related out-of-pocket
expenses. The remaining balance of the guarantee fees, if any, will
be returned to, and any shortfall will be borne by, the Government.
The Group is responsible for the operation of the product and
the applicable day-to-day operating costs. There is no impact on
the consolidated income statement of the Group in respect of
guarantee fee revenue and default claims. Given that the Group
operates only these products for the Government, the Group
considers the risk and rewards associated with this product rest
with the Government. Hence, the risk-in-force for these products
has not been included as the Group'’s off-balance sheet exposures.

For the 100% SFGS, please refer to Note 19 for more details.
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34.

SLEREENRBEGIEEE 34. Involvement with unconsolidated structured

entities
REEEERGEAIRESEERANER The Group acts as a sponsor and collateral manager to structured
EENRBARBHAREEA - FTEREM entities that the Group does not consolidate but in which it holds
ERERNEIRME an interest. The following table describes the type and nature of

the structured entities:

2024 2023
FRERERR HEREMN rEEfREES TET FHT
Type of structured entities  Nature and purpose Interest held by the Group HK$'000 HK$'000
EEEFEHER RESEREBREZH TS REZRABTHEER 640,826 329,703
Securitisation vehlcle for To develop an infrastructure Investment in notes issued by
infrastructure loans financing securitisation the vehicle
platform in Hong Kong REAER 23,304 19,809

Sponsor loan

FEUA Interest income 33,286 15,268
RBEAERHF EBA Interest income on sponsor loan 2,008 870
ERREREE Collateral management fee 7,043 1,092
BEAEERBARENERELSNIRE S The maximum exposure to 10ss is the carrying amount of the
B o investment in the structured entity.
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SmEBEHRERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35. ANTIHMBIRA TR HEHEE 35. Statement of financial position and reserve
£J)] movement of the Company

BANARKAFTR_-_FT_ME+_A
=+—BHHBRAR

35.1 Statement of financial position of the Company as at
31 December 2024

2024 2023
FEx T
HK$'000 HK$'000
&E ASSETS
BehEHEs Cash and short-term funds 46,314,950 46,876,199
U ) B R B FR Interest and remittance receivables 3,161,265 3,322,402
TESBMIE Derivative financial instruments 664,618 828,542
B RHE 5 BEROER Loans with 100% guarantee from the
Government 82,782,698 97,362,356
ERHEAFE Loan portfolio, net 9,307,080 9,337,433
BHIEE Investment securities:
— URFEELEA — at fair value through other
Hih 2wz comprehensive income 3,721,821 2,509,537
— AATEE G ABR — at fair value through profit or
loss 9,774 9,870
— IREE SRR ARSI R — at amortised cost 13,337,065 12,176,127
B ARIEE Interests in subsidiaries 32,981,543 21,089,334
AR - ke R EMEE Prepayments, deposits and other
assets 331,170 1,552,692
EERIBEE Deferred tax assets 4,681 17
EEEE Fixed assets 229,443 256,030
BEHAE Total assets 192,846,108 195,320,539
=1 LIABILITIES
FERF) S Interest payable 3,343,451 3,684,484
L IIEENGIES Placements by subsidiary 561,000 50,000
FERIIRIE « EETRAS R Accounts payable, accrued expenses
HibBE and other liabilities 3,356,023 3,683,136
TESMTA Derivative financial instruments 1,740,649 2,825,522
EHHIBEAE Current tax liabilities 165,598 98,666
BEITEBES Debt securities issued 148,299,636 161,718,497
BERE Total liabilities 157,466,357 172,060,305
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2024 2023

TERT FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
& EQUITY
BatEE ARMHIRA R Capital and reserves attributable
to the equity holder:
%N Share capital 26,500,000 14,500,000
R & A Retained profits 35.2 8,857,536 8,733,357
N ERHE Fair value reserve 35.2 23,518 8,158
Eapat= Hedging reserve 35.2 (1,303) 18,719
A Total equity 35,379,751 23,260,234
BERESAE Total liabilities and equity 192,846,108 195,320,539
EERER _ZE-_AFHA_-_1+/~H Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
oA R FERETIT o on 26 May 2025.
REX YUE Wai Man, Eddie fif1 52 38 POU Hak Wan
BlFEFEHNTESE Deputy Chairman and HITEEFIAL Executive Director and
Executive Director Chief Executive Officer
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SmEBEHRERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35.2 R ATIWIHEE 35.2 Reserves of the Company

RERF  ATERE Eapale i ot
Retained  Fair value Hedging

profits reserve reserve Total
FHET THET TET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-ZZE-=F—HF—H#&#% Balanceasat 1January 2023 8,734,079 (1,017) 138,966 8,872,028
AEEER Loss for the year (722) - - 722)
ﬁ’rﬂ’ﬁ@ EB),/ e Other comprehensive (loss)/income
NEES( ARMAE  Change in the fair value of debt securities
W SREREFATEE at FVoCl - 8,698 - 8,698

AATEEEIARMAE  Change in the loss allowance of debt
Hﬁl SR EREFEREE securities at FVOCI

& - 477 = 477
MBS RE R EHa T A Change in the fair value of hedging
NEEEE instruments at cash flow hedge - - (120,247) (120,247)
AEE2E(ERE)/Wzia5E Total comprehensive (loss)/income for
the year (722) 9175 (120,247) (111,794)
R=—Z-=#+=-H=+—H Balance as at 31 December 2023
F423 8,733,357 8,158 18,719 8,760,234
AEF R Profit for the year 124,179 - = 124,179
Hmw %/ (58) Other comprehensive income/(10ss)
AFHEE ftﬁr)\ﬁ f2E  Change in the fair value of
llﬁzmwi &L NG debt securities at FVOCI - 15,213 = 15,213

ARAEESPEFARMRE  Change in the loss allowance of
Hﬁl M ERESEBREE debt securities at FVOC

£ - 147 - 147
MR SRR TR Change in the fair value of hedging
ATEES instruments at cash flow hedge - - (20,022) (20,022)

AEE2EN/(FR)®% Total comprehensive income/(l0ss)
for the year 124,179 15,360 (20,022) 119,517

R-Z-@m&+=-A=+—H Balance as at 31 December 2024
F93 8,857,536 23,518 (1,303) 8,879,751
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36. EENX S - RHMEHDH 36,

37.

38.

EXFIERAR

BRPMEEST AT EEE SN - R R F AEM
KE - AFEASBEAKEES—T
HARBEBBEEZR AFANBRESF
MATEABEER(REARIKRIDE
B)EETAEERIMEEANEHENE
AR5 RHMEL -

EERBEREMESRE

RZE-_RE-_A_1+ME  ¢@pEEHE
BFRBINEESHARFFEAEES0EE
TAEBRA - BERNELSEMARRAEE
FELRNAMEINEE  BHNERRIFES
FELRRINEMNENBR—EKFE -

BBMBRR

BEERRN _ZE-_AFAA -t BHAABARN
B 7Rk o

37.

38.

Directors” material interests in transactions,
arrangements and contracts

Apart from those disclosed in Note 31, there was no other
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to
the Company’s business, to which any member of the Group was
a party, and in which any person who was a Director at any time
during the year or a connected entity (as defined in the Companies
Ordinance) of any such person had, directly or indirectly, a material
interest, which subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Events after balance sheet date

On 24 February 2025, the Monetary Authority through the
Exchange Fund injected capital of HK$5 billion into the Company
as equity for the sole purpose of financing the Company’s
additional capital injection into the HKMCA for the sole purpose of
maintaining the HKMCA's margin of solvency above a certain level.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors
on 26 May 2025.
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Abbreviations used in this Report

100% Guarantee Product
ALCO

AMIGOS

AML

Annulity Plan

BLRs

CAR

cc

CNH

Code

Code of Conduct
COVID-19

CRC

CSA

CSM

DIP

Directors

DLGS

ECL

ESG

ESGC

e-Taxis

Financial Secretary
Financial Statements

FVOCI

FVPL
Government
GHG

GHG Protocol
Group
Guidelines
HIBOR
HKASS

HKD

HKFRSs
HKICPA
HKMA
HKMC/Corporation/Company
HKMCA
HKMCI
HKQAA
HKRBC
HKSAR
HKSAS
HMML

IA

IFS

IFSCMC

Special 100% Loan Guarantee

Asset and Liability Committee

AMIGOS By HKMC

Anti-Money Laundering

HKMC Annuity Plan

Best Lending Rates

Capital Adequacy Ratio

Credit Committee

Offshore Renminbi

Corporate Governance Code of the HKMC

Code of Conduct for the HKMC's staff

Coronavirus Disease 2019

Corporate Risk Management Committee

Credit Support Annex

Contractual service margin

Debt Issuance Programme

Directors of the Corporation

Dedicated 100% Loan Guarantee Schemes

Expected credit loss

Environmental, Social and Governance

Environmental, Social and Governance Committee

Battery Electric Taxis

The Financial Secretary of the Government

Audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2024

Fair value through other comprehensive income

Fair value through profit or loss

The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
Greenhouse Gas

Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard
The Company and its subsidiaries

Guidelines on Capital Adequacy Ratio

Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate

Hong Kong Accounting Standards

Hong Kong Dollar

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong Monetary Authority

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited &8 2B E 5 AR A 7
HKMC Annuity Limited &5 F £ B R A A

HKMC Insurance Limited &8 L FE R AR A7)

Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency

Hong Kong Risk-Based Capital

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region

Hong Kong Standards on Auditing

HKMC Mortgage Management Limited &8 & B E R AR A7)
Insurance Authority

Infrastructure Financing and Securitisation

Infrastructure Financing and Securitisation Collateral Manager Committee

410 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2024



IFSIC Infrastructure Financing and Securitisation Investment Committee

ILBS Infrastructure Loan-Backed Securities

IP Investment Portfolio

IRM Information Risk Management Department

kwh Kilowatt-hour

LED Light-Emitting Diode

LEED Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design
LIC Liability for incurred claim

LRC Longevity Risk Committee

LTGP Long Term Growth Portfolio

LTV Loan-to-value

MBS Mortgage-backed securities

MIP Mortgage Insurance Programme

MOCE Margin Over Current Estimate

Moody's Moody's Investors Service, Inc.

MPP Mortgage Purchase Programme

MTN Medium Term Note

ORC Operational Risk Committee

PBO Prevention of Bribery Ordinance

PCAF Partnership for Carbon Accounting Financials
PLGS 100% Personal Loan Guarantee Scheme

PM Principal Moratorium

PRMP Policy Reverse Mortgage Programme

QR code Quick Response code

RC Risk Committee

RILBP Responsible Investment, Lending and Business Decision-making Principles
RMP Reverse Mortgage Programme

S&P S&P Global Ratings

SFGS SME Financing Guarantee Scheme

SGS Framework Social, Green and Sustainability Financing Framework
SMES Small and medium enterprises/Small and medium-sized enterprises
SPE Special purpose entity

SPPI Solely payments of the principal and interest
SWG Sustainability Working Group

TAC Transaction Approval Committee

tCOe Tonnes of Carbon Dioxide Equivalent

UN SDGs United Nations' Sustainable Development Goals
usb United States Dollar
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